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The Honorable Manny Cid, Mayor 

Members of the Town Council 

Citizens of the Town of Miami Lakes 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are pleased to present the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town") Annual 

Comprehensive Financial Report (" ACFR") for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 

2021, according to Florida State Statute and of the Rules of the Auditor General. The 

financial statements included in the report conform to Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") as prescribed by the Government 

Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). The responsibility for both the accuracy of the 

presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all 

disclosures, rests with the Town. 

This report may be accessed via our new financial transparency module "Transparent Miami 

Lakes" at: https://townofmiamilakes.finance.socrata.com/#!/dashboard and kindly click on this 

link, or navigate to our "Related Content" section in the "Transparent Miami Lakes" module 

to access our financial reports, budgets, investment holdings, and more. 

The financial statements have been audited by Garcia, Espinosa, Miyares, Rodriguez, 

Trueba & Co., LLC a licensed certified public accounting firm. The goal of the 

independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the Town's financial 

statements for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2021, are free of material 

misstatements. The independent audit involved examining (on a test basis) evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and 

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor 

concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 

unmodified opinion that the Town's financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended 

September 30, 2021, are fairly presented in conformity with the Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles (GAAP). The independent auditor's report is presented as the 

first component of the financial section of this report. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the 

independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, 

and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this 

letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

https://townofmiamilakes.finance.socrata.com/#!/dashboard
www.miamilakes-fl.gov


PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The Town of Miami Lakes was incorporated on December 5, 2000. It is one of the 34 municipalities in Miami

Dade County, Florida, and is conveniently located just 18 miles north of Downtown Miami and only 15 miles 

from Miami International Airport. The Town encompasses about 6.8 square miles, bound by NW 170 th Street 

and the Palmetto Expressway (SR 826) to the north, NW 138 th Street to the south, NW 57 th Avenue (Red 

Road) to the east, and Interstate 75 to the west. 

Over the last 40 years, Miami Lakes has progressed from a dream on paper to reality. This vibrant 

community is nationally recognized as one of the best examples of unique and innovative town planning. 

Land use in the Town is predominantly low-density residential. The next most prevalent uses are light 

industrial and office parks comprising 13% of the Town's area, and lakes and canals making up about 11 %. 

The Town of Miami Lakes population has grown to around 31,000 residents. The 2020 census currently ranks 

the Town 12th in population size within Miami-Dade County, which is the middle of the range for city size. 

Comparable cities include Aventura on the high end of the population spectrum and Palmetto Bay on the 

lower end. The Town of Miami Lakes' residential area is essentially built out with only a handful of large 

parcels that are undeveloped. 

Government Structure and Services Provided 
The Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The Town Council consists of the Mayor 

and six at-large members and the Mayor is a voting member of the Council. The members of the Council are 

limited to two consecutive four-year terms, and they are responsible for policymaking and legislative 

authority, passing ordinances, resolutions, adopting the budget, and appointing committees. The Town 

Council is responsible for the selection and appointment of the Town Manager and the Town Attorney. The 

Town Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and laws of the Town Council, overseeing the 

daily operations of the Town, and appointing and managing all department heads and their subordinates. 

The Town of Miami Lakes provides a full range of municipal services including recreation and culture, 

public safety, public works, and administrative services for its residents and businesses. The Town operates 

through nine main departments: Administration, Building, Code Compliance, Parks & Community Services, 

Finance/Budget, Planning, Police, Public Works, and Community Outreach. With only around 50 full-time 

and 20 part-time/seasonal staff members, the Town relies heavily on contractors for the provision of various 

public services. The Town provides police protection through a contract with Miami-Dade County, wherein 

police officers are assigned to the Town, and act under the direction of a Police Major, reporting directly to 

the Town Manager. Fire-Rescue services and solid waste management services are provided by Miami-Dade 

County directly and assessed separately on the property tax bill. Water and sewer services are provided 

and billed directly to the users by the Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department. 
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The 2021 preliminary taxable property values for the Town of Miami Lakes increased to $3,767,371,566 or 

an increase of 3.58% from the prior year's taxable value of $3,636,955,722. The average Town residential 

taxable value for 2021 is $233,368 which is 9.83% higher than the prior year's $212,476. 

Based on the latest information from the U.S. Census Bureau, the Town's per capita income has remained 

strong and higher than the Miami-Dade Metropolitan Statistical Area ("Miami-Dade MSA") and the State of 

Florida (the "State"). The Town's per capita income as of 2021 was estimated at $47,312 while Miami-Dade 

MSA and the State's per capita personal income based on the 2020 census were $28,224 and $31,619, 

respectively. The Town has also benefitted from a relatively low unemployment rate. In September 2021, 

the unemployment rate was 5.2% in the County and 3.1 % in the Town. 

In December 2020, the Fitch Rating review affirmed the Town's Special Obligation Bond rating at AA+ with 

and Moody's Rating at Aa2. These ratings reflect the Town's solid revenue framework and expenditure 

flexibility, nominal fixed carrying costs, and a low long-term liability burden. Both rating agencies believe 

that the Town's superior inherent budget flexibility position is to maintain a high level of financial resilience 

throughout economic cycles to counter current and future periods of revenue volatility. 

Stormwater Utility System Revenue Bond Series 2021 - (Green Bond) 

In July of 2021, the Town issued a $15.5 million utility revenue bond to complete an estimated 16 Stormwater 

drainage projects, yielding a $3.25 million premium and thereby increasing our bond debt service to $18.75 

million. To meet the Stormwater bond 2021 debt service payment and other related expenses, the Town 

increased the Stormwater Monthly Equivalent Residential Unit "ERU" rate from $4.50 to $10.50 generating 

an additional $1.5 million annually. Quoting from the Bond 2021 Official Statement, "The Series 2021 Project 

consists of the design, permitting, and construction of the new drainage systems involving French drains, 

manholes, catch basins with pollution retardant baffles to mitigate flooding and provide water quality and 

quantity treatment. These systems will connect with existing drainage infrastructure to improve the level of 

service." The Town restricted all proceeds to the new drainage projects and created a financial fund (Bond 

Series 2021 - #402) to account for the infrastructure cost, interest revenue, expenses, and other transactions. 

Moody's Analytics rated the bond at Al, while Fitch Ratings rated the same at A+. 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 

ARPA was signed into law by President Joseph Biden on March 11, 2021, allocating $350 billion in fiscal 

recovery funds to State, Local, Tribal and Territorial Governments. Due to its population, the Town of Miami 

Lakes is considered a non-entitlement municipality and therefore received $15,710,276 in funds. In 

September of 2021, the Town received $7,855,138 or 50% of the total allocated funds, and it is scheduled to 

receive the remainder in the summer of 2022. Additionally, Town restricted all funds to around 13 

Stormwater drainage projects which will need to be completed by December 31, 2026, and created a financial 

fund (ARP-#405) to account for the infrastructure cost, interest revenue, and other expenses. 

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 

A significant measure of the Town's financial strength is the level of its fund balances (i.e. the accumulation 

of revenues exceeding expenditures). In Fiscal Year 2021 the unassigned general fund balance is 

approximately $4.8 million which is $800,000 more than the Fiscal Year 2020. The Fiscal Year 2021 millage 

rate reflects the Council's commitment to maintaining a low tax rate. The continued low rates require the 

prioritization of resources exclusively to the core municipal government functions, infrastructure 

improvements, and the beautification of the Town's right of ways while maintaining strong internal controls. 
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The Town updated and adopted a 10-year Strategic Plan in Fiscal Year 2015 and continues to work on 

transparency and communication via "Imagine Miami Lakes 2025" which has a dedicated website by the 

same name. Please visit www .lmaginemiamilakes2025.com for more information. 

The Town Council policy requires a minimum reserve of 20% of the operating expenditures in the General 

Fund. The actual unassigned general fund balance at the end of the fiscal year 2021 is $4.8 million, 

representing 29% of the general fund operating expenditures for the year, and 9% above the established 

policy. The Town complies with this policy as of September 30, 2021, and is in a solid financial position. As 

previously mentioned, the Town is successful in managing operating costs effectively through a limited 

number of municipal staff administering private service contracts. This leaves the Town with no unions 

and limited pension liabilities. With relatively low unemployment rates and a stable revenue outlook, the 

Town is in a favorable position of financial strength. Since its inception, the Town has adopted a five-year 

capital improvement plan. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Accounting Control 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure 

that the assets of the Town are protected from loss, theft, or misuse; and to ensure that adequate accounting 

data is captured in the Town's financial management system to allow for the preparation of financial 

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The 

internal control structure is designed to provide reasonably, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives 

are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the 

benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 

management. As a recipient of federal, state, and local financial assistance, the Town is also responsible for 

ensuring an adequate internal control structure to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws 

and regulations related to these programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation 

by management. In addition, the Town maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these 

controls is to ensure compliance with policy and implementation provisions embodied in the annual 

appropriated budget approved by the Town Council. 

The financial management system provides financial controls for the Town. The implementation of MUNIS 

in 2012 coincided with the rewrite and implementation of the revised Town's Procurement Ordinance. 

Because an ERP system implementation is a never-ending task, the automation of processes will continue 

to improve, and specific policies and procedures will continue to be developed to support improved 

processes. Beginning in 2015, we continued making strides by improving our financial reporting 

capabilities. We also made several changes to our internal controls ensuring proper segregation of duties 

and making sure that our account structure followed state regulations. In 2016 we emphasized streamlining 

and automating our procurement and accounts payable electronic process, while in 2017 we focused on user 

role securities, and reporting. 

In 2018 we purchased a financial transparency module that provides access to almost real-time data 

regarding funds, categories, departments, vendors' payments, and more. This module was implemented 

and publicly released in the fiscal year 2020. By the middle of the fiscal year 2022, we will adopt a paperless 

environment relying on our robust data backup redundancies and capabilities. 

Budgetary Controls 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town's financial planning and control. Departmental 
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allocations are based on long-range planning efforts, such as the Town's Strategic Plan, Stormwater Master 

Plan, and the Transportation Master Plan. All Town departments are required to submit requests for 

appropriation to the Town's Administration Department before the presentation and setting of the 

preliminary millage by the Town Council. The Administration Department uses these requests as a starting 

point to assist the Town Manager in developing a Manager's Proposed Budget. A preliminary millage rate 

must be adopted no later than July 30th of each year. The Council is required to hold two public budget 

hearings on the Proposed Budget and to enact an Approved Budget no later than September 30th. The 

Approved Budget is prepared by the fund, department, and line item within departments. The Town 

Manager may approve transfers of appropriations within a department up to a limit of $700 per line item 

per month. Transfers of appropriations more than $700 per month (cumulative), and between departments, 

require approval of the Town Council. Budget-to-Actual comparisons are provided in this report for the 

General Fund as part of the Required Supplementary Information. Comparisons for all other funds' budget

to-actual may be found in the Supplementary Information section. Town budgetary information can be also 

found in the Transparency Module. 

Proprietary Funds Operations 

The Town provides the following proprietary funds: 

1. Stormwater Utility Fund -This Enterprise Fund is responsible for maintaining the Town's Stormwater 

drains and conveyance system and planning and constructing system expansions. 

2. Internal Service Fund - This fund accounts for activities that provide goods and/or services to other 

departments or cost centers. We specifically allocate to the police, building, and administration 

departments. 

Cash Management 

The Town of Miami Lakes is charged with the security of the Town's funds and assets to maximize return 

on surplus cash. The Town adopted a formal Investment Policy and acquired financial advisory services in 

an ongoing effort to maximize investment income through broader investment opportunities while 

preserving capital. As requested by the Council, we conducted an "Investment Policy Workshop" in the 

fiscal year 2020, geared to review, educate, and clarify the policy in detail. The Town's primary investment 

instruments for Fiscal Year 2021 were money market accounts and certificates of deposit. No investment is 

made for any commitment longer than two years and during 2021, the Town earned $ 59,845 in investment 

income, as compared to $ 164,839 earned in Fiscal Year 2020. This reduction is attributed to the financial 

market downturn due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Our investments decisions are made by Town staff after 

considering the advice from our investment consultant and investment committee which meets triannually. 

Risk Management 

In 2021, The Town changed the general liability, automobile, property, and casualty insurance, as well as 

workers' compensation coverage to Public Risk Management of Florida, saving over $100,000 annually. The 

Town continually reviews risk exposures and determines the most cost-effective method of mitigating those 

exposures, by providing safety training and maintaining infrastructures like sidewalks and roadways. For 

more information on insurance coverage, insurer, the policy period, and premium, please refer to the last 

page of our statistical section in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

V 



MAJOR CAPITAL PROTECTS INITIATIVES 

1. THE FOLLOWING ARE SIGNIFICANT PROTECTS COMPLETED DURING FY2021: 

• Safe Routes to School (Miami Lakeway South) - $1,064,377 

• Jakey Duque Park, Phasel (NW 154 Street Bridge Park) - $131,065 

• West Lake Neighborhood Reforestation, Phase 5 of 5 - $96,031 

2. OTHER SIGNIFICANT PROTECTS UNDERWAY IN FY2021 INCLUDE: 

• West Lake Drainage and Roadway Improvement, Phase 3 

The total Estimated Project Cost is $2.18 million. The Stormwater Master Plan identified the West Lakes area as a 

priority for stormwater improvements. The project consists of a complete drainage system retrofit and installation of 

drainage pipes in residential local roads and exfiltration trenches (French Drains) connecting to existing underground 

infrastructure, leading to an outfall. New structures and inlets will increase capacity. The Town received $600,000 in 

State Legislative funding towards Phases 1 and 2 which were completed in FY2016 and FY2017, respectively. The 

underground infrastructure installed during these Phases is the main system which West Lakes Drainage 

Improvements Phase 3 new structures and inlets will intersect, thus completing the drainage system. 

In FY2018, the Town received $1,462,499.95 in grant funding from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) through the State of Florida for Phase 3, which was subsequently increased 

to $1,555,872 in FY2020. Additionally, $500,000 in State Legislative funds was also received for this project, and 

construction is expected to be completed in FY2022. 

• NW 59 th Avenue Roadway Extension and Redevelopment 

Total Estimated Project Cost is $8.1 million. The project includes the acquisition of a .86-acre parcel from the Miami

Dade Aviation Department and .84-acre of private property along NW 151st Street for the design and construction of a 

new bridge and roadway extending from NW 59th A venue over the C-8 Canal south to NW 151 st Street, thereby 

providing public access that will facilitate increased economic opportunities, commerce, and local jobs. The project will 

incorporate the Complete Streets elements on the bridge that includes 11 ft. travel lanes, 10 ft. shared use paths which 

will be separated from the roadway by a 12 ft. swale. The project also includes conceptual design for the whole street 

concept and construction drawing from Complete Streets components and permitting on the NW 151 st Street/NW 153rd 

Street corridor. 

In FY2018 the Town was awarded a $3.6 million competitive grant from FDOT for the construction of the NW 59th 

Avenue project. This includes design ($240,500), land acquisition (900,000), construction ($2,401,500), construction 

engineering and inspection ($72,500). The grant requires a 50% match of which funds are earmarked from People's 

Transportation Plan (PTP 80%) ($2.4 million), 3 Cents Gas Tax ($300,000), and the remainder anticipated from Miami

Dade County Road Impact Fees ($1.8 million). The Town is in the process of securing approval from the Florida 

Aviation Administration and South Florida Water Management District and acquiring the private property. 
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MAJOR CAPITAL PROTECTS INITIATIVES (continuation) 

• Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan 

The Town Council adopted the Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan in 2003. Today, the total estimated project cost 

is $26.5 million and will be proposed via a referendum in November 2022. 

In FY2018, a contract for field design work was awarded for $470,000 which is currently underway and is expected to 

be completed in FY2022. 

3. Other initiatives in the FY 2022 Budget include: 
• Stormwater Infrastructure Improvement - $26,119,138 
• Robert Alonso Comm. Center Critical Facility Energy Resiliency Project - $525,000 
• Royal Oaks First Addition Drainage Improvement - $440,220 
• Streetlights Improvement Project - $435,636 

• NW 146th Street Greenway Project (Green 2.0) - $266,706 

• Senior Center Buildout - $250,000 
• Optimist Clubhouse Storage Facility Renovation - $189,961 
• Freebee Service Expansion - $171,130 
• Par 3 Park - $150,000 
• MLOP Field Portable Shelters - $88,000 
• Safe Routes to School-Bob Graham Education Center - $56,267 (design) 
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

The Town received the fo llowing awards during FY 2021: 

Tree City USA Designation - 15th Consecutive Year 

Tree City USA Award is provided by The Arbor Day Foundation, in cooperation with the National 

Association of State Foresters and the USDA Forest Service, to recognize environmental improvement and 

encourage higher levels of tree care throughout America. This award is designed not only to recognize 

achievement but also to communicate new ideas and help the leaders of all Tree City USAs plan for 

improving community tree care. 

Growth Award 13th Consecutive Year 

Tree City USA Growth Award is given to communities that go beyond the four standards of Tree City USA 

that demonstrate improvement and growth of local tree care. 

Excellence in Financial Reporting Recognition 9th Consecutive Year 

Awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance 

Officers Association of the United States for its comprehensive annual financial report for FY 2020. 

Better Cities for Pets Program Award - 3rd Year 

Named a Certified City in the Better Cities for Pets™ program. This program helps cities be pet-friendly so 

more people can enjoy the benefits of a life with pets. It was created by mars Petcare and includes a playbook 

for cities, an assessment tool, a city certification program, and free online resources. 

All American City Finalist -2010 I 2013 I 2020 

The All-America City Award is a community recognition program in the United States given by the National Civic 

League. The award recognizes the work of communities in using inclusive civic engagement to address critical issues 

and create stronger connections among residents, businesses, non-profit, and government leaders. 
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GRANTS AND GOVERNMENT AL AFFAIRS 

The Mission of the Grants and Governmental Affairs Office is to pursue, secure, and administer federal, state, local, 

foundation, and legislative grants to assist in funding the Goals and Objectives of the Town's Strategic Plan. 

The Office serves as the Town's liaison to funding organizations to ensure effective communication and administration 

throughout the grant process, including the execution of grant contracts and agreements, administration of each open 

contract and agreement, and submission of applicable progress, expenditure, desk monitoring, and closeout reporting 

requirements. In addition, the Office assists the Town Manager with composing and submitting legislative 

appropriation requests to acquire discretionary funding for legislative priorities and capital projects to enhance the 

vibrancy and sustainability of the Town. In addition, the Office collaborates with the Finance Department and Project 

Managers to ensure that the Town receives grant reimbursements through reconciliation of expenditures with funding 

awards. 

In FY2021, the cumulative grant awards surpassed $1.359 million. 

Grants Secured during October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021: $1,359,349 

• $525,000 - Rebuild Florida Community Development Block Grant-Mitigation (CDBG-MIT) Critical Facility 

Hardening Program (CFHP) for the Roberto Alonso Community Center Critical Facility Energy Resiliency 

(New Generator) Project to ensure this facility and backup EOC has reliable, maximum, and continuous 

emergency energy supply in the event of power failures, storms, or natural disasters in the Town. 

• $440,220 -State of Florida General Appropriations Act by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(DEP) for the Miami Lakes Royal Oaks First Addition Drainage Improvements Project to improve drainage, 

reduce localized flooding, increase drainage capacity, improve stormwater management, eliminate standing 

rainwater, and reduce impacts to property and life. 

• $171,730 -Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Service Development Grant Program for the Miami 

Lakes Freebee Public Transit Service Expansion Project to expand our existing Freebee services to include new 

routes, expanded hours, and connections to the Palmetto Metrorail Station regional transit. 

• $122,700 - Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding 

(CESF) to prepare for, prevent the spread of, and respond to the coronavirus. 

• $50,000 - Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding 

(CESRF) Local Residual Funding Program to prepare for, prevent the spread of, and respond to the coronavirus. 

• $45,756 -Miami-Dade County (MDC) Neat Streets Miami Matching Street Trees Grants Program for the Miami 

Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 5 Project to enhance tree canopy in a low tree canopy neighborhood, 

provide shade, and create memorable landscape and beautification by planting 183 Florida-friendly canopy 

trees in the West Lakes community. 

• $3,943 -Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Justice Assistance Grant Direct (JAGC) Program for 

the Miami Lakes Police Bicycle Equipment Project to purchase and deploy four (4) new police bicycles for 

bicycle patrol officers in Miami Lakes. 

ix 



GRANTS A N D  G OVERNMENT A L  AFFAIRS (C ont inua tion) 
Grant Closeouts are required to reconcile financial expenditures associated with funding awards. Grant Closeouts 

ensure all applicable administrative actions and proposed work is completed by the grantee at the end of a contract or 

project term. Failure to submit timely and accurate reports affects reimbursement and impacts future funding for the 

organization. 

G rant  Funded  Proje cts  C l o s e d  e n ding S eptember  30, 2 0 2 1 :  
• Miami Lakes Canal Bank Stabilization Project Phase II - $998,997.45 (fina l  grant award at closeout) 

• Royal Oaks Park (ROP) Energy Efficient Sports Field Lighting - $208,501 .84 (final grant award at closeout) 

• Miami Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 4 Project - $33,275 (final grant award at closeout) 

• Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESF) - $122,700 

• Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESRF) Local Residual Funding Program - $50,000 

• Miami Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 5 - $45,756 

I f  you  need  m o re i n fo r m a t i o n , p l ease  c o n t a c t  t h e  T o w n  o f  M i a m i  L a kes a t  (305 )  364-6 1 00 a n d  a s k  

f o r  the  fi n a n ce d e p a r t m e n t .  You  m a y  a l s o  s e n d  a n  e m a i l  to f i n ance@m i a m i l a ke s - f l .gov . 

X 
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https://208,501.84
https://998,997.45
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GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 

IN DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Counci l  and  Town Manager 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the acco m panying fi nancia l  statements of the governmenta l  activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund i nformation of the Town of Miami Lakes, F lorida 

{the "Town"}, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financia l  

statements, which col lectively co mprise the Town's basic financia l  statements as listed i n  the table of 

contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible fo r the preparation and fai r  presentation of these fina ncial  statements in  

accorda nce with accounting princip les general ly accepted in  the Un ited States of America; th is inc ludes the 

design, im plementation, and maintenance of interna l  control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 

of fina ncial  statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due  to fraud or e rro r. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our  responsibi lity is to express o pinions o n  th ese fi nancia l  statements based o n  o u r  aud it. We co nducted our  

a udit i n  accorda nce with auditing sta ndards genera l ly accepted in  the Un ited States of America and the 

standards appl icable to financia l  audits contained i n  Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Co m ptrol ler General of the U n ited States. Those sta ndards req uire that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fina ncial statements a re free of m aterial misstatement. 

An audit involves perfo rming procedu res to obtain audit evidence about the amou nts and disclosures in  the 

fi nancia l  statements. The p rocedu res selected depend o n  the auditors' j udgme nt, i nc luding the assessment of 

the risks of m aterial misstatement of the financia l  statements, whether due to fraud or  error.  In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal  control relevant to the Town's preparation and fair 

presentation of the fi nancia l  statements in  o rder to design audit procedu res that a re appropriate in the 

circu mstan ces, but not for the pu rpose of expressing an opin ion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal 

contro l .  Accordingly, we express no such opin ion .  An audit a lso incl udes eva luating the a ppropriateness of 

acco u nting policies used and the reasonableness of significant acco u nting estimates made by management, as 

well as eva luating the overa l l  p resentation of the financia l  statements. 

We bel ieve that the a udit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for o u r  

a udit o pinions.  

Opinions 

I n  our  opinion, the financial stateme nts referred to above present fairly, in  a l l  material respects, the 

respective fi nancia l  position of the governm ental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 

the aggregate remain ing fund information of the Town of Miami Lakes, F lorida, as of September 30, 2021, and 

the respective changes i n  financia l  position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for  the yea r  then ended 

in  accordance with accounting pri nciples genera l ly accepted i n  the Un ited States of America. 

GARCIA, E S P !  N O SA,  M IYAR E S ,  R O D R I G U E Z ,  TRU E BA & C O . ,  L L P  

C E RTI FI E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U NTANTS & ADVI S O RS 
2600 Douglas Road, Su ite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I www.gemrtcpa.com 

www.gemrtcpa.com


Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles genera lly accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 

discussion and ana lysis, budgetary comparison schedules, other post-employment benefits schedule, and 

pension schedules on pages 4-11, 55-57, 58, and 59-62, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic 

financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 

have applied certa in lim ited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 

with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an  opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the l imited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 

express an  opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor 

fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental schedule, and statistical section are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional ana lysis as required by 

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, and schedule 

of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 

statements and certa in additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 

to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor 

fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental schedule, and schedule of expenditures 

of federal awards are fairly stated in a l l  material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 

whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 

audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on them. 
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Other Reportirg Required � Go\ernmenr Auditing Standards 

In acmrdance with Government Auditing Standards, we ha>Je at oissued our report dated Mardi 25, 2022, on 

our mnsideration of the Town ' s internal control CNer finan cial reporti ng and on our tests of ts compliancei 
with certai n provis ons of I�, regul at o n  mntracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purp osei i s, 
of that report is to descrbe the scope of our testi� of intern a  control over financi a reporti ng andi l l 
compl iance and the results of that testi ng, and not to provide an opi nion on nterna control over financi ali l 
reporti� or on compliance. That report is an integra part of an audit performed in accordance withl 
Government Auditing Srzmdords in consider� the Town's i nternal comrol CNer financial rep orti ng andi 
compl iance. 

es, Fl or daCoral Gabl i 
March 25, 2022 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAG E M ENT'S D ISCUSS ION AN D ANALYS IS  
S EPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

The ma nagement of the Town of Miami La kes offe rs the readers of ou r  fina ncia l statements a na rrative ove rview and  

ana lysis o f  t he  Town's fina ncia l a ctivities fo r t he  fisca l yea r ended  September  30, 2021 .  We e n co u rage ou r  rea d e rs to  
co nsid e r  t he  info rmatio n p resented in  t his disc u ssio n and  a na lysis in  co nj u nctio n with a dd itio n a l  info rm atio n t ha t  
i s  p rovided in  t he  l ette r of t ra nsmitta l ,  t h e  fin a n cia l state me nts, a n d  t he  acco m pa nying no tes  to the  fin a ncia l 
state m e nts .  

Financia l  H igh l ights for the Fisca l Year  2021 

• At the c lose of the fisca l yea r the Town's tota l a ssets and  defe rred outflows exceeded its lia bilities and  defe rred 

inflows by $52 .8  mil lio n ( net position ) .  Of this amount, $2 .7  mil lion ( u n restricted net position )  may be used to meet 
the Town's ongoing ob ligations to citizens and  creditors. 

• The Town's tota l net position increased by app roximately $3 . 3  mil lion d u ring the cu rrent fisca l yea r. 

• Net position of the Town's business-type activities increased by app roximately $ 1 .4 mi l l ion  and  increased by 

app roximately $1 . 9  mil lion fo r govern menta l activities .  Ca pita l contributions from governmenta l activities to 

business-type activities accounted main ly fo r the increase in the  business-type activities .  

• As of the c lose of the cu rrent fisca l yea r, the Town's governmenta l fu nds reported com bined fu nd ba l a nces of $ 13 .8  
mil lio n, a n  increase of $ 1 .8 mil lion in compa rison with the prio r yea r main ly due  to  a genera l  fu nd,  a bui lding 
department, and a ca pita l fu nd operating su rp l us .  Approximately $4.8 mil lion, o r  35%, of the ending fu nd ba l a nces 
amount, is availa b le  fo r spending at the government's discretion ( u nassigned fu nd ba l a nce ) .  

• At the end of the cu rrent fisca l yea r, the fu nd ba l a nce fo r the genera l  fu nd was $4.9 mi l l ion  o r  29% of tota l genera l  
fu nd expenditu res .  The unassigned fu nd ba l a nce fo r t h e  genera l  fund was $4 .8 mi l l ion  o r  28 .7% o f  tota l genera l  
fu nd expenditu res .  The non-spendab le  fu nd ba l a nce was $99 thousa nd (2 .0% o f  genera l fu nd ending fu nd ba l ance ) .  
These designations  fo l low the Town's fu nd ba l a nce and  financia l po licies as  explained in the notes to  the fina ncia l 

statements. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and  ana lysis a re intended to se rve as an introduction to the basic financia l statements of the Town of Miami 

La kes and is designed to assist the reader  in focusing on  significant financia l issues, p rovide an ove rview of the Town's 

financia l activity, identify cha nges in the financia l position to add ress su bsequent yea r cha l l e nges, identify a ny materia l 
deviations from the app roved budget a nd identify individ ua l  fu nd issues o r  concerns .  

The a n nu a l  report consists of fou r  pa rts - management's discussion and analysis (this section) ,  the basic financial statements, 
required supplementary information, and  a n  additiona l  section that p rese nts combining statements fo r non-majo r 

governmenta l fu nds .  The basic financia l statements inc l ude two kinds  of statements that p resent diffe rent views of the 
Town .  

• The first two statements a re government-wide financial statements that p rovide both long-te rm and  short

term info rmation a bout the Town's ove ra l l  financia l status .  
• The remaining statements a re fund financial statements that focus  on  individ ua l  pa rts of the Town government, 

reporting the Town's operations in more detai l t han  the government-wide statements. Within the fu nd financia l 
statements a re gove rnment and  proprieta ry fu nd statements. 

• The governmental fund's statements show the financia l information for a l l  genera l  governmenta l se rvices, such as  
pub lic safety, the bui lding department, pa rks and  recreation, com m unity se rvices, a nd  others .  

• Proprietary fund, enterprise fund statement offe rs short-te rm and long-te rm fina ncia l info rmation a bout the 
activities where the government operates as  a business, in this case ,  the Town's sto rmwate r utility operations .  

• Proprietary fund, Internal service funds a re used to a l locate costs interna l ly a mong the Town's va rious  fu nctions .  

The Town uses an I nte rna l Se rvice Fund to account fo r its facilities maintena nce. 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAG E M ENT'S D ISCUSS ION AN D ANALYS IS  
S EPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

Overview of the Financia l  Statements (Continued) 

The financia l statements a lso inc l ude notes that explain some of the information in the fina ncia l statements and provide 
more detai led data . The statements a re fo l lowed by a section of required supplementary information that fu rther  explains 

and supports the info rmation in the financia l statements .  In addition to these req uired e lements, inc luded is a section with 
combining statements that p rovide detai ls a bout non-major  governmenta l fu nds, each of which is added together  and  
presented i n  a sing le co l umn  i n  the basic financia l statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements - Statement of net positio n and  statement of activities found  on  pages 12 and  13 

a re designed to provide readers with a b road overview of the Town's finances, in a manner  like a p rivate secto r business. 

The statement of net positione- This Presents information on a l l  the Town's assets and  lia bilities, with the diffe rence between 
the two reported as  net position. Over time, increases o r  decreases in net  position may serve as  a usefu l indicator of whether 
the fina ncia l position of the Town is improving o r  deteriorating. 

The statement ofactivitiese- This P resents information showing how the government's net position cha nged d u ring the most 

recent fisca l yea r. A l l  cha nges in net position a re reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the cha nge occu rs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Th us, revenues and  expenses a re reported in this statement fo r some items 

that wil l  o n ly resu lt in cash f lows in futu re periods  (e .g . ,  unco l lected taxes and ea rned but u n used vacation leave ) .  

Both gove rnment-wide fina ncia l statements distinguish fu nctions o f  the Town tha t  a re p rincipa l ly su pported by  taxes and  
inte rgovernmenta l revenues (governmental activities) from other fu nctions t ha t  a re intended to  recove r a l l  o r  a significant 
portion of their costs th rough user fees and cha rges (business-type activities) .  The govern menta l activities of the Town 
inc l ude genera l  gove rnment, pub lic safety, t ra nsportation, pa rks and  recreation, and  comprehensive p la n ning. The Town's 
business-type activities consist of a Sto rmwater Utility. 

The gove rnment-wide fina ncia l statements inc l ude  on ly the Town itse lf ( known as the primary government) . 

Fund Financial Statementse- A fund is a grouping of re lated accounts that is used to maintain co ntro l  ove r resou rces that 

have been segregated for specific activities o r  objectives .  Each fu nd is a sepa rate accounting entity . The Town uses fu nd 
accounting to ensu re and  demonstrate comp lia nce with finance-re lated lega l req uirements .  The Town categorizes fu nds as  
governmenta l a nd  proprieta ry. 

Governmental Fundse- Governmental funds a re used to a ccount for essentia l ly the sa me fu nctions reported as  governmental 
activities in the gove rnment-wide financia l statements. Howeve r, u n like the govern ment-wide financia l statements, the 

governmenta l fu nd's financia l statements focus  on  near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as  we l l  a s  on  
balances of spendable resources availab l e  at the end o f  t he  fisca l yea r. Such  information may  be usefu l i n  eva l uating a 

government's nea r-term financing req uirements. 

Beca use the focus of governmenta l fu nds is na rrower tha n that of the government-wide fina ncia l statements, it is usefu l to 
compare the information presented fo r governmental funds with simila r  information presented for governmental activities 

in the gove rnment-wide financia l statements. By doing so, readers may better understa nd the long-te rm impact of the 
government's nea r-te rm financing decisions .  Both the governmenta l fu nd ba l a nce sheet and  the governmenta l fu nd 
statement of revenues, expenditu res, a nd  cha nges in fu nd ba la nces p rovide a reconci l iation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and  governmental activities. 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAG E M ENT'S D ISCUSS ION AN D ANALYS IS  
S EPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

Overview of the Financia l  Statements (Continued) 

The Town's fu nds a re p resented in sepa rate fu nd financia l statements. These funds a re p resented in a Govern menta l Fund  
Financia l Statement and  a P roprieta ry Fund ( Business-type) Financia l Statement .  The Town's majo r funds  a re p rese nted in  
sepa rate co l umns  on  the fund financia l statements. The fu nds that do not  meet the crite ria of a major fu nd a re conside red 
non-major fu nds and a re combined into a sing le co l umn  on  the fu nd fina ncia l statements. 

At the c losing of the fisca l yea r ended September  30, 202 1, the fo l l owing were c lassified as  major fu nds :  The Genera l  Fu nd, 
the Bui lding Depa rtment Fund, and the Ca pita l P rojects Fund .  A l l  other governmenta l fu nds  a re com bined into a sing le 
co l umn  on  the governmenta l fu nd's  financia l statements. The individ ua l  fu nd data fo r the non-major fu nds is found  in the 

combining statements section .  

The Town adopts a n  a n n u a l  a ppropriated budget fo r its Genera l  F u nd  as  we l l  as  its othe r  governmenta l fu nds .  Budgeta ry 

compa risons have been presented fo r fu nds that compa re not on ly actua l  resu lts to budget (budgeta ry basis) but a l so the 
o rigina l adopted budget to the fin a l  budget. The budget to a ctua l  comparison for the Genera l  Fund  and  the Bui lding 
Depa rtment Fund is p resented on  pages 55-56 of the req uired supp lementa ry information and other governmenta l fu nds 
a re p resented begin ning on  page 63 .  

The basic governmenta l fund financia l statements ca n be found  on  pages 14 th rough 17 of this report .  

P roprieta ry Funds - Proprietary funds a re those fu nds where the Town cha rges a user fee to recover costs . P rop rieta ry 
fu nds p rovide the same type of information as  the government-wide fina ncia l statements but in more detai l . The Town 
maintains two proprieta ry fu nds, one  conside red an "Enterprise Fund" and an " I nte rna l  Se rvice Fund" .  

Enterprise funds a re used to fina nce and  account fo r the acq uisition, ope ration, and  maintena nce of facilities and  se rvices 
that a re intended to be entire ly or predomina nt ly se lf-supporting t h rough the co l lection of cha rges from externa l customers .  
E nterprise fu nds a re used to report the sa me fu nctions p resented as  business-type activities in the government-wide 
financia l statements. The Town uses an ente rprise fu nd to account for its Sto rmwate r Utility Operations .  

Internal Service Fund is  defined as  a fu nd that p rima ri ly p rovides either  benefits o r  goods or  se rvices to other fu nds, 
departments, o r  agencies of government on  a cost-reim bu rsement basis, with the goa l to ' b rea k-even '  rather  than  to 
generate a p rofit . 

The basic p roprieta ry fu nd financia l statements ca n be found  on  pages 18 th rough 20 of this report .  

Notes to the Basic F inancial Statements - The notes p rovide additiona l  info rmation that is essentia l to a fu l l  understa nding 
of the data p rovided in the gove rnment-wide and fu nd financia l statements .  The notes to the financia l statements ca n be 
found  on  pages 21 th rough 54 of this report .  

Other I nformation - In addition to the ba sic fina ncia l statements and  accompa nying notes, this report a l so p resents certain 

req uired supp lementa ry information concerning the Town's budgeta ry comparison schedu les .  

The combined statements refe rred to ea rlie r in connection with non-major governmenta l fu nds a re p resented im mediately 

fo l lowing the req uired supp lementa ry info rmation .  Com bining and individ ua l  fu nd statements a nd other sched u les ca n be 
found  on pages 63 th rough 70 of this report .  This yea r  we added a conso lidated ente rprise fu nd schedu le, detai ling the 
ope rations, bond series 202 1, and  ARPA fu nds fo r the Sto rmwate r Fund .  This statement cou l d  be found  on  page 70 .  
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAG E M ENT'S D ISCUSS ION AN D ANALYS IS  
S EPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

Government-Wide Financial Ana lysis 

The Government-wide Financia l Statements were designed so that the user ca n determine if the Town is in a bette r o r  worse 
financia l condition from the prio r yea r. The Town's ove ra l l  a ssets and  defe rred outflows exceeded lia bilities and  defe rred 
inflows by $52 .8  mil lion  at the close of the most recent fisca l yea r. 

Town of M iami Lakes, Florida 
Summary of Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tota l Primary Government 

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 

Cu rrent assets $ 17,492,522 $ 16,080,715 $ 27,300,768 $ 399,607 $ 44,793,290 $ 16,480,322 

Ca pita l a ssets, net 35,744,680 36,192,871 13,967,580 12,796, 511  49,7 12,260 48,989,382 

Tota l a ssets 53,237,202 52,273,586 41,268,348 13, 196, 118 94,505,550 65,469,704 

Defe rred outflows of 
resou rces - pension 999,224 1, 160,338 36,889 46, 125 1,036, 113  1,206,463 

Cu rrent lia bilities 3 ,922,215  4,369, 102 8, 133,794 153,850 12,056,009 4,522,952 

Noncu rrent lia bilities 9,459,375 1 1,696,892 19,028,045 485, 123 28,487,420 12, 182,015 

Tota l lia bilities 13 ,381,590 16,065,994 27, 161,839 638,973 40,543,429 16,704,967 

Defe rred inflows of 
resou rces - pension 2,049,564 491, 151  1 11,059 2 1,719 2, 160,623 5 12,870 

Net investment in ca pita l 
a ssets 28,428,460 28,533,023 13, 178,871 12,461,397 41,607,331  40,994,420 

Restricted 8,572,783 7,351,535 4,785 8,577,568 7,351,535 

U n restricted 1,804,029 992,221  848,683 120, 154 2,652,7 12 1, 1 12,375 

Tota l net position $ 38,805,272 $ 36,876,779 $ 14,032,339 $ 12,581,551  $ 52,837,611  $49,458,330 

The net investment in ca pita l a ssets, $42 mil lion o r  79% is the l a rgest po rtion of the net position .  This represents ca pita l a ssets 

( l a nd,  bui ldings, improvements, eq uipment, infra structu re, and  construction in p rogress), net of accumu lated depreciation, 
and the outsta nding re lated debt used to acq uire the assets. The Town uses these ca pita l a ssets to p rovide se rvices to citizens; 
conseq uent ly, these assets a re not availa b le  fo r futu re spending. A lthough the Town's investment in its ca pita l a ssets is 
reported net of re lated debt, it shou ld  be noted that the resou rces needed to repay this debt must be provided from other  
sou rces beca use as  p revious ly mentioned, ca pita l a ssets themse lves ca n not be used to liq uidate these lia bilities .  

An additiona l  portion of the Town's net position of $8 .6  mil lio n o r  16% rep resents resou rces that a re subject to restrictions on  
how they may  be  used . The  remaining ba l a nce o f  u n restricted ne t  position o f  $2 .7  mil l ion  o r  5%, may  be used to  meet t he  
gove rnment's ongoing ob ligations to  citizens and  credito rs. At t he  end  o f  t he  cu rrent yea r, t he  Town had positive ba l a nces in 
a l l  t h ree categories of net position, both fo r the gove rnment, as  we l l  a s  for its sepa rate governmenta l and business-type 
activities .  The same held true fo r the prio r fisca l yea r. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 

There was an increase in unrestricted net position for the governmental activities of $812 thousand and an increase in the 

business-type activities of $729 thousand due to the increase in ERU rate from $4.50 to $10.50. Also, an increase in restricted 

net position of $1.2 million is due mostly to an increase in revenue throughout a l l  funds. 

The following schedule compares revenues and expenses for the Town's operations for Fiscal Years 2021 and 2020. 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Summary of Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

FY 2021 FY 2020 

Business-Type Activities 

FY 2021 FY 2020 

Total Primary Government 

FY 2021 FY 2020 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contri butions 

Capital grants and contributions 

$ 4,325,270 

1,091,809 

1,743,136 

$ 3,743,860 

242,459 

2,395,955 

$ 1,692,827 $ 1,060,011 $ 6,018,097 

1,091,809 

1,743,136 

$ 4,803,871 

242,459 

2,395,955 

General Revenues: 

Property taxes 

Utility taxes 

Franchise taxes 

I ntergovernmental 

I nvestments income and miscellaneou

Total revenues 

7,940,228 

4,672,570 

1,208,542 

5,490,767 

s 373,367 

26,845,689 

7,417,552 

4,683,314 

455,233 

4,663,162 

549,844 

24,151,379 

6,112 

1,698,939 

2,537 

1,062,548 

7,940,228 

4,672,570 

1,208,542 

5,490,767 

379,479 

28,544,628 

7,417,552 

4,683,314 

455,233 

4,663,162 

552,381 

25,213,927 

Expenses: 

General government 

PubI ic safety 

Parks and recreation 

Transportation 

Stormwater 

I nterest expense 

Total expenses 

5,959,090 

10,515,505 

3,467,742 

2,968,332 

511,190 

23,421,859 

6,024,434 

10,622,577 

3,554,095 

2,795,296 

527,518 

23,523,920 

1,743,488 

1,743,488 

1,093,919 

1,093,919 

5,959,090 

10,515,505 

3,467,742 

2,968,332 

1,743,488 

511,190 

25,165,347 

6,024,434 

10,622,577 

3,554,095 

2,795,296 

1,093,919 

527,518 

24,617,839 

Excess (deficiency) before transfers 3,423,830 627,459 (44,549) (31,371) 3,379,281 596,088 

Transfers and contri butions (1,495,337) (956,057) 1,495,337 956,057 

Changes in net position $ 1,928,493 $ (328,598) $ 1,450,788 $ 924,686 $ 3,379,281 $ 596,088 

Net position - beginning 36,876,779 37,205,377 12,581,551 11,656,865 49,458,330 48,862,242 

Net position - ending $ 38,805,272 $ 36,876,779 $14,032,339 $ 12,581,551 $ 52,837,611 $ 49,458,330 

Governmental activities: The Town's governmental revenues increased by $2. 7 mill ion from $24.2 mill ion to $26.9 mil l ion, 

mostly attributable to franchise fees and intergovernmental revenues. Approximately 30% of the Governmental Activities' 

revenues come from property taxes, 22% from other taxes, 16% from charges for services, 20% from intergovernmental 

revenues, and the remainder from fines, investments, grants, and contributions. Governmental expenses decreased slightly 

by $102 thousand over last year. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 

legal requirements. 

Revenues: 

• Ad-Valorem taxes increased by $523 thousand as property value continue to rise. 
• Grants revenue combined increased by $197 thousand from the prior year, including the CARES Act reimbursement 

of $1 mill ion. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 

Revenues: (Continued) 

• The Intergovernmental increase of $828 thousand is mostly attributed to a surge in State sales tax of $498 thousand. 
• Charges for services mostly increased due to the building department revenue of $4 70 thousand. 
• Stormwater operating fees increased by $633 thousand due to a change in the rate from $4.50 to $10.50 per ERU. 
• Electric franchise fees increased by $753 thousand because of the renewing of our agreement with FPL. 
• Investment income/Misc. revenue decreased $177 thousand greatly attributable to lower interest rates. 

Expenses: 

• The Town's General Government cost decreased by $65 thousand. 
• Public safety expenses as compared to the prior year decreased by $107 thousand mostly due to operational savings 

in the building department. 
• Parks and recreation decreased by approximately $86 thousand generally because of lower maintenance cycles. 
• Transportation expenses increased by $173 thousand due to an increase in repairs and maintenance. 
• Stormwater expenses increased by $650 thousand due to repairs, maintenance, and the 2021 bond cost of issuance. 

Business-type activities: The Town has a Stormwater Utility business-type activity. Business-type activities increased 

the Town's total net position by $1.5 mil l ion, although the fiscal year operations yielded a $45 thousand deficit including 

depreciation. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

Governmental funds - The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 

and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. An 

unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the 

end of the fiscal year. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town and is used to account for most of its governmental activities. The 

General Fund's total fund balance on September 30, 2021, was $4.9 million and of this amount, $4.8 million or (98%) was 

unassigned. The non-spendable fund balance for prepayments was $99 thousand (2.0%). The unassigned fund balance 

represents 28. 7% of total general fund expenditures, while the total fund balance represents 29% of that same amount. 

The General Fund's total fund balance increased by $580 thousand from the previous year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $13. 7 million, an 

increase of $1.9 mill ion in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 35% of the combined fund balance, or $4.8 mil l ion, 

constitutes an unassigned fund balance available for spending at the Town's discretion. 

As of September 30, 2021, the capital projects fund had a total fund balance of $2.8 mil l ion, with no remaining funds to be 

classified as unassigned. The $947 thousand increase in fund balance from the previous year is due to the accumulation of 

restricted funds for the completion of future projects. 

As of September 30, 2021, the building department fund has a total fund balance of $2.2 mil l ion, with no remaining funds to 

be classified as unassigned. The $51 thousand increase in  fund balance from the previous year is due to the increase in 

building permit fee revenue from FY 2020 to FY 2021. 

Proprietary funds - The Town of Miami Lakes' proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 

government-wide financial statements but in greater deta il .  

The net position of the Stormwater Utility as of September 30, 2021, amounted to $14.1 mil l ion. Of this amount, $13.2 

mil l ion is invested in capital assets and $900 thousand is unrestricted. Net position increased by $1.5 mill ion from the prior 

year. Investment in capital assets increased by $717 thousand because of an increase in construction. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the Town amended the General Fund budget various times. Budget amendments typically fall 

into two categories: (1) Amendments approved for rollovers related to capital improvement projects, tasks and projects 

in progress, and prior year encumbrances; and (2) supplemental appropriations to recognize and appropriate grant revenues 

which were received after the adoption of the budget, and to provide appropriations for various other needs which had 

arisen since the adoption of the budget. At year-end, the General Fund expenditures were more than the original adopted 

budget by $75 thousand mostly due to an increase in general government expenses. However, the final amended budget 

to actual resulted in a positive variance in expenditures of $1.3 mill ion, and actual revenues were $488 thousand more than 

the final amended budget mostly due to an increase in utility and intergovernmental revenues. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

As of September 30, 2021, the Town's net investments in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 

amounted to $42 mill ion. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, infrastructure 

improvements, park facilities, furniture, and equipment. Total net investment in capital assets for governmental activities 

decreased by $105 thousand and increased by $717 thousand for business-type activities. Some projects contributing to the 

increase were the following: 

• Canal Bank Stabilization 
• Safe Routes to School 
• West Lakes Neighborhood Reforestation 
• 59th Avenue Road Extension 
• Infrastructure Additions and Components 
• Acquisition of Machinery and Equipment 
• Jakey Duque Park 
• West Lakes Reforestation PH 5 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary 

Activities Activities Government 

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 

Land $ 6,056,872 $ 6,056,872 $ $ $ 6,056,872 $ 6,056,872 

Building 8,309,414 6,578,436 8,309,414 6,578,436 

Construction in Progress 2,310,968 1,674,837 1,650,198 1,114,547 3,961,166 2,789,384 

Infrastructure 18,102,204 20,709,220 12,270,377 11,596,447 30,372,581 32,305,667 

Furniture and Fixtures 965,222 1,173,506 47,005 85,517 1,012,227 1,259,023 

Total Capital Assets, net $ 35,744,680 $36,192,871 $ 13,967,580 $ 12,796,511 $ 49,712,260 $ 48,989,382 

Additional details may be found on page 35 in the capital assets section of the notes to basic financial statements. 

Through the use of MUNIS, a Tyler Technologies product, the Town has an automated process for tracking, inventorying, 

depreciating, and reconciling the capital assets. This has significantly increased internal controls and loss prevention. All the 

capital projects are carefully categorized and accounted for to ensure the proper financial viability and realization of each. 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

MANAG E M ENT'S D ISCUSS ION AN D ANALYS IS  
S EPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

Long-Term Debt (Governmenta l On ly) 

At the end of the cu rrent fisca l yea r, the Town had  $7 . 1  mil lio n in bonds and  notes paya b le .  Du ring Fisca l Yea r  2011, the 

Town issued $7 .33 mil lion  in Town of Mia mi La kes, F lorida Specia l Ob ligation Revenue  Bonds, Fede ra l ly Taxab le  Series 2010 
(Government Center P roject) ( Bui ld America Bonds - Direct Payment )  (the "Series 2010 Bonds" ) .  Moody's I nvesto r Se rvices 
and  Fitch Ratings have rated these bonds Aa2 and  AA+, respective ly. Also inc luded in lo ng-te rm debt is the Town's 
p roportionate sha re of the F lo rida Retirement System "FRS" net pension lia bility of app roximately $ 1 .8 mil lion and roadway 
QN I P  debt with the County fo r $424 thousand .  Additiona l  info rmation on  these long-te rm debts ca n be found in Note 7 on 
pages 36  th rough 41 of this report .  

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Outstanding Debt over $500k (Governmenta l On ly) 

FY 2021 FY 2020 

Spec ia l Obl igations Bonds $ 6,723,452 $ 6,922,072 

Net Pens ion Li a bi l i ty 1,801,435 3,718,321 

QN I P  424,402 564,421 

$ 8,949, 289 $ 11,204,814 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

• The Town's unemp loyment rate for 2021 was 3 . 1%, down from 8 .6% in 2020 showing great recove ry from the 
conseq uences of the COVI D-19 pandemic. 

• The Town's residentia l property va l ue  increased by $521  thousa nd .  
• The Town's unassigned fund ba l a nce in the Genera l  Fund  is $4 .8 mil lion, a n  increase of $800 thousa nd from the 

previous yea r. 
• The property tax mil l age rate fo r the 2021 fisca l yea r  remained the sa me at 2 .3 127 mil l s  ($2 .3 127 per $ 1,000 of 

taxa b le  assessed va l uation ) .  

Some of  these facto rs were conside red in p repa ring t he  Town's budget for the 2022 fisca l yea r .  

UPDATE :  Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related Effects 

Last yea r in the fisca l yea r  2020 we reported that as a resu lt of the COVI D-19 pandemic, the Town saw a red uction in state 
revenue  sha ring taxes such as sa les tax, gas tax, and  com m unication se rvices tax that was offset by an increase in ad va lorem 
taxes and  utility tax  revenues .  Conseq uent ly, expenditure savings from lower pub lic safety, pa rks, a nd  recreation, and  pub lic 
works costs contributed to app roximate ly a $ 150 thousa nd increase in genera l  fund reserves at fisca l yea r-end .  As a n  u pdate 
to this n a rrative, the Town did not suffe r a ny losses due  to the COV I D-19 economic impact, thus  a l so attributa b le  to the 
COVI D-19 pandemic Ca res Act ma naged by Miami-Dade County. 

Requests for I nformation 

This financia l report is designed to provide a genera l  ove rview of the Town of Mia mi La kes' finances fo r a l l  those with a n  
inte rest i n  t h e  gove rnment's fina nces .  Questions conce rning a ny o f  t h e  information provided i n  this report o r  req uests fo r 

additiona l  financia l info rmation shou ld  be add ressed to : 

Town of Miami La kes 

Fina nce Depa rtment 
6601 Main Street 

Miami La kes, F lorida 33014 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF N ET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER  30,  2021 

Governmenta l  Bus iness-Type 

Activit ies Activit ies Tota l 

ASSETS 

Cash and  cash equ iva l ents $ 13,161,538 $ 794,680 $ 13,956,218 

I nvestments 1,023,506 1,023,506 

Accounts receiva b le, net 2,257,383 357,799 2,615,182 

Prepa ids 128,823 128,823 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equ iva l ents 372,704 26,148,289 26,520,993 

I nvestments 548,568 548,568 

Capita l  assets: 

Non-depreci ab le  ca pita l assets: 

La nd 

Contruct ion in progress 

Tota l non-depreci ab le  ca pita l assets 

Depreci ab le  ca pita l assets: 

Leaseho ld  imp rovements 90,558 90,558 

Furn i ture and  equ ipment 4,400,541 322,359 4,722,900 

Bu i l d i ng  10, 178,845 10, 178,845 

I nfrastructure 30,426,809 15,391,199 45,818,008 

Less: accumu l ated depreciat ion ( 17,719,913) (3,396, 176) (21 ,116,089) 

Net depreci ab le  ca pita l assets 27,376,840 12,317,382 39,694,222 

Tota l ca pita l assets 35,744,680 13,967,580 49,712,260 

Tota I assets 53,237,202 41,268,348 94,505,550 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOU RCES 

Pens ion 

Tota l deferred outflows of resou rces 

L IAB IL IT IES 

Accounts payab le  and  other current l i ab i l it ies 3,811,192 278,656 4,089,848 

Deposits 111,023 111,023 
U nearned revenues 7,855, 138 7,855,138 

Noncu rrent l i ab i l it ies :  

Due with i n  one yea r 446,623 246,512  693, 135 

Due i n  more than one yea r 9,012,752 18,781,533 27,794,285 

Tota l l i a b i l it ies 13,381,590 27, 161,839 40,543,429 

DEFERRED I N F LOWS OF RESOU RCES 

Pens ion 2,049,564 111,059 2,160,623 

Tota l deferred i nflows of resou rces 2,049,564 111,059 2,160,623 

N ET POSITION 

Net i nvestment i n  ca pita l assets 28,428,460 13, 178,871 41,607,331 

6,056,872 

2,310,968 

8,367,840 

6,056,872 

1,650, 198 3,961,166 

1,650, 198 10,018,038 

999,224 

999,224 

36,889 1,036, 113 

36,889 1,036, 113 

Restricted for :  

Debt Service 969, 108 

Tra nsit - CITT 20 33,205 

Tra nsportat ion - CITT 80 141,829 

Tra nsportat ion - Gas Tax 140,349 

Tra nsportat ion 1,427,215 

Mob i l ity 346,464 

969,108 

33,205 

141,829 

140,349 

1,427,215 

346,464 
Stormwater Imp rovement P rojects 4,785 4,785 
Bu i l d i ng  Department - Operationa l  1,287,036 1,287,036 
Bu i l d i ng  Department - Tech no logy 867,891 867,891 
Pa rks 1,335,983 1,335,983 
Tree Remova l 39,821 39,821 
I mpact Fees: 

Pub l i c  Safety (Po l ice) 94,794 94,794 
Pa rks imp rovement 5,648 5,648 
Pa rks open space 1,077,009 1,077,009 

Government Center Fac i l ity 26,147 26,147 
Ne igh borhood Service D istr icts 339,559 339,559 
G reenway 77th Court 240,840 240,840 
La rge Park LOS 199,885 199,885 

U n restr icted 1,804,029 848,683 2,652,712 
Tota l net posit ion $ 38,805,272 $ 14,032,339 $ 52,837,611 

See notes to bas ic fi nanc ia l  statements 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
STATEM E NT OF  ACTIVITI ES 

FOR TH E F I SCAL YEAR ENDED  SEPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Net ( Expense) Revenue  and  
Program Revenues Changes i n  Net Posit ion  

Operati ng Capita l 
Cha rges for Gra nts and  Gra nts and  Govern men ta  I Bus iness-Type 

Expenses Servi ces Contri but ions Contri but ions Activities Activities Tota l 
F unct ions/Programs 
Prima ry government :  

Governmenta l activit ies :  
Genera l  government 
Pub l i c  safety 
Pa rks and  recreat ion 
Tra nsportation 
I nterest expense 

Tota l governmenta l activities 

Bus iness-type a ctivit ies :  
Stormwater 

Tota l bus iness-type activities 
Tota l prima ry government 

$ 5,959,090 $ 1,388, 183 $ 1,087,866 $ 1,743, 136 
10,5 15,505 2,334,977 3,943 
3,467,742 76,482 
2,968,332 525,628 

511, 190 
23,421,859 4,325,270 1,091,809 1,743, 136 

1,743,488 1,692,827 
1,743,488 1,692,827 

$ 25, 165,347 $ 6,018,097 $ 1,091,809 $ 1,743, 136 

Genera l  revenue :  
Property taxes 
Uti l ity taxes 
Commun i cation  service tax 
Fra nch ise taxes 
Other taxes 
I ntergovernmenta l not restr icted to specifi c  programs 
I nvestment i ncome 
Other i ncome 

Tra nsfers 

Tota l genera l revenues and  tra nsfers 

Cha nge in net position  

Net posit ion ,  begi nn i ng 

Net posit ion ,  end ing 

See notes to bas i c  fi nanc i a l  statements 

$ ( 1,739,905) 
(8, 176,585) 
(3 ,391, 260) 
(2,442,704) 

( 511, 190) 
( 16,261,644) 

$ ( 16,261,644) 

7,940,228 
3,731,365 

941,205 
1,208,542 

653,901 
4,836,866 

62, 108 
311,259 

( 1,495,337)  

18, 190, 137 

1,495,337 

1,501,449 19,691,586 

1,928,493 

36,876,779 

$ 38,805,272 $ 14,032,339 $ 52,837,611  

$ 

(50,661 )  
(50,661 )  

$ (50,661 )  

6, 112 

1,450,788 

12,581,551  

$ ( 1,739,905) 
(8, 176,585) 
(3 ,391, 260) 
(2,442,704) 

( 511, 190) 
( 16,261,644) 

(50,661 )  
(50,661 )  

$ ( 16,312,305) 

7,940,228 
3,731,365 

941,205 
1,208,542 

653,901 
4,836,866 

68, 220 
311,259 

3,379, 281 

49,458,330 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
BALANCE S H E ET - GOVE R N M E NTAL F U N DS 

S E PTE M B E R  30, 2021 

Major  Funds 

Nonmajor  Tota l 
Bu i l d i ng Ca pita l Governmenta l Governmenta l 

Genera l  Department P rojects Funds  Funds  

ASSETS 
Cash and  cash equ iva lents 
I nvestments 
Accounts receivab le, net 
Due  from other  fu nds 
P repa ids  
Restr icted assets : 

Cash and  cash equ iva lents 
I nvestments 

Tota l assets 

L IAB I LIT I ES 
Accounts payab l e  and  other  cu rrent l i ab i l it ies 
Depos its 
Due  to other  fu nds 

Tota l l i ab i l it ies 

F U N D  BALANCES 
Nonspendab le :  

P repa ids  
Restr icted : 

Debt service 
Tra ns it - C ITT 20 
Tra nsportation  - C ITT 80 
Tra nsportation  - Gas Tax 
Tra nsportation  
Mob i l ity 
Bu i l d i ng department - Operationa l  
Bu i l d i ng department - Techno logy 
Pa rks 
Tree remova l 
I m pact fees :  

Pub l i c  Safety ( Po l i ce )  
Pa rks imp rovement 
Pa rks open space 

Government Center Fac i l ity 
Ne ighborhood Service Distr icts 
G reenway 77th Cou rt 
La rge Park LOS 

Com mitted for :  
I nfrastructu re p rojects 

U nass igned 
Tota l fu nd ba l ances 

Tota l l i ab i l it ies and fu nd ba l a nces 

$ 5 ,3 14,023 $ 2,080,755 $ 2,994,696 
1,023,506 
1,063,788 13 1,747 306,929 

234,099 
99,263 29,560 

$ 7,734,679 $ 2,242,062 $ 3,301,625 

$ 2 ,725,392 
1 1 1,023 

2,836,415 

$ 57,575 

57,575 

$ 5 12,280 

5 12,280 

99,263 29,560 

1,287,036 
867,89 1 

1,427, 215  

1,335,983 

26,147 

4,799,001 
4,898,264 

$ 7,734,679 
2 ,184,487 

$ 2,242,062 
2,789,345 

$ 3,301,625 

$ 2 ,75 1,209 

754,919 

$ 13, 140,683 
1,023,506 
2,257,383 

234,099 
128,823 

$ 

372,704 
548,568 

4,427,400 

372,704 
548,568 

$ 17,705,766 

$ 320, 163 

234,099 
554,262 

$ 3 ,615,410 
1 1 1,023 
234,099 

3,960,532  

128,823 

969, 108 
33,205 

141,829 
140,349 

346,464 

39,821 

969,108 
33,205 

141,829 
140,349 

1,427, 215  
346,464 

1,287,036 
867,891 

1 ,335,983 
39,821 

94,794 
5,648 

1,077,009 

339,559 
240,840 
199,885 

94,794 
5,648 

1,077,009 
26,147 

339,559 
240,840 
199,885 

$ 

244,627 

3,873, 138 
4,427,400 

244,627 
4,799,001 

13,745,234 

$ 17,705,766 

See notes to bas ic  fi nanc i a l  statements 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORIDA 

RECONC I L IAT ION OF TH E BALANCE SHE ET TO TH E STATEMENT OF N ET POS ITION 

GOVERN MENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Fund ba l a nces - tota l government fu nds ( Page 14) 

Amounts reported for governmenta l activities in the statement of net 

position a re different beca use :  

Ca pita l assets used in governmenta l activities a re not financia l 

resou rces and  the refore a re not reported in the governmenta l fu nds .  

Govern menta l ca pita l assets 53,455,508 

Less :  accumu lated depreciation ( 17,717,389) 

Long-te rm lia bilities, inc luding bonds payab le, a re not due and paya b le  

in the cu rrent period and  therefore a re not reported in the fu nds .  

Governmenta l bonds paya b le  

Com pensated a bsences 

(7, 147,854) 

(383,520) 

Debt inte rest paya b le  that wil l  not be liq uidated with cu rrent 

financia l resou rces is not reported in the governmenta l fu nds 

OPEB ob ligations attributa b le  to retiree benefits fina nced from 

governmenta l fu nd types 

Net pension lia bilities a re not due  and  paya b le  in the cu rrent 

period a nd, the refore, a re not reported in the governmenta l fu nds ( 1,801,435)  

Deferred outflows of resou rces re lated to pensions a re not 

recognized in the governmenta l fu nds; however, they a re reported 

in the statement of net position under  fu l l  accrua l  accounting 999,224 

Deferred inflows of resou rces re lated to pensions a re not 

recognized in the governmenta l fu nds; however, they a re reported 

in the statement of net position under  fu l l  accrua l  accounting (2,049,564) 

I nterna l  se rvice fu nds a re used by management to cha rge the costs 

of faci lities maintena nce to individ ua l  fu nds .  The assets and  lia bilities 

of the interna l  se rvice fu nds a re inc luded in governmenta l activities in 

the statement of net position .  

Net position o f  governmenta l activities ( Page 12)  

$ 13,745, 234 

35,738, 119 

(7,53 1,374) 

( 168,366) 

( 126,566) 

(2 ,851,775) 

$ 38,805, 272 

See notes to basic fina ncia l statements 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
STATEM ENT OF REVENU ES, EXPEND ITURES, AN D CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR TH E F ISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Major Funds 

Reven ues :  
Ad va lorem taxes 
Ut i l ity taxes 
Franchise fees 
Commun ication service tax 
Other  taxes 
Licenses and perm its 
I ntergovernmenta l 
F ines and forfe itures 
Service charges 
Impact fees 

Pub l i c  safety 
Pa rks 

I nvestment i ncome 
Specia l  assessments 
Other  

Tota l revenues 

Expend itures :  
Cu rrent :  

Genera l  government 
Town cou nc i l  
Town admin istrat ion and fi nance 
Lega l 

Pub l i c  safety 
Pa rks and recreation 
Transportation / pub l i c  works 
Admin i strative 

Debt service :  
Pr inc ipa l  
I nterest 

Capita l out lay 
Tota l expend itures 
Excess (defic iency) of revenues 

over (u nder) expend itures 

Nonmajor Tota l 
Bu i l d i ng Capita l Governmenta l Governmenta l 

Genera l  Department Projects Funds Funds 

$ 7,940,228 $ $ $ $ 7,940,228 
3, 182,273 549,092 3,731,365 
1,208,542 1,208,542 

941,205 941,205 
141,430 140,612 371,859 653,901 
250,124 1,950,695 483,235 2,684,054 

4,499,271 1,683, 107 1,490,244 7,672,622 
103,064 103,064 
120, 194 120, 194 

31,337 31,337 
7,913 7,913 

29,802 8,287 7,774 16,245 62, 108 
1,377,897 1,377,897 

108, 127 191,509 299,636 
18,524,260 1,958,982 1,83 1,493 4,5 19,331 26,834,066 

598,533 598,533 
3,080,343 3,080,343 

364, 104 364, 104 
8,593,261 1,862,917 10,456, 178 
2,825,705 10,294 2,835,999 
1,076,347 1,331,338 2,407,685 

1,371,779 1,371,779 

140,019 200,000 340,019 
1,519 514,660 516, 179 

20,516 2,641,309 55,587 2,717,412 
16,700,347 1,862,917 2,65 1,603 3,473,364 24,688,231 

1,823,913 96,065 {820, 110) 1,045,967 2, 145,835 

Other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) 
Transfe rs in 
Transfe rs out 

Tota l other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) 

Net change i n  fu nd ba lances 

Fund ba lances - begi n n i ng 

Fund ba lances - end ing 

100,000 
( 1,344,259) 
( 1,244,259) 

579,654 

4,318,610 

(44,816) 
(44,816) 

51,249 

2, 133,238 

1,767,025 

1,767,025 

946,915 

1,842,430 

645,335 
( 1,416,021) 

(770,686) 

275,281 

3,597,857 

2,5 12,360 
(2,805,096) 

(292,736) 

1,853,099 

11,892, 135 

$ 4,898,264 $ 2, 184,487 $ 2,789,345 $ 3,873, 138 $ 13,745,234 

See notes to basic fi nanc ia l  statements 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

RECO N CI L IATIO N  O F  TH E STATE M ENT O F  REVE N U ES, EXP E N D ITU RES, 

AN D CHANG ES IN FU N D  BALANCES OF GOVE R N M E NTAL FU N DS TO TH E STATE M ENT OF ACTIVITI ES  

FOR  TH E F I SCAL YEAR E N D E D  S E PTE M B E R  30, 2021 

Amounts reported for gove rnmenta l  a ct ivit ies  i n  the  statem e nt of act iv it ies (on  page 13 )  
a re d ifferent beca use :  

N et cha nge i n  fu nd  ba l a n ces - tota l gove rnmenta l fu nds  ( Page 16 )  $ 1,853,099 

G ove rnmenta l  fu nds  report cap i ta l  out l ays a s  expend it u res .  H owever, 

in the statem e nt of act iv it ies the cost of those a ssets i s  dep rec iated 

over the i r  esti m ated u sefu l l ives .  

Expend it u res for cap i ta l  out l ays m eeti ng  the  ca pita l i zat io n  

t h resho ld  
Less cu rrent yea r dep rec iat ion  

2,717,412 

( 1, 617,660)  
1,099,752  

The net effect of va r ious  t ra nsact ions  i nvolv i ng  cap i ta l  assets ( i . e . ,  s a l es, 
t ra de- i n s, a n d  donat ions )  i s  to i n crease (decrease) n et pos it io n .  

M isce l l a neous  t ra nsact ion  
Contr i but ion  of cap i ta l  assets to bu s i ness-type act iv it ies 

1 1,623 

( 1,547,337 )  
( 1,535,7 14) 

The i s sua nce of l ong-term debt (e .g. ,  bonds, l ea ses)  p rovides  cu rrent 
fi n a nc i a l  resou rces to gove rnmenta l fu nds, wh i l e  the repayment of the  
p r i nc i pa l  o f  l ong-term debt con s umes the  cu rrent fi n a nc i a l  resou rces of 
gove rnmenta l  fu nds .  N ei ther  t ra nsact ion ,  h owever, ha s  a ny effect o n  
n et pos it io n .  

P r i nc i pa l  payments 
Amort izat ion of d isco u nt on bonds  i s sued 

340,019 

( 1,380) 

338,639 

Some expenses  reported i n  the  statem e nt of act iv it ies d o  n ot req u i re 
the  use  of cu rrent fi n a nc i a l  resou rces and ,  therefore, a re n ot reported 
a s  expend it u res in gove rnmenta l  fu nds .  

Cha nges i n  accrued i nterest payab l e  
Change i n  com pensated a bsences 

Change in O P E B  l i a b i l ity 
Changes in n et pens ion  l i a b i l ity a n d  othe r  deferra l a mo u nts 

4,989 

( 15 ,332 )  
(2 ,676)  

197,359 
184,340 

The net cha nge of i ntern a l  se rvice fu nd  i s  reported with gove rnmenta l  
a ct iv it ies o n  the  statem e nt of  a ct iv it i es .  ( 1 1,623 )  

Cha nge i n  n et pos it i on  of gove rnmenta l a ct iv it ies  ( Page 13 )  $ 1,928,493 

See n otes to bas i c  fi n a nc i a l  statements 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
STATEM ENT OF NET POS ITION 

PROPRI ETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Cu rrent assets : 
Cash and cash equ iva l ents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts rece ivab le, net 

Tota l cu rrent assets 

Noncu rrent assets : 
Construction i n  progress 
Furn iture and equ ipment 
I n frastructu re 
Less : accumu lated depreciat ion 
Tota l noncu rrent assets 

Tota l assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOU RCES 
Pens ion 

Tota l deferred outflows of resou rces 

LIAB I L ITI ES 
Cu rrent l i ab i l it ies :  

Accounts payab le  and other  cu rrent l i ab i l it ies 
Compensated absences - current 
Due to Miam i-Dade County - cu rrent 
Bonds payab le  - cu rrent 
Unearned grant revenue  

Tota l cu rrent l i ab i l it ies 

Noncu rrent l i ab i l it ies :  
Compensated absences 
Net pens ion l i ab i l ity 
Due to Miam i-Dade County 
Bond payab le  

Tota l noncu rrent l i ab i l it ies 
Tota l l i ab i l it ies 

DEFERRED I N FLOWS OF RESOU RCES 
Pens ion 

Tota l deferred i nf lows of resou rces 

NET POS ITION 
Net i nvestment i n  ca pita l assets 
Restricted 
Un restricted 

Tota l net posit ion 

Busi ness-Type 
Activity 

Enterprise Fund 

Storm water 

$ 794,680 
26, 148,289 

357,799 
27,300,768 

1,650, 198 
322,359 

15,391, 199 
(3,396, 176) 

36,889 
36,889 

278,656 
1,874 

14,518 
230, 120 

7,855, 138 
8,380,306 

5,620 
31,559 
58,072 

18,686,282 
18,781,533 
27, 161,839 

111,059 
111,059 

13,178,871 
4,785 

848,683 
$ 14,032,339 

13,967,580 
41,268,348 

6,561 
27,416 

I nterna l  Service 
Fund 

$ 20,855 

20,855 

9,085 
(2, 524) 

27,416 

27,416 

27,416 

6,561 

$ 
(6,561) 

See notes to basic fi nanc ia l  statements 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Bus i ness-Type 
Activity 

Enterp r ise Fu nd  

Stormwater 
Interna l  Se rvice 

Fu nd  

Operat i ng  revenues :  
Cha rges for services 

Tota l  operat i ng revenues 

Operat i ng  expenses :  
Ad m i n i st rative expenses 
Contractua l  services 
Repa i rs a nd  ma i ntenance 
Dep rec iat ion 

Tota l  operat i ng expenses 

360,700 
97,022 

370,207 
406,323 

274,285 

69,845 
606 

Operat i ng  i ncome  (loss) 458,575 (344,736) 

Nonoperati ng revenues (expenses) : 
Bond  issu ance costs 
Investment earn i ngs 
Inte rest expense 

Tota l  nonoperat i ng revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contr i but ions  a nd  t ran sfe rs (44,549) (344,736) 

Contr i but ions a nd  t ran sfers : 
Cap ita l contr i but ions  
Loss on t ra nsfe r of ca p ita l asset to 

genera l  govern ment 
Tra nsfers in  
Tra nsfers out 

Net contr i but ions  a nd  t ra nsfe rs 

1,547,337 

70,000 
(11,623) 
344,736 

Cha nge i n  net pos it ion 1,450,788 (11,623) 

Net posit ion ,  begi n n i ng  12,581,551 

Net posit ion ,  end i ng  $ 14,032,339 

1,234,252 344,736 

$ 1,692,827 
1,692,827 

$ 

(437,271) 
6,112 

(71,965) 
(503,124) 

(122,000) 
1,495,337 333,113 

11,623 

$ 

See notes to bas ic  fi n a nc i a l  statements 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLOR IDA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPR I ETARY FUNDS 

FOR TH E F ISCAL YEAR ENDED  SEPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Bus iness-Type 
Act ivity 

Enterpr ise Fund  
I nterna l  Service 

Stormwater Fund  
Cash fl ows from operati ng activit ies :  

Cash received from customers, governments and  other  funds 
Cash paid to supp l ie rs 
Cash pa id to emp loyees 

Net cash provided by ( used in) operati ng activities 

$ 9,430,057 
(569,723)  
(203,808) 

8,656,526 

$ 

(272,257) 
(72, 100) 

(344,357) 

Cash fl ows from noncapita l fi nanc ing activit ies :  
Tra nsfers i n  (out)  

Net cash ( used in) provided by noncapita l fi nanc ing activities 
(52,000) 
(52,000) 

344,736 
344,736 

Cash fl ows from capita l and rel ated fi nanc ing activit ies :  
Acqu is it ion and  construct ion of cap ita l  assets and  furn iture 

and  equ i pment 
Pr inc ipa l  ret i rement of cap ita l  debt 
I nterest pa id on capita l  debt 
Proceeds from issua nce of Stormwater Bonds, net 

Net cash provided by capital and rel ated fi nanc ing activities 

(30,055) 
(71,758) 
( 13,937) 

18,288,365 
18, 172,615 

Cash fl ows from i nvest ing activit ies :  
Redemption of i nvestments 
I nterest and other i ncome 

52,526 6,534 

Net cash provided by i nvest ing activities 

Net i nc rease i n  cash and cash equ iva lents 26,835,779 6,9 13 

Cash and cash equ iva lents, October 1 
Cash and cash equ iva lents , September 30 

107, 190 
$ 26,942,969 

13,942 
$ 20,855 

Reconc i l i at ion of operati ng i ncome ( loss) to net cash 
provided by operati ng activit ies :  

Operat ing i ncome ( l oss) 
Adj ustments to reconc i l e  operati ng i ncome ( l oss) to net 

cash provided by operati ng ac itivit ies :  
Depreciat ion 
Change i n  assets and  l i ab i l it ies :  

( I ncrease) decrease i n :  
Accounts receivab le  
Deferred outflows of resou rces for pens ion 

I nc rease (decrease) i n :  
Accounts payab le  and  accrued payro l l  and  benefits 
Unea rned revenue 

$ 458,575 

406,323 

( 117,908) 
9,236 

66,778 

$ (344,736) 

606 

(227)  

Compensated absences 
Net pens ion l i ab i l ity 
Deferred i nf lows of  resou rces for pens ion 

Tota l  adjustments 
Net cash provided by ( used i n )  operati ng activities 

Noncash i nvesti ng, cap ita l  and  related fi nanc ing activit ies :  
Contri but ion of cap ita l  assets $ 1,547,337 $ 

See notes to bas ic fi nanc i a l  statements 

6 ,112 
58,638 6,534 

7,855,138 
( 1,065) 

( 109,891 )  
89,340 

8,197,951 
$ 8,656,526 

379 
$ (344,357) 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Organization 

The Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town") was incorporated in fiscal year 2001 and is a political 

subdivision of the State of Florida located in northwestern Miami-Dade County. The Town operates under a 

Mayor-Council-Manager form of government, with the legislative function being vested in a seven-member 

Council. The Town Council is governed by the Town Charter and by the state and local laws and regulations. 

The Town Council is responsible for establishment and adoption of policy. The Town provides the following 

range of municipal services authorized by its charter: public safety, streets, stormwater, health and social 

services, culture, recreation, bus transportation, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 

The accounting policies of the Town conform to Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States 

of America (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 

the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. 

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic 

financial statements of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida. The policies are considered essential and should be 

read in conjunction with the basic financial statements. 

B. Financial Reporting Entity 

The Town was incorporated in accordance with the Constitution of the State of Florida and the Home Rule 

Charter of Miami-Dade County on December 5, 2000, to carry on a centralized government. The Town Council 

is responsible for legislative and fiscal control of the Town. A Town Manager is appointed by the Council and is 

responsible for administrative and fiscal control of the resources of the Town. 

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting 

Entity, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61, which establishes standards for defining and reporting 

on the financial reporting entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that 

elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial 

reporting is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of the elected 

officials. The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the 

primary government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance 

of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity to 

be misleading or incomplete. The Town is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting 

majority of the organization's governing board and it is able to impose its financial benefits to, or impose 

specific financial burdens on the Town. Based on the application of these criteria, there were no component 

units to the Town for fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes 

in net position) report information on al l  activities of the primary government. Governmental activities, which 

normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 

activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a specific function or 

segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 

specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 

use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 

grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 

function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 

instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 

governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining 

governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The internal service fund is included in 

the proprietary fund financial statements. 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting similar to the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are 

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liabi lity is incurred, regardless of the timing of 

related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and 

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 

been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 

measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town 

considers revenues to be available if they are collected within six (6) months of the end of the current fiscal 

period, except for property taxes, for which the period is 60 days. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 

liabi lity is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated absences and 

claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current 

fiscal period are a l l  considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 

current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 

received by the Town. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America set forth minimum criteria 

(percentage of assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabil ities plus deferred inflows of resources, 

revenue or expenditures/expenses of the applicable fund category and the governmental and enterprise 

combined) for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are presented in one column in the 

respective fund financial statements. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for a l l  financial 

resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Building Department Fund - This fund is used to account for and report the receipts of building permits 

and other fees that are restricted for building permitting and inspection activities. The department 

performs plan review for all commercial and residential construction, mandatory inspections for a l l  phases 

of construction to ensure compliance with building safety regulations, collects permit fees and issues 

permits for residential and commercial construction, and issues certificates of completion and occupancy. 

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for the construction of major capital projects, other 

than those financed by the proprietary funds, or the Series 2010 Special Obligation Bond. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund: 

Stormwater Utility Fund - This fund used to account for the provision of stormwater maintenance and 

capital improvements within the Town. 

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types: 

Special Revenue Fund - This fund is used to account for and report the receipts of local option fuel tax 

and county-shared fuel tax that are legally restricted for expenditures related to development, 

construction equipping, maintenance, operations or expansion of public transportation system, roads and 

bridges. 

Neighborhood Service Districts Fund - This fund is used to account for the cost to provide public 

improvements and special services through a non-ad valorem assessment. Non-ad valorem assessments 

represent a cost share assigned to a group of properties to pay al l  or part of the cost associated with a 

specific public service or improvement, such as security guard services, lighting, lake, and landscape 

maintenance, primarily benefitting those properties. 

Impact Fees Fund - This fund is used to account for the parks and public safety impact fees used to fund 

the cost of additional capital resources required to maintain and accommodate projected population 

growth due to new development. 

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and payment of 

principal, interest and related costs of the Town's special obligation bonds. 

Infrastructure Replacement Fund - This fund is used for purposes of accumulating resources to fund long

term capital expenditures. 

Internal Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the Town's facilities maintenance services, all of 

which are provided to other Town departments. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town's enterprise fund functions and 

various other functions of the Town. El imination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 

revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 

privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally 

dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 

revenues include all taxes, whose purpose has not been restricted to a specific program.  

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 

and expenses generally result from user fees for providing services and producing and delivering goods in 

connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 

stormwater enterprise fund are charges to customers for services to maintain and refurbish the stormwater 

system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 

expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 

reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use restricted 

resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, investments with 

the State Board of Administration (SBA) investment pools (Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2A-7 

Pool), certificates of deposit, money markets, demand deposits and short-term investments with original 

maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

State Statutes requires all deposits of the Town, including demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts, 

and money market accounts to be held in institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as 

"qualified depositories" and accordingly, are covered by a collateral pool as required by that statute. 

Investments are reported at fa ir value, which are based on quoted market prices. Investments owned by the 

Town are accounted for in the Town's investment pool. Income earned from this pool is a l located to the 

respective funds based on average monthly balances. 

The reported value of the pool is the same as their fa ir value of the pool shares for participants in Pool A. 

Investments, including restricted investments, consist of securities of governmental agencies unconditionally 

guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Receivables include amounts due from other governments and others for services provided by the Town. 

Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as specific program 

expenditures/expenses are incurred based on the accounting basis required for that fund. 

All trade receivables are shown net of an a l lowance for uncollectible accounts. An al lowance for uncollectible 

accounts is provided when necessary for a l l  trade receivables outstanding over 60 days. 

G. lnterfund Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 

of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" or "advances to/from other funds". Any 

residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business activities are reported in the 

government-wide financial statements as {/internal balances11 
• 

H. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 

items in both government-wide and fund financial statements using the consumption method. The 

governmental fund financial statements consider prepaid items to be nonspendable fund balance. 

I . Property Taxes 

Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first billed (levied) and due the following 

November 1. 

Under Florida law, the assessment of a l l  properties and the collection of a l l  county, municipal, school board 

and special district property taxes are consolidated in the Office of the County Property Appraiser and County 

Tax Collector. The laws for the State regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent 

property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit municipal ities to levy property taxes at a rate of 

up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed taxable valuation). The millage rate assessed by the Town for the 

year ended September 30, 2021 was 2.3127. 

The Town's tax levy is established by the Town Council prior to October 1st of each year, and the County 

Property Appraiser incorporates the mil lage into the total tax levy, which includes Miami-Dade County, 

Miami- Dade County School Board and certain  other special taxing districts. 

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1st of each year or as soon as 

practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser. Miami-Dade 

County mails each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due and collects the taxes for 

the Town. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of the notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate 

of 4% if paid in the month of November, 3% if paid in the month of December, 2% if paid in  the month of 

January and 1% if paid in the month of February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, 

and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 

1st of the year following the year in which the taxes were assessed. Procedures for the collection of 

delinquent taxes by Miami-Dade County are provided for in the laws of Florida. 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGN I F ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (conti nued) 

J .  Capita l Assets 

Ca pita l a ssets a re defined by the Town as p roperty, eq uipment and  infrastructu re with a n  initia l , individ ua l  
cost o f  more than  $2,000 and  a n  estimated usefu l life i n  excess o f  one yea r. Such  assets a re reco rded a t  
histo rica l cost o r  estimated histo rica l cost if pu rchased o r  constructed .  Donated ca pita l a ssets, donated works 
of a rt and  simila r  items, and  ca pita l a ssets received in a se rvice concession a rra ngement a re reco rded at 
acq uisition va l ue  as  of the date of donation .  Additions, im provements a nd other  ca pita l out lays that 

significa nt ly extend the usefu l life of an asset a re ca pita lized .  Other  costs incu rred for repairs and  
maintena nce a re expensed as  incu rred . Depreciation on  a l l  dep recia b le  assets i s  p rovided on  the straight- l ine 
basis ove r the fo l lowing estimated usefu l lives :  

Assets Years 

Bui ldings 39 
Fu rnitu re and  eq uipment 5-20 
Leaseho ld  im provements 15 

I nfrastructu re 40 

When ca pita l assets a re so ld o r  disposed of, the re lated cost and accu mu lated depreciation a re removed from 
the financia l reco rds and  a resu lting gain o r  loss is reco rded in the government-wide financia l statements. 

K. Deferred Outflows/I nflows of Resources 

I n  addition to assets, the statement of net position wil l  sometimes report a sepa rate section fo r defe rred 

outflows of resou rces. This sepa rate fina ncia l statement e l ement, deferred o utflows of resou rces, represents 
a consum ption of net position that app lies to a futu re period(s )  a nd  so wil l  not be recognized as  an outflow of 

resou rces (expense/expenditu re )  u ntil t hen .  The Town has pension amounts that qua lify fo r repo rting in this 
catego ry on the gove rnment-wide statement of net position in the a mount  of $ 1,036, 1 13 .  

I n  addition to  lia bilities, t he  statement o f  net position wil l  sometimes report a sepa rate section fo r defe rred 

inflows of resou rces. This sepa rate financia l statement e lement, defe rred inflows of resou rces, represents a n  
acq uisition o f  net position that app lies t o  a futu re period(s )  a nd  s o  wil l  not b e  recognized as  inflows of 
resou rces ( revenue)  u ntil that time .  The Town has pension amounts that qua lify fo r reporting in this catego ry 
in the amount of $2, 160,623 .  

L. Compensated Absences 

I t  is the Town's po licy to permit emp loyees to accumu late ea rned but u n used vacation a nd sick pay benefits .  
Vacation pay and  sick pay benefits a re accrued when incu rred in the gove rnment-wide fina ncia l statements. A 
lia bility fo r these amounts is reported in governmenta l fu nds o n ly if they have matu red, fo r exam p le, as  a 
resu lt of emp loyee resignations o r  retirements. 

Al l  vacation and sick leave is accrued and reported as a fund  lia bi lity when it is p roba b le  that the Town wil l  
com pensate t h e  emp loyee with expendab le  avail ab l e  fina ncia l resou rces. Vacation a nd sick leave is accrued 
when incu rred in p roprieta ry fu nds and reported as  a fu nd lia bility. A l l  vacation pay is accrued when incu rred 
in the gove rnment-wide a nd proprieta ry fu nd fina ncia l statements. A lia bility for these amou nts is reported in 
governmenta l fu nds on ly if they have matured, fo r exa m p le, as  a resu lt of emp loyee resignations  and  
retirements. For governmenta l fu nds, com pensated a bsences a re genera l ly liq uidated by  the Genera l  F und .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

M. Unearned Revenue 

Resources that do not meet revenue recognition requirements (not earned), such as grants, are classified as 

liabil ities and recorded as unearned revenue in the government-wide and the fund financial statements. As of 

September 30, 2021, the Town received approximately $7.8 mill ion in funding from the American Rescue Plan 

Act that will be utilized for stormwater infrastructure improvements. This amount will be applied to eligible 

expenses in subsequent years. 

N. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial statements, 

long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabil ities in the applicable governmental 

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Debt premiums and 

discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method, which does not 

result in a material difference from the effective interest method. The face amount of the debt issued is 

reported net of bond premiums and discounts. Debt issuance costs are expensed in the year they are 

incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and discounts during the 

current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 

debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as 

other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 

reported as debt service expenditure. 

0. Net Position 

Total equity as of September 30, 2021 is classified into three components of net position: 

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets (including restricted capital assets), net of 

accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, or other borrowings 

that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external 

groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law 

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position - al l  other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 

investment in capital assets11 
• 

P. Fund Balance 

The Town follows Governmental Accounting Standards for Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Type 

Definitions, which requires that governmental fund financial statements present fund balance based on 

classification that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to 

honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in  the respective governmental fund can be 

spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

P. Fund Balance (continued) 

Non-spendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in not spendable form (such as 

inventory) or because they are lega lly or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes by their providers (such as granters, 

bondholders, Town Code, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by 

enabling legislation. 

Committed - Amounts constra ined to specific purposes by the Town itself, using its highest level of 

decision-making authority (i.e., Town Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for 

any other purpose unless the Town takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 

constraint. Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action (i.e., 

ordinance) of the Town Council, the Town's highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may 

only be changed or lifted by the Town Council taking the same forma l  action that imposed the constra int 

originally. 

Assigned - Amounts the Town intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the Town 

Council or by an official or body to which the Town Council delegates the authority. Amounts that the 

Town intends to use for a specific purpose; the intent shall be expressed by the Town Council or may be 

delegated to the Town Manager. 

Unassigned - This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. The General Fund is the 

only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. It is also used to report negative fund 

balances in other governmental funds. 

Minimum level of Unassigned Fund Balance Policy: 

The Town's reserve policy ordinance requires that the Town maintain 20% of budgeted general fund 

expenditures on hand as a reserve whenever possible. When expenditure is incurred for the purpose for 

which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have 

been spent first. When expenditures are incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund 

balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been first expended out of committed funds 

then assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Town Council or Town Manager 

has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

The Town will use restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 

available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as grant agreements 

requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Town will first use committed fund balance, followed by 

assigned fund balance and then unassigned fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for 

which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 

Q. Net Position Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 

resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net position and unrestricted-net position 

in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 

resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town's policy to consider restricted net position to have been 

depleted before unrestricted-net position is applied. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

R. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 

of assets, liabi lities, disclosures of contingent liabi lities, revenues and expenditures/expenses reported in  the 

financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates include assessing the collectability of 

receivables, the realization of pension obl igations, OPEB and the useful lives of capital assets. Although these 

estimates are based on management's knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the 

future, they may ultimately differ from actual results. 

S. Restricted Assets 

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of bonds are classified as restricted assets on the statement of 

net position because their use is l im ited by the applicable bond indenture covenants. 

T. Capital Contributions 

Capital contributions in proprietary fund financial statements arise from grants or outside contributions of 

resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 

U. New Accounting Pronouncements 

In October 2021, the GASB issued Statement No. 98, "The Annual Comprehensive Annual Report". The 

statement addresses references in authoritative literature to the term comprehensive annual financial report. 

The Statement replaces an existing term but does not otherwise establish new accounting and financial 

reporting requirements. Comprehensive annal financial report has been replaced with annual comprehensive 

financial report (ACFR). The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending after 

December 15, 2021 with earlier application encouraged. The City has implemented GASB 98 in this annual 

report. 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

By its nature as a local government unit, the Town is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and 

contractual regulations. The Town has no material violations of finance-related legal and contractual 

obligations. 

1. Fund Accounting Requirements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, l ike any other state and local governments, uses 

fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related requirements, bond 

covenants, and segregation for management purposes. 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSH IP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABI LITY (continued) 

2 .  Revenue Restrictions 

The Town has  va rious restrictions p l aced ove r certain revenue  sou rces from federa l , state, o r  loca l 

req uirements. The prima ry revenue  sou rces inc l ude :  

Revenue Source Lega l Restrictions of Use 

Tra nsportation & Gas Su rtax Roads, sidewa lks, streets, busing, streetlights 

and other tra nsportation expenses 

Mobility Fee M u lti-moda l  tra nsportation im provements 

I m pact Fees ( Pa rks & Po lice ) Ca pita l p rojects, im provements and  to offset 

additiona l  costs 

Bui lding Permits and  Fees Bui lding permitting a nd  inspection activities 

For the fisca l yea r ended September  30, 2021, the Town comp lied, in a l l  materia l respects, with these 
revenue  restrictions .  

3.  Excess of Expend itu res Over Appropriations 

For the yea r ended September  30, 202 1, there were no excess of expenditu res ove r a ppropriations to 
report .  

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Cash Equiva lents 

As of September  30, 202 1, the ba l a nce of the Town's cash deposits were $41,001,522 .  A l l  deposits a re he ld  in 
ba n king institutions app roved by the State of F lorida to ho ld  pub lic fu nds .  The Town's deposits a re conside red 
insured and co l latera lized with secu rities he ld by the Town o r  by its agent in the Town's name as discussed 
be low. 

Custodian credit risk fo r deposits is the risk that, in the event of the fai l u re of a depository financia l institution, 

a government wil l  not be ab l e  to recove r its deposits or wil l  not be a b le to recover co l latera l secu rities that a re 

in the possession of a n  outside pa rty . A l l  of the Town's deposits a re e ntire ly insu red by federa l  deposito ry 
insura nce o r  co l l ate ra lized by the m u ltip le financia l institution co l late ra l pool  p u rsua nt to F lo rida Statutes, 
Chapter 280, "F lo rida Secu rity fo r Pub lic Deposit Act" . U nder  this Act, a l l  q u a lified pub lic depositories a re 
req uired to p ledge e ligib le co l latera l  having a fair va l ue equa l  to o r  greater t han  the ave rage dai ly o r  month ly 
ba l a nce of a l l  pub lic deposits, m u ltiplied by the deposito ry's co l l atera l p ledging leve l .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments 

Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, l im its the types of investments that a government can invest in unless 

specifically authorized in an investment policy. On December 13, 2011, the Town adopted Ordinance 11-139 

which provides for a comprehensive investment policy pursuant to Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, and 

established permitted investments, issuer l imits, credit rating requirements and maturity l im its to protect the 

Town's cash and investment assets. The investment policy applies to all cash and investments held or 

controlled by the Town with the exception of funds related to the issuance of debt. 

The Town's investment policy allows for the following investments: 

• Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its Agencies or Instrumentalities; 
• Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market mutual funds; 
• Insured or fully collateralized Certificates of Deposit; 
• Intergovernmental investment pools authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocal Cooperation Act 

functioning as a money market mutual; 
• Financial institution deposits that are in Qualified Public Depositories of the State in accordance with 

Chapter 280.02, Florida Statutes; 
• Repurchase agreements secured by direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its Agencies or 

lnstrumenta lities. 

The Town's overa ll investment objectives are, in order of priority, the safety of principal, liquidity of funds and 

maximizing investment income. 

The Town invests in a certificate of deposit. The certificate bears an interest rate of .045%. The certificate of 

deposit with an original maturity of greater than three months totaling approximately $1,012,225 is presented 

as investments in the accompanying statement of net position. 

The SBA administers Florida PRIME ("PRIM E"), which is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida 

Administrative Code and Chapters 215 and 219 of the Florida Statutes. These rules provide guidance and 

establish the policies and general operating procedures of the administration of PRIME. PRIME is not a 

registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, the SBA has adopted operating procedures 

consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund, which permits money market funds to use amortized cost to 

maintain a constant net asset value ("NAV") of $1 per share. The fair value of the position in the Florida PRIME 

is equal to the value of the pool shares. At September 30, 2021, the Town's investment in the Florida PRIME 

was that of $11,281 which is presented as investments in the accompanying statement of net position. Thus, 

the Town's account balance in the SBA is its amortized cost. 

Additionally, the Office of the Auditor General of the State of Florida performs the operational audit of the 

activities and investment of the SBA. The SBA accounts are not subject to custodial credit risk as these 

investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or bank entry form. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, Certa in External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, the 

Town's investment in the Florida PRIME meets the definition of a qualifying investment pool that measures 

for financial reporting purposes a l l  of its investments at amortized cost and should disclose the presence of 

any l imitations or restrictions on withdrawals. 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

With regard to redemption gates, Chapter 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes, states, "The principal, and any part 

thereof, of each account constituting the trust fund is subject to payment at any time from the moneys in the 

trust fund. However, the Executive Director may, in good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a 

material impact on liquidity or operations of the trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals 

from the trust fund to ensure that the Board can invest moneys entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary 

responsibility. Such action must be immediately disclosed to all participants, the Trustees, the Joint Legislative 

Auditing Committee, the Investment Advisory Council, and the Participant Local Government Advisory 

Council. The Trustees shall convene an emergency meeting as soon as practicable from the time the Executive 

Director has instituted such measures and review the necessity of those measures. If the Trustees are unable 

to convene an emergency meeting before the expiration of the 48-hour moratorium on contributions and 

withdrawals, the Executive Director may extend the moratorium until the Trustees are able to meet to review 

the necessity for the moratorium. If the Trustees agree with such measures, the Trustees shall vote to 

continue the measures for up to an additional 15 days. The Trustees must convene and vote to continue any 

such measures before the expiration of the time l imit set, but in no case may the time l imit set by the Trustees 

exceed 15 days." 

With regard to liquidity fees, Florida Statute 218.409(4) provides authority for the SBA to impose penalties for 

early withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enrollment materials of the amount and purpose of such fees. At 

present, no such disclosure has been made. 

As of September 30, 2021, there were no redemption fees, maximum transaction amounts, or any other 

requirements that serve to l imit a participant's daily access to 100 percent of their account value. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in 

interest rates. As a mean of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 

Town's investment policy l im its the Town's investment portfolio to maturities not to exceed two years for 

operating and debt service funds and not to exceed three years for capital project or special purpose funds. 

The weighted average days to maturity (WAM) of the Florida PRIME as of September 30, 2021 is 49 days. Next 

interest rate reset dates for floating rate securities are used in the calculation of the WAM. The weighted 

average life (WAL) of Florida PRIME at September 30, 2021, is 64 days. 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 

organization. The Town's investment policy specifically sets parameters to minimize the Town's credit risk by: 

• Limiting investment to the safest type of issuer 
• Pre-qualifying the financial institution, pools, money market mutual funds, and broker/dealer with 

which the Town will do business, and 
• Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual issuers will be minimized. 

The Town's investment in Florida PRIME was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's as of September 30, 2021. 
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

I nvestments (continued) 

Custodial credit risk fo r investment is the risk that in the event of the fai l u re of the counte rpa rty (e .g .  broke r  

dea le r) to  a tra nsaction, a government wil l  no t  be ab l e  to  recove r the va l ue  o f  its investment o r  co l l atera l  
secu rities that a re i n  t h e  possession o f  a nother pa rty. The Town's investment po licy req uires that a ba n k  o r  
ba n ks sha l l  be contracted fo r t he  safekeeping o r  custody o f  secu rities owned by  the Town as  pa rt o f  its 
investment po rtfo lio or p ledged to the Town as co l l ate ra l .  Secu rities owned by the Town sha l l  be evidenced by 
safekeeping receipts of the institution ho lding the secu rities .  A l l  secu rity tra nsactions  sha l l  utilize the "de livery 
ve rsus payment" p roced u res fo r sett lement .  A l l  of the Town's investments at September  30, 202 1 a re being 
kept by a third-pa rty commercia l trust ba n k  and  a re fu l ly secu red and  co l late ra l ized u nder  the name of the 
Town o r  its agent .  

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Receiva b les as  of September  30, 202 1 were as  fo l lows: 

Genera l  Fund 
D

Bu i ld ing 
epa rtment 

Fund 

Ca pita l 
Projects 

Fund 

Nonmajor 
Governmenta l 

Funds 
Storm water 

Fund 

Due from other gov
Other 

Tota l  rece iva b les 

e rn ments $ 518,536 
545,252 

$ 1,063,788 

$ 

$ 

131, 747 
131, 747 

$ 306,929 

$ 306,929 

$ 468,887 
286,032 

$ 754,919 

$ 357,799 

$ 357,799 

Paya b les as  of September  30, 2021 fo r the Town's governmenta l fu nds we re as  fo l lows: 

Bu i ld ing Ca p ita l Nonmajor Tota l  
Department P rojects Governmenta l Governmenta l 

Genera l  Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Vendors $ 2,725,392 $ 57,575 $ 512,280 $ 320, 163 $ 3 ,6 15,410 
Tota l  (fu nd statements) $ 2,725,392 $ 57,575 $ 512,280 $ 320, 163 $ 3 ,6 15,410 

Paya b les as  of September  30, 2021 fo r the Town's governmenta l activities (government-wide statements) 
were as  fo l l ows: 

Tota l 
F u nd Bond I nterest Governmenta l 

Statements Paya b le  Activ it ies 

Vendo rs $ 3,642,826 $ 168,366 $ 3,81 1, 192 

Tota l $ 3,642,826 $ 168,366 $ 3,81 1, 192 
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NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued) 

Paya b les as  of September  30, 2021 fo r the Town's proprieta ry fu nds  were as  fo l lows: 

I nte rna l  Tota l 
Stormwater Service Propr ieta ry 

Fund  Fund  Funds  

Vendors $ 220,628 $ 27,416 $ 248,044 
I nterest 58,028 58,028 

Tota l (fu nd statements) $ 278,656 $ 27,416 $ 306,072 

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND  BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

As of September  30, 2021, the Town's inte rfu nd ba l a nces consisted of $234,099 owed to the Genera l  Fund 

from the Debt Se rvice Fund fo r u n used e lectric utility tax revenues to be tran sferred to the Gene ra l  Fund  fo r 
norma l  ope rating pu rposes. 

l nte rfu nd tran sfe rs fo r the fisca l yea r  ended September  30, 202 1, consisted of the fo l lowing: 

Tra nsfe r I n  
Ca p ita l I nterna l  
P rojects Nonmajor Stormwater Service 

Tra nsfe r Out Genera l  Fund  Fund  Funds  Fund  Fund  Tota l  
Genera l  Fund $ $ 329,004 $ 645,335 $ 70,000 $ 299,920 $ 1,344,259 
Bu i l d i ng Department Fund  44,816 44,816 
Nonmajor Funds  100,000 1,3 16,02 1 1,416,021 
Stormwater Fund 122,000 122,000 

$ 100,000 $ 1,767,025 $ 645,335 $ 70,000 $ 344,736 $ 2,927,096 

Pu rposes of significant tra nsfe rs made d u ring the 2021 fisca l yea r  a re as  fo l lows : 

• The Genera l  Fund  tran sferred $299,920 to the I nterna l Service Fund for po lice and  ad ministrative 
expenses .  

• The Genera l  Fund  tran sfe rred $493,835 to the Specia l Revenue  Fund  for va rious road im provement 
expenses and  expenses re lated to COVI D-19 .  

• The Genera l  Fund  tran sfe rred $329,004 to the Ca pita l P rojects Fund  to pa rtia l ly fina nce the fo l lowing 
ca pita l p rojects of the Town; 83 rd P lace d rainage, Mia mi La kes Optimist Pa rk Master P l an, Senio r 
Center bui ldout, Beach Park P32 Cu rbing, p l ayground lighting at the Roya l Oa ks Pa rk, a nd  secu rity 
access contro l  u pgrade .  

• The Genera l  Fund  tran sfe rred $ 150,000 to the I nfrastructu re Rep lacement Fund for the renewa l and  

rep lacement o f  infrastructu re .  

• The Genera l  Fund  tran sfe rred $70,000 to  the Sto rmwater Fund  for sto rm d rain vacuum truck 
outsou rcing. 

• The Bui lding Fund tran sfe rred $44,816 to the I nterna l  Se rvice Fund  to cover bui lding operating 
expenses .  

• The Specia l Revenue  Fund tran sfe rred $ 100,000 to the Ca pita l P rojects Fund to pa rtia l l y  fina nce the 
83 rd P lace d rainage project; $200,000 of Deve loper  Contributions were tra nsferred fo r the Miami 
La kes Optimist Pa rk Master P l an  p roject; a nd  $50,000 fo r the Neat Streets G ra nt matching 

req uirement fo r the West La ke Refo restation project . 
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NOTE 5 - INTERFUND  TRANSFERS (continued) 

• The Specia l Revenue  Fund tran sfe rred $ 100,000 to the Genera l  Fund  fo r the contingency reserve a nd 
EAB se rvices fo r six schools .  

• The Specia l Revenue  Fund tran sfe rred $625,000 to the Ca pita l Projects Fund to fina nce the 59th 

Avenue  Project and  street lighting. 

• The Sto rmwate r Fund transfe rred $ 122,000 to the Ca pita l P roject Fund to fina nce the West La ke 

Drainage project. 

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Ca pita l a ssets activity fo r the fisca l yea r ended September  30, 2021 was as fo l lows : 

Begi n n i ng End i ng  
Ba la nce I ncreases Decreases Tra nsfers Ba la nce 

Governmenta l activit ies :  

Ca p ita l assets not be ing depreciated : 
La nd  $ 6,056,872 $ $ $ $ 6,056,872 
Construct ion i n  p rogress 1,674,837 2,3 14,533 ( 131,065) ( 1,547,337)  2,3 10,968 

Tota l ca p ita l assets not being depreciated 7,731,709 2,3 14,533 ( 131,065) ( 1,547,337)  8,367,840 

Ca p ita l assets be ing depreciated : 
Fu rn itu re a nd  equ ipment 4,362,251 38,290 4,400,541 
Bu i l d i ngs 8, 164,993 2,013,852 10, 178,845 
Leaseho ld  imp rovements 90,558 90,558 
I nfrastructu re 31,945,007 495,654 (2,013,852) 30,426,809 

Tota l ca p ita l assets being depreciated 44,562,809 533,944 45,096,753 

Less accumu lated deprec iat ion fo r :  
Fu rn itu re and equ ipment (3, 188,745 ) (246,574) (3,435,3 19) 
Bu i l d i ngs ( 1,586,557)  (282,874) ( 1,869,431 )  
Leaseho ld  imp rovements (90,558) (90,558) 
I nfrastructu re ( 1 1,235,787) ( 1,088,818) ( 12,324,605) 

Tota l accumu lated deprec iat ion ( 16,101,647) ( 1,618,266) ( 17,719,913 )  

Tota l ca p ita l assets be ing depreciated, net 28,461,162 ( 1,084,322)  27,376,840 
Governmenta l activit ies cap ita l assets, net $ 36,192,871 $ 1,230,211  $ ( 131,065) $ ( 1,547,337)  $ 35,744,680 

Bus iness-type activit ies :  

Ca p ita l assets not be ing depreciated : 
Construct ion i n  p rogress 

Tota l ca p ita l assets not being depreciated 

Ca p ita l assets being depreciated : 
I nfrastructu re 
Furn itu re and equ ipment 

Tota l ca p ita l assets be ing depreciated 

Less accumu lated deprec iat ion fo r :  
I nfrastructu re (2,753,011 )  (367,811 )  (3, 120,822) 
Fu rn itu re and equ ipment (236,842) (38,512)  (275,354) 

Tota l accumu lated deprec iat ion (2,989,853)  (406,323)  (3 ,396, 176) 
Tota l ca p ita l assets be ing depreciated, net 11,681,964 635,418 12,317,382 
Bus iness-type activit ies cap ita l assets, net $ 12,796,511  $ 665,473 $ ( 1,041,741) $ 1,547,337 $ 13,967,580 

$ 1 ,114,547 $ 30,055 $ ( 1,041,741) $ 1,547,337 $ 1,650,198 
1 ,114,547 30,055 ( 1,041,741) 1,547,337 1,650,198 

14,349,458 1,041,741 15,391,199 
322,359 322,359 

14,671,817 1,041,741 15,713,558 
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Depreciation expense cha rged to fu nctions/progra ms of the prima ry govern ment a re a s  fo l lows: 

Governmenta l act ivit ies : 
Genera l  govern ment 
Pub l i c  safety 
Transportat ion 
Pa rks and recreat ion 

Tota l depreciat ion expense - governmenta l acti

$ 384,931  
59,327 

557,597 
616,411 

vities $ 1,618,266 

Bus i ness-type activit ies : 
Stormwater uti l ity 

Tota l depreciat ion expense - bus iness-type activit ies 

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Special Obl igation Bonds, Series 2010 

Pu rsua nt to  Ordina nce N umber  2010-127, Reso l ution N u m ber  2010-857 and  Reso l ution N umber  2010-858, on 
December  16, 2010, the Town issued $7 .33  mil lion of Town of Miami La kes, F lo rid a, Specia l Ob ligation Bonds, 
Fede ra l ly Taxa b le  Series 2010 (Government Cente r P roject) ( B ui ld America Bonds - Direct Payment) (the 
"Se ries 2010 Bonds") to pay a l l  the costs of pu rchasing, designing and construction of a new Government 
Center, pay ca pita lized inte rest, fu nd a debt se rvice reserve a nd, together  with othe r  avai la b le  fu nds, to pay 
costs of issua nce .  

The Series 2010 Bonds a re co l l ate ra lized by the E lectric Utility Tax Revenues a nd a re due se ria l ly begin ning 
December  1, 2019 th rough the yea r 2040 with semi-a n nu a l  inte rest d ue  on J u ne 1 and  December  1 each yea r. 

Revenue  req uirements inc l ude at least 1 . 25  times the maxim um principa l a nd inte rest on  a l l  outsta nding 

bonds .  

Events of defa u lt inc l ude a fai l u re to make a payment of p rincipa l o r  inte rest d ue on  the bond .  I n  the event of 
defa u lt, the owners of not less  than  the majo rity of the aggregate p rincipa l amount of the Bonds outsta nding 

may, by written  notice to the Town, dec la re the principa l of a l l  the outsta nding Bonds to be due and payab le  
im mediate ly; a nd  the owners of not  less  tha n 25% of the aggregate principa l amount of the Bonds 
outsta nding may, by suit o r  other p roceedings, p rotect and  e nfo rce a ny and  a l l  rights of the bondho lders 
under  the laws of the State of F lorid a .  

U nder  t he  America n Recove ry and  Reinvestment Act o f  2009 Congress added certain p rovisions to  the I nterna l  

Revenue  Code (the "Code" )  which made it possib le for state and  loca l gove rnments to  pote ntia l ly obtain lower 
net bo rrowing costs when issuing bonds that meet certain req uirements of the Code a nd the re lated Treasury 
Regu lations ( "qua lified bonds" ) .  A Bui ld America Bond is a "q ua lified bond" where the issuer  has  made a n  
irrevoca b le  e lection t o  have the specia l ru les app lica b le  to the q ua lified bonds .  

A Bui ld  America Bond that constitutes a "q ua lified bond" entit les the issuer  to receive direct su bsidy payments 
from the U nited States Depa rtment of the Treasu ry, upon meeting ce rtain other  additiona l  req uirements, in 
the amount of 35% of the co rresponding inte rest paya b le  on the re l ated bonds .  The Series 2010 Bonds were 
issued as "q ua lified bonds" .  Bonds bea r inte rest rates ra nging from 7 .05% to 7 .627%. 

$ 406,323 

$ 406,323 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Arbitrage 

Arbitrage refers to the profit ea rned by investing tax-exem pt bond fu nds in higher  yie lding investments. U nder  
federa l  a rbit rage regu lations, a n  issuer  of  tax-exem pt bonds  i s  a l lowed to  ea rn  this p rofit fo r a ce rtain period 
of time d u ring the construction period of the re lated project. Once this time period has  expired,  the profit 
rea lized on  a ny recu rring bond proceeds is subject to rebate to the federa l  government .  These federa l  
a rbit rage regu lations  a pp ly t o  a l l  o f  tax-exem pt issues .  A s  o f  Septembe r  30, 2021, the Town is not subject to 
the rebate provisions of the a rbit rage regu la tions on its Series 2010 Bonds .  

Qua l ity Neighborhood Improvement Program Bonds 

Prio r to the Town's incorpo ration, Mia mi-Dade County issued $77,640,000 in F lo rida Pub lic Service Tax 
Revenue  Bonds ( U MSA Pub lic Imp rovements) Se ries 1999 (the Revenue  Bonds ) .  The County p ledged the 
U nincorporated M unicipa l Se rvice Area's ( UMSA) utility tax revenues fo r debt service on  the Revenue  Bonds .  

U n like other Miami-Dade m unicipa lities that have incorporated su bseq uent to the issua nce of the Revenue  
Bonds, there a re no written  agreements, contracts o r  other  ve rified req uirements for the Town's pa rticipation 
in the repayment of the Revenue  Bonds .  The County has  asserted a c laim that the Town shou l d  pa rticipate in 
yea rly Qua lity Neighborhood Imp rovement P rogram (QN I P )  Debt Se rvice Payments t h rough 2024. U nder  the 

County's asse rtions, the Town's QN I P  Debt Se rvice Payment wou ld  be ba sed on  utility tax revenue  co l lected 
by the Town d u ring the yea r as  a pe rcentage of the tota l U MSA utility tax revenues fo r that yea r m u ltiplied by 
the tota l debt se rvice payment due by the County on  the Reven ue Bonds for that yea r .  

Du ring fisca l yea r  2010, Town ma nagement worked with the County to achieve a sett lement of this and other  
financia l issues outsta nding between the two gove rnments. On  J a nua ry 28, 2010, the Town Council in a 
Specia l Ca l l  Meeting a uthorized the Town staff to move fo rwa rd and  enter into a n  agreement with Miami

Dade County pu rsua nt to which the Town wou ld  agree to pay a l l  outsta nding QN I P  payments owed to the 
County under a structu red sett lement p lan which the County had  proposed . 

The sett lement terms ca l led fo r a payment p l a n  by the Town of $ 153,423 a n n ua l ly begin ning in fisca l yea r 

2010 th rough 2024. The County su bseq uent ly refina nced the QN I P  bonds which resu lted in a n  a mend ment to 
the inte r loca l agreement to red uce the Town's debt se rvice sha re .  Remaining a n nu a l  debt se rvice payments 
from 2022 th rough 2024 wil l  a pp roximate $ 142,000. Du ring fisca l yea r  2021, the Town paid $ 140,019 of its 
QN I P  sha re to Mia mi-Dade County. 

Stormwater Uti l ity Revenue Bonds 

Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 

I n  October 2003, the County and  the Town entered into a n  agreement to tra nsfer to the Town the operations 

and  the maintena nce of the Town's Sto rmwate r utility system located within the Town's bou nda ries. As pa rt 
of the agreement, the bi l l ing and  co l lection activities wil l  remain u nder  the administration of the County's 
Wate r and  Sewer Depa rtment ("Depa rtment' ) fo r a n  ad ministrative fee of $ 1 . 14 per utility bil l p rocessed by 
the Depa rtment .  The agreement is effective for a period of 5 yea rs and  is renewa b le  by written m utua l 
consent of both pa rties .  
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Stormwater Uti l ity Revenue Bonds (continued) 

Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (continued) 

I n  addition, the agreement req uires the Town to pay the County a yea rly debt service payment t h rough the 

yea r 2024 based on  2 .4% of the Annua l  Debt Service Payment of the $41,580,000 Miami-Dade County 
Sto rmwate r Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1999. 

Stormwater Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 

Pu rsua nt to Ordinance N umber  2 1-279, Reso l ution N u m ber  2 1-1753, and  Reso l ution N u m ber  2 1-1765, on  
August 12 ,  2021, the Town issued $ 15,500,000 of  Town of  Miami La kes, F lo rida Stormwate r Utility System 
Revenue  Bonds, Se ries 202 1 .  The Bonds were issued to fina nce the costs of im provements to the Town's 
Sto rmwate r Utility System, expenses re lating to the issua nce of the Bonds, inc l uding, without limitation, the 

premium for a m unicipa l bond insura nce po licy insuring the Series 2021 Bonds .  The Bonds bea r inte rest at a 
rate between 3% and  5%, and  a re due  se ria l l y  begin ning September  1, 2022 th rough the yea r  2051 with semi

a n nu a l  inte rest due  Ma rch 1 and  September  1 each yea r .  

The bonds a re secu red by and paya b le  from the net revenues of the Sto rmwate r Uti l ity System .  

The payment o f  the principa l o f  a n d  inte rest on  the Series 2021 Bonds is being gua ra nteed by a m unicipa l 
bond insura nce po licy issued by Bui ld America M utua l  Assu ra nce Com pa ny ( " BAM" ) a nd in co nnection 

the rewith, the Town and  BAM a re entering into a n  Agreement Rega rding Bond I nsu ra nce dated as  of August 
12, 2021 .  The Rese rve Account Req uirement fo r the Series 2021 Bonds is being satisfied th rough a debt 
se rvice rese rve insurance po licy issued by BAM and  in connection therewith the Town and  BAM a re entering 

into a Debt Se rvice Rese rve Agreement dated as  of August 12, 2021 .  

An event o f  defa u lt inc ludes a fai l u re to  make a payment o f  p rincipa l o r  inte rest d ue  on  the bond .  I n  the event 
of defa u lt, the owners of not less than 10% of the aggregate principa l amount of the Se ries 2021 Bonds 
outsta nding may, by suit o r  other  p roceedings, p rotect and e nfo rce a ny and a l l  rights of the bondho lders 
under  the laws of the State of F lorid a .  

Arbitrage refe rs t o  t he  p rofit ea rned by  investing tax-exem pt bond  fu nds in higher  yie lding investments. U nder  
federa l  a rbit rage regu lations, a n  issuer  of tax-exem pt bonds i s  a l lowed to earn this p rofit fo r a ce rtain period 
of time d u ring the construction period of the re lated project. Once this time period has  expired, the profit 
rea lized on  a ny recu rring bond proceeds is subject to rebate to the federa l  government .  These federa l  

a rbit rage regu lations  a pp ly t o  a l l  o f  tax-exem pt issues .  As o f  September  30, 2021, the Town is not subject to 
the rebate provisions of the a rbitrage regu l ations  on  its Se ries 2021 Sto rmwater Uti l ity System Revenue  
Bonds .  
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

A summary of debt se rvice req uirements to matu rity fo r the va rious  bonds a re as  fo l lows: 

Specia l  Ob l igation Bonds, Qua l ity Neighborhood Stormwater Ut i l ity Revenue Stormwater Bond, 
Series 2010 lm1,1rovement Program Bonds Bonds Ser ies 2021 

Se1,1tember 30, Pr inci1,1a l  I nterest Pr inci1,1a l I nterest Pr inci1,1a l  I nterest Pr inci1,1a l I nterest 
2022 $ 210,000 $ 497,241 $ 140,741 $ 1,120 $ 60, 120 $ 11,903 $ 170,000 $ 663,092 
2023 220,000 484,852 141,458 712 63,120 9,896 205,000 624,750 
2024 230,000 471,580 142,203 271 67,526 6,501 215,000 616,550 
2025 240,000 453,720 295,000 607,950 
2026 250,000 435,100 3 10,000 596, 150 

2027-203 1 1,445,000 1,864,090 1,840,000 2,754,250 
2032-2036 1,835,000 1,242,790 2,255,000 2,339,000 
2037-2041 2,320,000 457,900 2,760,000 1,829,800 
2042-2046 3,360,000 1,23 1,800 
2047-2051 4,090,000 503,800 

Tota l  $ 6,750,000 $ 5,907,273 $ 424,402 $ 2, 103 $ 190,766 $ 28,300 $ 15,500,000 $ 1 1,767, 142 

Due to Miami-Dade County - Canal  Project 

I n  October 2016 the Town entered into a n  inte r loca l agreement with the Mia mi-Dade County Stormwate r 
Utility fo r cost sha ring of sto rmwate r d rainage projects. The terms of the agreement ca l l  fo r a payment p l an  
by  the Town of  $ 15,734 a n nu a l ly, inc luding inte rest o f  $ 1,2 16, th rough 2026 .  

A s ummary of debt se rvice req uirements to  maturity i s  as  fo l l ows : 

Due to M i am i-Dade Cou nty 

Se12tember 30, Pr inci12a l I nte rest 

2022 $ 14,518 $ 1, 216  

2023 14,518 1, 216  

2024 14,518 1, 216  

2025 14,518 1, 216  

2026 14,518 1, 216  

Tota l  $ 72,590 $ 6,080 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Long-te rm debt activity fo r the fisca l yea r ended September  30, 2021 was a s  fo l lows : 

Beginn ing 

Balance I ncreases Decreases 

Ending 

Balance 

Due Within 

One Vear 

Governmenta l Activities 

Spec i a l  ob l igat ion bonds paya b le  $ 6,950,000 $ $ {200,000) $ 6,750,000 $ 210,000 
Less :  d iscou nt on bonds issued (27,928) 1 ,380 {26,548) 
QN I P  bonds 564,421 ( 140,019)  424,402 140,741 
Net pens ion l i a b i l ity 3 ,718,321  382,013 (2,298,899) 1,801,435 
OPEB  123,890 11 ,137 {8,461)  126,566 
Com pensated absences 368, 188 73,125 (57,793) 383,520 95,882 
Governmenta l  activit ies long-term 

l i a b i l it ies $ 1 1,696,892 $ 466,275 $ (2,703,792) $ 9,459,375 $ 446,623 

Business-Type Activities 

Stormwater ut i l ity revenue  bonds $ 248,006 $ $ (57,240) $ 190,766 $ 60, 120 
Stormwater ut i l ity system revenue  bonds, 

ser ies 2021 15,500,000 15,500,000 170,000 
P l u s :  prem i um  on  bonds 3,225,636 3,225,636 
Due to M i am i-Dade County 87, 108 ( 14,5 18) 72,590 14,518 
Net pens ion l i a b i l ity 141,450 2 1,899 {13 1,790) 3 1,559 
Com pensated absences 8,559 ( 1,065) 7,494 1,874 
Bus iness-type activit ies long-term 

l i a b i l it ies $ 485, 123 $ 18,747,535 $ (204,613 )  $ 19,028,045 $ 246,512  

The Town's com pensated a bsences a re genera l ly liq uidated by the Genera l  Fund .  Cu rrent ly, amounts 'Due 
within One Yea r' a re estimated based on  prio r yea rs' usage a nd known terminations  resu lting in payouts as  of 

the date of the financia l statement p repa ration .  

Pledged Futu re Revenues 

The Town has  p ledged the E lectric Utility Tax revenues as  payment fo r the Specia l Ob ligation Bond issued 

December  16, 2010. Month ly receipts a re deposited into the Utility Tax Revenue  Fund to be used to make the 
month ly debt se rvice payment on  the bonds .  At the end of the month, u n used reven ues a re then tran sferred 
to the Genera l  Fund  for norma l  operating pu rposes. Below is a s ummary of p ledged reven ues :  

Tota l  P ri n ci p a l  Cu rrent Yea r Maxi m u m  Cu rrent % of Revenue  % o f  Revenues to  
a nd  I nterest P ri n c i pa l  a nd  P ri n ci p a l  Yea r to P ri n c i pa l  a n d  Maxi m u m  P ri n ci p a l  

P l edged Revenue  Outsta nd i ng I nterest Pa id  and I nterest Revenue  I nterest P a i d  a nd  I nterest 
E l ectr ic ut i l ity tax $ 12,657,273 $ 707,241 $ 707,241 $ 3 ,129,793 443% 443% 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Line of Credit 

The Town entered in a non-revo lving l ine of credit agreement to bo rrow up to $ 15,000,000 with Ba nkU nited 
fo r the pu rpose of p roviding liq uidity to the Town to enab l e  the Town to bette r respond to an emergency 
event such as, but not limited to, h u rrica nes o r  other natu ra l , bio logica l ,  o r  man-made disaste rs that wou ld  
req uire the payment of  c lea n-up, co l lection and  disposa l o f  so lid waste o r  other  permitted costs, to  assu re 
pub lic safety and  provide cash flow re lief to the Town's Genera l  Fund ,  inc luding, without limitation, 
reim bu rsement to the Town fo r a ny such costs p revious ly paid by the Town .  The l ine of credit matures on 
November  30, 2022 .  Advances wil l  bea r inte rest equa l  to the lower of the rate of inte rest on  5-yea r  U .S .  
Treasury Notes, p l u s  one hund red and  sixty-five basis points { 1 .65%) o r  3 . 10%, but in no event less tha n 
1 . 65%. As of September  30, 202 1, this l ine of credit has not been used . 

NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM 

Emp loyees of the Town who a re emp loyed in a fu l l -time o r  pa rt-time regu l a rly esta b lished position pa rticipate 
in the statewide F lorida Retirement System ( FRS) .  The FRS offe rs members a choice between the Pension P l an  
( m u ltip le-em p loye r, cost-sha ring defined benefit p l an )  a nd  the I nvestment P l an  (defined contributio n p la n ) .  
A l l  rates, benefits and  amendments a re esta b lished by  the State o f  F lo rida th rough its legis lative body. 

The FRS has  va rious c l asses of memberships. Town emp loyees fa l l  under  fou r  of the c l a sses, which a re as 
fo l l ows: 

Special Risk Class - Al l  ce rtified law enfo rcement officers, ce rtified firefighte rs/pa ra medics and  
ce rtified firefighte rs/EMTs o f  the Town a re cove red by  this c l ass .  

Senior Management Service Class - The Town Manager and  ce rtain senior management emp loyees 

(depa rtment directo rs) a re inc luded in this c l ass .  

Regular Class - This c l ass cove rs a l l  Town emp loyees who do  not qua lify for membership in the specia l 

risk o r  the senior ma nagement se rvice c la sses .  

E lected Officers' C lass - Town Counci lmem bers a re cove red under this c lass .  

P lan Description 

Membership in the FRS is req uired fo r a l l  fu l l -time and  pa rt-time emp loyees working in regu l a r ly esta b lished 

positions fo r state agencies, cou nty gove rnments, district school  boa rds, state u nive rsities, and state 

com m unity co l leges; or cities, independent specia l dist ricts, metropo lita n p l anning districts, a nd  pub lic cha rter 

schoo ls  that make an irrevoca b le  e lection to pa rticipate .  Most Pension P lan mem bers (inc l uding renewed 
mem bers), and State Com m unity Co l l ege Optiona l  Retirement P rogram pa rticipa nts may e lect to pa rticipate in 

the FRS I nvestment P l a n .  F lo rida Retirement System Pension P l an  mem bers who retired and  chose to 
pa rticipate in the Defe rred Retirement Option P rogram (DROP)  a re not e ligib le to become mem bers of the FRS 

I nvestment P l a n .  
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Type of Benefit 

The F lo rida Retirement System Pension P l an  ( F RS) is a cost-sha ring, m u ltip le-em p loyer qua lified defined 
benefit p lan with a Defe rred Retirement Option P rogra m (DROP )  avail ab le  fo r e ligib le emp loyees .  The FRS was 

esta b lished and  is administe red in acco rda nce with Cha pte r 121, F lo rida Statutes. Retirees receive a lifetime 
pension benefit with joint and su rvivo r payment options .  FRS mem bership is compu lsory fo r emp loyees fi l ling 

regu l a r ly esta b lished positions in a state agency, county agency, state u niversity, state community co l l ege, o r  
district school  boa rd, u n less restricted from FRS membership under  sections 121 .053 and  121 . 122, F lo rida 
Statutes, o r  a l lowed to pa rticipate in a nonintegrated defined contribution p l an  in lie u of FRS mem bership .  

Pa rticipation by m unicipa lities, specia l dist ricts, cha rte r schoo ls, and metropo lita n p la n ning o rga nizations is 
optiona l .  The Retiree Hea lth I nsu ra nce Subsidy ( H IS )  P rogram is a cost-sha ring, m u ltip le-em p loyer defined 
benefit pension p lan esta bl ished and administe red in acco rda nce with section 112 . 363, F lorida Statutes. The 
benefit is a month ly payment to assist retirees of the state-administered retirement systems in paying their 
hea lth insura nce costs. Fo r the fisca l yea r ended J u ne 30, 202 1, e ligib le retirees and  beneficia ries received a 
month ly H IS payment equa l  to the n umber  of yea rs of service credited at retirement m u ltiplied by $5 .  The 
minim um payment is $30 and the maxim um payment is $ 150 per month pu rsuant to section 112 . 363, F lo rida 
Statutes . To be e ligib le to receive a H I S  benefit, a retiree u nder  one of the State administe red retirement 
systems must p rovide proof of e ligib le hea lth insu ra nce cove rage, which ca n inc lude Medica re . 

Ave rage Fina l  Compensation 

For mem bers initia l ly e n ro l led in the FRS befo re J u ly 1, 2011, ave rage fin a l  com pensation (AFC) is the average 
of the five highest fisca l yea rs of sa l a ry ea rned d u ring cove red emp loyment .  For mem bers initia l ly e n ro l led in 
the FRS on or afte r J u ly 1, 2011, AFC is the ave rage of the eight highest fisca l yea rs of sa l a ry ea rned d u ring 
cove red emp loyment .  

The fo l lowing cha rt shows the percentage va l ue fo r each yea r  of se rvice c redit ea rned in re lation to the 
genera l  c l asses of membership that the Town pa rticipates in : 

Chart included on the following page 
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

% Va l u e  

( per  yea r  of service) 

Regu l a r  Class membe rs i n it i a l ly e n ro l l e d  before J u ly 1. 2011  

Ret i rement  u p  to age  62 o r  u p  to 30  years of se rv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 63 o r  with 31 years of serv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 64 o r  with 32  years of serv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 65 o r  with 3 3  o r  more years of se rv ice 

1 . 60% 

1 .63% 

1 .65% 

1 .68% 

Regu l a r  C lass  membe rs i n it i a l ly e n ro l l e d  on o r  after  J u ly 1. 2011  

Ret i rement  u p  to age 65 o r  u p  to 3 3  years of se rv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 66 o r  with 34 years of serv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 67 o r  with 35  years of serv ice 

Ret i rement  at age 68 o r  with 36  o r  more years of se rv ice 

1 . 60% 

1 .63% 

1 .65% 

1 .68% 

Spec i a l  R i sk  C lass 

Serv ice from Decembe r  1, 1970 t h rough  Septembe r  3 0, 1974 

Serv ice o n  and after  October  1, 1974 

2 . 00% 

3 . 00% 

E l ected Officers '  C lass 

Serv ice a s  Governor, Lt .  Governor, Cab i n et Officer, Leg i s l ator, state attorney, 

p ub l i c  d efende r, e l ected cou nty officer, or e lected offi c i a l  of a c ity o r  

spec i a l  d istr ict t h at chose EOC members h i p  for its e l ected offi c i a l s  3 . 00% 

Sen ior  M a n agement  Serv ice C lass  2 . 00% 

Vesting 

The system provides for vesting of benefits, regard less of mem bership c la ss, afte r six yea rs of credita b le 
se rvice fo r mem bers who a re en ro l led on  o r  after J u ly 1, 2001 t h rough June 30,  2011 and  eight yea rs of 

credita b le  se rvice fo r members who a re en ro l led on  or  after J u ly 1, 2011 .  Vesting fo r the FRS I nvestment P l an  
occu rs when a n  emp loyee com p letes one yea r of  se rvice in the FRS  I nvestment P l a n .  

Se rvice Retirement 

Norma l  retirement age in the regu l a r, senio r ma nagement se rvice a nd e lected office rs' c l asses is 62 fo r 
mem bers en ro l led befo re J u ly 1, 2011 and  65 fo r mem bers en ro l led on  o r  after J u ly 1, 2011 .  I n  the specia l risk 
se rvice c la ss, norma l  retirement age is 55 fo r members en ro l led before J u ly 1, 2011 and  60 fo r mem bers 
en ro l led on  o r  after J u ly 1, 2011 .  If a member  is vested but has  not reached norma l retirement age, ea rly 
retirement ca n be ta ken .  The amount of the retirement benefit wil l  be red uced 5% for each yea r p rio r to 

norma l  retirement .  

Benefits a re computed on  the basis of age and/o r yea rs of se rvice, average fina l  compensation and  se rvice 
credit. The system a lso p rovides fo r death and  disa bi l ity benefits .  

State law provides fo r a l l  e ligib le  FRS mem bers to e lect to pa rticipate in the Deferred Retirement Option 
P rogram (DROP ) .  The DROP a l lows a n  emp loyee to retire and  defe r their month ly retirement benefit to a n  
inte rest-bea ring account, fo r u p  t o  a maxim um o f  sixty months, a nd  t o  continue emp loyment with t h e  Town . 
When the DROP period ends, the emp loyee m ust terminate emp loyment .  

At that time, the emp loyee wi l l  receive payment of the accum u lated DROP benefits, and direct receipt, 
the reafte r, of the FRS month ly retirement benefit . 
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Funding Po licy 

Contributions to the FRS a re made by the Town as a perce ntage of cove red payro l l s .  Effective J u ly 1, 2012, 
state law instituted a req uirement that emp loyees in a l l  c l asses make a contribution to the FRS of 3 .00% of 
their cove red payro l l , in addition to the emp loye r's contribution .  The req uired contribution rates in effect at 
yea r end  fo r the Town were 10.82% fo r regu l a r  c l ass emp loyees, 29 .01% for senio r ma nagement se rvice c lass 
emp loyees, 25 .89% fo r specia l risk c lass emp loyees, and  51 .42% fo r e lected officers' c l ass .  Additiona l ly, the 
Town is  req uired to contribute 18 .34% fo r a l l  DROP pa rticipa nts. These rates inc l ude the norma l cost and 
u nfu nded actua ria l lia bility contributions, the 1 . 66 percent co ntribution for the Retiree Hea lth I nsu ra nce 
Subsidy, and  the fee of 0.06 percent fo r administration of the FRS I nvestment P l a n  and  provision of 
educationa l  too ls  fo r both p l ans .  

The contribution req uirements of cove red payro l l  a nd actua l  contributions made fo r fisca l  yea r  202 1 and  the  
two preceding yea rs were as  fo l lows: 

FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 

Contr i but ion req u i rements :  

E m p loyer $ 349,524 $ 348, 157 $ 336 ,015 

Emp l oyee 112,477 116, 181  1 1 1,058 

Tota l  contr i b ut ion req u i rements $ 462,001 $ 464,338  $ 447,073 

Contr i but ions  made ( 100%) $ 349,524 $ 348, 157 $ 336 ,015 

Tota l  covered payro l l  $ 3 ,993,384 $ 4, 161,693 $ 4,036, 102 

Percent of contr i b ut ions  to tota l  cove red payro l l  8 .75% 8 .37% 8 .33% 

The FRS issues an a n n ua l  com prehensive financia l report inc luding a statement of financia l condition, 

histo rica l and statistica l information and an actua ria l report .  A copy ca n be obtained from the State of F lorida, 
Division of Retirement at :  

Depa rtment of Ma nagement Se rvices 

Division of Retirement 
Resea rch and  Ed ucation Section 

P .0 .  Box 9000 
Ta l l a hassee, FL 32315-9000 

850-488-5706 or to l l  free at 877-377-1737 

https ://www.dms .myflo rida .com 

Net Pension Lia bility 

The com ponents of the co l lective net pension lia bi lity of the pa rticipating emp loye rs for each defined benefit 
p l an  fo r the measurement date of J u ne 30, 2021, a re shown be low (in thousa nds ) :  

F RS H I S  

Tota l  pens i on  l i a b i l ity (A) $ 209,639,046 $ 12 ,7 19, 1 2 1  

P l a n  f id uc i a ry net pos i t ion  (B )  (202,082, 183 )  (452,618 )  

N et pens i on  l i a b i l ity (A  - B )  $ 7 ,556,863  $ 12 ,266 ,503

P lan f id uc i a ry net pos i t ion  a s  a pe rcentage of the  tota l pens ion l i a b i l ity ( B/A) 9 6 .40% 3 . 5 6% 
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Net Pension Lia bility (contin ued)  

The tota l pension lia bility fo r each p lan was determined by the P l a ns' a ctua ry a nd reported in the P la ns' 
va l uations dated J u ly 1, 2021 .  The fid ucia ry net position used by the actua ry to determine the net pension 
lia bility (as  shown a bove ) was determined on  the sa me ba sis used by the P la n .  Each P la ns' fid ucia ry net 
position is reported in the financia l statements and the net pension lia bility is disc losed in the notes to the 

financia l statements. 

The genera l  fu nd is the prima ry governmenta l fu nd that is typica l ly used to liq uidate p rio r yea r  pension 

lia bilities .  

The Town reported a lia bility of $ 1,832,994 fo r its proportionate sha re of the net pension lia bility. The detail 
of proportion sha res a re as  fo l lows: 

FRS Pens ion P l an  
Emp loyer Emp loyer 

Emp loyer Contri but ion Proport ionate Sha re Emp loyer 
Contri but ion fo r Proport ion at for Pens ion Proportion at of Net Pens ion Proportionate Sha re 

Pens ion P l an  Pr ior P lan Fund i ng  Cu rrent Liab i l ity/Asset of Net Pens ion 
Fund i ng  Measu rement for Cu rrent Measurement at Pr ior Lia b i l ity/Asset at 

fo r P r io r  Per iod Date Period Date Measurement Date Measurement Date 
$ 193,601 0 .005826864% $ 253,853 0.006663560% $ 2,525,449 $ 503,356 

FRS Reti ree Hea lth I n s u ra nce Su bsidy ( H IS )  P rogra m 
Emp loyer Emp loyer 

Emp loyer Contri but ion Proport ionate Sha re Emp loyer 
Contri but ion fo r Proport ion at for Pens ion Proportion at of Net Pens ion Proportionate Sha re 

Pens ion P l an  Pr ior P lan Fund i ng  Cu rrent Liab i l ity/Asset of Net Pens ion 
Fund i ng  Measu rement for Cu rrent Measurement at Pr ior Lia b i l ity/Asset at 

fo r P r io r  Per iod Date Period Date Measurement Date Measurement Date 
$ 62,974 0 .010928255% $ 63,715 0 .010839583% $ 1,334,322 $ 1,329,638 

Basis of A l location 

The emp loyer's  p roportionate sha re reported in the pension a l location sched u les was ca lcu lated using 
accrued retirement contributions fo r emp loyers that were mem bers of the FRS and  H IS d u ring fisca l yea rs 
2019/2020 and  2020/2021 .  A lthough GASB 68 encou rages the use of the emp loyers p rojected long-te rm 
contribution effo rt to the retirement p l an, a l l ocating on the basis of histo rica l emp loye r contributions is 
accepta b le .  The aggregate emp loye r contribution amounts fo r each fisca l yea r agree to the emp loyer 

contribution amounts reported in the system's ACFR  fo r that fisca l yea r. 

The proportion ca lcu lated based on  contributions  fo r each of the fisca l yea rs p resented in the pension 
a l location sched u les was app lied to the net pension lia bility and  othe r  pension amounts app lica b le  to that 
fisca l yea r to determine each emp loye r's p roportionate sha re of the lia bility, deferred outflows of resou rces, 
defe rred inflows of resou rces and  associated pension expense .  Fo r the pu rposes of the pension a l location 
sched u l es, pension amounts a re a l located to reporting emp loye rs. The pension amounts of pa rticipating 

emp loye rs whose payro l l s  a re reported and  contributions a re remitted by a nother  entity a re inc luded in the 
reporting emp loye r's  amounts and wi l l  be a l located to the pa rticipating emp loye r by the reporting emp loye r. 
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Actua ria l Methods and Assumptions 

Actua ria l assum ptions fo r both defined benefit p l a ns a re reviewed a n n ua l ly by the F lo rida Retirement System 
Actua ria l Assum ptions Confe rence .  The FRS Pension P la n has  a va l uation performed a nnu a l ly .  The H IS 
P rogram has  a va l uation perfo rmed biennia l ly that is updated fo r GASB repo rting in the yea r  a va l uation is not 
perfo rmed . The most recent expe rience study fo r the FRS Pension P l an  covered the period from J u ly 1, 2008 
th rough J u ne 30, 2013 .  Beca use the H I S  P rogram is fu nded on  a pay-as-you-go basis, no experience study has  
been com p leted fo r this p rogra m .  The actua ria l a ssum ptions that determined the tota l pension lia bility for the 
H IS P rogram were based on  certain resu lts of the most recent expe rience study fo r the FRS Pension P la n .  

The tota l pension lia bility fo r each o f  t h e  defined benefit p l a n s  was determined by  a n  actua ria l va l uation as  of 
J u ly 1, 2021, using the individ ua l  entry age norma l  actua ria l cost method . I nflation increases fo r both p l ans  is 
assumed at 2 .40%. Payro l l  growth fo r both p l ans  is assumed at 3 . 25%. Both the discou nt rate and  the long
term expected rate of return used fo r FRS Pension P l an  investments is 6 .80%. The p l a n's  fid ucia ry net position 
was projected to be availab l e  to make a l l  p rojected futu re benefit payments of cu rrent active and  inactive 

emp loyees .  The refo re, the discount rate fo r ca l cu l ating the tota l pension lia bility is eq ua l  to the long-te rm 
expected rate of retu rn .  Beca use the H I S  P rogra m uses a pay-as-you-go fu nding structu re, a m unicipa l bond 
rate of 2 . 16% was used to determine the tota l pension lia bility fo r the program .  Morta lity assum ptions fo r 
both p l ans  were based on  the Generationa l  PU B-2010 with Projection Sca le M P-2018. 

The fo l lowing cha nges in actua ria l assum ptions occu rred in 2021 :  

H IS :  The tota l pension lia bility is ca lcu lated on  a sing le eq uiva lent discount rate as req uired by  GASB 
Statement No .  67 .  The discount rate used was  decreased from 2 . 21% to  2 . 16% refl ecting the cha nge d u ring 
the fisca l yea r in the Bond Buyer Genera l  Ob ligation 20-yea r  Bond M unicipa l Bond I ndex .  

I n  genera l , the discount rate for ca l cu l ating the tota l pension lia bility under GASB 67 is  eq uiva lent to the sing le 

rate eq uiva lent to discounting at the long-te rm expected rate of return  fo r benefit payments p rio r to the 
projected dep letion date .  Beca use the H IS benefit is essentia l ly funded on  a pay-as-you-go-basis, the 
dep letion date is considered to be immediate, a nd the sing le eq uiva lent discount rate is equa l  to the 

m unicipa l bond rate se lected by the p la n sponsor .  The discount rates used at the two dates diffe r due to 
cha nges in the app lica b le  m unicipa l bond rate . 

FRS :  The discount rate a nd long-term expected rate of retu rn was decreased from 7 .09% to 6 .80%, and  the 
active member  morta lity assum ption was u pdated . The P la n's fid ucia ry net position was projected to be 
avail ab l e  to make a l l  p rojected futu re benefit payments of cu rrent active and inactive emp loyees if futu re 
expe rience fo l lows assum ptions and  the Actua ria l ly Dete rmined Contribution (ADC) is co ntributed in fu l l  each 
yea r. Therefo re, the discount rate fo r ca l cu l ating the tota l pe nsion lia bility is  equa l  to the long-te rm expected 
rate of retu rn .  The 6 .80% rate of retu rn assum ption used in the J u ne 30, 2021 ca lcu lations was deemed 
reasonab le  and  a ppropriate by the actua ry per Actua ria l Sta nda rd of P ractice N umber  27 (ASOP 27) .  
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Actua ria l Methods and Assumptions (contin ued)  

The benefits received by retirees and  beneficia ries a re increased by a COLA each J u ly based on  their J u ne 
benefit amount (exc l uding the Retiree Hea lth I n s u ra nce Subsidy benefit ) .  For retirees who have been retired 
fo r less than  12 months on  J u ly 1, the first COLA increase is p ro rated . The COLA app lies to a l l  contin uing 
month ly retirement benefits paid under  the FRS Pension P l a n  (i .e . ,  norma l  a nd ea rly se rvice retirement 

benefits and  benefits accruing in pa rticipa nt accounts under the DRO P, disa bility retirement benefits, and 
su rvivo r benefits) . The COLA fo r retirements o r  DROP pa rticipation effective before Aug. 1, 201 1, is  3 percent 
per yea r. The COLA fo rm u l a  fo r retirees with an effective retirement date o r  DROP begin date on  o r  afte r Aug. 

1, 2011, wil l  be the sum of the pre-J u ly 2011 se rvice credit divided by the tota l se rvice credit at retirement 
m u ltiplied by 3 pe rcent .  Each Pension P lan member  with a n  effective retirement date of Aug. 1, 2011, o r  afte r 
wil l  have a n  individ ua l  COLA facto r fo r retirement .  FRS Pension P la n mem bers initia l ly e n ro l led on  o r  after J u ly 

1, 2011 wil l  not have a COLA after retirement .  

Long-Te rm Expected Rate of Retu rn 

To deve lop  a n  ana lytica l basis fo r the se lection of the long-te rm expected rate of return  assum ption, in 
October 202 1 the FRS Actua ria l Assum ption Confe rence reviewed long-te rm assum ptions deve loped by ca pita l 
ma rket assum ptions teams from both Mi l l iman  and  Aon Hewitt I nvestment Consu lting, investment 
consu lta nts to the F lo rida State Boa rd of Administration .  The ta b le  be low shows Mi l l iman's  assum ptions for 

each of the asset c l asses in which the p l an  was invested at that time based on  the lo ng-te rm ta rget asset 
a l location .  The a l location po licy's description of each asset c lass was used to map  the ta rget a l location to the 
asset c l asses shown below. Each asset c l ass assum ption is based on  a consistent set of unde rlying 

assum ptions, a nd  inc ludes an adjustment fo r the inflation assum ption .  These assumptions a re not based on  
histo rica l retu rns, bu t  instead a re based on  a fo rwa rd- looking ca pita l ma rket economic mode l .  

Compound 
An nua l  An nua l  

Ta rget Arithmetic  (Geometr ic) Sta nda rd 
Asset Class A l locat ione* Retu rn Retu rn Deviat ion 

Cash eq u iva lents 
Fixed i ncome 
Globa l  equ ity 
Rea l estate (p ropert
Private equ ity 
St rategic i nvestmen

y) 

ts 

1 .00% 
20.00% 
54. 20% 
10.30% 
10.80% 
3 .70% 

2 . 10% 
3 .80% 
8. 20% 
7 . 10% 
11 .70% 
5 .70% 

2 . 10% 
3 .70% 
6.70% 
6. 20% 
8.50% 
5 .40% 

1 . 10% 
3 .30% 
17 .80% 
13 .80% 
26 .40% 
8.40% 

Assumed i nf lat ion - mea n 2 .40% 1 . 20% 

* As out l i ned in the P l an ' s  investment po l i cy 

Sensitivity Ana lysis 

The fo l lowing ta b les demonstrate the sensitivity of the net pension lia bility to cha nges in the discount rate . 
The sensitivity ana lysis shows the im pact to the co l l ective net pension lia bility of the pa rticipating emp loyers if 
the discount rate was 1 .00% higher  o r  1 .00% lower tha n the cu rrent discount rate at J u ne 30, 202 1 .  
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Sensitivity Ana lysis (continued)  

FRS 

Tota l pens ion  l i a b i l ity 
Less : fid uc i a ry net pos it ion  
Net pens ion  l i a b i l ity 

1% 
Decrease 

5 . 80% 

$ 15 ,716 ,910 
( 13,465,867) 

Cu rrent 
D isco u nt Rate 

6 .80% 

$ 13,969,223  
( 13,465,867) 

1% 
I ncrease 
7 . 80% 

$ 12,508,353  
( 13,465,867) 

H I S  

$ 2 ,251 ,043 $ 503,356  $ (957,5 14) 

1% Cu rrent 1% 
Decrease D isco u nt Rate I ncrease 

1 . 16% 2 . 16% 3 . 16% 
Tota l pens ion  l i a b i l ity $ 1 ,586,252  $ 1 ,378,700 $ 1 ,208,657 
Less : fid uc i a ry net pos it ion  (49,062)  (49,062)  (49,062)  
Net pens ion  l i a b i l ity $ 1 ,537,190 $ 1 ,329,638 $ 1 ,159 ,595 

Pension Expense and Defe rred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resou rces 

In accorda nce with GASB 68, pa ragra phs 54 and 7 1, cha nges in the net pension lia bility a re recognized as  
pension expense in the cu rrent measurement period, except as indicated be low. For each of the fo l lowing, a 
portion is recognized in pension expense in the cu rrent measu rement period, and  the ba l a nce is amortized as  
defe rred outflows o r  deferred inflows of resou rces using a systematic and  rationa l  method over a c losed 
period, as  defined be low: 

• Diffe rences between expected and  actua l  expe rience with rega rd to economic and  demogra phic 
facto rs - amortized ove r the average expected remaining se rvice life of a l l  emp loyees that a re 
p rovided with pensions th rough the pension p l an  (active and  inactive emp loyees ) .  

• Cha nges of assum ptions o r  other inputs - amortized ove r the average expected remaining se rvice life 
of a l l  emp loyees that a re p rovided with pensions th rough the pension p l a n  (active and  inactive 
emp loyees) . 

• Cha nges in p roportion and  diffe rences between contributions  and  proportionate sha re of 
contributions  amortized ove r the ave rage expected remaining se rvice l ife of a l l  emp loyees that a re 
p rovided with pensions t h rough the pension p l an  (active and  inactive emp loyees) . 

• Diffe rences between expected and  actua l  ea rnings on  pension p l a n  investments - amortized ove r five 
yea rs contributions to the pension p l a ns from emp loye rs a re not inc l uded in co l lective pension 
expense .  

For the fisca l yea r  ended September  30,  202 1, the Town recognized pension expense of $6,668 and $ 108,619 

fo r FRS and  H IS, respective ly. Additiona l ly, the Town reported defe rred o utflows of resou rces and  defe rred 
inflows of resou rces re lated to pensions from the fo l lowing sou rces :  
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NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Pens ion Expense a nd Defe rred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resou rces (conti n ued) 

FRS Pens ion 
Deferred Deferred 
Outflows I nf lows 

of Resou rces of Resou rces Tota l  
Cha nges i n :  

Contri but ions, su bseq uent to 
measurement date $ 74,791 $ $ 74,791 

Experience expected/actua l  86,276 86,276 
Assumpt ions/i nputs 344,421 344,421 
Projected/actua l  earn i ngs ( 1,756,082) ( 1,756,082) 
Cha nges i n  proport ion, NPL  279,833 ( 263,368) 16,465 

Tota l  $ 785,321  $ (2,019,450) $ ( 1,234, 129) 

H IS Program 
Deferred Deferred 
Outflows I nf lows 

of Resou rces of Resou rces Tota l  
Cha nges i n :  

Contri but ions, su bseq uent to 
measurement date $ 16,566 $ $ 16,566 

Experience expected/actua l  44,493 (557) 43,936 
Assumpt ions/i nputs 104,480 (54,784) 49,696 
Projected/actua l  earn i ngs 1,386 1,386 
Changes i n  proport ion, NPL  83,867 (85,832)  ( 1,965) 

Tota l  $ 250,792 $ ( 141, 173) $ 109,619 

The Town contr i but ions  su bseq uent to the  measurement date of $74,791 and $ 16,566 fo r FRS a nd H IS, 
respective ly, a re reported as defe rred outflows of resou rces a nd wi l l  be recogn ized as a red uct ion of the net 
pens ion l i ab i l ity i n  the  fisca l yea r e nd i ng Septembe r  30, 202 1 .  

Othe r  amou nts reported a s  defe rred outflows o f  resou rces a nd defe rred i nflows o f  resou rces re lated to 
pens ion expense wi l l  be recogn ized as fo l lows: 

Report i ng  Per iod 
E nd i ng Se1:1tem ber  30, FRS Ex1:1ense H IS  Ex1:1ense 

2022 $ (226, 160) $ 43,499 
2023 (272,253)  16, 159 
2024 (376,315 )  2 1,365 
2025 (469, 176) 10,212  
2026 34,984 1,728 

Thereafter 
Tota l  

90 

$ ( 1,308,920) $ 93,053 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 8 - FLORIDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

Pension Expense and Defe rred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resou rces (contin ued) 

The req uired contribution rates in effect at yea r-end  were : 

Emp loyee Emp loyer Tota l 
Contr i but ion Contr i but ion Contr i but ion 

Rate Rate Rate 
Spec i a l  R isk C lass 3 .00% 24 . 17% 27 . 17% 
Sen ior  Management Service C lass 3 .00% 27 .29% 30.29% 
Regu l a r  C lass 3 .00% 9 . 10% 12 . 10% 
E lected Officer 's C lass 3 .00% 49 .70% 52 .70% 
DROP from FRS 0 .00% 16 .68% 16 .68% 

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

P l an  Description and  Benefits P rovided 

The Town offe rs to retiring emp loyees a one-time opportu nity to pa rticipate in the Town's emp loyee group  
hea lth and  life insura nce progra m pu rsua nt t o  Section 112 .0801, F lo rida Statutes. This req uired pa rticipation 
fo r retirees and  their e ligib le dependents in the hea l th and  life insu ra nce program and  other cove rage listed in 
the statute of the Town is at a p remium cost to the retiree that is no more than  the p remium cost app lica b le  
to active emp loyees .  A retiring member  who rejects this initia l opportu nity to contin ue to pa rticipate in the 
hea lth and life insura nce progra m wil l  not be entit led to a nother opportu nity to renew pa rticipation at a ny 
time in the futu re .  The cove rage provided under  this p rogra m is supp lementa l  a nd/or seconda ry to cove rage 
under  a ny and  a l l  other hea lth insu ra nce p l a ns or p rogra ms that a re p rovided to or ca rried by the retiring 
member  from a ny other sou rce .  As of September  30, 202 1, there was 1 pa rticipa nt receiving these post
emp loyment benefits. 

The Town's Retiree Hea lth Ca re P l an  ( P l a n )  is a single-emp loye r defined benefit postemp loyment hea lth ca re 
p l an  that cove rs e ligib le retired emp loyees of the Town .  The P la n, which is administered by the Town, a l lows 
emp loyees who retire and  meet retirement e ligibility req uirements under  the F lo rida Retirement System to 
contin ue medica l insurance cove rage as a pa rticipa nt in the Town's P l a n .  The Town does not issue sepa rate 
financia l statements fo r its post-em p loyment hea lth and  life insura nce progra m .  

Funding Pol icy 

The Town cu rrent ly pays for post-emp loyment hea lthca re and  life insura nce benefits p rogram on  a pay-as-you 
go basis. As of September  30, 2021, the Town has  not esta b lished a trust fund  to irrevoca b ly segregate assets 
to fu nd the lia bility associated with the post-emp loyment benefits, which wou ld  req uire the reporting of a 
trust fu nd in acco rda nce with GASB req uirements. The contribution req uirements a re p rovided fo r in the 
co l lective ba rgaining agreements negotiated with va rious u nions representing the em p loyees. Life insura nce 
cove rage fo r retiree and  spouse is 100% retiree paid . 

Employees Cove red by Benefit Te rms 

The benefits p rovided a re the same as those provided fo r active emp loyees. Spouses a nd dependents of 
e ligib le retirees a re a l so e l igib le  fo r medica l cove rage .  All emp loyees of the Town a re e ligib le to receive 
postemp loyment hea lth ca re benefits. A l l  retiree and  dependent cove rage a re at the expense of the retiree .  
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

As of the October 1, 2019 actua ria l va l uation, the fo l lowing emp loyees were cove red by the benefit te rms of 
the P la n :  

I na ctive p l a n  members o r  benef ic ia r ies cu rrent ly rece iv ing benefits 1 

I na ctive p l a n  members ent it led to but not yet receivi ng benefits 0 
Active p l a n  members 53 

54 

Tota l OPEB  Lia bility 

The Town's tota l OPEB  lia bility of $126,566 was measured as  of September  30, 2021 and  was determined 
based on  an actua ria l va l uation perfo rmed as of October 1, 2019 .  

The genera l  fu nd is  the prima ry governmenta l fu nd that is  typica l l y  used to liq uidate p rio r yea r  OPEB lia bilities .  

Actua ria l Assumptions 

The Tota l OPEB lia bility was determined using the fo l l owing actua ria l assumptions .  

I nflat ion 2 .50% 

Sa l a ry I ncreases 2 .50% 

Discount Rate 2 .43% 

I n it i a l  Trend Rate 7 .50% 

U lt imate Trend Rate 4 .00% 

Yea rs to U lt imate 55 

For a l l  lives, morta lity rates were PubG-2010 Hea lthy Morta l ity Ta b les p rojected to the va l uation date using 
P rojection Sca le M P-2019.  

Discount Rate 

Given the Town's decision not to fu nd the program, a l l  futu re benefit payments were discounted using a high
qua lity m unicipa l bond rate of 2 .43%. The high-q ua lity m unicipa l bond rate was based on  the measurement 
date of the S&P M unicipa l Bond 20 Yea r  High G rade Rate I ndex (the " I ndex" ) as  pub lished by S&P Dow Jones 
I ndices .  The I ndex consists of bonds in the S&P M unicipa l Bond I ndex with a matu rity of 20 yea rs. E ligib le 

bonds m ust be rated at least AA by Sta nda rd & Poor 's Ratings Services, Aa2 by Moody's o r  AA by Fitch .  I f  

there a re m u ltip le ratings, the lowest rating is used . 

OPEB  Expense 

U nder  GASB 75 as  it app lies to p l ans  that qua lify for the Alte rnative Measurement Method, cha nges in the 
Tota l OPEB  Lia bility a re not pe rmitted to be inc luded in defe rred outflows of resou rces o r  defe rred inflows of 
resou rces re lated to OPEB .  These cha nges wil l  be immediately recognized th rough OPEB  Expense .  Fo r the 
yea r ended September  30,  202 1, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $4,732 .  
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 9 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Cha nges in Tota l OPEB  Lia bility 

I ncreased and 

(Decreases) in  

Tota l OPEB 

Liab i l ity 

Report ing Period End ing September 30, 2020 $ 123,890 

Cha nges fo r the Yea r :  

Se rvice Cost 8,315 

I nte rest 2,822 

Cha nges of Assumptions (7,805) 

Benefit Payments (656) 

Net Cha nges 2,676 

Report ing Period End ing September 30, 2021 $ 126,566 

Cha nges of assum ptions reflect a cha nge in the discount rate from 2 . 14% for the fisca l yea r  ending Septem ber  
30, 2020 to  2 .43% fo r the fisca l yea r  ending September  30, 2021 .  

Sensitivity o f  t he  Tota l OPEB  Lia bility to  Cha nges in t he  Discount Rate 

The fo l l owing presents the tota l OPEB  lia bi lity of the Town, as we l l  a s  what the Town's tota l OPEB  lia bility 

wou ld  be if it we re ca lcu lated using a discount rate that is one pe rcentage-point lower or one percentage

point higher  than  the cu rrent discount rate : 

Cu rrent  

1% Decrease Discou nt Rate 1% I ncrease 

1 .43% 2 .43% 3 .43% 

Tota l  O P E B  Lia bility $ 155 ,959 $ 126 ,566  $ 103,407 

Sensitivity of the Tota l OPEB  Lia bility to Cha nges in the Hea lthca re Cost Trend Rates 

The fo l l owing presents the tota l OPEB  lia bility of the Town, as we l l  as what the Town's tota l OPEB  lia bility 

wou ld  be if it we re ca lcu lated using hea lthca re cost trend  rates that a re one pe rcentage-point lower or one 
pe rcentage-point higher  than  the cu rrent hea lthca re cost trend  rates :  

Cu rrent 

Hea l thca re Cost 

1% Decrease Trend  Rates 1% I n crease 

3 .00% - 6 . 50% 4 .00% - 7 . 50% 5 .00% - 8 . 50% 

Tota l OP EB  Lia bility $ 98,984 $ 126,566 $ 162,350 
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TOWN OF M IAM I LAKES, FLORI DA 

NOTES TO BAS IC  F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Agreement with Mia mi-Dade County fo r Loca l Po lice Patro l  Services 

Effective November  14, 2004, the Town executed an agreement with Miami-Dade County fo r loca l po lice 
patro l  se rvices p rovided by the County. Conside ration fo r the services is based utilizing the a ctua l  costs of 
office rs and  eq uipment .  Services a re due  on a q u a rter ly basis in a cco rda nce with the Town's a n nu a l  budget. 
The l ast payment of the fisca l yea r  is adjusted to actua l costs fo r the yea r. Additiona l  payments a re req uired 
fo r optiona l  law enfo rcement se rvices .  On Februa ry 19, 2020, the Town app roved a new contract effective 
October 1, 2019 and  expiring September  30, 2024. The Town paid a pproximately $8,400,000 to the County fo r 
loca l po lice patro l  se rvices d u ring the fisca l yea r ended September  30, 2021 .  

Litigation 

The Town is invo lved in seve ra l l awsuits incidenta l to its ope rations, the outcome of which, in the opinion of 
ma nagement and  lega l counse l ,  shou ld  not have a materia l adverse effect on  the financia l position of the 
Town .  

The Town cou l d  b e  lia b le  fo r some o f  t h e  fo rmer Mayor 's atto rney fees and  costs i n  defending his federa l  
crimina l  cha rges fo r a dema nded amount o f  app roximately $2,510,000 . The Town ' s  l ega l cou nse l  a n d  

ma nagement fee l s  that the outcome o f  this case is difficu lt t o  assess due  t o  va rious facto rs inc l uding that 
there a re other  entities invo lved that may sha re the risk of an unfavo ra b le outcome and that some of the 
crimina l  cha rges brought against the fo rmer  Mayor were incu rred o ut of the scope of his d uty a s  Mayor of the 
Town, and  the refo re, not entit led to be reim bu rsed . The Town 's  l ega l cou nse l  be l ieves that the Town, in a 
worst-case scena rio, wou ld  on ly be lia b le  fo r a portion of the forme r  Mayor 's l ega l costs, since the indictment 
inc luded actions in performa nce of d uties as  the attorney fo r a nother m unicipa lity and the dema nded amount 
fo r reim bu rsement is dependent upon a cou rt determination .  To date, the case was successfu l ly defended in 
tria l cou rt, resu lting in dismissa l with p rej udice; howeve r, the a ppe l late cou rt ove rtu rned the tria l cou rt's 
o rde r  dismissing the case and  the matte r is now befo re the t ria l cou rt once again . Based on la nguage in the 

a ppe l late cou rt's ru ling, a lthough there is no ce rtainty, ma nagement and  lega l counse l  be lieve the Town has a 
fair cha nce of success in the tria l cou rt .  The case is pending tria l cou rt and  is in the discove ry phase, as  a 
sett lement was not reached . The fina ncia l statements do not inc l ude a ny adjustments that might resu lt from 
the outcome of this u nce rtainty. 

The Town is invo lved in a lawsuit which is being defended by its insure r  whereby the F lo rida Depa rtment of 
Ma nagement Se rvices and  Division of Retirement c laims the Town is jointly and  severa l ly lia b le  fo r repayment 
of retirement benefits to a n  individ ua l  in the amount of app roximately $445,000 . I n  December  2021, an 
Ad ministrative Law J udge issued a Recommended Order  req uiring the Town to pay back the benefits .  The 
Town fi led exceptions to the ru ling. The outcome of the exceptions, subject to cou rt review, wil l  determine 

whether  the Town is lia b le  for a ny amount .  The financia l statements do not inc l ude a ny adjustments that 

might resu lt from the outcome of this u ncertainty. 

G ra nts 

The Town has ongoing majo r initiatives pa rtia l ly fu nded by gra nts that a re subject to comp lia nce 
req uirements. Amounts received o r  receiva b le  from gra nt agencies a re subject to a udit and adjustment by 
gra nto r agencies .  Any disa l l owed c laims, inc luding amounts a l ready co l lected may constitute a lia bility of the 
app lica b le  fu nds .  In  the opinion of ma nagement, the Town has  comp lied with gra nt req uirements and futu re 
disa l lowa nces of gra nt expenditu res, if a ny, wou l d  not have a mate ria l adverse effect on  the Town's financia l 
condition .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets, 

errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town also 

provides employee medical benefits through commercial insurance coverage. There were no reductions in 

insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. Settled claims did not exceed coverage for the past three 

years. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
B U DG ETARY COM PAR ISON SCH E D U LE 

G E N ERAL  F U N D  
F O R  TH E F I SCAL YEAR E N D E D  S EPTE M B E R  30, 2021 

Vari ance with 
Budgeted Amounts F i na l  Budget 

O rigi n a l  F i n a l  
Revenues :  

Ad va lorem taxes $ 8,040,628 $ 8,040,628 
Uti l ity taxes 2,994,009 2,994,009 
Franch ise fees 1 ,208,000 1, 208,000 
Comm u n ication  service tax 982,855 982,855 
Other taxes 140,000 140,000 
Li censes and perm its 228,901 228,901 
I ntergovernmenta l 3, 139, 181 4,015,493 
F i nes and  forfeitu res 195,000 195,000 
Service cha rges 140,288 140,288 
I nvestment i ncome 40,000 40,000 
Other 5 1,000 5 1,000 

Tota l reven ues 17, 159,862 18,036, 174 

Expend it u res :  
Genera l  government :  

Town counc i l  587,014 631,835 
Town adm i n istration  and  fi nance 3,036,509 3,63 1,674 
Lega l  215,000 370,000 

Tota l genera l  government 3 ,838,523 4,633,509 
Pub l i c  safety : 

Po l i ce 8,599,351  8,862, 149 
Zon i ng 60,957 60,957 

Pa rks and  recreation  2,957,745 3, 138,638 
Pub l i c  works 1, 168,394 1 ,276,613  

Tota l expend itu res 16,624,970 17,971,866 

Excess {defic iency) of reven ues 
over { u nder) expend itu res 534,892 64,308 

Other fi nanc ing  { uses ) :  
Tra nsfers i n  

{733 ,592)  
100,000 

Tra nsfers out { 1,384, 106) 
Tota l other  fi nanc ing  sou rces { uses) {733 ,592)  ( 1, 284, 106) 

Excess {defic iency) of reven ues over 
{ u nder) expend itu res and other  
fi nanc ing  ( uses) { 198,700) ( 1 ,219,798) 

Fund ba lance app ropriated 198,700 1 ,219,798 

Net cha nge i n  fu nd ba l ance 

Fund  ba l a nce, begi n n i ng 

Fund  ba l a nce, end i ng 

See notes to budgeta ry comparison schedu les 

$ $ 

Positive 
Actua l  { Negative) 

$ 7,940,228 $ { 100,400) 
3, 182,273 188,264 
1 ,208,542 542 

941,205 {41,650) 
141,430 1 ,430 
250, 124 2 1,223 

4,499,271 483,778 
103,064 {91 ,936)  
120, 194 {20,094) 
29,802 { 10, 198) 

108, 127 57 ,127 
18,524,260 488,086 

598,533 33,302 
3 ,221,881 409,793 

364, 104 5,896 
4, 184,518  448,991 

8,538,685 323,464 
54,576 6 ,381 

2,846,221  292,417 
1,076,347 200,266 

16,700,347 1 ,271 ,519 

1 ,823 ,913 1,759,605 

100,000 
{ 1,344,259)  
( 1, 244,259)  39,847 

39,847 

579,654 1,799,452 

(1 ,2 19,798) 

579,654 579,654 

4,3 18,610 4,3 18,610 

$ 4,898,264 $ 4,898,264 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORI DA 
BUDGETARY COM PARISON SCH EDULE 

B U I LD I NG  DEPARTM ENT F U N D  
F O R  TH E F ISCAL YEAR E N D E D  SEPTEMBER  30, 202 1 

Va ria nce with  
Budgeted Amou nts F ina l  Budget 

Pos itive 
O rigi n a l  F i n a l  Actua l  ( Negative) 

Revenues :  
Perm its a n d  fees $ 1,388,000 $ 1,388,000 $ 1,950,695 $ 562,695 
I nvestment i ncome 20,000 20,000 8,287 { 1 1,713 )  

Tota l revenues 1,408,000 1,408,000 1,958,982 550,982 

Expend it u res : 
Cu rrent :  

Bu i l d i ng 
Ca p ita l out lay 

Tota l expend itu res 

3,419,573 3,343,798 1,862,917 1,480,881 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over ( u nde r) 
expend itu res {2,084,353)  {2,066,328)  96,065 2, 162,393 

Othe r  fi n a nc ing sou rces ( u ses) 
Tra nsfe rs in 
Tra nsfe rs out 

Tota l othe r  fi n a nc ing  sou rces ( u ses) 
{49,021 )  
{49,021 )  

{49,02 1 )  
{49,02 1 )  

(44,816)  
(44,816)  

4, 205 
4,205 

Excess (defic iency) of  revenues over ( u nde r) 
expend itu res a n d  othe r  fi n a nc ing  ( u ses) {2 ,133,374) {2, 1 15,349) 5 1, 249 2, 166,598 

Fund  ba l a nce a pprop riated 2, 133,374 2, 1 15,349 (2, 1 15,349) 

Net cha nge i n  fu nd  ba l a nce 5 1, 249 5 1, 249 

Fund  ba l a nce, begi n n i ng  

F und  ba l a nce, e nd i ng 

72,780 130,530 
3,492,353 3,474,328 

130,530 
1,862,917 1,6 1 1,411  

$ $ 

2 ,133 ,238 2 ,133 ,238 

$ 2 ,184,487 $ 2 ,184,487 

See notes to budgeta ry com pa rison  sched u les 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

Annual budgets are adopted for a l l  governmental funds, except the Infrastructure Replacement Fund, on a 

basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The following 

procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a .  Prior to July 30 of each year, the Town Manager submits to the Town Council a proposed operating 

budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes 

proposed expenditures and means of financing such expenditures. 

b. Public hearings are held to obta in tax payers comments. 

c. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

d. The level of control at which expenditures may not exceed budget is at the departmental level. The 

Town Council approves these levels by passing an ordinance. Any revisions that alter the total 

expenditures of any appropriation center within a fund must be approved by the Town Council. 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REQU I R ED  SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 

SCH EDULE OF CHANGES I N  TOTAL OPEB L IABI L ITY AN D RELATED  RATIOS 
OTH ER POST-EMPLOYM ENT BENEF ITS (OPEB) 

SEPTEMBER  30, 2021 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Total OPEB Liabi l ity 
Service cost $ 8,315 $ 5,657 $ 5,430 $ 5,861 
I nterest 2,822 2,857 2,663 2,654 
Difference between expected and actua l  

exper ience 5,684 
Changes of assumptions (7,805) 41,543 7,968 (6,625) 
Benefit payments (656) (572) ( 1 1, 129) ( 10,257) 

Net change i n  tota l OPEB l i ab i l i ty 2,676 55,169 4,932 (8,367) 

Total OPEB l iabil ity - beginn ing 123,890 68,721 63,789 72,156 

Total OPEB l iabil ity - ending $ 126,566 $ 123,890 $ 68,721 $ 63,789 

Covered payro l l  $ 3,738,294 $ 3,647, 116 $ 3,471,781 $ 3,387,103 

Tota l OPEB l i ab i l i ty as a percentage 
of covered payro l l  3 .39% 3 .40% 1 .98% 1 .88% 

Note: Schedu le  is intended to show i nformation for 10 years. Additiona l  years w i l l  be d isp layed as they become ava i l ab le .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REQU I RED SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 

SCH EDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENS ION LIABI LITY 
FLOR IDA RETI REM ENT SYSTEM PENS ION PLAN 

LAST 8 F ISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

The Town's  proportion of the net 
pens ion l i ab i l ity 0 .006663560% 0.005826864% 0.006983261% 0.007624456% 0.006862616% 0.006556569% 0.006230023% 0.006870141% 

The Town's  proportionate share of the 
net pension l i ab i l ity $ 503,356 $ 2,525,449 $ 2,404,938 $ 2,296,526 $ 2,029,916 $ 1,655,539 $ 804,691 $ 419, 180 

The Town's  covered payro l l  $ 4,015,433 $ 3,998,274 $ 4,021,387 $ 3,908,760 $ 3,455,365 $ 3,085,052 $ 2,922,198 $ 2,817,529 

The Town's  proportionate share of  the 
net pension l i ab i l ity as a percentage 
of its covered payro l l  12 .54% 63. 16% 59.80% 58.75% 58.75% 53 .66% 27.54% 14.88% 

P l an  fiduc iary net posit ion as a 
percentage of the total pens ion 
l i ab i l ity 96.40% 78.85% 82.61% 84.26% 83.89% 84.88% 92.00% 96.09% 

* The amounts presented for each fi sca l year  were determined as of 6/30 (measurement date of the co l l ective net pens ion l i ab i l ity) . The schedu le  
i s  i ntended to show i nformation for the last ten  (10) fisca l years .  Additiona l  years wi l l  be d i sp layed as they become ava i l a b le .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REQU I RED SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 
SCH EDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTR I BUTIONS 

FLOR IDA RETI REMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 

LAST 8 F ISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractua l ly req u i red contri but ion $ 282,365 $ 281,360 $ 272,172 $ 265,449 $ 222,786 $ 191,426 $ 187,579 $ 188,515 

Contri but ions in  re lat ion to the 
contractua l ly requ i red contri but ion $ (282,365) $ (281,360) $ (272,172) $ (265,449) $ (222,786) $ ( 191,426) $ ( 187,579) $ ( 188,515) 

Contri but ion defic iency (excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

The Town's covered payro l l  

Contri but ions as a percentage of 
covered payro l l  

$ 3,993,384 

7.07% 

$ 4, 161,693 

6.76% 

$ 4,036, 102 

6 .74% 

$ 3,947,898 

6.72% 

$ 3,489,915 

6 .38% 

$ 3,115,864 

6 .14% 

$ 2,95 1,715 

6.35% 

$ 2,845,986 

6.62% 

* The schedu l e  is i ntended to show i nformation for the last ten ( 10) fi scal years . Additiona l  yea rs wi l l  be d isp layed as they become ava i l ab le .  
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TOWN OF MIAM I LAKES, FLORIDA 

REQU I RED SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMAT ION 

SCH EDULE OF  THE  TOWN'S  PROPORT IONATE SHARE OF  THE  N ET PENS ION L IAB I L ITY 

H EALTH I NSURANCE SU BSI DY PENS ION PLAN 
LAST 8 F I SCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

The Town's  proportion  of the net 

pens ion l i ab i l ity 0 .010839583% 0 .010928255% 0 .01 1835942% 0 .011956689% 0 .010492759% 0 .010380367% 0 .009449186% 0.009533181% 

The Town's  proportionate sha re of 

the net pens ion l i ab i l ity $ 1,329,638 $ 1,334,322 $ 1,324,323 $ 1,265,509 $ 1 ,121,934 $ 1,209,789 $ 963,668 $ 891,376 

The Town's  cove red payro l l  $ 4,015,433 $ 3,998,274 $ 4,021,387 $ 3,908,760 $ 3,455,365 $ 3,085,052 $ 2,922, 198 $ 2,817,529 

The  Town's  proportionate sha re of 

the net pens ion l i ab i l ity as a 

percentage of its cove red payro l l  33 . 11% 33 .37% 32 .93% 32 .38% 32 .47% 39 .21% 32 .98% 31 .64% 

P l an  fiduc ia ry net posit ion  as  a 

percentage of the tota l pens ion 

l i ab i l ity 3 .56% 3 .00% 2 .63% 2 . 15% 1 .64% 0.97% 0 .50% 0.99% 

* The a mou nts presented fo r each fisca l yea r  were determi ned as of 6/30 (measu rement date of the co l lective net pens ion l i ab i l ity) . The schedule is  i ntended 
to show i nfo rmation fo r the l ast ten ( 10) fisca l yea rs .  Addit iona l  yea rs wi l l  be d i sp layed as  they become ava i la b le .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REQU I RE D  S U P P LE M ENTARY I N FO RMATIO N  
SCH E D U LE OF  TH E TOWN 'S CONTR I BUTIONS  

H EALTH I NSU RANCE  SU BS I DY P ENS ION  P LAN 
LAST 8 F I SCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Contractua l ly req u i red contri but ion $ 67,159 $ 66,797 $ 63,843 $ 63,851 $ 56,045 $ 51,723 $ 37,192 $ 34, 152 

Contri but ions i n  relat ion to the 
contractua l ly req u i red contri but ion $ (67,159) $ (66,797) $ (63,843) $ (63,851 )  $ (56,045) $ (51,723)  $ (37,192) $ (34, 152) 

Contri but ion defic iency (excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

The Town 's  covered payro l l  

Contri but ions as a percentage of 
covered payro l l  

$ 3,993,384 

1 .68% 

$ 4, 161,603 

1 .61% 

$ 4,036,102 

1 .58% 

$ 3,947,898 

1 .62% 

$ 3,489,9 15 

1 .61% 

$ 3,115,864 

1 .66% 

$ 2,951,715 

1 . 26% 

$ 2,845,986 

1 . 20% 

* The schedu le  is intended to show i nformation for the last ten ( 10) fi sca l  years. Additiona l  years w i l l  be d isp l ayed as they become ava i l ab le .  
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Fund 

Special Revenue Fund - Th is fund is used to account for and report the rece pts of lo cal option fuel i 
tax and county-shared fuel tax that are legally restricted for expenditures related to development, 
construction equipping, maintenance, operations or expans on of public transportation system,i 
roads and bridges. 

Neighborhood Service Districts Fund - Th is fund is used to account for the co st to provide public 

imp ro vem ents and specia services through a non-ad va orem assessment. Non-ad val orem l l 
assessments represent a co st share assigned to a group of properties to pay all or part of the co st 

associated with a specific pub Iic service or improvement, such as secur ty guard services, I i ght in g i 
lake, and Ian dscape m a nt enance, prim ar Iy b enefitt ing those properties. i i 

Impact Fees Fund -This fund accounts for both parks and public safety impact fees used to fund the 

co st of add t io nal cap t a resources required to m a nt a n and accommodate p r aj  ect ed pop ul ati on i i l i i 
growth duet o new d eve Iopm ent. 

Debt Service Fund 

Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the payment of the current year' s principal and interest 

req ui rem ent s on the Specia ObIigat ion Bond issued for the Government Center t is funded by the l ; i 
E ectric Utility Tax revenues. 

Capital Projects Fund 

Infrastructure Replacement Fund - This fund is used for purposes of accumulating resources to fund 

long-term cap ital expend tures.i 

l 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

COM B I N I NG  BALANCE SHE ET 

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F U N DS 

SEPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Nonmajor Governmenta l  Funds  

Speci a l  Revenue Debt  Service Cap ita l  Projects 

Ne ighborbood Tota l Nonmajor 

Speci a l  Service I n frastructu re Governmenta l  

Revenue D istri cts Impact Fees Debt Service Rep lacement Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and  cash equ iva lents $ 817,038 $ 486,570 $ 1, 164,274 $ 2,000 $ 281,327 $ 2,751,209 

Accounts receiva b les, net 461,260 13,177 279,935 754,919 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equ iva lents 372,704 372,704 

I nvestments 548,568 548,568 

Tota l a ssets $ 1,278,298 $ 487, 117 $ 1,177,451 $ 1,203,207 $ 281,327 $ 4,427,400 

L IABI LITI ES 

Accounts paya b le  

Due to other  funds 

Tota l l i ab i l i t ies 

$ 135,905 

135,905 

$ 147,558 

147,558 

$ 

F U N D  BALANCES 

Restricted for : 

Debt service 

Tra nsit - C ITT 20 33,205 

Tra nsportation - C ITT 80 141,829 

Tra nsportation - Gas Tax 140,349 

Mob i l ity 345,364 

Micromobi l ity 1, 100 

Tree remova l 39,821 

$ $ 36,700 $ 320, 163 

234,099 234,099 

234,099 36,700 554,262 

969,108 969,108 

33,205 

141,829 

140,349 

345,364 

1, 100 

39,821 

94,794 

5,648 

1,077,009 

83,674 

58, 111  

80,392 

89,719 

11,387 

16,276 

240,840 

199,885 

244,627 244,627 

Impact fees :  

Pub l ic safety 

Pa rks imp rovement 

Pa rks open space 

Neighborhood Service Districts: 

M i am i  La kes Section 1 

Loch Lomond 

Roya l Oa ks Section 1 

Roya l Oa ks East 

La ke Patr ic ia 

La ke H i l da  

G reenway 77th Court 240,840 

La rge Park LOS 199,885 

Committed for : 

I n frastructu re p rojects 

83,674 

58, 111  

80,392 

89,719 

11,387 

16,276 

94,794 

5,648 

1,077,009 

Tota l fund ba l a nces 1,142,393 339,559 1,177,451 969,108 244,627 3,873, 138 

Tota l l i ab i l i t ies and fund ba l a nces $ 1,278,298 $ 487, 117 $ 1,177,451 $ 1,203,207 $ 281,327 $ 4,427,400 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
COM B I N I NG STATEM E NT OF REVEN U ES, EXPEN DITU RES, AND CHANGES I N  

FUND  BALANCES - N O N  MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR TH E F ISCAL YEAR ENDED  S EPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Non major Governmenta l  Funds  

Spec ia l  Revenue Debt Service Capita l P rojects 

Neigh borbood Tota l  Nonmajor 
Specia l  Service I nfrastructu re Governmenta l  

Revenue Districts Im pact Fees Debt Service Rep lacement Funds 

Revenues :  
Ut i l ity taxes $ $ $ $ S49,092 $ $ 549,092 
Other taxes 371,859 371,859 
Licenses and perm its 483,235 483,235 
I ntergovernmenta l  1,490,244 1,490,244 
I m  pact fees: 

Publ ic safety 3 1,337 3 1,337 
Pa rks 7,913 7,913 

I nvestment income 4,054 3,668 5,044 2,677 802 16,245 
Specia l  assessments 1,377,897 1,377,897 
Other 14,800 6,846 169,863 191,509 
Tota l  revenues 2,364, 192 1,388,411 44,294 721, 632 802 4,5 19,331 

Expend itures :  
Cu rrent: 

Tra nsportation 1,331,338 1,331,338 
Admin i strative 1,364,009 3,050 4,720 1,371,779 

Debt service: 
Pr inc ipa l  200,000 200,000 
I nterest 5 14, 660 5 14,660 

Capita l out lay 2,661 52,926 55,587 
Tota l  expend itures 1,331,338 1,366,670 717,710 57,646 3,473,364 

Excess of revenues over expend itures 1,032,854 21,741 44,294 3,922 (56,844) 1,045,967 

Other fi nanc ing sou rces (uses) 
Tra nsfers in 
Tra nsfers out 

Tota l  other fi nanc ing sou rces (uses) 

493,835 
( 1, 196,000) 

(702, 165) 
(220,021) 
(220,021) 

1,500 

1,500 

150,000 

150,000 

645,335 
( 1,416,021) 

(770,686) 

Net cha nge i n  fu nd ba la nces 330,689 21,741 ( 175,727) 5,422 93, 156 275,281 

Fund ba lances, begi nn i ng  811,704 3 17,818 1,353, 178 963,686 151,471 3,597,857 

Fund  ba lances, end ing  $ 1,142,393 $ 339,559 $ 1, 177,451 $ 969, 108 $ 244,627 $ 3,873, 138 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SCH EDULE OF  REVEN U ES, EXP END ITURES AN D CHANGES I N  FUND  BALANCES -

BU DGET AN D ACTUAL - SPECIAL REVE N U E  FUND  

FOR  TH E F I SCAL YEAR ENDED  S EPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Revenues :  
Gas tax 6 cents 
C ITT transit sa les tax 20% 
CITT tra nsportation  sa les tax 80% 
Tree program, Greenway and La rge Pa rks LOS 
Mob i l ity 
I nvestment i ncome 
I ntergovernmenta l 
Other 

Tota l revenues 

Expend itu res : 
Cu rrent :  

Tree program 
Tra nsportation 
Tra nsit 
Conti ngency 

Tota l expend itu res 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over ( u nder)  
expend itu res 

Other fi n anci ng sou rces ( u ses) 
Tra nsfers i n  
Tra nsfers out 

Tota l other fi nanc ing sou rces ( u ses) 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over ( u nder)  
expend itu res and other fi na nc ing ( u ses) 

Fund ba l a nce appropriated 

Net cha nge in fu nd ba l a nce 

Fund ba l a nce, begi nn i ng 

Fund  ba l a nce, end ing 

Budgeted Amou nts 

Origi na l  F i na l  

$ 341,894 
261,139 

1,017,066 
10,000 

267,000 
5,000 

128,798 
17,500 

$ 341,894 
261,139 

1,017,066 
10,000 

267,000 
5,000 

129,575 
17,500 

79,342 
778,430 
442,953 
895,107 

28,945 
1,078,384 

453,992 
597,395 

( 1 19, 213 )  ( 109,542) 

(725,000) 

493,835 
( 1, 196,000) 

(702, 165}  

(844,213 )  (811,707) 

844,213 811,707 

2,048,397 2,049, 174 

2,167,610 2,158,716 

(725,000) 

$ $ 

Actua l  

$ 371,859 
286, 191 

1, 144,762 
67, 281 

415,954 
4,054 

59, 291 
14,800 

2,364, 192 

958,484 
372,854 

1,331,338 

1,032,854 

493,835 
( 1, 196,000) 

(702, 165} 

330,689 

330,689 

811,704 

$ 1, 142,393 

Va r ia nce with 
F i na l  Budget 

Positive 
( Negative) 

$ 29,965 
25,052 

127,696 
57,281 

148,954 
(946) 

(70,284) 
(2,700) 

3 15,018 

28,945 
119,900 
81, 138 

597,395 
827,378 

1, 142,396 

1, 142,396 

(811,707) 

330,689 

811,704 

$ 1, 142,393 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SCH E D U LE OF REVEN U ES, EXP E N D ITU RES  AN D CHANG ES I N  FU N D  BALANCES  -

B U D G ET AN D ACTUAL - N E I G H BORHOOD S E RV ICE  D I STR ICTS F U N D  

F O R  TH E F ISCAL YEAR E N D E D  S E PTE M B E R  30, 2021 

Revenues :  
Speci a l  assessment 
I nvestment i ncome 
Other 

Tota l  revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amou nts 

O rig i n a l  F i n a l  

1 ,397,560 $ 1 ,397,560 $ 

Actua l  

1 ,377,897 

Var ia nce with 
F i n a l  Budget 

Pos it ive 
( Negative) 

$ ( 19 ,663)  

Expend itu res : 
Cu rrent :  

Ad m i n istrative 
Cap ita l  out lay :  

Tra ns it 
Tota l  expend itu res 

1 ,564, 317  1 ,593,631  1 ,364,009 229,622 

Excess (defi c iency) of revenues over ( u nder)  
expend itu res (279, 321) (308,635 )  2 1,741 330,376 

Excess (defi c iency) of revenues over  ( u nder)  
expend itu res and other fi nanc i ng  ( u ses) (279, 321) (308,635 )  2 1,741 330,376 

Fund ba l a nce a pp ropr i ated 279, 321  308,635 (308,635 )  

Net cha nge i n  fu nd  ba l a nce 2 1,741 2 1,741 

Fund ba l a n ce, begi n n i ng 

Fund ba l a n ce, end i ng  

3 ,668 
7,000 7,000 6,846 

1,404,560 1,404,560 1,388,411  

3 ,668 
( 154) 

( 16, 149) 

1 19,564 1 19,564 2,661 
1,683,881 1 ,713 ,195 1 ,366,670 

1 16,903 
346,525  

3 17,818 

$ $ $ 339,559 

3 17,818 

$ 339,559 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SCH EDULE OF  REVEN U ES, EXP END ITURES AN D CHANGES I N  FUND  BALANCES -

BUDGET AN D ACTUAL - I M PACT FEES  FUND  
FOR  TH E F I SCAL YEAR ENDED  S EPTEMBER  30, 2021 

Revenues :  
I mpact Fees 

Pub l i c  safety 
Pa rks 

Deve loper contri but ions 
I nvestment i ncome 

Tota l revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amou nts 

Origi na l  F i na l  

205,000 $ 205,000 

86,620 

$ 

Actua l  

3 1,337 
7,913 

Va r ia nce with 
F i na l  Budget 

Positive 
( Negative) 

$ ( 173,663) 
7,913 

(86,620) 
5,044 

Expend itu res : 
Cu rrent :  

Pa rks 
Capita l outlay - pub l i c  safety 

Tota l expend itu res 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over ( u nder)  
expend itu res ( 1, 171, 187)  ( 1,042,935)  44,294 1,087, 229 

Other fi n anci ng ( u ses) : 
Tra nsfers out ( 250,000} (306,641)  (220,021)  86,620 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over ( u nder)  
expend itu res and other fi na nc ing ( u ses) ( 1,421,187) ( 1,349,576) ( 175,727) 1, 173,849 

Fund ba l a nce appropriated 1,421,187 1,349,576 ( 1,349,576) 

Net cha nge i n  fu nd ba l a nce ( 175,727) ( 175,727) 

Fund ba l a nce, begi nn i ng 

Fund  ba l a nce, end ing 

291,620 (247,326)  
5,044 

44,294 205,000 

1, 110,557 1,069,938 
264,617 

1,376,187 1,334,555 

1,069,938 
264,617 

1,334,555 

1,353, 178 

$ $ $ 1, 177,45 1 

1,353, 178 

$ 1, 177,45 1 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SCH EDULE OF REVENU ES, EXPEND ITURES AN D CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCES -

BU DGET AN D ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
FOR TH E F ISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Reven ues :  
E l ectric ut i l ity taxes 
I nvestment i ncome 
Other  

Tota l revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Origi na l  F i na l  

555,991 $ 555,991 

171,824 171,824 
727,815 727,815 

$ 

Actua l  

549,092 
2,677 

169,863 
721,632 

Va r iance with 
F ina l  Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (6,899) 
2,677 

( 1,961) 
(6, 183) 

Expend itures :  
Cu rrent :  

Transportation 
Admin istrat ion 

Debt service :  
Pr inc ipa l  
I nterest 

Tota l expend itures 

310,236 
3,750 

200,000 
507,609 

1,021,595 

310,236 
3,750 

200,000 
507,609 

1,02 1,595 

3,050 

200,000 
514,660 
717,710 

310,236 
700 

(7,05 1) 
303,885 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over (u nder) 
expend itures (293,780) (293,780) 3,922 297,702 

Other  fi nancing sou rces (uses ) :  
Transfe rs i n  

Tota l other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over (u nder) 
expend itures and other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) {293,780) {293,780) 5,422 299,202 

Fund ba lance appropriated 293,780 293,780 {293,780) 

Net change in fu nd ba lance 5,422 5,422 

Fund ba lance, begi n n i ng 

Fund ba lance, end ing 

1,500 
1,500 

1,500 
1,500 

963,686 

$ $ $ 969, 108 

963,686 

$ 969, 108 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SCH EDU LES OF REVENU ES, EXPEND ITURES AN D CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCES -

BU DGET AN D ACTUAL - CAPITAL PROJ ECTS FUND 
FOR TH E F ISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

Reven ues :  
Gas tax 3 cents 
I ntergovernmenta I 
I nvestment i ncome 

Tota l revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Origi na l  F i na l  

128,838 $ 128,838 
6,675,777 7, 144,660 

$ 

Actua l  

140,612 
1,683, 107 

Va r iance with 
F ina l  Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 11,774 
(5,461,553) 

Expend itures :  
Cu rrent :  

Transportation / pub l i c  works 
Pa rks and recreation 

Capita l out lay: 
Dra inage improvements 
Transportation improvements 
Pa rks and recreation 
Faci l it ies and equ ipment 

Tota l expend itures 

312,292 

2,447,084 
5,506,569 
1, 144, 157 

241,378 

2,964,028 
6,126,876 
1,565,663 

10,294 

1,547,337 
883,331 
165, 159 

241,378 
( 10,294) 

1,416,691 
5,243,545 
1,400,504 

(Defic iency) of revenues (u nder) expenditu res (2,605,487) (3,696,077) {820, 110) 2,875,967 

Other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) 
Transfe rs in 
Transfe rs out 

Tota l other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) 

1,352,525 

1,352,525 

1,853,645 

1,853,645 

1,767,025 

1,767,025 

(86,620) 

(86,620) 

Excess (defic iency) of revenues over (u nder) 
expend itures and other  fi nancing sou rces (uses) ( 1,252,962) ( 1,842,432) 946,915 2,789,347 

Fund ba lance appropriated 1,252,962 1,842,432 ( 1,842,432) 

Net change in fu nd ba lance 946,915 946,915 

Fund ba lance, begi n n i ng 

Fund ba lance, end ing 

7,774 
6,804,615 7,273,498 1,831,493 

7,774 
(5,442,005 ) 

71,630 45,482 
9,410, 102 10,969,575 2,651,603 

26, 148 
8,3 17,972 

1,842,430 

$ $ $ 2,789,345 

1,842,430 

$ 2,789,345 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
SUPPLE M E NTAL SCH EDULE - D I SAGGREGATE D  I N FORMATION 

E NTERPR ISE  FUND - STORMWATE R  
F O R  THE  F ISCAL YEAR ENDED  S EPTE M B E R  30, 2021 

Bond Ser ies Amer ican 
Operations  2021 Rescue P l a n  Tota l  

SCH E D U LE OF  N ET POSIT ION 

ASSETS 
Cash a nd  cash equ iva l ents 
Restricted cash 
Accou nts receivab le, net 
Advance to Bond  Ser ies 202 1 
Construct ion i n  p rogress 
Fu rn itu re a nd  equ i pment, net 
I n frastructu re, net 

Tota l  assets 

$ 794,680 

357,799 
18,288,366 

1,620, 143 
47,005 

12,270,377 
33 ,378,370 

$ 
18,292,226 

30,055 

18,322,281 

$ 
7,856,063 

7,856,063 

$ 794,680 
26, 148,289 

357,799 
18,288,366 

1,650, 198 
47,005 

12,270,377 
59,556,714 

DE F ERRED  OUTFLOWS OF RESOU RCES 
Pens ion 36,889 36,889 

LIAB I LIT I ES  
Accou nts payab l e  a nd  other  cu rrent l i a b i l it ies 
Advance from operat ions 
Unea rned reven ues 
Com pensated a bsences 
Net pens ion l i a b i l ity 
QN I P  Stormwater 
FEMA SW Projects 
Bond  Ser ies 2021 Payab l e  
Bond  Series 2021 Prem i um 

Tota l  l i a b i l it ies 

248,601 

7,494 
3 1,559 

190,766 
72,590 

15,500,000 
3,225,636 

19,276,646 

30,055 
18,288,366 

18,318,42 1 

7,855, 138 

7,855, 138 

278,656 
18,288,366 
7,855, 138 

7,494 
3 1,559 

190,766 
72,590 

15,500,000 
3,225,636 

45,450,205 

DE F ERRED  I N FLOWS OF  RESOU RCES 
Pens ion 1 1 1,059 1 11,059 

TOTAL N ET POSIT ION $ 14,027,554 $ 3,860 $ 925 $ 14,032,339 

SCH E D U LE OF  REVE N U ES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN N ET POSIT ION 

Operati ng  reven ues $ 1,692,827 $ $ $ 1,692,827 

Operati ng  expenses ( 1,234,252)  ( 1,234,252)  

Nonoperati ng  revenues (expenses) (507,909) 3,860 925 (503, 124) 

I ncome ( loss) before contr i but ions and transfers (49,334) 3,860 925 (44,549) 

Contr i but ions and transfers 1,495,337 1,495,337 

Change i n  net posit ion $ 1,446,003 $ 3,860 $ 925 $ 1,450,788 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

This pa rt of the Town of M i am i  La ke's annua l  com prehens ive fi na ncia l report presents deta i led i nformation as a 

context for understa nd ing what the i nformation i n  the fi na ncia l statements, note d isclosu res, and requ i red 

supp lementary i nformation says about the government 's overa l l  fi na ncia l hea lth .  

Contents 

F inancia l  Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's 

financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

71-75 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local 

revenue source, the property tax. 

76-80 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's 

current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

81-82 

Demographic and Economic I nformation 83-84 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 

environment within which the government's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information and I nsurance in Force 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 

information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and 

the activities it performs. 

85-88 

Sou rces : U n less otherwise noted, the i nformation in these schedu les is derived from the annua l  com prehens ive 

fi na ncia l reports for the re leva nt yea r. 



TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
FI NANCIAL TRENDS 

N ET POSITION BY COMPO N E NT 
LAST TEN YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Governmental activities :  
Net  investment in  capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Tota l governmental activities net position 

$ 20,557, 3 1 8  
6,588,938 
5 883 3 5 1  

33 029 607 

$ 2 1 , 8 14,437 
5,021,979 
6 7 9 7  024 

33 633 440 

$ 22,47 1 ,538 
4,750,852 
7 228 689 

34 451 079 

$ 23, 189, 1 74 
5,374, 5 8 1  
3 794 639 

32 358 394 

$ 24,384,954 
4, 3 1 6, 340 
3 497 638 

32 198 932 

$ 25,025,518 
6 , 8 1 5,90 1 
2 929 08 1 

34 770 500 

$ 25,989,505 
6,923,570 
2 527 265 

35 440 340 

$ 26,298,602 
8,677,308 
2 229 467 

37 205 377 

$ 28,533,023 
7 , 3 5 1 , 5 3 5  

992 2 2 1  
36 876 779 

$ 28,428,460 
8,572,783 
1 8 0 4  0 2 9  

38 805 272 

Business-type activities : 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Tota l busi ness-type activities net position 

$ 

$ 

4,734,099 

4 1 0  3 5 1  
5,144,450 

$ 

$ 

6,486, 5 8 1  

3 8 0  542 
6,867,123 

$ 

$ 

7,092,272 

648 868 
7,741,140 

$ 

$ 

7,641,072 

221 981 
7,863,053 

$ 

$ 

8,865,688 

571 384 
9,437,072 

$ 

$ 

9,743, 3 1 8  

420 69 1 
10,164,009 

$ 

$ 

10,777,658 

206 8 1 4  
10,984,472 

$ 

$ 

1 1 ,642,537 

14 328 
1 1,656,865 

$ 

$ 

12,46 1 ,397 

120 154 
1 2,581,55 1  

$ 

$ 

13 , 178,871  
4,785 

848 683 
14,032,339 

Primary government 

Net investment in  capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Tota l primary government net  position 

$ 25 ,291 ,417  
6,588,938 
6 293 702 

38 174 057 

$ 28, 3 0 1 , 0 1 8  
5,021,979 
7 177  566 

40 500 563 

$ 29,563,810 
4,750,852 
7 877 557 

42 192 219 

$ 30,830,246 
5,374, 5 8 1  
4 0 1 6  620 

40 221  447 

$ 33 , 250,642 
4, 3 1 6, 340 
4 069 022 

4 1  636 004 

$ 34,768,836 
6 , 8 1 5,90 1 
3 349 772 

44 934 509 

$ 36,767,163 
6,923,570 
2 734 079 

46 424 8 1 2  

$ 37,94 1 , 139 
8,677,308 
2 243 795 

48 8 6 2  242 

$ 40,994,420 
7 , 3 5 1 , 5 3 5  
1 112 375  

49 458 330 

$ 41 ,607, 3 3 1  
8,577,568 
2 652 712  

52 837 6 1 1  

7 1  



TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
FINANCIAL TRENDS 

CHANGES IN  N ET POSITION 
LAST TEN YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

General  govern ment $ 3 ,24 1 , 0 1 8  $ 3 ,505,665 $ 3 ,359,809 $ 4,504,066 $ 5,466,296 $ 5 ,918,945 $ 5,439,496 $ 5 ,855,914 $ 6,024,434 $ 5,959,090 
Pub l ic  safety 6 ,234,271  6,287 , 3 1 9  6 ,365, 7 1 5  7,972,8 10  8 ,014 ,737  9,640,653 10,202,073 10 ,786,886 10,622,577 1 0 , 51 5,505 
Parks and recreation 2,798,627 2,703 ,496 3 ,051 ,793 3 ,306, 152  3 ,481 ,695 4,772,220 6,405,543 3 ,508,046 3 ,554,095 3,467,742 
Transportation/Pub l ic  Works 2 ,353 ,479 2,83 1 ,483 2 ,527,545 2,69 1 , 1 14 2,63 1 , 509 2,624,862 2,883,959 2,890,902 2,795,296 2,968,332 
Comprehensive p lann ing 1 ,636,965 1 ,622,645 1,679,697 
Physica l  environ ment 4,307 
Interest expense 561  402 528 383 603 123  600 247 654 998 596 942 5 5 1  077 550 747 527 518 511 190 

Tota l governmental activities expenses 16.825.762 17.478.991 17.587.682 19.078.696 20.249.23S 23,S53.622 25.482.148 23.592.495 23,S23.920 23.421.859 

Business-type activities: 
Stormwater uti l it ies 892 995 877 397 783 596 1 033  870 818 380 937 656 1 369 005 1 272 487 1 093 9 1 9  1 7 4 3  488 

Total bus iness-type activities expenses 892 995 877 397 783 596 1 033  870 818 380 937 656 1 369 005 1 272 487 1 093 9 1 9  1 7 4 3  488 
Tota l primary government expenses 17.718.757 18.356.388 18.37 1.278 20, 1 1 2,566 21.067.61S 24.49 1.278 26,851.153 24.864.982 24.617.839 25.16S,347 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services : 
General  govern ment 229,955 1 8 1 ,927 2 5 1 ,688 926,044 1 3 ,079 14,004 23,550 1 ,726, 5 1 5  1 , 5 1 2,343 1 ,388 ,183  
Pub l i c  safety 2 1 5 , 183  324,720 536 ,168  3 18 ,413  2,046,763 3,869,723 3 ,327 , 193  2,738,436 1 ,962,964 2,334,977 
Parks and recreation 7,085 1 1 ,705 43 , 139  85,024 1 3 1 ,628 1 , 146,389 1 , 1 29,490 8 14,497 194, 100 76,482 
Transportation/Pub l ic  Works 304,848 7 19,774 49,342 168,554 756, 7 1 1  74,453 525,628 
Comprehensive p lann ing  1 ,064,408 1 ,003,083 1 , 197,885 
Operati ng grants and contri but ions 564,774 178 ,071  3 ,392 70,759 2,075,665 2 ,816,820 2,955, 170 1 29,890 242,459 1 ,091 ,809 
Capital  g rants and contri but ions 1 978 459 36 655 259 538 442 691  50 348 1 180 274 2 395 955 1 743 136  

Tota l governmental activities program revenues 2,081,40s 3.677.965 2.068.927 1.964.626 5.429.600 7.946.626 7.603.957 7.346.323 6.382.274 7.160.21S 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services 

Stormwater uti l ity 978,961 970,188 850,864 942,089 953,982 1 ,034, 3 1 4  1 ,043,899 1 ,058 ,714 1 ,060,0 1 1  1 ,692,827 
Operati ng grants and contri but ions 1 052 142 1 286 662 

Total bus iness-type activities progra m revenues 978 961  970 188 850 864 942 089 953 982 2 086 456 2 330 561 1 058 7 1 4  1 0 6 0  0 1 1  1 692 827 
Tota l primary government program revenues $ 3.060.366 $ 4.648.1S3 $ 2.9 19.791 $ 2.906.7 15 $ 6.383,S82 $ 10.033.082 $ 9.934.S18 $ 8.405.037 $ 7.442.28S $ 8.853.042 
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(33,908) 

72,087 

TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
FINANCIAL TRENDS 

CHANGES IN  N ET PDSITION (CONTI N U E D) 
LAST TEN YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Net ( Expense) Revenue 
Govern mental activities ( 14,744,356) $ ( 13 ,801 ,027) $ ( 15 ,5 18,755) $ ( 1 7 , 1 14,070) $ ( 14 ,819,635) ( 1 5,606,996) ( 17 ,878, 1 9 1 )  $ ( 16,246 , 1 7 2) $ ( 1 7 , 1 4 1 ,646) $ ( 16 ,261 ,644) $ $ $ 
Bus iness-type activities 85,966 92,79 1 67,268 (9 1,781) 1 3 5,602 1 ,148,800 961,556 (2 1 3,773) (50,661) 
Tota l primary government net expense (14,658.390) (13.708.236) (15,45 1.487) (17.205.851) ( 14,684.033) (14,458.196) (16.9 16.635) (16,459.945) (17,175.554) (16.3 12.305) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in  Net Position 

Governmental activities: 
Taxes :  

Property taxes 5,44 1 ,776 5 ,432,333 5 ,525,235 5,784,851  5,967,8 1 7  6,267 , 1 7 7  6 ,753 ,219  7, 148,392 7 ,417 ,552 7,940,228 
Uti l ity service taxes 2,845 ,651  3 ,016 ,183  3 ,254,550 3 ,230, 1 1 7  3 ,297,894 3,407,508 3,432,608 3 ,572,032 3 ,655,546 3 , 7 3 1 ,365 
Commun ication services tax 1 , 348,756 1 ,366,853 1 ,937,765 1 , 3 77,736 1 , 245, 6 1 7  1 , 166,035 1 , 209,860 1 , 1 30 ,732 1 ,027,768 941 ,205 
Franchise taxes 1 ,673 ,746 1 ,550,625 1 , 147,889 1 , 1 60,066 1 , 1 79,362 925,699 1 , 272,507 1 , 1 30,788 455,233 1 , 208,542 
Other taxes 7 1 3,520 702,897 7 16,927 724,429 680, 1 3 2  592,537 653,901  

Intergovern mental not restricted to specific progra ms 4 , 1 67,906 4,565 , 19 7  4,596,066 4,202,536 4,307,7 3 1  4 ,323 , 1 3 0  4,493 ,335  4,546,832 4,070,625 4,836,866 
Investment and miscel laneous income 80,198 1 0 3 , 1 5 3  99,441 83,792 77,678 1 36,894 2 19,534 246,949 206,898 62 ,108  
Ga in  ( loss) on d isposal  ( 1 7,084) 
Specia l  items/Other income 797,614 264,769 272 ,221  766,227 348,459 435,402 342,946 3 1 1 ,259 
Transfers (70,776) (1,629,485) (804, 1 3 1) (251 ,946) (1,267,755) 468,967 1 50,629 (880,050) (956,057) (1,495,337) 
Tota l governmental activities 15.487.257 14.404.859 16.554.429 16.565.441 15.766.378 18.178.564 18.604.580 1s,0 1 1,209 16.813.048 18.190.137 

Business-type activities: 
General Revenues 

Investment income 1 ,3 1 1  397 2,618 3 2 , 1 3 8  39,094 47, 104 8,276 6 , 1 1 6  2 ,537 6 , 1 1 2  
Investment a n d  miscel laneous income 1 ,629,485 1 , 260 

Transfers 70,776 804, 1 3 1  251 ,946 1,267,755 (468,967) ( 1 50,629) 880,050 956,057 1 ,495,337 
Total bus iness-type activities 1,629,882 806,749 284,084 1 ,306,849 (421 ,863) ( 14 1,093) 886, 166 958,594 1,501,449 
Tota l primary government 15.559.344 16.034.741 17.361.178 16.849.525 17.073.227 17.756.70 1  18.463.487 18.897.375 17.77 1.642 19.691.586 

Change in  Net Position 
Govern mental activities 742,90 1 603,832 1 ,035,674 (548,629) 946,743 2 ,571 ,568 726,389 1 , 765,037 (328,598)  1 ,928,493 
Bus iness-type activities 158 053 1 722 673 874 0 1 7  192 303 1 442 451  726 937 820 463 672 393 924 686 1 450 788 
Tota l primary government $ 900,954 $ 2,326,505 $ 1,909,69 1 $ (356,326) $ 2,389, 194 $ 3,298,505 $ 1,546,852 $ 2,437,430 $ 596,088 $ 3,379,281 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
FINANCIAL TRENDS 

FU N D  BALANCES DF  GOVERN M E NTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

General Fund 
Non Spendab le $ 27,798 $ 95,039 $ 1 18,803 $ 153,892 $ 222,53 1 $ 220, 0 1 2  $ 225,260 $ 265, 3 3 1  $ 306,943 $ 99,263 
Restricted 33 ,735  
Unass igned 3 936 392 4 088 844 4 776 905 4 4 1 2  605 4 553 946 4 349 056 5 048 869 4 222 958 4 0 1 1  667 4 799 001 

Tota l General Fund $ 3,997,925 $ 4, 183,883 $ 4,895,708 $ 4,566,497 $ 4,776,477 $ 4,569,068 $ S,274, 129 $ 4,488,289 $ 4,318,610 $ 4,898,264 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Non Spendable $ $ 33,452 $ 25,862 $ 24,781  $ $ 430 $ $ 25,648 $ 17,889 $ 29,560 
Restricted, reported in: 

Specia l  Revenue Fund 1 , 0 1 1 ,206 3 ,630,535 727,446 9 14,553 1 ,571 ,737  1 ,481 ,522  945, 176 1 ,229,669 8 1 1 , 704 1 , 142,393 
Cap ita l  Projects Fund 2 ,535,947 2,942,843 3 ,553 ,535  1 , 8 3 1 ,041 2,267,781 1 , 3 74 , 1 74 2 ,377, 1 3 3  1 ,842,430 2 ,763 ,198 
Town Govern ment Center 2 , 1 3 1 ,4 1 6  1 , 296,47 1 26,147 
Roadway Improvement 8,700 8,700 
Debt Service Fund 876,634 909,899 1 ,0 71 ,863 906,493 875,282 888,486 900,9 1 2  1 ,263 ,108  963,686 969, 108 
Impact Fee Fund ( Pub l ic  Safety & Parks) 38,280 3 5 1 , 2 3 3  1 , 1 74,598 1 ,537 , 1 20 1 , 3 5 3 , 1 78 1 , 1 77,451 
Bu i ld ing  Department Fund 1,826,879 2,528,7 1 0  2,668,320 2 , 1 1 5,349 2 , 1 54,927 
Ne ighborhood Service D istri cts 3 1 1 , 100 3 1 7 ,818  339,559 

Commited, reported in: 
Infrastructure Replacement Fund 1 50,000 1 5 1 ,471  244,627 

Assigned, reported in: 
Specia l  Revenue Fund 
Capital  Projects Fund 5,392,655 3,974,673 3,566, 1 1 1  1 ,961 ,499 786,094 836,648 

Unass igned 2 273 1 843 
Tota l a l l  other governmental funds $ 1 1,947,8S8 $ 9,853,730 $ 8,342,825 $ 7,360,861 $ S,102,434 $ 7,650,706 $ 6,921,727 $ 9,562,098 $ 7,573,525 $ 8,846,970 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
FINANCIAL TRENDS 

CHANGES IN  FU N D  BALANCES DF  GDVERN M E NTAL FUN DS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes 
Uti l ity taxes 
Franchise fees 
Commun ication service tax 
Other  taxes 
Licenses and perm its 
Intergovern mental 
F ines and forfeitures 
Service charges 
Impact fees 
Investment income 
Developers contri but ions 
Specia l  assessments 
Others 

$ 5,44 1 ,776 
2,845 ,651  
1 ,673 ,746 
1 , 348,756 

1 ,064,408 
4,924,656 

2 1 5 , 183  

66,720 

58,545 

$ 5 ,432,333 
3 ,016 , 184 
1 ,550,625 
1 ,366,853 

1 ,003,083 
6,905 ,351  

324,720 

1 0 3 , 1 50 

10,008 

$ 5 ,525,235 
3 ,254,550 
1 , 147,889 
1 ,937,765 

1 , 197,885 
4,8 1 3 ,430 

536 ,168  

99,441 

9 1 5 , 1 2 5  

$ 5,784,851  
3 ,230, 1 1 7  
1 , 1 60,066 
1 , 3 77,736 

1 , 188,9 1 7  
4,532,833 

3 1 2,466 

83,792 

1 , 1 1 1 ,235  

$ 5,967,8 1 7  
3 ,297,894 
1 , 1 79,362 
1 , 245, 6 1 7  

2 ,385,033 
4,797,353 

274,594 

70,092 
77,678 

2,028,734 

1 , 1 56,643 

$ 6,267 , 1 7 7  
3,407,508 

925,699 
1 , 166,035 

3 ,469,773 
6,890,298 

224,887 
183,369 

1 , 2 0 1 ,429 
1 36,894 
300,000 

1 ,483 , 1 54 

$ 6 ,753 ,219  
3,432,608 
1 , 272,507 
1 , 209,860 

3 ,042,388 
7,448,505 

193,841 
192,653 

1 , 2 19,905 
2 19,534 

1 ,072,888 

$ 7, 148,392 
3 ,572,032 
1 , 1 30,788 
1 , 1 30 ,732 

680, 1 3 2  
3 , 1 54,814 
5,496,742 

195,518 
189,557 
775,241 
246,949 
360,254 

1 , 7 2 1 ,029 
435,402 

$ 7 ,417 ,552 
3 ,655,546 

455,233 
1 ,027,768 

592,537 
1 , 762,579 
6,435,404 

195,265 
86,681 

475,073 
206,898 

1 ,497,897 
342,946 

$ 7,940,228 
3 , 7 3 1 ,365 
1 , 208,542 

941 ,205 
653,901  

2,684,054 
7,672,622 

103 ,064 
120, 194 

39,250 
62 ,108  

1 ,377,897 
299,636 

Tota l Revenues 17,639,441 19,7 12,307 19,427,488 18,782,0 13 22,480,817 25,6S6,223 26,0S7,908 26,237,582 24,151,379 26,834,066 

Expenditures 
General  govern ment :  

Town Counci l  
Town Ad min i strat ion and F inance 
Lega l  

Tota l general government 

404, 9 1 5  
2,420,844 

458 525 
3,284,284 

427,733 
2,367,698 

292 506 
3,087,937 

354,820 
2 , 2 1 2 , 1 5 5  

268 987 
2,835,962 

628,992 
2,645,746 

639 785 
3,9 14,S23 

5 1 6 , 3 7 1  
3 ,775,637 

4 1 0  545 
4,702,S53 

536,680 
4,272,614 

559 652 
s,368,946 

507,664 
2 ,419,721  

321 686 
3,249,07 1  

539,328 
2,40 1,870 

257 448 
3,198,646 

5 14,578 
2 ,759,199 

351 476 
3,62S,253 

598,533 
3,080,343 

364 104 
4,042,980 

Pub l ic  safety 
Parks and recreation 
Pub l ic  works/transportation 
Comprehensive p lann ing  
Debt service : 

Princ ipa l  
Interest 
Cost of issuance 

Ad min i strative 
Cap ita l  outlay 
Tota l Expenditures 

6,234,271  
2,248, 8 1 1  
2 ,018,943 
1 ,439 , 3 1 8  

201 ,663 
5 5 1 ,948 

5 140 046 
21,1  19,284 

6,306,601 
2 , 1 83 ,242 
2,485,634 
1 ,635,458 

549,039 
53,650 

7 442 0 1 3  
23,743,S74 

6,350,819 
2,495,685 
2 , 1 75,948 
1 ,679,697 

100,000 
599,573 

3 9 8 8  884 
20,226,S68 

7,973,823 
2 ,721 ,909 
2,345,948 

105,000 
600,247 

2,406 
3 355 986 

21,0 19,842 

7 ,9 17,265 
2,826,779 
2 ,255 ,619  

1 ,750,050 
654,998 

4 483 437 
24,590,701 

8,092,524 
4, 140,497 
2,254,540 

104,980 
596,942 

2 899 836 
23,4SS,26S 

1 0 , 1 73,706 
5,764,672 
2,441 ,236  

1 50,845 
5 5 1 ,077 

3 6 1 9  695 
25,9S0,302 

10,734,392 
3 ,005,764 
2 ,415,559 

46,607 
550,747 

1 ,467,844 
2 877 291 

24,296,SS0 

10,582,554 
2,878,402 
2 ,309,942 

5 19,302 
536,996 

1 ,350 ,213  
4 322 994 

26,12S,656 

10,456, 178 
2,835,999 
2,407,685 

340 ,019  
5 1 6 , 1 79 

1 , 3 7 1 ,779 
2 717 4 1 2  

24,688,231 

Other Financing Sources ( Uses) 
Proceeds from debt issuance 
D iscount on debt issued 
Transfer i n  
Transfer out 
Total Dther F inanc ing Sources ( Uses) 

4,826,300 
(4,1 26,300) 

700,000 

1 ,855,000 

1 ,277,865 
( 1,009,768) 

2,123,097 

1 , 768,223 
( 1,768,223) 

1 ,974, 3 7 1  
( 1,474,371) 

500,000 

2,684, 153  
(2,684, 153) 

3,424,979 
(3,282,074) 

142,905 

1 ,660,069 
(1,791,593) 

( 1 3 1,524) 

2,997,898 
(3,084,099) 

(86,201) 

2,241 ,647 
(2,425,622) 

(183,975) 

2 , 5 1 2,360 
(2,805,096) 

(292,736) 

Net change in  fund balance ! {2,779,843) ! {1,908,170) ! {799,080) ! {1,737,829) ! {2,109,884) ! 2,340,863 ! {23,9 18) ! 1,854,531 ! {2,158,252) ! 1,853,099 

Ratio of total debt service to 
noncapital expenditures 4.72% 3.37% 4.31 % 3. 99% 11.96% 3.41 % 3.14% 2.79% 4.84% 3. 90% 



TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORI DA 
REVE N U E  CAPACITY 

GOVERN M E NTAL ACTIVITI ES TAX REVE N U ES BY SOU RCE 

LAST TEN YEARS 

( I N  THOUSAN DS) 

Comm u n ication 

Fisca l yea r Proeerty Tax Uti l ity Service Tax Service Tax Franchise fees Tota l 

20 1 2  5,442 2 ,846 1 , 349 1 ,674 1 1 , 3 1 1  

20 1 3  5 ,432 3 , 0 1 6  1 , 367 1 , 5 5 1  1 1 ,366 

2 0 1 4  5 , 5 2 5  3 , 2 5 5  1 ,938  1 , 148 1 1 ,866 

20 1 5  5 ,785 3 ,230 1 , 378  1 , 1 60 1 1 , 5 5 3  

20 1 6  5 ,968 3 ,297 1 , 246 1 , 1 79 1 1 ,690 

20 1 7  6 ,267 3 ,407 1 , 1 66 926 1 1 ,766 

20 1 8  6 ,753  3 ,065  1 , 2 1 0  1 , 273  1 2 , 3 0 1  

2 0 1 9  7 , 148 3 , 5 7 2  1 , 1 3 1  1 , 1 3 1  1 2 ,982 

2020 7 ,4 1 8  3 ,656  1 ,028 4 5 5  1 2 , 5 5 7  

202 1 7,940 3 , 7 3 1 942 1 , 208 1 3 , 8 2 1  

76 



TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REVE N U E  CAPACITY 

ASSESSED VALU E AND ESTI MATED ACTUAL VALU E OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(IN THOUSANDS) 

Calendar Year 
Ended 

December 3 1, 
Residential 

Pro(!erg: 

Real  Pro(!erg: 

Com mercial/ 
Industrial Pro(!erg: 

Govern ment/ 
Institutional 

Pro(!ertI 
Personal 
Pro(!erg: 

Bi l l ions 

Total Actual & 

Just Value of 
Taxable 
Pro(!erg: 

Rea l Property -
Amendment 10 
Excluded Value 

(bl 

Exem(!tions (a} 

Rea l Property -
Other 

Exem(!tions 
Personal 
Pro(!erg: 

Total Taxable 
Assessed Value 

Total Direct Tax 
Rate 

2 0 1 2  

2013  

2 0 1 4  

2 0 1 5  

2 0 1 6  

2 0 1 7  

2 0 1 8  

2 0 1 9  

2020 

2 0 2 1  

1 ,874,949 

1 ,907 ,261  

2 , 1 37,641 

2,388, 9 1 3  

2 ,577,848 

2 ,702,800 

2 ,964,740 

2 ,997,709 

3 , 1 14, 740 

3 ,635 ,83 1 

1 , 042,206 

1 , 042,902 

1 , 0 58,802 

1 , 0 58,745 

1 , 1 10 ,765  

1 , 2 1 1 ,433 

1 ,224,963 

1 ,252 ,265  

1 ,379,603 

1 , 1 3 1 ,383 

256,502 

250 , 187 

267, 240 

2 7 1 , 1 3 5  

299, 0 6 1  

3 1 2,785 

3 1 2,704 

3 1 6,975 

3 1 7 , 5 1 4  

3 18,489 

19 1 ,859 

2 0 1 , 1 1 7  

185 ,585  

180,874 

190 ,323  

185 , 169 

1 9 1 , 529 

192 ,054 

209, 160 

2 1 6 ,552  

3 ,365 , 5 1 6  

3,40 1 ,467 

3 ,649,268 

3,899,667 

4, 1 77,997 

4,4 12 , 187 

4,693,936 

4,759,003 

5 ,02 1 , 0 1 7  

5 ,302 ,255  

167, 1 9 1  

282, 6 1 8  

454, 180 

628,869 

749,453 

7 1 0 ,706 

729 , 0 1 9  

656 ,523  

652 ,482 

N/A 

5 1 1 ,365  

604,260 

602 ,557  

6 1 1 , 2 1 1  

630,582 

69 1 ,978 

760,004 

7 6 1 , 0 54 

765 ,742 

N/A 

14,560 

1 7 , 6 1 9  

18,893 

18 ,3 1 1  

18 ,649 

19 , 289 

19,436 

19 ,732  

19 ,029  

N/A 

2,672,400 

2,496,970 

2 ,573 ,638 

2 ,641 ,276 

2 ,779 , 3 1 3  

2 ,990 ,214  

3 , 185,477 

3 , 3 2 1 ,694 

3 ,583 ,765  

3 ,737,372 

2 . 3 5 18 

2 . 3 5 18 

2 . 3 5 18 

2 . 3 5 18 

2 . 3 5 18 

2 . 3353  

2 . 3 127  

2 . 3 127  

2 . 3 127  

2 . 3 127  

NOTES: 

* 2 0 2 1  - Based on  pre l i m i n a ry va lues  as  fi n a l  va lues  a re NOT yet ava i l a b l e .  

* *  Property i n  t h e  Town i s  reassessed e a c h  yea r .  Property i s  assessed at actua l  ma rket va l u e .  Tax rates a re p e r  $ 1 ,000 o f  assessed va l u e .  

* * *  Source : M i a m i - Dade Cou nty Property Appra iser 

**** N/A - I nformat ion not ava i l a b l e  as  of the issua n ce of th i s  report 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REVEN U E  CAPACITY 

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(PER $ 1 ,000 OF ASSESSED VALU E) 

Town of Miami Lakes Over/a in Rates: 

Miami-Dade Coun!f Miami-Dade Fire & Rescue Miami-Dade School Board State and Other 

South Florida 
Calendar Debt Total Debt Debt Total Water Florida Inland Total State Total Direct & 

Year Ended Operating Operating Service County Operating Service Total F ire Operating Service School Public Chi ldren's Management Environmental Navigation and Other Overlapping 
December 31, 

2012 

M i l lage 
2 . 3 5 1 8  

Total Town 
2 . 3 5 1 8  

M i l lage 
4 .7035  

M i l lage 
0 . 5 180  

M i l lage 
5 . 2 2 1 5  

M i l lage 
2 . 4500 

M i l lage 
0 . 0 1 2 7  

M i l lage 
2 . 4627 

M i l lage 
7. 7650 

M i l lage 
0 . 2330 

Mi l lage 
7 . 9980 

Libra� 
0 .  1725  

Trust 
0 . 5000 

District 
0 . 3676 

Projects 
0 . 0 6 1 3  

District 
0 . 0345 

M i l lage 
1 . 1 359 

Rates 
1 9 . 1 699 

2013 2 . 3 5 1 8  2 . 3 5 1 8  4 .7035  o .  7550 5 . 4585 2 . 4500 0 . 0 1 2 7  2 . 4627 7. 7650 0 . 2330 7 . 9980 0 .  1725  0 . 5000 0 . 3523 0 . 0587 0 . 0345 1 . 1 1 80 1 9 . 3890 

2014 2 . 3 5 1 8  2 . 3 5 1 8  4 .7035  0 . 4220 5 .  1 2 5 5  2 . 4496 0 . 0 1 2 7  2 . 4623 7 . 6440 0 . 3330 7 . 9770 0 .  1725  0 . 5000 0 . 3583 0 . 0587 0 . 0345 1 .  1 240 1 9 . 0406 

2015 2 . 3 5 1 8  2 . 3 5 1 8  4. 6669 0 . 4500 5 . 1 169 2 . 4207 0 . 0 1 1 4  2 .4321  7 . 7780 0 .  1990 7 . 9770 0 . 2840 0 . 5000 0 . 1 577 0 . 0 548 0 . 0345 1 . 0 3 1 0  1 8 . 9088 

2016 2 . 3 5 1 8  2 . 3 5 1 8  4. 6669 0 . 4500 5 . 1 169 2 . 4207 0 . 0090 2 . 4297 7 . 4 1 3 0  0 .  1990 7 . 6 1 2 0  0 . 2840 0 . 5000 0 .  1459 0 . 0506 0 . 0320 1 . 0 1 25  1 8 . 5229 

2017 2 . 3353  2 . 3353  4. 6669 0 . 4000 5 . 0669 2 . 4207 0 . 0080 2 . 4287 7 . 1 380 0 .  1 840 7 . 3220 0 . 2840 0 . 5000 0 . 1 359 0 . 0471 0 . 0320 0 . 9990 1 8 . 1 5 1 9  

2018 2 . 3 127  2 . 3 127  4. 6669 0 . 4644 5 . 1 3 1 3  2 . 4207 0 . 0080 2 . 4287 6 . 5040 0 . 2290 6 .  7330 0 . 2840 0 .4415  0 . 2 5 1 9  0 . 04 1 7  0 . 0320 1 . 0 5 1 1  1 7 . 6568 

2019 2 . 3 127  2 . 3 127  4. 6669 0 . 4780 5 . 1 449 2 . 4207 0 . 0000 2 . 4207 7 . 0250 0 .  1230  7 .  1480 0 . 2840 0 . 4680 0 . 2398 0 . 0397 0 . 0320 1 . 0635 1 8 . 0898 

2020 2 . 3 127  2 . 3 127  4. 6669 0 . 4780 5 . 1 449 2 . 4207 0 . 0000 2 . 4207 6 . 9 360 0 .  1930 7 .  1290 0 . 2840 0 . 4507 0 . 2295 0 . 0380 0 . 0320 1 . 0342 1 8 . 0 4 1 5  

2021 2 . 3 127  2 . 3 127  4. 6669 0 . 5075 5 . 1 744 2 . 4207 0 . 0000 2 . 4207 6 . 8290 0 .  1800 7 . 0090 0 . 2840 0 . 5000 0 . 2207 0 . 0365 0 . 0320 1 . 0732 1 7 . 9900 

Source: Miam i-Dade County, Finance Department, Tax Collector's Division. 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
REVE N U E  CAPACITY 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 

CU RRENT YEAR AND N INE  YEARS AGO 

( IN THOUSANDS) 

2021 20 1 2  

Taxpayer 

TH E G RAHAM COMPANIES 

SENGRA CORPORATION 

FLORIDA POWER & LIG HT COMPANY 

ROYAL OAKS PLAZA INC  

MIAMI  LAKES COU NTRY CLU B INC  

CORDIS CORPORATION 

CATERPILLAR TRACTOR CO 

COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP 

MIAMI LAKE CENTER LLC 

ICON EX MIAMI LAKES POOL 5 

SCHERING CORP 

CAP EAST ASSOCIATES 

Tota l 

Tota l Taxable Assessed Va lue ( in  thousands) 

Sou rce : M i a m i -Dade County Property Appra iser 

Taxable Assessed 
Va lue 

$ 448,748 

1 0 5 ,799 

3 1 , 2 1 7  

23 ,700 

2 1 ,900 

2 1 ,200 

1 9 , 1 00 

1 6,000 

14,300 

1 3 , 200 

7 1 5,164 

$ 3,583,765 

Rank 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Percentage of 
Tota l Town 

Taxable Assessed 
Va lue 

1 2 . 52% 

2 . 95% 

0 . 87% 

0 . 66% 

0 . 6 1 %  

0 . 59% 

0 . 53% 

0 .45% 

0 .40% 

0 . 37% 

Taxable Assessed 
Va lue 

$ 282,777 

98,254 

22,449 

1 7 ,036 

1 7 ,304 

19 ,2 1 5  

1 2 , 8 1 9  

1 3 , 568 

22,828 

19 .96% 525,309 
1 9  0 5 9  

$ 2,672,400 

Percentage of 
Tota l Town 

Taxa ble Assessed 
Rank Va lue 

1 1 0 . 58% 

2 3 . 68% 

4 0 . 84% 

8 0 . 64% 

7 0 . 65% 

5 0 . 72% 

1 0  0 .48% 

9 0 . 5 1 %  

3 0 . 8 5 %  

6 0 . 7 1 %  
19 .66% 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLO RIDA 
REVE N U E  CAPACITY 

PRO P E RTY TAX LEVI ES A N D  COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARAS 

( I N  THOUSAN DS) 

Col lected with i n  the Fiscal 
Yea r  of the Levy Tota l Col lections To Date 

Col lections i n  
F isca l Yea r  ended Taxes Levied for Net Amount Percentage of Su bseq uent Percentage of 

Seete m ber 30, the Fisca l Yea r  Levied Levl Yea rs Amo u nt Levl 

20 1 2  5 ,807 5 ,258 90 . 5 5% n/a n/a n/a 
20 1 3  5 , 5 1 7  4 ,785 8 6 . 7 3 %  4 7 3  5 ,258 9 5 . 3 1 %  
2 0 1 4  5,904 5 ,525  9 3 . 58% n/a n/a n/a 
20 1 5  6 ,056 5 ,785  9 5 . 53% 85  5 ,870 96 .93% 
20 1 6  6 ,329 5 ,872 9 2 . 78% 95  5,967 94 . 28% 
20 1 7  6,607 6 , 1 64 9 3 . 29% 103 6,267 94 . 8 5 %  
20 1 8  7 ,046 6,60 1 9 3 . 69% 1 5 2  6 , 7 5 3  9 5 . 84% 
20 1 9  7 ,433 6,980 9 3 . 90% 169  7 , 148 96 . 1 7% 
2020 7,784 7 ,244 9 3 . 06% 1 74 7 ,418  9 5 . 30% 
202 1 8,4 1 1  7 ,777  9 2 . 46% 1 64 7 ,941  94 . 4 1 %  

Sou rce : M i a m i - Dade Cou nty Property Tax Co l lector 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
DEBT CAPACITY 

OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Government Activities Business-T1ee Activies Debt Coveraae 

Fiscal Yea r 

Government 
Activities 

Notes Pay:able 

Special 
Obligation 

Bonds Payable, 
Series 2010 

Roadway 
I m provement 

Special 
Obligation Loa n 

Pay:a ble 

Qual ity 
Neigh borhood 
I m provement 

Prog ram (QNIP) 
Roadway: 

Stormwater 
Util ity 

Revenue 

Bonds 

Stormwater 
Revenue Bond 

Series 2021 
Other 

Obligations 
Total Primary 
Government Po�u lation 

Per Ca pita 
Personal  
I ncome 

Percentage of 
Personal  I ncome 

Debt Per 
Ca(!ita 

Pledged 
Revenue Coverage 

2 0 1 2  7 ,291 ,032  7 ,291 ,032 30,057 28,756 0 . 84% 242 .57  2 ,502 ,818  4 .56  

2013  7,292,4 1 2  1 ,855,000 9 ,147,412  30,396 28,410 1 . 06% 300.94 2,670,036 4 .87 

2014 7,293,792 1 ,7 55,000 9,048,792 30, 1 6 1  27,042 1 . 1 1% 300 .02  2,849 , 1 87 5 . 1 9  

2 0 1 5  7,295, 1 7 2  1 ,650,000 8,945 , 1 7 2  30,791 28,006 1 . 04% 290 . 5 1  2,805,937 5 . 1 2  

2016 7,296,552 1 ,006, 1 5 5  449,760 8,752,467 30,456 28,888 0 .99% 287 .38  2,833,279 5 . 1 7  

2017  7,297,932 9 0 1 , 1 7 5  403,886 1 30,662 8,733,655 30,873 31,020 0 . 9 1 %  282 .89 2,924,957 5 . 3 3  

2018  7 , 299, 3 1 2  750,330 354,446 1 1 6 ,144 8,520,232 31 ,087 33,074 0 .83% 274 .08  2,965,913  5 . 4 1  

2019  7 , 300,692 703,723 302,486 1 0 1,626 8,408,527 31 ,628 35,026 0 . 76% 265 .86 3,076, 152  5 .61  

2020 6,922,072 564,421  248,006 87 ,108  7 ,821 ,607 3 1 , 367 38,295 0 . 65% 249 .36  3 , 1 09,645 3 .40 

2021  6,723,452 424,402 190,766 18 ,725,636 72 ,590 26, 1 36,846 31 ,689 35,618 2 . 32% 824.79 3 , 1 29,793 4 .38  

Note : Deta i l s  regard ing  the Town's outsta nd ing  debt can be found i n  the notes to the fi nanc ia l  statements. 

The  Series 2010  E lectric Ut i l ity Tax Revenue Bonds  provided that  pledged revenue sha l l  be adeq uate to  cover at least 125% of  the next 
succeed ing  yea r Annua l  Debt Service Req u i rement for a l l  bonds outstand i ng .  

E lectric Ut i l ity 
Tax Principal 

Next Succeed ing Yea r 
Tota l Debt Service 

Interest Requ i rements Coverage 

2 0 1 2  
2 0 1 3  
2014 
2 0 1 5  
2016  
2017  
2018  
2019  
2020 
2021  

2 ,502 ,818  
2 ,670,036 
2,849 , 1 8 7  
2 ,805,937 
2 ,833,279 
2,924,957 
2,965,9 1 3  
3 ,076, 1 5 2  
3 , 1 09,645 
3 , 1 29,793 

380,000 
200,000 

548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
5 3 5 , 1 04 
5 14,660 

548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
548,499 
9 1 5 , 104 
7 14,660 

456% 
550% 
519% 
5 1 2 %  
5 1 7 %  
533% 
541% 

561% 
340% 
438% 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLO RIDA 
D E BT CAPACITY 

DI RECT A N D  OVERLAPPI N G  GOVE RN M E NTAL ACTIVITI ES D E BT 
S E PTE M B E R  30,  202 1 

J u risdiction Net Debt Outsta nd ing 

% of Debt 
Appl ied to 

M i a m i  La kes ( 1 )  

Amo u nt of Debt 
Appl ied to M i a m i  

Lakes 

M i a m i - Dade Cou nty Schools (2) 

M i a m i - Dade Cou nty (3)  

Su b-tota l overl app i ng  debt 

Town of M i a m i  La kes d i rect debt 

Tota l d i rect a n d  overl app ing  debt 

$ 9 1 2 , 1 73,000 

2 ,274,420,000 

3 , 1 86,593 ,000 

7 , 147,854 

1 . 1 1 % 

1 . 1 1 % 

1 0 0 . 00% 

$ 1 0,087, 1 1 7  

25 , 1 5 1 ,305 

3 5 ,238,422 

7 , 1 47,854 

Sou rces : 
( 1 )  The percentage of overl app i ng  debt app l i cab le  is esti mated us i ng  taxa b le  property 

va l ues .  App l i cab le  percentages were esti mated by determ i n i ng the port ion of the 
County's taxa b le  property va l u e  that i s  with i n  the Town ' s  bou ndaries and d iv id i n g  
it  b y  t h e  Cou nty 's  tota l taxa b le  property va l u e .  

( 2 )  Based on M i a m i - Dade Cou nty percentage o f  Cou nty 's  taxa b le  property . 
(3)  M i a m i - Dade Cou nty, F ina nce Depa rtment (Genera l  Ob l igat ion Bonds) 

$ 3 , 1 93,740,854 $ 42,386,276 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC I N FORMATIO N  

DEMOGRAPHIC A N D  ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN CALE N DAR YEARS 

Median Household Tota l Personal  Unemployment Per Ca pita 
Calendar Yea r  

2 0 1 2  
2 0 1 3  

Popu lation 
30,057  
30,396 

Income  ($) 
( 1 )

64,497 

Income ( in  000's) 
( 1 )

863,550  

Rate 
9 . 1 0 %  
7 . 00% 

Personal  Income 
( 1 )

28,4 1 0  

Median  Age 
( 1 )
38 

School Enro l l ment 
7823 
7973 

2014 30 , 1 6 1  63 ,754 8 1 5 ,614  7 . 40% 27,042 39 7668 
20 1 5  30 ,791  65 ,269 862 ,333  5 . 70% 28,006 39 7 ,774 
2016  30,456 66,601 879, 8 1 3  5 . 1 0 %  28,888 39 8,082 
2 0 1 7  30 ,873 7 2 , 2 2 5  9 5 7,680 3 . 90% 3 1 ,020 38  8 ,077 
2018 3 1 ,087 72 ,545 1 ,028, 1 7 1  3 . 60% 3 3 ,074 39 8 ,222  
2019 3 1 ,628 73 ,527 1 , 1 07,802 2 . 70% 35 ,026 39 8,465 
2020 3 1 ,367 75 ,762 1 , 2 0 1 , 199 8 . 60% 38,295 39 8,465 
2021  3 1 ,689 77 ,900 1 , 1 28,699 3 . 1 0 %  3 5 , 6 1 8  41 8 , 5 0 1  

Sou rces : 
P e r  Ca p ita and  Med i a n  Househo ld Income i nformat ion provided b y  U . S .  Bureau o f  t h e  Census .  
Unemp loyment rate data provided b y  t h e  U . S .  Bureau o f  t h e  Census or  derived from Loca l Area Unemp loyment Statist ics . 
School  e n ro l l ment i nformat ion provided by the U . S .  Bureau of the Census .  
Popu lat ion i nformat ion provided by the U . S .  Bureau of the Census  (2000 and  20 1 1 ) or  F lorida 's  Bureau 

Economic  and  Bus i ness Research (BEBR) . 

Note : 
( 1 ) I nformat ion u nava i l ab le  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC I N FORMATIO N  

PRIN CIPAL E M PLOYE RS 
CU RRENT A N D  TEN YEARS AGO 

2021 20 1 2  

Percentage of Percentage of 
Tota l Town Tota l Town 

Employer Employees Ra nk Employment Employees Ra n k  Employment 

BAN K U N ITED 725  1 3 . 5 1 %  (a) 
MIAMI LAKES AUTO MALL 360  2 1 . 74% (a) 
G RAHAM CO M PANIES ( M L) 3 3 5  3 1 . 62 %  486 2 2 . 3 5 %  
CORDIS CORP 280 4 1 . 36% 940 1 4 . 55% 
CATE RPI LLAR LOGISTICS S E RVICES, I N C .  260 5 1 . 26% (a) 
PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS # 1 1 29 202 6 0 . 98 %  (a) 
WALGREENS # 1 2 1 9-2  202 7 0 . 98 %  (a) 
A N DY FRAI N S E RVICES, I N C .  200 8 0 . 9 7 %  (a) 
COSTCO 187 9 0 . 9 1 %  (a) 
LOGISTIC CARE SO LUTIONS 1 7 7  1 0  0 . 86% (a) 
I N KTEL 464 3 2 . 25% 
ALL MED S E RVICES 300 4 1 . 45% 
N UTRI - FO RCE N UTRITIO N  400 5 1 . 94% 
SCH E RI N G  CORPORATIO N  (Merk Pha rmaceutica ls) 275 6 1 . 3 3 %  

2,928 14 . 1 7% 2,865 1 3 . 87% 

Tota l Emp loyed 20,657 

Note ( 1 ) U . S .  Census Burea u ,  Se lected Economic  Characterist ics 2008-20 1 1  Amer ica n Com m u n ity Su rvey 
Note (2) U . S .  Census Bureau - Census 2000 S u m m a ry 
Note (a) I nformat ion u nava i l ab le  
Tota l Emp loyed based on census popu lat ion  x l a bor  force tota l percentage .  
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
OPERATI NG IN FORMATION 

FU LL-TI M E  EQUIVALENT TOWN EM PLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROG RAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function/ Program 20 1 2  2013 2014 20 15 2016 20 17 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Town Clerk's Office 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Town Ad m i n i stration 12  14  12  14  17  12  1 5  1 5  1 4  1 4  

Bu i l d i ng Department 
Pla n n i n g ,  Code Com p l i a nce and Deve lopment 
Parks/Recreat ion and Com m u n ity Affa i rs 
Pu b l i c  Works, Stormwater, Faci l i t ies & Trans it  

12  

5 

16  

6 

19 

5 

26 

7 

12  

4 

13  
6 

9 

4 

8 
4 

10 
8 
8 
4 

1 0  
3 

1 1  
6 

12  

4 

1 2  

6 

1 3  

3 

1 3  

7 

1 3  

3 

1 2  

7 

1 1  
4 

1 2  

7 

Tota l 

Sou rce 

55 72  48 40 48 so 52 so 

: Town o f  M i a m i  La kes, F lor ida Adopted Budget (var ious yea rs) . 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
OPERATI NG I N FORMATION 

OPERATI NG I N DICATORS BY FUNCTION  / PROG RAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
201 2  2013 2014 201 5  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

General Government 
Bu i l d i ng  perm its issued 699 749 948 799 909 4,622 3 ,598 4,108 3,269 2,974 

Bus iness Tax Recei pts 1 ,250  973 1 , 394 1 ,541  1 ,483 1,422 1 , 328 1 ,372  1 , 1 56 1 , 3 18  

Police 
Physica l a rrests 332 357 273 166 148 177 1 2 1  140 63 70 

Culture and Recreation 
Summer  ca m p  partic ipa nts - per week 150  20 100  100  1 35  1 35  225 201  30 59 

Com m u n ity prog rams  - p e r  yea r 93  9 1  8 3  4 7  5 1  66 67 53  55  

Specia l  events - per yea r 47 48 75  65 65 97 202 165  54  54  

Stormwater Uti l ity 
Stormwater system l i near  feet c leaned 

N u m ber of Stormwater d ra i n s  c leaned 

24,500 

185 

34, 180 26,617 

380 

25 ,383 

328 

28,602 

429 

32 ,312  

536 

37 ,733 

706  

37,999 

6 17  

23 ,642 

408 

17 , 1 55  

291 

Publ ic  Works 
Road m i les (ma i nta ined)  

Street l i g hts (ma i nta ined)  

60 

801  

60 

1 ,032 

60 

491 

60 

485 

77 

9 1 5  

77 

9 1 5  

77 

9 1 5  

77 

9 1 5  

77 

9 1 5  

77 

9 1 5  

Sources : Va r ious Town departments and  M i a m i - Dade Cou nty Po l ice Department 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
OPERATI NG I N FORMATION 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROG RAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fisca l Year 
201 2  2013 2014 201 5  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Po l ice (4) 
Po l ice Personne l  46 46 47 5 1  

Cu lture and  Recreat ion (3)  
N u m ber of  pa rks 
Park acreage 
Com m u n ity center 

99 
1 1 8 . 3  

3 

1 0 1  
1 27 . 1 7  

3 

1 0 1  
1 27 . 1 7  

3 

1 0 1  
1 27 . 1 7  

3 

1 0 1  
1 27 . 1 7  

3 

1 0 2  
1 2 7 . 24 

4 

102 
1 2 7 . 24 

4 

1 0 2  
1 2 7 . 24 

4 

1 0 2  
1 2 7 . 24 

4 

1 0 2  
1 2 7 . 24 

4 

Stormwater Dra i n age (1)  
Stormwater system - l i near  feet 
Stormwater d ra i n s  - catchbas ins & man holes 

88,894 
1 , 560 

88,894 
1 , 324 

90,824 
1 , 3 3 5  

90,824 
1 , 3 3 5  

98,835 
1 ,376  

98,914 
1 ,377  

104,700 
1 , 396 

1 1 0,498 
1 ,505  

1 14 ,810  
1 , 564 

123 ,067 
1 , 666 

Publ ic Works (2) 
Road m i les 
Street l i g hts 

77 
2,084 

77 
2,975 

77 
2 ,362 

77 
2 ,362 

77 
2,047 

77 
2,047 

77 
2,047 

77 
2,047 

77 
2,047 

77 
2,047 

( 1 ) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

Town of M i a m i  Lakes, Stormwater Master P lan  U pdate and  GIS ana lysis performed d u ri ng  fisca l yea r 20 1 1 .  
Pub l i c  Works a n n u a l  state report on road m i les, street l ig hts from F lor ida Power & L ight .  Street l i g hts reflect correct ions made after an aud it with FP & L.  
Town of M i a m i  Lakes Pa rks Department 
M i a m i - Dade Po l ice Department ( represents tota l u n its 24 hours, 7 days) 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORI DA 
MISCELLAN EOUS I N FORMATION 

I N S U RANCE I N  FORCE 

T1ee of Coverage Insurer Pol icI Period Premi u m  

Property Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  $ 103 ,393  
General  Lia b i l ity Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  128 , 1 1 8  
Pub l i c  Offica ls  & Employment Practices Lia b i l ity Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  1 4 1 , 267 
Automob i le  Insura nce Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  14 ,325  
In l and  M a rine  Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  2 ,030  
Cri me/F ide l ity Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  792 
Workers Compensation Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  1 8 , 743 
Govern ment Cri me Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  500 
Generator Fuel  Storage Ta n ks Preferred Govern menta l Insura nce Trust 1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  8 3 6  
Agency Fee Brown & Brown of F lorida ,  Inc  1 0/ 1/2020 - 09/30/20 2 1  20 000 

Tota l Pol ic ies !I! 430,004 
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GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Counci l  and Town Manager 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

We have aud ited, in  accorda nce with the auditing sta ndards genera l ly accepted in  the Un ited States of 

America and the sta ndards applicable to fi nancia l  audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Co m ptro l ler  Genera l  of the U n ited States, the financial  statements of the govern mental 

activities, business-type activities, each m ajor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 

the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida {the "Town"}, as of and fo r the year ended Septe mber 30, 2021, and  

the  related notes to  the  financia l  statements, which col lectively comprise the  Town's basic financia l  

statements, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 25, 2022. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In p lann ing and performing our  audit of the fi nancial  statements, we considered the Town's internal 

control over financia l  reporting { internal control} to determine the a udit procedu res that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the pu rpose of expressing our  opin ions on the fi nancia l  statements, 

but not for the pu rpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's i nternal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an o pinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal contro l .  

A deficiency in internal control exists when t h e  design or  operation o f  a control does not a l low 

management or e m ployees, in the normal  co u rse of perfo rming their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, m isstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficie ncy, or  a 

com bination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reaso nable possibility that a material 

misstatem ent of the entity's fi nancia l  statements wil l  not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 

t imely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in i nternal control 

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet im portant enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the l imited pu rpose described in  the fi rst paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify al l  deficiencies in  i nternal control that might be m aterial 

weaknesses or, significant deficie ncies. Given these l imitations, d u ring our a udit we did not identify a ny 

deficiencies in i nternal  control that we consider to be m aterial wea knesses. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of o btaining reaso nable assura nce a bout whether the Town's fina ncial  statements are free from 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompl iance with which could have a d i rect and 

material effect on the determination of financial  statement amou nts. However, providing an opin ion on 

compliance with those provisions was not a n  o bjective of our audit, and  accordingly, we do not express 

such an opinio n .  The results of our  tests disclosed no instances of noncompl iance or oth er matters that 

a re req u i red to be reported u nder Government Auditing Standards. 

GARCIA, E S P I N O SA,  M IYAR E S ,  RO D RI G U E Z ,  TRU E BA & C O . ,  L L P  

C E RTI FI E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U NTANTS & ADVI S O RS 

2600 Douglas Road, Su ite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I www.gemrtcpa.com 
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Purpose of thG Repon 

The purpose of this rep on s so etf to describe th e scope of our testing of interna mntrul a ndi l l 
compl ance and the results of that testng, and not to provde an opi n on on the effectNeness of thei i i i 
Town's intern a  control or on compliance. This repon is an ntegra pan of an audit performed nl i l i 

i l 
compl ance. Accordingtf, this communicatio n  is nots uit ab e foranyother purpose. 

accordance with Government Auditing Srzmdords in cons dering the entity's imema comrol a nd 

i l 

es F orida, 
Mardi 25, 2022 

Coral Gabl l 

90 



GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 

MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY SECTION 10.550 OF THE RULES OF THE 

AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Counci l  and Town Manage r 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the financia l  statements of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town"}, as of and for the 

fiscal yea r  ended September 30, 2021, and  have issued our  report thereon dated M arch 25,  2022. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

We conducted o u r  audit in  accordance aud iting stan dards genera l ly accepted in  the U n ited States of Ame rica; 

the standards appl icable to fina ncial  audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Com ptro l ler Gen eral of the U nited States; the audit req uirements of Tit le 2 U .S. Code of Federal Regulations 

Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

{Un iform Guida nce}; and Chapter 10.550, Ru les of the Auditor Genera l .  

Other Reporting Requirements 

We have issued our  Independent Auditors' Report on I nternal Control over F inancia l  Reporting and  on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on a n  Audit of the F inancia l  Statements Performed i n  Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards; I ndependent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal 

Program and Report on I nternal  Control ove r Complia nce; Schedule of F indi ngs and Questioned Costs; and 

Independent Accou nta nts' Report on an examination conducted i n  acco rdance with A/CPA Professional 

Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding complia nce req uirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Ru les of 

the Auditor Ge neral .  Disclosures in those reports and schedu le, which are dated March 25, 2022, should be 

considered in  conj unction with this management letter. 

Prior Audit Findings 

Section 10.554{1}{i}l . ,  Ru les of the Auditor Gen eral, req uires that we determine whether o r  not co rrective 

actions have been taken to address fi nd ings and recommendations made in the preceding financia l  audit 

report. There were no fi ndi ngs or recommendations made i n  the preceding annua l  financia l  audit report. 

Official Title and Legal Authority 

Section 10.554{1}{i}4., Ru les of the Auditor General, req uires that the name or official title and legal a uthority 

fo r the primary governm ent and each component u n it of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management 

letter, u n less disclosed in  the notes to the fi nancia l  statements. The Town was estab l ished pursuant to the 

constitution of the State of F lorida, Home Ru le Charter of Miami-Dade Cou nty, Article 5, Section 5 .05. There 

were no component u nits related to the Town.  

GARCIA, E S P I N O SA,  M IYAR E S ,  RO D RI G U E Z ,  TRU E BA & C O . ,  L L P  

C E RTI FI E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U NTA NTS & ADVI S O RS 

2600 Douglas Road, Su ite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I www.gemrtcpa.com 
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Financial Condition and Management 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 

procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Town met one or 

more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific 

condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Town did not meet any of the 

conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 

condition assessment procedures for the Town. The assessment was completed as of the fiscal year end. It is 

management's responsibility to monitor the Town's financial condition, and our financial condition 

assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial 

information provided by same. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to 

improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any recommendations. 

Additional Matters 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 

provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that 

have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those 

charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, 

members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal, 

State and other granting agencies, members of the Town Council, and applicable management, and is not 

intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Coral Gables, Florida 

March 25, 2022 
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GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 218.415, 

FLORIDA STATUTES, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR 

GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Counci l  and  Town Manager 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

We have examined the Town of Miami Lakes, F lorida's {the "Town") compl iance with the requ i reme nts of 

Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, d u ring the fiscal year ended Septe m ber 30, 2021 .  Management of the Town 

is responsible for the Town's com p liance with those specified req u i rements. Our  responsibility is to express an 

opin ion o n  the Town's compl iance with the specified requ i rements based on our  examinatio n .  

Our  examination was conducted in  accord ance with attestation sta ndards established b y  t h e  American 

I nstitute of Certified Publ ic  Accou ntants and, accordingly, inc luded examin i ng, on a test basis, evidence about 

the Town's co mp liance with the specified req uirements and performing such other procedu res as we 

considered necessary i n  the circu mstances. We bel ieve that our examination provides a reasonable basis for 

our  op in ion .  O u r  examination does not provide a lega l determination on the Town's compl iance with specified 

req uirements. 

In our opin ion, the Town com plied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned req u i rements fo r the 

fiscal yea r  ended September 30, 202 1.  

This  report is i ntended solely for  the information and use of Town m anagement, mem bers of the Town 

Cou ncil, others with in  the Town, and the Auditor Genera l  of the State of F lorida, and is not i ntended to be and 

should not be used by a nyo ne other than these specified parties. 

Coral Gables, Florida 

March 25, 2022 

GARCIA, E S P I N O SA,  M IYAR E S ,  RO D RI G U E Z ,  TRU E BA & C O . ,  L L P  

C E RTI FI E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U NTANTS & ADVI S O RS 

2600 Douglas Road, Su ite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I www.gemrtcpa .com 
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GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Mayor, Town Counci l  and Town Manager 

Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have a udited the Town of Miami Lakes, F lorida's {the "Town"} com p liance with the types of compliance 

req uirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a d irect and material effect o n  

t h e  Town's major Federal programs for t h e  fiscal year ended September 30, 202 1.  T h e  Town's m ajor Federal 

programs a re ide ntified in  the summary of aud itors' results section of the accom panying schedule of fi nd ings 

and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compl iance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 

its Federal awards appl icable to its Federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our  responsibi l ity is to express an opin ion o n  compliance for each of the Town's m ajor Federal programs 

based on o u r  a udit of the types of compl iance req uirements referred to a bove. We conducted o u r  a udit of 

compliance in accordance with a uditing sta nda rds general ly accepted in  the U n ited States of America; the 

standards appl icab le to financia l  aud its contained i n  Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Com ptro l ler Genera l  of  the Un ited States; and  the audit req uirements of Title 2 U .S .  Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards {Un iform G uidance} .  Those standards and the Un iform G uida nce req uire that we plan and 

perform the a udit to obtain reaso nable assurance a bout whether noncompl iance with the types of 

compliance req uirements referred to a bove that could have a d irect and material effect on a major Federa l  

program occurred. An a udit inc l udes examin i ng, o n  a test basis, evidence about the Town's compl iance with 

those req uirements and  perfo rming such other procedu res as we considered necessary in  the circumstances. 

We bel ieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opin ion on com p liance for each major Federa l  

program .  However, our  audit d oes not provide a lega l determination of the Town's com p liance.  

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

I n  o u r  o pinion, the Town com plied, i n  a l l  material respects, with the types of compl iance req uirements 

referred to a bove that could have a d irect and m aterial effect on each of its major Federal programs for the 

fiscal yea r  ended September 30, 202 1.  

GARCIA, E S P I N O SA,  M IYAR E S ,  RO D RI G U E Z ,  TRU E BA & C O . ,  L L P  

C E RTI FI E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U NTANTS & ADVI S O RS 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 

audit of compliance, we considered the Town's internal control over compliance with the types of 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major Federal program to determine the 

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

compliance for each major Federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 

accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an  opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Town's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

Federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 

that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program will not be 

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 

compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a Federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the lim ited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify a l l  deficiencies in internal control over compliance 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 

control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 

exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 

Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Coral Gables, Florida 

March 25, 2022 
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TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

SCH E D U LE OF EXP E N D ITU RES  OF F ED ERAL AWARDS 
F ISCAL YEAR E N D E D  S E PTE M B E R  30 ,  2021 

Federal Agency Contract/ 
Pass-Through Entity CFDA Grant 

Federal Program Number Number Expenditures 

FEDERAL AGENCY NAME 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security Federal 
Emergency Management Assistance 

F l ood M it igat ion  Assista nce P rogram 97 .029 B0004 $ 950,491 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

Edward B ryne Memor i a l  J u st ice Assistance G ra nt 

Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
Coronavi rus Eme rgency Supp l ementa l F u nd i ng P rogram 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

U.S. Department of Treasury 

Pass through Florida Department of Emergency Management 
Coronavi rus Aid, Re l i ef, a n d  Econom i c  Secu rity Act -

Coronavi rus Re l i ef F u nd  for COV I D-19 
Pass through Miami-Dade County 

Coronavi rus A id ,  Re l i ef, a n d  Econom i c  Secu rity Act -
Coronavi rus Re l i ef F u nd  for COV I D-19 

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 

Total Expenditures for Federal Awards 

16 .738 

16 .034 

2 1 .019 

2 1 .019 

U n known 

U n known 

U n known 

U n known 

$ 

3,943 

190, 233 

2,042,300 

50,000 

53,943 

847,633 

1,037,866 

The acco m pa nying notes a re a n  i ntegra l  pa rt of th i s  sched u l e  
9 6  



TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "schedule") includes the federal grant 

activity of the Town of Miami Lakes. For purposes of this schedule, federal awards include federal assistance 

received directly from a federal agency, as well as federal funds received indirectly by the Town from state 

and non-state organizations. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 

for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 

amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements of the Town. 

The expenditures in the accompanying schedule are presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recognized when the Town becomes 

obligated for a payment as a result of the receipt of the related goods or services. 

NOTE 3 - CONTINGENCY 

The grant revenues received by the Town are subject to review by grantor agencies. Such audits may result in 

requests for reimbursement due to disal lowed expenditures. If any expenditures are disallowed by grantor 

agencies as a result of such an audit, any claim for reimbursement to the grantor agencies would become a 

liabi lity of the Town. In the opinion of management, a l l  grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms 

of the grant agreements and applicable federal laws and regulations. 

NOTE 4 - INDIRECT COST RATE 

The Town has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate al lowed under the Uniform 

Guidance. 
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TOWN OF M IAMI LAKES, FLORI DA 

SCH EDULE OF  F I ND I NGS AN D QU ESTIONED  COSTS 
F ISCAL YEAR ENDED  SEPTE M B E R  30, 202 1 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financia l  Statements 

Type of a udito rs' report issued whether the financia l 
statements a udited were prepa red in 
accorda nce with GAAP:  U nmodified 

I nte rna l contro l  ove r fina ncia l reporting :  

Materia l wea knesses identified ? No 

Significant deficiencies identified ?  

Noncomp lia nce materia l t o  financia l statements noted?  

None reported 

No 

Federa l  Awards 

I nte rna l contro l  ove r majo r Fede ra l  p rogra ms :  

Materia l wea knesses identified ?  No 

Significant deficiencies identified ?  

Type o f  a udito rs' report issued on  comp lia nce fo r majo r 
Fede ra l  p rograms :  

None reported 

U nmodified 

Any audit findings disc losed that a re req uired to be reported in  
accorda nce with CFR 200 .516 (a )?  No 

I dentification of majo r Fede ra l  p rograms :  

Fede ra l  Program 

Coronavirus Re lief Fund  fo r COVI D-19 

Federa l CFDA No .  

2 1 .019 

F lood Mitigation Assista nce 97 .029 

Do l l a r  t h resho ld used to distinguish between 
Type A and  Type B Fede ra l  p rogra ms :  $750,000 

Auditee qua lified as  low-risk a uditee pu rsua nt to 

the U nifo rm G uida nce? Yes 

SECTION I I  - F IND INGS - F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

None .  

SECTION I l l  - F INDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

None .  

SECTION IV - OTHER ISSUES 

No Summary Sched u l e  of Prio r Audit Findings i s  req uired beca use there were no prio r audit findings re lated to  
Fede ra l  p rograms .  
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� GINAM. MORENO INGUANZO . 

EXPIRES: March 23, 2025 \l� .. . .. 0;�.: 

IMPACT FEE AFFIDAVIT 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Ismael Diaz, who being duly sworn, deposes and says on oath that: 
1 .  I am the Chief Financial Officer o f  the Town of Miami Lakes which is a local governmental entity of the State of Florida; 
2. The governing body of the Town of IV1iami Lakes entered into contract with Miami-Dade County which authorized the Town of a 

Miami Lakes to receive and expend proceeds of an impact fee implemented by Miami-Dade County adopted through Ordinances 90-3 1and 90-59 implementing impact fees; and 
3. The Town of Miami Lakes has complied and, as of the date of this A ffidavit, remains in compliance with Section 1 63.31 801 , Florida Statutes. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SA YETI-I NAUGI-1 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF Miami-Dade 
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED befo,e me this f..�day of � � cAII , 2022. 

Peisonally known � pmduced identification ____ 
Type of identification produced: _ __ __  _  __________ _ 

My Commission Expires: 
i•: :•i MYCOMMISSION # HH 108341 

BondedThru Notary PublicUndtrwrflera, ,Rr.r,�,,,, 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
	Ł·Ł 
	MIAMlJlLAKES 
	Town of Miami Lakes 6601 Main Street 
	Miami Lakes, FL 33014 (305) 364-6100 
	www.miamilakes-fl.gov 

	Mayor Manny Cid 
	Vice Mayor Luis E. Collazo 
	Councilmembers: Carlos 0. Alvarez Luis E. Collazo Josh Dieguez Jeffrey Rodriguez 
	Marilyn Ruano Tony Fernandez 
	Town Manager Edward Pidermann 
	Town Clerk Ginalnguanzo 
	March 25, 2022 
	The Honorable Manny Cid, Mayor Members of the Town Council Citizens of the Town of Miami Lakes 
	Ladies and Gentlemen: 
	We are pleased to present the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town") Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (" ACFR") for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2021, according to Florida State Statute and of the Rules of the Auditor General. The financial statements included in the report conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). The responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented da
	This report may be accessed via our new financial transparency module "Transparent Miami Lakes" at: and kindly click on this link, or navigate to our "Related Content" section in the "Transparent Miami Lakes" module to access our financial reports, budgets, investment holdings, and more. 
	https://townofmiamilakes.finance.socrata.com/#!/dashboard 
	https://townofmiamilakes.finance.socrata.com/#!/dashboard 


	The financial statements have been audited by Garcia, Espinosa, Miyares, Rodriguez, Trueba & Co., LLC a licensed certified public accounting firm. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the Town's financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2021, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining (on a test basis) evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used
	The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 
	PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 
	The Town of Miami Lakes was incorporated on December 5, 2000. It is one of the 34 municipalities in MiamiDade County, Florida, and is conveniently located just 18 miles north of Downtown Miami and only 15 miles from Miami International Airport. The Town encompasses about 6.8 square miles, bound by NW 170Street and the Palmetto Expressway (SR 826) to the north, NW 138 Street to the south, NW 57Avenue (Red Road) to the east, and Interstate 75 to the west. 
	th 
	th 
	th 

	Over the last 40 years, Miami Lakes has progressed from a dream on paper to reality. This vibrant community is nationally recognized as one of the best examples of unique and innovative town planning. Land use in the Town is predominantly low-density residential. The next most prevalent uses are light industrial and office parks comprising 13% of the Town's area, and lakes and canals making up about 11 %. The Town of Miami Lakes population has grown to around 31,000 residents. The 2020 census currently rank
	th 

	The Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The Town Council consists of the Mayor and six at-large members and the Mayor is a voting member of the Council. The members of the Council are limited to two consecutive four-year terms, and they are responsible for policymaking and legislative authority, passing ordinances, resolutions, adopting the budget, and appointing committees. The Town Council is responsible for the selection and appointment of the Town Manager and the Town Attorney. The
	Government Structure and Services Provided 

	The Town of Miami Lakes provides a full range of municipal services including recreation and culture, public safety, public works, and administrative services for its residents and businesses. The Town operates through nine main departments: Administration, Building, Code Compliance, Parks & Community Services, Finance/Budget, Planning, Police, Public Works, and Community Outreach. With only around 50 full-time and 20 part-time/seasonal staff members, the Town relies heavily on contractors for the provision
	ii 
	ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
	The 2021 preliminary taxable property values for the Town of Miami Lakes increased to $3,767,371,566 or an increase of 3.58% from the prior year's taxable value of $3,636,955,722. The average Town residential taxable value for 2021 is $233,368 which is 9.83% higher than the prior year's $212,476. 
	Based on the latest information from the U.S. Census Bureau, the Town's per capita income has remained strong and higher than the Miami-Dade Metropolitan Statistical Area ("Miami-Dade MSA") and the State of Florida (the "State"). The Town's per capita income as of 2021 was estimated at $47,312 while Miami-Dade MSA and the State's per capita personal income based on the 2020 census were $28,224 and $31,619, respectively. The Town has also benefitted from a relatively low unemployment rate. In September 2021,
	In December 2020, the Fitch Rating review affirmed the Town's Special Obligation Bond rating at AA+ with and Moody's Rating at Aa2. These ratings reflect the Town's solid revenue framework and expenditure flexibility, nominal fixed carrying costs, and a low long-term liability burden. Both rating agencies believe that the Town's superior inherent budget flexibility position is to maintain a high level of financial resilience throughout economic cycles to counter current and future periods of revenue volatil
	In July of 2021, the Town issued a $15.5 million utility revenue bond to complete an estimated 16 Stormwater drainage projects, yielding a $3.25 million premium and thereby increasing our bond debt service to $18.75 million. To meet the Stormwater bond 2021 debt service payment and other related expenses, the Town increased the Stormwater Monthly Equivalent Residential Unit "ERU" rate from $4.50 to $10.50 generating an additional $1.5 million annually. Quoting from the Bond 2021 Official Statement, "The Ser
	Stormwater Utility System Revenue Bond Series 2021 -(Green Bond) 

	American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
	American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 

	ARPA was signed into law by President Joseph Biden on March 11, 2021, allocating $350 billion in fiscal recovery funds to State, Local, Tribal and Territorial Governments. Due to its population, the Town of Miami Lakes is considered a non-entitlement municipality and therefore received $15,710,276 in funds. In September of 2021, the Town received $7,855,138 or 50% of the total allocated funds, and it is scheduled to receive the remainder in the summer of 2022. Additionally, Town restricted all funds to arou
	LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 
	A significant measure of the Town's financial strength is the level of its fund balances (i.e. the accumulation of revenues exceeding expenditures). In Fiscal Year 2021 the unassigned general fund balance is approximately $4.8 million which is $800,000 more than the Fiscal Year 2020. The Fiscal Year 2021 millage rate reflects the Council's commitment to maintaining a low tax rate. The continued low rates require the prioritization of resources exclusively to the core municipal government functions, infrastr
	iii 
	The Town updated and adopted a 10-year Strategic Plan in Fiscal Year 2015 and continues to work on transparency and communication via "Imagine Miami Lakes 2025" which has a dedicated website by the same name. Please visit for more information. 
	www .lmaginemiamilakes2025.com 

	The Town Council policy requires a minimum reserve of 20% of the operating expenditures in the General Fund. The actual unassigned general fund balance at the end of the fiscal year 2021 is $4.8 million, representing 29% of the general fund operating expenditures for the year, and 9% above the established policy. The Town complies with this policy as of September 30, 2021, and is in a solid financial position. As previously mentioned, the Town is successful in managing operating costs effectively through a 
	FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
	Accounting Control 
	Accounting Control 

	Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Town are protected from loss, theft, or misuse; and to ensure that adequate accounting data is captured in the Town's financial management system to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonably, but not absolute, assur
	The financial management system provides financial controls for the Town. The implementation of MUNIS in 2012 coincided with the rewrite and implementation of the revised Town's Procurement Ordinance. Because an ERP system implementation is a never-ending task, the automation of processes will continue to improve, and specific policies and procedures will continue to be developed to support improved processes. Beginning in 2015, we continued making strides by improving our financial reporting capabilities. 
	In 2018 we purchased a financial transparency module that provides access to almost real-time data regarding funds, categories, departments, vendors' payments, and more. This module was implemented and publicly released in the fiscal year 2020. By the middle of the fiscal year 2022, we will adopt a paperless environment relying on our robust data backup redundancies and capabilities. 
	Budgetary Controls 
	Budgetary Controls 

	The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Town's financial planning and control. Departmental 
	iv 
	allocations are based on long-range planning efforts, such as the Town's Strategic Plan, Stormwater Master Plan, and the Transportation Master Plan. All Town departments are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Town's Administration Department before the presentation and setting of the preliminary millage by the Town Council. The Administration Department uses these requests as a starting point to assist the Town Manager in developing a Manager's Proposed Budget. A preliminary millage rate m
	Proprietary Funds Operations 
	Proprietary Funds Operations 

	The Town provides the following proprietary funds: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	-This Enterprise Fund is responsible for maintaining the Town's Stormwater drains and conveyance system and planning and constructing system expansions. 
	Stormwater Utility Fund 


	2. 
	2. 
	-This fund accounts for activities that provide goods and/or services to other departments or cost centers. We specifically allocate to the police, building, and administration departments. 
	Internal Service Fund 



	Cash Management 
	Cash Management 

	The Town of Miami Lakes is charged with the security of the Town's funds and assets to maximize return on surplus cash. The Town adopted a formal Investment Policy and acquired financial advisory services in an ongoing effort to maximize investment income through broader investment opportunities while preserving capital. As requested by the Council, we conducted an "Investment Policy Workshop" in the fiscal year 2020, geared to review, educate, and clarify the policy in detail. The Town's primary investment
	Risk Management 
	Risk Management 

	In 2021, The Town changed the general liability, automobile, property, and casualty insurance, as well as workers' compensation coverage to Public Risk Management of Florida, saving over $100,000 annually. The Town continually reviews risk exposures and determines the most cost-effective method of mitigating those exposures, by providing safety training and maintaining infrastructures like sidewalks and roadways. For more information on insurance coverage, insurer, the policy period, and premium, please ref
	V 
	MAJOR CAPITAL PROTECTS INITIATIVES 
	1. THE FOLLOWING ARE SIGNIFICANT PROTECTS COMPLETED DURING FY2021: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Safe Routes to School (Miami Lakeway South) -$1,064,377 

	• 
	• 
	Jakey Duque Park, Phasel (NW 154 Street Bridge Park) -$131,065 

	• 
	• 
	West Lake Neighborhood Reforestation, Phase 5 of 5 -$96,031 


	2. OTHER SIGNIFICANT PROTECTS UNDERWAY IN FY2021 INCLUDE: 
	• 
	West Lake Drainage and Roadway Improvement, Phase 3 

	The total Estimated Project Cost is $2.18 million. The Stormwater Master Plan identified the West Lakes area as a priority for stormwater improvements. The project consists of a complete drainage system retrofit and installation of drainage pipes in residential local roads and exfiltration trenches (French Drains) connecting to existing underground infrastructure, leading to an outfall. New structures and inlets will increase capacity. The Town received $600,000 in State Legislative funding towards Phases 1
	Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) through the State of Florida for Phase 3, which was subsequently increased to $1,555,872 in FY2020. Additionally, $500,000 in State Legislative funds was also received for this project, and construction is expected to be completed in FY2022. 
	In FY2018, the Town received $1,462,499.95 in grant funding from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's Federal 

	• 
	NW 
	59th 
	Avenue Roadway Extension and Redevelopment 

	Total Estimated Project Cost is $8.1 million. The project includes the acquisition of a .86-acre parcel from the MiamiDade Aviation Department and .84-acre of private property along NW 151Street for the design and construction of a new bridge and roadway extending from NW 59A venue over the C-8 Canal south to NW 151 Street, thereby providing public access that will facilitate increased economic opportunities, commerce, and local jobs. The project will incorporate the Complete Streets elements on the bridge
	st 
	th 
	st 
	st 
	rd 

	In FY2018 the Town was awarded a $3.6 million competitive grant from FDOT for the construction of the NW 59Avenue project. This includes design ($240,500), land acquisition (900,000), construction ($2,401,500), construction engineering and inspection ($72,500). The grant requires a 50% match of which funds are earmarked from People's Transportation Plan (PTP 80%) ($2.4 million), 3 Cents Gas Tax ($300,000), and the remainder anticipated from MiamiDade County Road Impact Fees ($1.8 million). The Town is in t
	th 
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	MAJOR CAPITAL PROTECTS INITIATIVES (continuation) 
	MAJOR CAPITAL PROTECTS INITIATIVES (continuation) 

	• 
	Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan 

	The Town Council adopted the Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan in 2003. Today, the total estimated project cost is $26.5 million and will be proposed via a referendum in November 2022. In FY2018, a contract for field design work was awarded for $470,000 which is currently underway and is expected to be completed in FY2022. 
	3. 
	Other initiatives in the FY 2022 Budget include: 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Stormwater Infrastructure Improvement -$26,119,138 

	• 
	• 
	Robert Alonso Comm. Center Critical Facility Energy Resiliency Project -$525,000 

	• 
	• 
	Royal Oaks First Addition Drainage Improvement -$440,220 

	• 
	• 
	Streetlights Improvement Project -$435,636 

	• 
	• 
	NW 146Street Greenway Project (Green 2.0) -$266,706 
	th 


	• 
	• 
	Senior Center Buildout -$250,000 

	• 
	• 
	Optimist Clubhouse Storage Facility Renovation -$189,961 

	• 
	• 
	Freebee Service Expansion -$171,130 • Par 3 Park -$150,000 

	• 
	• 
	MLOP Field Portable Shelters -$88,000 

	• 
	• 
	Safe Routes to School-Bob Graham Education Center -$56,267 (design) 
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	AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
	The Town received the following awards during FY 2021: 
	The Town received the following awards during FY 2021: 

	Tree City USA Designation -15th Consecutive Year 
	Tree City USA Designation -15th Consecutive Year 

	Tree City USA Award is provided by The Arbor Day Foundation, in cooperation with the National Association of State Foresters and the USDA Forest Service, to recognize environmental improvement and encourage higher levels of tree care throughout America. This award is designed not only to recognize achievement but also to communicate new ideas and help the leaders of all Tree City USAs plan for improving community tree care. 
	Growth Award 13th Consecutive Year 
	Growth Award 13th Consecutive Year 

	Tree City USA Growth Award is given to communities that go beyond the four standards of Tree City USA that demonstrate improvement and growth of local tree care. 
	Excellence in Financial Reporting Recognition 9th Consecutive Year 
	Excellence in Financial Reporting Recognition 9th Consecutive Year 

	Awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States for its comprehensive annual financial report for FY 2020. 
	Better Cities for Pets Program Award -3rd Year 
	Better Cities for Pets Program Award -3rd Year 

	Named a Certified City in the Better Cities for Petsprogram. This program helps cities be pet-friendly so more people can enjoy the benefits of a life with pets. It was created by mars Petcare and includes a playbook for cities, an assessment tool, a city certification program, and free online resources. 
	™ 

	All American City Finalist -2010 I 2013 I 2020 
	All American City Finalist -2010 I 2013 I 2020 

	The All-America City Award is a community recognition program in the United States given by the National Civic League. The award recognizes the work of communities in using inclusive civic engagement to address critical issues and create stronger connections among residents, businesses, non-profit, and government leaders. 
	viii 
	GRANTS AND GOVERNMENT AL AFFAIRS 
	The Mission of the Grants and Governmental Affairs Office is to pursue, secure, and administer federal, state, local, foundation, and legislative grants to assist in funding the Goals and Objectives of the Town's Strategic Plan. The Office serves as the Town's liaison to funding organizations to ensure effective communication and administration throughout the grant process, including the execution of grant contracts and agreements, administration of each open contract and agreement, and submission of applic
	In FY2021, the cumulative grant awards surpassed $1.359 million. 
	P
	Artifact
	Grants 
	Secured during October 1, 2020 -September 30, 2021: $1,359,349 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	$525,000 -Rebuild Florida Community Development Block Grant-Mitigation (CDBG-MIT) Critical Facility Hardening Program (CFHP) for the Roberto Alonso Community Center Critical Facility Energy Resiliency (New Generator) Project to ensure this facility and backup EOC has reliable, maximum, and continuous emergency energy supply in the event of power failures, storms, or natural disasters in the Town. 

	• 
	• 
	$440,220 -State of Florida General Appropriations Act by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) for the Miami Lakes Royal Oaks First Addition Drainage Improvements Project to improve drainage, reduce localized flooding, increase drainage capacity, improve stormwater management, eliminate standing rainwater, and reduce impacts to property and life. 

	• 
	• 
	$171,730 -Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Service Development Grant Program for the Miami Lakes Freebee Public Transit Service Expansion Project to expand our existing Freebee services to include new routes, expanded hours, and connections to the Palmetto Metrorail Station regional transit. 

	• 
	• 
	$122,700 -Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESF) to prepare for, prevent the spread of, and respond to the coronavirus. 

	• 
	• 
	$50,000 -Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESRF) Local Residual Funding Program to prepare for, prevent the spread of, and respond to the coronavirus. 

	• 
	• 
	$45,756 -Miami-Dade County (MDC) Neat Streets Miami Matching Street Trees Grants Program for the Miami Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 5 Project to enhance tree canopy in a low tree canopy neighborhood, provide shade, and create memorable landscape and beautification by planting 183 Florida-friendly canopy trees in the West Lakes community. 

	• 
	• 
	$3,943 -Florida Department of Law Enforcement (FDLE) Justice Assistance Grant Direct (JAGC) Program for the Miami Lakes Police Bicycle Equipment Project to purchase and deploy four (4) new police bicycles for bicycle patrol officers in Miami Lakes. 


	ix 
	Grant Closeouts are required to reconcile financial expenditures associated with funding awards. Grant Closeouts ensure all applicable administrative actions and proposed work is completed by the grantee at the end of a contract or project term. Failure to submit timely and accurate reports affects reimbursement and impacts future funding for the organization. 
	Grant Funded Projects Closed ending September 30, 2021: 
	Grant Funded Projects Closed ending September 30, 2021: 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	Miami Lakes Canal Bank Stabilization Project Phase II -$
	998,997.45 (final grant award at closeout) 


	• 
	• 
	Royal Oaks Park (ROP) Energy Efficient Sports Field Lighting -$
	208,501.84 (final grant award at closeout) 


	• 
	• 
	Miami Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 4 Project -$33,275 (final grant award at closeout) 

	• 
	• 
	Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESF) -$122,700 

	• 
	• 
	Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESRF) Local Residual Funding Program -$50,000 

	• 
	• 
	Miami Lakes West Lake Reforestation Phase 5 -$45,756 


	If you need more information, please contact the Town of Miami Lakes at (305) 364-6100 and ask for the finance department. You may also send an email to 
	. 
	finance@miamilakes-fl.gov 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
	To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 
	Report on the Financial Statements 
	We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida {the "Town"}, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
	Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatem
	An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Town's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
	We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
	Opinions 
	In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida, as of September 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
	GARCIA, ESP! NOSA, MIYARES, RODRIGUEZ, TRUEBA & CO., LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS &ADVISORS 
	2600 Douglas Road, Suite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I 
	www.gemrtcpa.com 

	Other Matters 
	Required Supplementary Information 
	Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, other post-employment benefits schedule, and pension schedules on pages 4-11, 55-57, 58, and 59-62, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fi
	express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
	Supplementary and Other Information 
	Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, supplemental schedule, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additi
	The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budget and actual schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such inf
	The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
	assurance on them. 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
	The management of the Town of Miami Lakes offers the readers of our financial statements a narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. We encourage our readers to consider the information presented in this discussion and analysis in conjunction with additional information that is provided in the letter of transmittal, the financial statements, and the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
	Financial Highlights for the Fiscal Year 2021 
	Financial Highlights for the Fiscal Year 2021 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	At the close of the fiscal year the Town's total assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows by $52.8 million (net position). Of this amount, $2.7 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

	• 
	• 
	The Town's total net position increased by approximately $3.3 million during the current fiscal year. 

	• 
	• 
	Net position of the Town's business-type activities increased by approximately $1.4 million and increased by approximately $1.9 million for governmental activities. Capital contributions from governmental activities to business-type activities accounted mainly for the increase in the business-type activities. 

	• 
	• 
	As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $13.8 million, an increase of $1.8 million in comparison with the prior year mainly due to a general fund, a building department, and a capital fund operating surplus. Approximately $4.8 million, or 35%, of the ending fund balances amount, is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance). 

	• 
	• 
	At the end ofthe current fiscal year, the fund balance for the general fund was $4.9 million or 29% oftotal general fund expenditures. The unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $4.8 million or 28.7% of total general fund expenditures. The non-spendable fund balance was $99 thousand (2.0% of general fund ending fund balance). These designations follow the Town's fund balance and financial policies as explained in the notes to the financial statements. 


	Overview of the Financial Statements 
	This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements of the Town of Miami Lakes and is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Town's financial activity, identify changes in the financial position to address subsequent year challenges, identify any material deviations from the approved budget and identify individual fund issues or concerns. 
	The annual report consists of four parts-management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an additional section that presents combining statements for non-major governmental funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the Town. 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and shortterm information about the Town's overall financial status. 

	• 
	• 
	The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Town government, reporting the Town's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. Within the fund financial statements are government and proprietary fund statements. 

	• 
	• 
	statements show the financial information for all general governmental services, such as public safety, the building department, parks and recreation, community services, and others. 
	The governmental fund's 


	• 
	• 
	statement offers short-term and long-term financial information about the activities where the government operates as a business, in this case, the Town's stormwater utility operations. 
	Proprietary fund, enterprise fund 


	• 
	• 
	are used to allocate costs internally among the Town's various functions. The Town uses an Internal Service Fund to account for its facilities maintenance. 
	Proprietary fund, Internal service funds 



	Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
	The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. In addition to these required elements, included is a section with combining statements that provide details about non-major governmental funds, each of which is added together and presented in a single column in
	Government-Wide Financial Statements 
	Government-Wide Financial Statements 

	-Statement of net position and statement of activities found on pages 12 and 13 are designed to provide readers with a broad overview ofthe Town's finances, in a manner like a private sector business. 
	The government-wide financial statements 

	Presents information on all the Town's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 
	The statement of net positione-This 

	This Presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
	The statement ofactivitiese-

	Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, transportation, parks and recreation, and comprehensive planning. The Town's business-type activities co
	The government-wide financial statements include only the Town itself (known as the primary government). 
	Afund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Each fund is a separate accounting entity. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The Town categorizes funds as governmental and proprietary. 
	Fund Financial Statementse-

	Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the governmental fund's financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 
	Governmental Fundse-

	Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and c
	Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
	The Town's funds are presented in separate fund financial statements. These funds are presented in a Governmental Fund Financial Statement and a Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Financial Statement. The Town's major funds are presented in separate columns on the fund financial statements. The funds that do not meet the criteria of a major fund are considered non-major funds and are combined into a single column on the fund financial statements. 
	At the closing of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the following were classified as major funds: The General Fund, the Building Department Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. All other governmental funds are combined into a single column on the governmental fund's financial statements. The individual fund data for the non-major funds is found in the combining statements section. 
	The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund as well as its other governmental funds. Budgetary comparisons have been presented for funds that compare not only actual results to budget (budgetary basis) but also the original adopted budget to the final budget. The budget to actual comparison for the General Fund and the Building Department Fund is presented on pages 55-56 of the required supplementary information and other governmental funds are presented beginning on page 63. 
	The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 17 of this report. 
	-Proprietary funds are those funds where the Town charges a user fee to recover costs. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements but in more detail. The Town maintains two proprietary funds, one considered an "Enterprise Fund" and an "Internal Service Fund". 
	Proprietary Funds 

	are used to finance and account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of facilities and services that are intended to be entirely or predominantly self-supporting through the collection of charges from external customers. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its Stormwater Utility Operations. 
	Enterprise funds 

	is defined as a fund that primarily provides either benefits or goods or services to other funds, departments, or agencies of government on a cost-reimbursement basis, with the goal to 'break-even' rather than to generate a profit. 
	Internal Service Fund 

	The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 through 20 of this report. 
	-The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 21 through 54 of this report. 
	Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

	-In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's budgetary comparison schedules. 
	Other Information 

	The combined statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and other schedules can be found on pages 63 through 70 of this report. This year we added a consolidated enterprise fund schedule, detailing the operations, bond series 2021, and ARPA funds for the Stormwater Fund. This statement could be found on page 70. 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
	The Government-wide Financial Statements were designed so that the user can determine if the Town is in a better or worse financial condition from the prior year. The Town's overall assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $52.8 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
	Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Summary of Net Position 
	Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 
	Deferred outflows of resources -pension 999,224 1,160,338 36,889 46,125 1,036,113 1,206,463 
	Current liabilities 3,922,215 4,369,102 8,133,794 153,850 12,056,009 4,522,952 Noncurrent liabilities 9,459,375 11,696,892 19,028,045 485,123 28,487,420 12,182,015 Total liabilities 13,381,590 16,065,994 27,161,839 638,973 40,543,429 16,704,967 
	Deferred inflows of resources -pension 2,049,564 491,151 111,059 21,719 2,160,623 512,870 
	Net investment in capital assets 28,428,460 28,533,023 13,178,871 12,461,397 41,607,331 40,994,420 Restricted 8,572,783 7,351,535 4,785 8,577,568 7,351,535 Unrestricted 1,804,029 992,221 848,683 120,154 2,652,712 1,112,375 Total net position $ 38,805,272 $ 36,876,779 $ 14,032,339 $12,581,551 $ 52,837,611 $49,458,330 
	The net investment in capital assets, $42 million or 79% is the largest portion of the net position. This represents capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress), net of accumulated depreciation, and the outstanding related debt used to acquire the assets. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is report
	An additional portion of the Town's net position of $8.6 million or 16% represents resources that are subject to restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of $2.7 million or 5%, may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current year, the Town had positive balances in all three categories of net position, both for the government, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The
	Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 
	There was an increase in unrestricted net position for the governmental activities of $812 thousand and an increase in the business-type activities of $729 thousand due to the increase in ERU rate from $4.50 to $10.50. Also, an increase in restricted net position of $1.2 million is due mostly to an increase in revenue throughout all funds. 
	The following schedule compares revenues and expenses for the Town's operations for Fiscal Years 2021 and 2020. 
	Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Summary of Changes in Net Position 
	Governmental activities: The Town's governmental revenues increased by $2. 7 million from $24.2 million to $26.9 million, mostly attributable to franchise fees and intergovernmental revenues. Approximately 30% of the Governmental Activities' revenues come from property taxes, 22% from other taxes, 16% from charges for services, 20% from intergovernmental revenues, and the remainder from fines, investments, grants, and contributions. Governmental expenses decreased slightly by $102 thousand over last year. T
	Revenues: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Ad-Valorem taxes increased by $523 thousand as property value continue to rise. 

	• 
	• 
	Grants revenue combined increased by $197 thousand from the prior year, including the CARES Act reimbursement of $1 million. 


	Government-Wide Financial Analysis (Continued) 
	Revenues: (Continued) 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Intergovernmental increase of $828 thousand is mostly attributed to a surge in State sales tax of $498 thousand. 

	• 
	• 
	Charges for services mostly increased due to the building department revenue of $4 70 thousand. 

	• 
	• 
	Stormwater operating fees increased by $633 thousand due to a change in the rate from $4.50 to $10.50 per ERU. 

	• 
	• 
	Electric franchise fees increased by $753 thousand because of the renewing of our agreement with FPL. 

	• 
	• 
	Investment income/Misc. revenue decreased $177 thousand greatly attributable to lower interest rates. 


	Expenses: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Town's General Government cost decreased by $65 thousand. 

	• 
	• 
	Public safety expenses as compared to the prior year decreased by $107 thousand mostly due to operational savings in the building department. 

	• 
	• 
	Parks and recreation decreased by approximately $86 thousand generally because of lower maintenance cycles. 

	• 
	• 
	Transportation expenses increased by $173 thousand due to an increase in repairs and maintenance. 

	• 
	• 
	Stormwater expenses increased by $650 thousand due to repairs, maintenance, and the 2021 bond cost of issuance. 


	Business-type activities: The Town has a Stormwater Utility business-type activity. Business-type activities increased the Town's total net position by $1.5 million, although the fiscal year operations yielded a $45 thousand deficit including depreciation. 
	Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 
	-The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. An unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
	Governmental funds 

	The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town and is used to account for most of its governmental activities. The General Fund's total fund balance on September 30, 2021, was $4.9 million and of this amount, $4.8 million or (98%) was unassigned. The non-spendable fund balance for prepayments was $99 thousand (2.0%). The unassigned fund balance represents 28. 7% of total general fund expenditures, while the total fund balance represents 29% of that same amount. The General Fund's total fund balanc
	At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $13. 7 million, an increase of $1.9 million in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 35% of the combined fund balance, or $4.8 million, constitutes an unassigned fund balance available for spending at the Town's discretion. 
	As of September 30, 2021, the capital projects fund had a total fund balance of $2.8 million, with no remaining funds to be classified as unassigned. The $947 thousand increase in fund balance from the previous year is due to the accumulation of restricted funds for the completion of future projects. 
	As of September 30, 2021, the building department fund has a total fund balance of $2.2 million, with no remaining funds to be classified as unassigned. The $51 thousand increase in fund balance from the previous year is due to the increase in building permit fee revenue from FY 2020 to FY 2021. 
	-The Town of Miami Lakes' proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements but in greater detail. 
	Proprietary funds 

	The net position of the Stormwater Utility as of September 30, 2021, amounted to $14.1 million. Of this amount, $13.2 million is invested in capital assets and $900 thousand is unrestricted. Net position increased by $1.5 million from the prior year. Investment in capital assets increased by $717 thousand because of an increase in construction. 
	General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
	Over the course of the year, the Town amended the General Fund budget various times. Budget amendments typically fall into two categories: (1) Amendments approved for rollovers related to capital improvement projects, tasks and projects in progress, and prior year encumbrances; and (2) supplemental appropriations to recognize and appropriate grant revenues which were received after the adoption of the budget, and to provide appropriations for various other needs which had arisen since the adoption of the bu
	Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
	Capital Assets 
	Capital Assets 

	As of September 30, 2021, the Town's net investments in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities amounted to $42 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, infrastructure improvements, park facilities, furniture, and equipment. Total net investment in capital assets for governmental activities decreased by $105 thousand and increased by $717 thousand for business-type activities. Some projects contributing to the increase were the following: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Canal Bank Stabilization 

	• 
	• 
	Safe Routes to School 

	• 
	• 
	West Lakes Neighborhood Reforestation 

	• 
	• 
	59Avenue Road Extension 
	th 


	• 
	• 
	Infrastructure Additions and Components 

	• 
	• 
	Acquisition of Machinery and Equipment 

	• 
	• 
	Jakey Duque Park 

	• 
	• 
	West Lakes Reforestation PH 5 


	Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Activities Activities Government FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2020 
	Land $ 6,056,872 $ 6,056,872 $ $ $ 6,056,872 $ 6,056,872 Building 8,309,414 6,578,436 8,309,414 6,578,436 Construction in Progress 2,310,968 1,674,837 1,650,198 1,114,547 3,961,166 2,789,384 Infrastructure 18,102,204 20,709,220 12,270,377 11,596,447 30,372,581 32,305,667 Furniture and Fixtures 965,222 47,005 85,517 1,259,023 
	1,173,506 
	1,012,227 

	Total Capital Assets, net $35,744,680 $36,192,871 $ 13,967,580 $ 12,796,511 $ 49,712,260 $ 48,989,382 
	Additional details may be found on page 35 in the capital assets section of the notes to basic financial statements. 
	Through the use of MUNIS, a Tyler Technologies product, the Town has an automated process for tracking, inventorying, depreciating, and reconciling the capital assets. This has significantly increased internal controls and loss prevention. All the capital projects are carefully categorized and accounted for to ensure the proper financial viability and realization of each. 
	Long-Term Debt (Governmental Only) 
	Long-Term Debt (Governmental Only) 

	At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had $7.1 million in bonds and notes payable. During Fiscal Year 2011, the Town issued $7.33 million in Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Special Obligation Revenue Bonds, Federally Taxable Series 2010 (Government Center Project) (Build America Bonds -Direct Payment) (the "Series 2010 Bonds"). Moody's Investor Services and Fitch Ratings have rated these bonds Aa2 and AA+, respectively. Also included in long-term debt is the Town's proportionate share of the Florida 
	Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Outstanding Debt over $500k (Governmental Only) 
	FY 2021 FY 2020 
	Special Obligations Bonds $ 6,723,452 $ 6,922,072 Net Pension Liability 1,801,435 3,718,321 QNIP 424,402 564,421 
	$ 8,949,289 $11,204,814 
	Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Town's unemployment rate for 2021 was 3.1%, down from 8.6% in 2020 showing great recovery from the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

	• 
	• 
	The Town's residential property value increased by $521 thousand. 

	• 
	• 
	The Town's unassigned fund balance in the General Fund is $4.8 million, an increase of $800 thousand from the previous year. 

	• 
	• 
	The property tax millage rate for the 2021 fiscal year remained the same at 2.3127 mills ($2.3127 per $1,000 of taxable assessed valuation). 


	Some of these factors were considered in preparing the Town's budget for the 2022 fiscal year. 
	UPDATE: Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related Effects 
	UPDATE: Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related Effects 

	Last year in the fiscal year 2020 we reported that as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Town saw a reduction in state revenue sharing taxes such as sales tax, gas tax, and communication services tax that was offset by an increase in ad valorem taxes and utility tax revenues. Consequently, expenditure savings from lower public safety, parks, and recreation, and public works costs contributed to approximately a $150 thousand increase in general fund reserves at fiscal year-end. As an update to this narra
	not

	Requests for Information 
	This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Miami Lakes' finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
	Town of Miami Lakes Finance Department 6601 Main Street Miami Lakes, Florida 33014 
	-Ł·Ł 
	r 
	¥Ł 

	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA STATEMENT OF NET POSITION SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Governmental Business-Type Activities Activities Total 
	Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,161,538 $ 794,680 $ 13,956,218 Investments 1,023,506 1,023,506 Accounts receivable, net 2,257,383 357,799 2,615,182 Prepaids 128,823 128,823 Restricted assets: 
	ASSETS 
	Artifact
	Artifact

	Cash and cash equivalents 372,704 26,148,289 26,520,993 Investments 548,568 548,568 Capital assets: 
	Artifact

	Non-depreciable capital assets: Land Contruction in progress 
	Total non-depreciable capital assets 
	Depreciable capital assets: Leasehold improvements 90,558 90,558 Furniture and equipment 4,400,541 322,359 4,722,900 Building 10,178,845 10,178,845 Infrastructure 30,426,809 15,391,199 45,818,008 Less: accumulated depreciation (17,719,913) (3,396,176) (21,116,089) 
	Artifact
	Artifact

	Net depreciable capital assets 27,376,840 12,317,382 39,694,222 Total capital assets 35,744,680 13,967,580 49,712,260 TotaI assets 53,237,202 41,268,348 94,505,550 
	Pension Total deferred outflows of resources 
	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

	Accounts payable and other current liabilities 3,811,192 278,656 4,089,848 Deposits 111,023 111,023 Unearned revenues 7,855,138 7,855,138 Noncurrent liabilities: 
	LIABILITIES 
	Artifact

	Due within one year 446,623 246,512 693,135 Due in more than one year 9,012,752 18,781,533 27,794,285 Total liabilities 
	Pension 2,049,564 111,059 2,160,623 Total deferred inflows of resources 
	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

	Net investment in capital assets 28,428,460 13,178,871 41,607,331 
	NET POSITION 

	Restricted for: Debt Service 969,108 Transit -CITT 20 33,205 Transportation -CITT 80 141,829 Transportation -Gas Tax 140,349 Transportation 1,427,215 Mobility 346,464 
	969,108 33,205 141,829 140,349 1,427,215 346,464 
	Stormwater Improvement Projects 4,785 4,785 Building Department -Operational 1,287,036 1,287,036 Building Department -Technology 867,891 867,891 Parks 1,335,983 1,335,983 Tree Removal 39,821 39,821 Impact Fees: 
	Artifact
	Artifact

	Public Safety (Police) 94,794 94,794 Parks improvement 5,648 5,648 Parks open space 1,077,009 1,077,009 Government Center Facility 26,147 26,147 Neighborhood Service Districts 339,559 339,559 Greenway 77th Court 240,840 240,840 Large Park LOS 199,885 199,885 Unrestricted 1,804,029 848,683 2,652,712 Total net position $ 38,805,272 $ 14,032,339 $ 52,837,611 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	Primary government: 
	Functions/Programs 

	Governmental activities: General government Public safety Parks and recreation Transportation Interest expense 
	Total governmental activities 
	Business-type activities: Stormwater Total business-type activities Total primary government 
	1,743,488 1,692,827 1,743,488 1,692,827 
	$ 25,165,347 $ 6,018,097 $ 1,091,809 $ 1,743,136 

	General revenue: Property taxes Utility taxes Communication service tax Franchise taxes Other taxes Intergovernmental not restricted to specific programs Investment income Other income 
	Transfers 
	Total general revenues and transfers 
	Change in net position 
	Net position, beginning 
	Net position, ending 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	$ (1,739,905) (8,176,585) (3,391,260) (2,442,704) (511,190) (16,261,644) 
	$ (16,261,644) 
	7,940,228 3,731,365 941,205 1,208,542 653,901 4,836,866 62,108 311,259 
	1,928,493 36,876,779 
	1,928,493 36,876,779 
	$ 

	(50,661) (50,661) $ (50,661) 
	6,112 
	1,450,788 12,581,551 
	$ (1,739,905) (8,176,585) (3,391,260) (2,442,704) (511,190) (16,261,644) 
	(50,661) (50,661) $ (16,312,305) 
	7,940,228 3,731,365 941,205 1,208,542 653,901 4,836,866 68,220 311,259 
	3,379,281 49,458,330 
	13 
	Major Funds 
	Cash and cash equivalents Investments Accounts receivable, net Due from other funds Prepaids Restricted assets: 
	ASSETS 

	Cash and cash equivalents Investments Total assets 
	Accounts payable and other current liabilities Deposits Due to other funds 
	LIABILITIES 

	Total liabilities 
	Nonspendable: Prepaids 
	FUND BALANCES 

	Restricted: Debt service Transit -CITT 20 Transportation -CITT 80 Transportation -Gas Tax Transportation Mobility Building department -Operational Building department -Technology Parks Tree removal Impact fees: 
	Public Safety (Police) Parks improvement Parks open space 
	Government Center Facility Neighborhood Service Districts Greenway 77th Court Large Park LOS 
	Committed for: Infrastructure projects Unassigned Total fund balances Total liabilities and fund balances 
	$ 5,314,023 $ 2,080,755 $ 2,994,696 1,023,506 1,063,788 131,747 306,929 
	234,099 99,263 29,560 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Fund balances -total government funds (Page 14) 
	Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 
	Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 
	Governmental capital assets 53,455,508 Less: accumulated depreciation 
	(17,717,389) 

	Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
	$ 13,745,234 
	35,738,119 
	(7,531,374) (168,366) (126,566) 
	(2,851,775) 
	$ 38,805,272 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Major Funds 
	Revenues: Ad valorem taxes Utility taxes Franchise fees Communication service tax Other taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Fines and forfeitures Service charges Impact fees 
	Public safety 
	Parks Investment income Special assessments Other 
	Total revenues 
	Expenditures: Current: 
	General government Town council Town administration and finance Legal 
	Public safety Parks and recreation Transportation / public works Administrative 
	Debt service: Principal Interest 
	Capital outlay Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
	over (under) expenditures 
	$ 7,940,228 $ $ $ $ 7,940,228 3,182,273 549,092 3,731,365 1,208,542 1,208,542 941,205 941,205 141,430 140,612 371,859 653,901 250,124 1,950,695 483,235 2,684,054 4,499,271 1,683,107 1,490,244 7,672,622 103,064 103,064 120,194 120,194 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact

	31,337 31,337 7,913 7,913 29,802 8,287 7,774 16,245 62,108 1,377,897 1,377,897 108,127 191,509 299,636 18,524,260 1,958,982 1,831,493 4,519,331 26,834,066 
	Artifact

	598,533 598,533 3,080,343 3,080,343 
	Artifact

	364,104 364,104 8,593,261 1,862,917 10,456,178 2,825,705 10,294 2,835,999 1,076,347 1,331,338 2,407,685 
	Artifact
	Artifact

	1,371,779 1,371,779 
	140,019 200,000 340,019 1,519 514,660 516,179 20,516 2,641,309 55,587 2,717,412 16,700,347 1,862,917 2,651,603 3,473,364 24,688,231 
	1,823,913 96,065 {820,110) 1,045,967 2,145,835 
	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out 
	Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Net change in fund balances 
	Fund balances -beginning Fund balances -ending 
	100,000 (1,344,259) (1,244,259) 
	579,654 
	4,318,610 
	(44,816) (44,816) 51,249 2,133,238 
	1,767,025 1,767,025 946,915 1,842,430 
	645,335 (1,416,021) (770,686) 
	275,281 
	3,597,857 
	2,512,360 (2,805,096) (292,736) 
	1,853,099 
	11,892,135 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
	FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA STATEMENT OF NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash Accounts receivable, net 
	Total current assets 
	Noncurrent assets: Construction in progress Furniture and equipment Infrastructure Less: accumulated depreciation 
	Total noncurrent assets Total assets 
	Pension Total deferred outflows of resources 
	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

	LIABILITIES 
	LIABILITIES 

	Current liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities Compensated absences -current Due to Miami-Dade County -current Bonds payable -current Unearned grant revenue 
	Total current liabilities 
	Noncurrent liabilities: Compensated absences Net pension liability Due to Miami-Dade County Bond payable 
	Total noncurrent liabilities Total liabilities 
	Pension Total deferred inflows of resources 
	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

	Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted 
	NET POSITION 

	Total net position 
	Business-Type Activity 
	Enterprise Fund 

	Storm water 
	Storm water 

	$ 794,680 26,148,289 357,799 
	27,300,768 
	1,650,198 
	322,359 15,391,199 (3,396,176) 
	36,889 
	278,656 1,874 14,518 230,120 7,855,138 
	5,620 31,559 58,072 
	18,686,282 
	111,059 
	13,178,871 4,785 848,683 
	Internal Service Fund 
	$ 20,855 
	20,855 
	9,085 (2,524) 
	27,416 
	6,561 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Business-Type Activity 
	Enterprise Fund 

	Internal Service 
	See notes to basic financial statements 
	r¥Ł 
	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
	A. Organization 
	The Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town") was incorporated in fiscal year 2001 and is a political subdivision of the State of Florida located in northwestern Miami-Dade County. The Town operates under a Mayor-Council-Manager form of government, with the legislative function being vested in a seven-member Council. The Town Council is governed by the Town Charter and by the state and local laws and regulations. The Town Council is responsible for establishment and adoption of policy. The Town provides the
	services, culture, recreation, bus transportation, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 
	The accounting policies of the Town conform to Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. 
	This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the basic financial statements of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida. The policies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements. 
	B. Financial Reporting Entity 
	The Town was incorporated in accordance with the Constitution of the State of Florida and the Home Rule Charter of Miami-Dade County on December 5, 2000, to carry on a centralized government. The Town Council is responsible for legislative and fiscal control of the Town. A Town Manager is appointed by the Council and is responsible for administrative and fiscal control of the resources of the Town. 
	The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for ass
	The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position) report information on all activities of the primary government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
	The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a specific function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital req
	Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The internal service fund is included in the proprietary fund financial statements. 
	D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
	The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting similar to the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
	Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within six (6) months of the end of the
	Property taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town. 
	Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America set forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets plus deferred outflows of resources, liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, revenue or expenditures/expenses of the applicable fund category and the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are presented in one column in the respective fund financial statements. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 
	The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 
	General Fund -This fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
	Building Department Fund -This fund is used to account for and report the receipts of building permits and other fees that are restricted for building permitting and inspection activities. The department performs plan review for all commercial and residential construction, mandatory inspections for all phases of construction to ensure compliance with building safety regulations, collects permit fees and issues permits for residential and commercial construction, and issues certificates of completion and occ
	Capital Projects Fund -This fund is used to account for the construction of major capital projects, other than those financed by the proprietary funds, or the Series 2010 Special Obligation Bond. 
	The Town reports the following major proprietary fund: 
	Stormwater Utility Fund -This fund used to account for the provision of stormwater maintenance and capital improvements within the Town. 
	Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types: 
	Special Revenue Fund -This fund is used to account for and report the receipts of local option fuel tax and county-shared fuel tax that are legally restricted for expenditures related to development, construction equipping, maintenance, operations or expansion of public transportation system, roads and bridges. 
	Neighborhood Service Districts Fund -This fund is used to account for the cost to provide public improvements and special services through a non-ad valorem assessment. Non-ad valorem assessments represent a cost share assigned to a group of properties to pay all or part of the cost associated with a specific public service or improvement, such as security guard services, lighting, lake, and landscape maintenance, primarily benefitting those properties. 
	Impact Fees Fund -This fund is used to account for the parks and public safety impact fees used to fund the cost of additional capital resources required to maintain and accommodate projected population growth due to new development. 
	Debt Service Fund -This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and payment of principal, interest and related costs of the Town's special obligation bonds. 
	Infrastructure Replacement Fund -This fund is used for purposes of accumulating resources to fund longterm capital expenditures. 
	Internal Service Fund -This fund is used to account for the Town's facilities maintenance services, all of which are provided to other Town departments. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 
	As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town's enterprise fund functions and various other functions of the Town. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
	Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, whose purpose has not been restricted to a specific program. 
	Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from user fees for providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the stormwater enterprise fund are charges to customers for services to maintain and refurbish the stormwater system. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and serv
	When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
	E. Deposits and Investments 
	The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, investments with the State Board of Administration (SBA) investment pools (Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2A-7 Pool), certificates of deposit, money markets, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
	State Statutes requires all deposits of the Town, including demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts, and money market accounts to be held in institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as "qualified depositories" and accordingly, are covered by a collateral pool as required by that statute. 
	Investments are reported at fair value, which are based on quoted market prices. Investments owned by the Town are accounted for in the Town's investment pool. Income earned from this pool is allocated to the respective funds based on average monthly balances. 
	The reported value of the pool is the same as their fair value of the pool shares for participants in Pool A. Investments, including restricted investments, consist of securities of governmental agencies unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	F. Receivables and Payables 
	Receivables include amounts due from other governments and others for services provided by the Town. Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognized as earned or as specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred based on the accounting basis required for that fund. 
	All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts is provided when necessary for all trade receivables outstanding over 60 days. 
	G. lnterfund Receivables and Payables 
	Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" or "advances to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business activities are reported in the 
	government-wide financial statements as {/internal balances
	11 

	• 
	H. Prepaid Items 
	Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements using the consumption method. The governmental fund financial statements consider prepaid items to be nonspendable fund balance. 
	I. Property Taxes 
	Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first billed (levied) and due the following November 1. 
	Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal, school board and special district property taxes are consolidated in the Office of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws for the State regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed taxable valuation). The millage 
	The Town's tax levy is established by the Town Council prior to October 1st of each year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy, which includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board and certain other special taxing districts. 
	All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1st of each year or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due and collects the taxes for the Town. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of the notice from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of 4% if paid in the month of November, 3% if paid in the month of December, 2% if p
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	J. Capital Assets 
	Capital assets are defined by the Town as property, equipment and infrastructure with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value as of the date of donation. Additions, improvements and other 
	Assets Years 
	Assets Years 

	Buildings 39 Furniture and equipment 5-20 Leasehold improvements 15 Infrastructure 40 
	When capital assets are sold or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial records and a resulting gain or loss is recorded in the government-wide financial statements. 
	K. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
	In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town has pension amounts that qualify for reporting in this category on the government-wide statement of net position in the amount of $
	In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as inflows of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has pension amounts that qualify for reporting in this category in the amount of $2,160,623. 
	L. Compensated Absences 
	It is the Town's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. Vacation pay and sick pay benefits are accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements. 
	All vacation and sick leave is accrued and reported as a fund liability when it is probable that the Town will compensate the employee with expendable available financial resources. Vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	M. Unearned Revenue 
	Resources that do not meet revenue recognition requirements (not earned), such as grants, are classified as liabilities and recorded as unearned revenue in the government-wide and the fund financial statements. As of September 30, 2021, the Town received approximately $7.8 million in funding from the American Rescue Plan Act that will be utilized for stormwater infrastructure improvements. This amount will be applied to eligible expenses in subsequent years. 
	N. Long-Term Obligations 
	In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Debt premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method, which does not result in a material difference from the effective interest method. The face amount
	incurred. 
	In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditure. 
	0. Net Position 
	Total equity as of September 30, 2021 is classified into three components of net position: 
	Net investment in capital assets -consists of capital assets (including restricted capital assets), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
	Restricted net position -consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
	Unrestricted net position -all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
	investment in capital assets
	11 

	• 
	P. Fund Balance 
	The Town follows Governmental Accounting Standards for Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Type Definitions, which requires that governmental fund financial statements present fund balance based on classification that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental fund can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	P. Fund Balance (continued) 
	Non-spendable -Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in not spendable form (such as inventory) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
	Restricted -Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes by their providers (such as granters, bondholders, Town Code, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 
	Committed -Amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Town itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., Town Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Town takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint. Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action (i.e., ordinance) of the Town Council, the Town's highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may only be
	Assigned -Amounts the Town intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the Town Council or by an official or body to which the Town Council delegates the authority. Amounts that the Town intends to use for a specific purpose; the intent shall be expressed by the Town Council or may be delegated to the Town Manager. 
	Unassigned -This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 
	Minimum level of Unassigned Fund Balance Policy: 
	The Town's reserve policy ordinance requires that the Town maintain 20% of budgeted general fund expenditures on hand as a reserve whenever possible. When expenditure is incurred for the purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When expenditures are incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been first expended out of committed funds then ass
	The Town will use restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Town will first use committed fund balance, followed by assigned fund balance and then unassigned fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
	Q. Net Position Flow Assumption 
	Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted-net position and unrestricted-net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted-net position is applied. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
	R. Use of Estimates 
	The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities, revenues and expenditures/expenses reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates include assessing the collectability of receivables, the realization of pension obligations, OPEB and the useful lives of capit
	S. Restricted Assets 
	Certain resources set aside for the repayment of bonds are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited by the applicable bond indenture covenants. 
	T. Capital Contributions 
	Capital contributions in proprietary fund financial statements arise from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 
	U. New Accounting Pronouncements 
	In October 2021, the GASB issued Statement No. 98, "The Annual Comprehensive Annual Report". The statement addresses references in authoritative literature to the term comprehensive annual financial report. The Statement replaces an existing term but does not otherwise establish new accounting and financial reporting requirements. Comprehensive annal financial report has been replaced with annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR). The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years ending 
	NOTE 2 -STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

	By its nature as a local government unit, the Town is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and contractual regulations. The Town has no material violations of finance-related legal and contractual obligations. 
	By its nature as a local government unit, the Town is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and contractual regulations. The Town has no material violations of finance-related legal and contractual obligations. 
	1. Fund Accounting Requirements 
	A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like any other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related requirements, bond covenants, and segregation for management purposes. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 2 -STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued) 
	2. Revenue Restrictions 
	The Town has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from federal, state, or local requirements. The primary revenue sources include: 
	For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the Town complied, in all material respects, with these revenue restrictions. 
	3. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 
	For the year ended September 30, 2021, there were no excess of expenditures over appropriations to report. 
	NOTE 3 -DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
	Cash and Cash Equivalents 
	As of September 30, 2021, the balance of the Town's cash deposits were $41,001,522. All deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State of Florida to hold public funds. The Town's deposits are considered insured and collateralized with securities held by the Town or by its agent in the Town's name as discussed below. 
	Custodian credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All of the Town's deposits are entirely insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized by the multiple financial institution collateral pool pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, "Florida Security for Public Deposit Act".
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 3 -DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
	Investments 
	Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, limits the types of investments that a government can invest in unless specifically authorized in an investment policy. On December 13, 2011, the Town adopted Ordinance 11-139 which provides for a comprehensive investment policy pursuant to Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, and established permitted investments, issuer limits, credit rating requirements and maturity limits to protect the Town's cash and investment assets. The investment policy applies to all cash and inve
	The Town's investment policy allows for the following investments: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its Agencies or Instrumentalities; 

	• 
	• 
	Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market mutual funds; 

	• 
	• 
	Insured or fully collateralized Certificates of Deposit; 

	• 
	• 
	Intergovernmental investment pools authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocal Cooperation Act functioning as a money market mutual; 

	• 
	• 
	Financial institution deposits that are in Qualified Public Depositories of the State in accordance with Chapter 280.02, Florida Statutes; 

	• 
	• 
	Repurchase agreements secured by direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its Agencies or lnstrumenta lities. 


	The Town's overall investment objectives are, in order of priority, the safety of principal, liquidity of funds and 
	maximizing investment income. 
	The Town invests in a certificate of deposit. The certificate bears an interest rate of .045%. The certificate of deposit with an original maturity of greater than three months totaling approximately $1,012,225 is presented as investments in the accompanying statement of net position. 
	The SBA administers Florida PRIME ("PRIME"), which is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code and Chapters 215 and 219 of the Florida Statutes. These rules provide guidance and establish the policies and general operating procedures of the administration of PRIME. PRIME is not a registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission; however, the SBA has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund, which permits money market funds to use amortized cost t
	Additionally, the Office of the Auditor General of the State of Florida performs the operational audit of the activities and investment of the SBA. The SBA accounts are not subject to custodial credit risk as these investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or bank entry form. 
	In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, the Town's investment in the Florida PRIME meets the definition of a qualifying investment pool that measures for financial reporting purposes all of its investments at amortized cost and should disclose the presence of any limitations or restrictions on withdrawals. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 3 -DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
	Investments (continued) 
	With regard to redemption gates, Chapter 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes, states, "The principal, and any part thereof, of each account constituting the trust fund is subject to payment at any time from the moneys in the trust fund. However, the Executive Director may, in good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals from the trust fund to ensure that the Board can invest moneys entrusted 
	With regard to liquidity fees, Florida Statute 218.409(4) provides authority for the SBA to impose penalties for early withdrawal, subject to disclosure in the enrollment materials of the amount and purpose of such fees. At present, no such disclosure has been made. 
	As of September 30, 2021, there were no redemption fees, maximum transaction amounts, or any other requirements that serve to limit a participant's daily access to 100 percent of their account value. 
	Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in interest rates. As a mean of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Town's investment policy limits the Town's investment portfolio to maturities not to exceed two years for operating and debt service funds and not to exceed three years f
	Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Town's investment policy specifically sets parameters to minimize the Town's credit risk by: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Limiting investment to the safest type of issuer 

	• 
	• 
	Pre-qualifying the financial institution, pools, money market mutual funds, and broker/dealer with which the Town will do business, and 

	• 
	• 
	Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual issuers will be minimized. 


	The Town's investment in Florida PRIME was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's as of September 30, 2021. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 3 -DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
	Investments (continued) 
	Custodial credit risk for investment is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Town's investment policy requires that a bank or banks shall be contracted for the safekeeping or custody of securities owned by the Town as part of its investment portfolio or pledged to the Town as collateral. Securities owned
	NOTE 4 -RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
	Receivables as of September 30, 2021 were as follows: 
	Payables as of September 30, 2021 for the Town's governmental funds were as follows: 
	Building Capital Nonmajor Total Department Projects Governmental Governmental General Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Vendors $ 2,725,392 $ 57,575 $ 512,280 $ 320,163 $ 3,615,410 Total (fund statements) $ 2,725,392 $ 57,575 $ 512,280 $ 320,163 $ 3,615,410 
	Payables as of September 30, 2021 for the Town's governmental activities (government-wide statements) were as follows: 
	Total Fund Bond Interest Governmental Statements Payable Activities 
	Vendors $ 3,642,826 $ 168,366 $ 3,811,192 Total $ 3,642,826 $ 168,366 $ 3,811,192 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 4 -RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued) 
	Payables as of September 30, 2021 for the Town's proprietary funds were as follows: 
	Vendors $ 220,628 $ 27,416 $ 248,044 Interest 58,028 58,028 Total (fund statements) $ 278,656 $ 27,416 $ 306,072 
	Figure

	NOTE 5 -INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
	As of September 30, 2021, the Town's interfund balances consisted of $234,099 owed to the General Fund from the Debt Service Fund for unused electric utility tax revenues to be transferred to the General Fund for normal operating purposes. 
	lnterfund transfers for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, consisted of the following: Transfer In 
	Capital Internal Projects Nonmajor Stormwater Service 
	General Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Total General Fund $ $ 329,004 $ 645,335 $ 70,000 $ 299,920 $ 1,344,259 Building Department Fund 44,816 44,816 Nonmajor Funds 100,000 1,316,021 1,416,021 Stormwater Fund 122,000 122,000 
	Transfer Out 

	$ 100,000 $ 1,767,025 $ 645,335 $ 70,000 $ 344,736 $ 2,927,096 
	Purposes of significant transfers made during the 2021 fiscal year are as follows: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The General Fund transferred $299,920 to the Internal Service Fund for police and administrative expenses. 

	• 
	• 
	The General Fund transferred $493,835 to the Special Revenue Fund for various road improvement expenses and expenses related to COVID-19. 

	• 
	• 
	The General Fund transferred $329,004 to the Capital Projects Fund to partially finance the following capital projects of the Town; 83Place drainage, Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan, Senior Center buildout, Beach Park P32 Curbing, playground lighting at the Royal Oaks Park, and security access control upgrade. 
	rd 


	• 
	• 
	The General Fund transferred $150,000 to the Infrastructure Replacement Fund for the renewal and replacement of infrastructure. 

	• 
	• 
	The General Fund transferred $70,000 to the Stormwater Fund for storm drain vacuum truck outsourcing. 

	• 
	• 
	The Building Fund transferred $44,816 to the Internal Service Fund to cover building operating expenses. 

	• 
	• 
	The Special Revenue Fund transferred $100,000 to the Capital Projects Fund to partially finance the rd 
	83



	Place drainage project; $200,000 of Developer Contributions were transferred for the Miami Lakes Optimist Park Master Plan project; and $50,000 for the Neat Streets Grant matching requirement for the West Lake Reforestation project. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 5 -INTERFUND TRANSFERS (continued) 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	The Special Revenue Fund transferred $100,000 to the General Fund for the contingency reserve and EAB services for six schools. 

	• 
	• 
	The Special Revenue Fund transferred $625,000 to the Capital Projects Fund to finance the 59Avenue Project and street lighting. 
	th 


	• 
	• 
	The Stormwater Fund transferred $122,000 to the Capital Project Fund to finance the West Lake Drainage project. 


	NOTE 6 -CAPITAL ASSETS 
	Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows: 
	Beginning Ending Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Balance 
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	NOTE 6 -CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
	Depreciation expense charged to functions/programs of the primary government are as follows: 
	Governmental activities: 
	Pursuant to Ordinance Number 2010-127, Resolution Number 2010-857 and Resolution Number 2010-858, on December 16, 2010, the Town issued $7.33 million of Town of Miami Lakes, Florida, Special Obligation Bonds, Federally Taxable Series 2010 (Government Center Project) (Build America Bonds -Direct Payment) (the "Series 2010 Bonds") to pay all the costs of purchasing, designing and construction of a new Government Center, pay capitalized interest, fund a debt service reserve and, together with other available f
	The Series 2010 Bonds are collateralized by the Electric Utility Tax Revenues and are due serially beginning December 1, 2019 through the year 2040 with semi-annual interest due on June 1 and December 1 each year. Revenue requirements include at least 1.25 times the maximum principal and interest on all outstanding bonds. 
	Events of default include a failure to make a payment of principal or interest due on the bond. In the event of default, the owners of not less than the majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding may, by written notice to the Town, declare the principal of all the outstanding Bonds to be due and payable immediately; and the owners of not less than 25% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding may, by suit or other proceedings, protect and enforce any and all rights 
	Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 Congress added certain provisions to the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code") which made it possible for state and local governments to potentially obtain lower net borrowing costs when issuing bonds that meet certain requirements of the Code and the related Treasury Regulations ("qualified bonds"). A Build America Bond is a "qualified bond" where the issuer has made an irrevocable election to have the special rules applicable to the qualified bonds. 
	A Build America Bond that constitutes a "qualified bond" entitles the issuer to receive direct subsidy payments from the United States Department of the Treasury, upon meeting certain other additional requirements, in the amount of 35% of the corresponding interest payable on the related bonds. The Series 2010 Bonds were issued as "qualified bonds". Bonds bear interest rates ranging from 7.05% to 7.627%. 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
	Arbitrage 
	Arbitrage 

	Arbitrage refers to the profit earned by investing tax-exempt bond funds in higher yielding investments. Under federal arbitrage regulations, an issuer of tax-exempt bonds is allowed to earn this profit for a certain period of time during the construction period of the related project. Once this time period has expired, the profit realized on any recurring bond proceeds is subject to rebate to the federal government. These federal arbitrage regulations apply to all of tax-exempt issues. As of September 30, 
	Quality Neighborhood Improvement Program Bonds 
	Quality Neighborhood Improvement Program Bonds 

	Prior to the Town's incorporation, Miami-Dade County issued $77,640,000 in Florida Public Service Tax Revenue Bonds (UMSA Public Improvements) Series 1999 (the Revenue Bonds). The County pledged the Unincorporated Municipal Service Area's (UMSA) utility tax revenues for debt service on the Revenue Bonds. Unlike other Miami-Dade municipalities that have incorporated subsequent to the issuance of the Revenue Bonds, there are no written agreements, contracts or other verified requirements for the Town's partic
	During fiscal year 2010, Town management worked with the County to achieve a settlement of this and other financial issues outstanding between the two governments. On January 28, 2010, the Town Council in a Special Call Meeting authorized the Town staff to move forward and enter into an agreement with MiamiDade County pursuant to which the Town would agree to pay all outstanding QNIP payments owed to the County under a structured settlement plan which the County had proposed. 
	The settlement terms called for a payment plan by the Town of $153,423 annually beginning in fiscal year 2010 through 2024. The County subsequently refinanced the QNIP bonds which resulted in an amendment to the interlocal agreement to reduce the Town's debt service share. Remaining annual debt service payments from 2022 through 2024 will approximate $142,000. During fiscal year 2021, the Town paid $140,019 of its QNIP share to Miami-Dade County. 
	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds 
	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds 

	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
	In October 2003, the County and the Town entered into an agreement to transfer to the Town the operations and the maintenance of the Town's Stormwater utility system located within the Town's boundaries. As part of the agreement, the billing and collection activities will remain under the administration of the County's Water and Sewer Department ("Department') for an administrative fee of $1.14 per utility bill processed by the Department. The agreement is effective for a period of 5 years and is renewable 
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	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds (continued) 
	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds (continued) 

	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (continued) 
	In addition, the agreement requires the Town to pay the County a yearly debt service payment through the year 2024 based on 2.4% of the Annual Debt Service Payment of the $41,580,000 Miami-Dade County Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1999. 
	Stormwater Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
	Pursuant to Ordinance Number 21-279, Resolution Number 21-1753, and Resolution Number 21-1765, on August 12, 2021, the Town issued $15,500,000 of Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Stormwater Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021. The Bonds were issued to finance the costs of improvements to the Town's Stormwater Utility System, expenses relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including, without limitation, the premium for a municipal bond insurance policy insuring the Series 2021 Bonds. The Bonds bear interes
	The bonds are secured by and payable from the net revenues of the Stormwater Utility System. 
	The payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2021 Bonds is being guaranteed by a municipal bond insurance policy issued by Build America Mutual Assurance Company ("BAM") and in connection therewith, the Town and BAM are entering into an Agreement Regarding Bond Insurance dated as of August 12, 2021. The Reserve Account Requirement for the Series 2021 Bonds is being satisfied through a debt service reserve insurance policy issued by BAM and in connection therewith the Town and BAM are entering 
	An event of default includes a failure to make a payment of principal or interest due on the bond. In the event of default, the owners of not less than 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2021 Bonds outstanding may, by suit or other proceedings, protect and enforce any and all rights of the bondholders under the laws of the State of Florida. 
	Arbitrage refers to the profit earned by investing tax-exempt bond funds in higher yielding investments. Under federal arbitrage regulations, an issuer of tax-exempt bonds is allowed to earn this profit for a certain period of time during the construction period of the related project. Once this time period has expired, the profit realized on any recurring bond proceeds is subject to rebate to the federal government. These federal arbitrage regulations apply to all of tax-exempt issues. As of September 30, 
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
	A summary of debt service requirements to maturity for the various bonds are as follows: 
	Special Obligation Bonds, Quality Neighborhood Stormwater Utility Revenue Stormwater Bond, 
	-Canal Project 
	Due to Miami-Dade 
	County 

	In October 2016 the Town entered into an interlocal agreement with the Miami-Dade County Stormwater Utility for cost sharing of stormwater drainage projects. The terms of the agreement call for a payment plan by the Town of $15,734 annually, including interest of $1,216, through 2026. 
	A summary of debt service requirements to maturity is as follows: 
	Due to Miami-Dade County 
	Se12tember 30, Princi12al Interest 2022 $ 14,518 $ 1,216 2023 14,518 1,216 2024 14,518 1,216 2025 14,518 1,216 
	39 
	The Town's compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. Currently, amounts 'Due within One Year' are estimated based on prior years' usage and known terminations resulting in payouts as of the date of the financial statement preparation. 
	Pledged Future Revenues 
	Pledged Future Revenues 

	The Town has pledged the Electric Utility Tax revenues as payment for the Special Obligation Bond issued December 16, 2010. Monthly receipts are deposited into the Utility Tax Revenue Fund to be used to make the monthly debt service payment on the bonds. At the end of the month, unused revenues are then transferred to the General Fund for normal operating purposes. Below is a summary of pledged revenues: 
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	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
	Line of Credit 
	Line of Credit 

	The Town entered in a non-revolving line of credit agreement to borrow up to $15,000,000 with BankUnited for the purpose of providing liquidity to the Town to enable the Town to better respond to an emergency event such as, but not limited to, hurricanes or other natural, biological, or man-made disasters that would require the payment of clean-up, collection and disposal of solid waste or other permitted costs, to assure public safety and provide cash flow relief to the Town's General Fund, including, with
	NOTE 8 -FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
	Employees of the Town who are employed in a full-time or part-time regularly established position participate in the statewide Florida Retirement System (FRS). The FRS offers members a choice between the Pension Plan (multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan) and the Investment Plan (defined contribution plan). All rates, benefits and amendments are established by the State of Florida through its legislative body. 
	The FRS has various classes of memberships. Town employees fall under four of the classes, which are as follows: 
	Special Risk Class -All certified law enforcement officers, certified firefighters/paramedics and certified firefighters/EMTs of the Town are covered by this class. 
	Senior Management Service Class -The Town Manager and certain senior management employees (department directors) are included in this class. 
	Regular Class -This class covers all Town employees who do not qualify for membership in the special risk or the senior management service classes. 
	Elected Officers' Class -Town Councilmembers are covered under this class. 
	P
	Artifact
	Plan 
	Description 

	Membership in the FRS is required for all full-time and part-time employees working in regularly established positions for state agencies, county governments, district school boards, state universities, and state community colleges; or cities, independent special districts, metropolitan planning districts, and public charter schools that make an irrevocable election to participate. Most Pension Plan members (including renewed members), and State Community College Optional Retirement Program participants may
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	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 8 -FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 
	Type of Benefit 
	Type of Benefit 

	The Florida Retirement System Pension Plan (FRS) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer qualified defined benefit plan with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) available for eligible employees. The FRS was established and is administered in accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Retirees receive a lifetime pension benefit with joint and survivor payment options. FRS membership is compulsory for employees filling regularly established positions in a state agency, county agency, state university
	Average Final Compensation 
	Average Final Compensation 

	For members initially enrolled in the FRS before July 1, 2011, average final compensation (AFC) is the average of the five highest fiscal years of salary earned during covered employment. For members initially enrolled in the FRS on or after July 1, 2011, AFC is the average of the eight highest fiscal years of salary earned during covered employment. 
	The following chart shows the percentage value for each year of service credit earned in relation to the general classes of membership that the Town participates in: 
	Chart included on the following page 
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	NOTE 8 -FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 
	% Value (per year of service) 
	The system provides for vesting of benefits, regardless of membership class, after six years of creditable service for members who are enrolled on or after July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2011 and eight years of creditable service for members who are enrolled on or after July 1, 2011. Vesting for the FRS Investment Plan occurs when an employee completes one year of service in the FRS Investment Plan. 
	Service Retirement 
	Service Retirement 

	Normal retirement age in the regular, senior management service and elected officers' classes is 62 for members enrolled before July 1, 2011 and 65 for members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011. In the special risk service class, normal retirement age is 55 for members enrolled before July 1, 2011 and 60 for members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011. If a member is vested but has not reached normal retirement age, early retirement can be taken. The amount of the retirement benefit will be reduced 5% for eac
	Benefits are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, average final compensation and service credit. The system also provides for death and disability benefits. 
	State law provides for all eligible FRS members to elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). The DROP allows an employee to retire and defer their monthly retirement benefit to an interest-bearing account, for up to a maximum of sixty months, and to continue employment with the Town. When the DROP period ends, the employee must terminate employment. 
	At that time, the employee will receive payment of the accumulated DROP benefits, and direct receipt, thereafter, of the FRS monthly retirement benefit. 
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	NOTE 8 -FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 
	Funding Policy 
	Funding Policy 

	Contributions to the FRS are made by the Town as a percentage of covered payrolls. Effective July 1, 2012, state law instituted a requirement that employees in all classes make a contribution to the FRS of 3.00% of their covered payroll, in addition to the employer's contribution. The required contribution rates in effect at year end for the Town were 10.82% for regular class employees, 29.01% for senior management service class employees, 25.89% for special risk class employees, and 51.42% for elected offi
	The contribution requirements of covered payroll and actual contributions made for fiscal year 2021 and the 
	historical and statistical information and an actuarial report. A copy can be obtained from the State of Florida, Division of Retirement at: 
	Department of Management Services Division of Retirement Research and Education Section P .0. Box 9000 Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000 850-488-5706 or toll free at 877-377-1737 
	https://www.dms.myflorida.com 
	https://www.dms.myflorida.com 


	Net Pension Liability 
	Net Pension Liability 

	The components of the collective net pension liability of the participating employers for each defined benefit plan for the measurement date of June 30, 2021, are shown below (in thousands): 
	Total pension liability (A) $ 209,639,046 $ 12,719,121 Plan fiduciary net position (B) (202,082,183) (452,618) Net pension liability (A -B) 
	FRS HIS 
	$ 7,556,863 $ 12,266,503

	Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability (B/A) 96.40% 3.56% 
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	NOTE 8 -FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 
	P
	Artifact
	Net 
	Pension Liability (continued) 

	The total pension liability for each plan was determined by the Plans' actuary and reported in the Plans' valuations dated July 1, 2021. The fiduciary net position used by the actuary to determine the net pension liability (as shown above) was determined on the same basis used by the Plan. Each Plans' fiduciary net position is reported in the financial statements and the net pension liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
	The general fund is the primary governmental fund that is typically used to liquidate prior year pension liabilities. 
	The Town reported a liability of $1,832,994 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The detail of proportion shares are as follows: 
	FRS Pension Plan 
	Employer Employer 
	Employer Contribution Proportionate Share Employer 
	Contribution for Proportion at for Pension Proportion at of Net Pension Proportionate Share 
	Pension Plan Prior Plan Funding Current Liability/Asset of Net Pension 
	Funding Measurement for Current Measurement at Prior Liability/Asset at 
	for Prior Period 
	for Prior Period 
	Date 
	Period 
	Date 
	Measurement Date Measurement Date 

	$ 62,974 0.010928255% $ 63,715 0.010839583% $ 1,334,322 $ 1,329,638 
	Basis of Allocation 
	Basis of Allocation 

	The employer's proportionate share reported in the pension allocation schedules was calculated using accrued retirement contributions for employers that were members of the FRS and HIS during fiscal years 2019/2020 and 2020/2021. Although GASB 68 encourages the use of the employers projected long-term contribution effort to the retirement plan, allocating on the basis of historical employer contributions is acceptable. The aggregate employer contribution amounts for each fiscal year agree to the employer co
	The proportion calculated based on contributions for each of the fiscal years presented in the pension allocation schedules was applied to the net pension liability and other pension amounts applicable to that fiscal year to determine each employer's proportionate share of the liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and associated pension expense. For the purposes of the pension allocation schedules, pension amounts are allocated to reporting employers. The pension amounts o
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	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

	Actuarial assumptions for both defined benefit plans are reviewed annually by the Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS Pension Plan has a valuation performed annually. The HIS Program has a valuation performed biennially that is updated for GASB reporting in the year a valuation is not performed. The most recent experience study for the FRS Pension Plan covered the period from July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013. Because the HIS Program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no ex
	The total pension liability for each of the defined benefit plans was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, using the individual entry age normal actuarial cost method. Inflation increases for both plans is assumed at 2.40%. Payroll growth for both plans is assumed at 3.25%. Both the discount rate and the longterm expected rate of return used for FRS Pension Plan investments is 6.80%. The plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit pay
	The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2021: 
	HIS: The total pension liability is calculated on a single equivalent discount rate as required by GASB Statement No. 67. The discount rate used was decreased from 2.21% to 2.16% reflecting the change during the fiscal year in the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-year Bond Municipal Bond Index. 
	In general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB 67 is equivalent to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go-basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the plan sponsor. The discount rates used at the two d
	FRS: The discount rate and long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.09% to 6.80%, and the active member mortality assumption was updated. The Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees if future experience follows assumptions and the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) is contributed in full each year. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to
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	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 
	Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 

	The benefits received by retirees and beneficiaries are increased by a COLA each July based on their June benefit amount (excluding the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy benefit). For retirees who have been retired for less than 12 months on July 1, the first COLA increase is prorated. The COLA applies to all continuing monthly retirement benefits paid under the FRS Pension Plan (i.e., normal and early service retirement benefits and benefits accruing in participant accounts under the DROP, disability retire
	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
	Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

	To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in October 2021 the FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference reviewed long-term assumptions developed by capital market assumptions teams from both Milliman and Aon Hewitt Investment Consulting, investment consultants to the Florida State Board of Administration. The table below shows Milliman's assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the long-term target as
	Compound Annual Annual Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard Asset Class Allocatione* Return Return Deviation 
	* As outlined in the Plan's investment policy 
	Sensitivity Analysis 
	Sensitivity Analysis 

	The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to the collective net pension liability of the participating employers if the discount rate was 1.00% higher or 1.00% lower than the current discount rate at June 30, 2021. 
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	Sensitivity Analysis (continued) 
	Sensitivity Analysis (continued) 

	FRS 
	1% Current 1% Decrease Discount Rate Increase 
	Total pension liability $ 1,586,252 $ 1,378,700 $ 1,208,657 Less: fiduciary net position (49,062) (49,062) (49,062) Net pension liability 
	1.16% 2.16% 3.16% 

	P
	Artifact
	Pension 
	Expense and Deferred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resources 

	In accordance with GASB 68, paragraphs 54 and 71, changes in the net pension liability are recognized as pension expense in the current measurement period, except as indicated below. For each of the following, a portion is recognized in pension expense in the current measurement period, and the balance is amortized as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources using a systematic and rational method over a closed period, as defined below: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and demographic factors -amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan (active and inactive employees). 

	• 
	• 
	Changes of assumptions or other inputs -amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan (active and inactive employees). 

	• 
	• 
	Changes in proportion and differences between contributions and proportionate share of contributions amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan (active and inactive employees). 

	• 
	• 
	Differences between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments -amortized over five years contributions to the pension plans from employers are not included in collective pension expense. 


	For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense of $6,668 and $108,619 for FRS and HIS, respectively. Additionally, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
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	FRS Pension 
	Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resources (continued) 

	The Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $74,791 and $16,566 for FRS and HIS, respectively, are reported as deferred outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
	Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension expense will be recognized as follows: 
	Reporting Period 
	Ending Se1:1tember 30, 2022 $ (226,160) $ 43,499 2023 (272,253) 16,159 2024 (376,315) 21,365 2025 (469,176) 10,212 2026 34,984 1,728 
	FRS Ex1:1ense HIS Ex1:1ense 

	Thereafter Total 
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	The required contribution rates in effect at year-end were: 
	Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/(lnflows) of Resources (continued) 

	The Town offers to retiring employees a one-time opportunity to participate in the Town's employee group health and life insurance program pursuant to Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes. This required participation for retirees and their eligible dependents in the health and life insurance program and other coverage listed in the statute of the Town is at a premium cost to the retiree that is no more than the premium cost applicable to active employees. A retiring member who rejects this initial opportunity
	The Town's Retiree Health Care Plan (Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit postemployment health care plan that covers eligible retired employees of the Town. The Plan, which is administered by the Town, allows employees who retire and meet retirement eligibility requirements under the Florida Retirement System to continue medical insurance coverage as a participant in the Town's Plan. The Town does not issue separate financial statements for its post-employment health and life insurance program. 
	Funding Policy 
	Funding Policy 

	The Town currently pays for post-employment healthcare and life insurance benefits program on a pay-as-you go basis. As of September 30, 2021, the Town has not established a trust fund to irrevocably segregate assets to fund the liability associated with the post-employment benefits, which would require the reporting of a trust fund in accordance with GASB requirements. The contribution requirements are provided for in the collective bargaining agreements negotiated with various unions representing the empl
	Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
	Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

	The benefits provided are the same as those provided for active employees. Spouses and dependents of eligible retirees are also eligible for medical coverage. All employees of the Town are eligible to receive postemployment health care benefits. All retiree and dependent coverage are at the expense of the retiree. 
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	NOTE 9 -OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 
	As of the October 1, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of 
	The Town's total OPEB liability of $126,566 was measured as of September 30, 2021 and was determined based on an actuarial valuation performed as of October 1, 2019. 
	The general fund is the primary governmental fund that is typically used to liquidate prior year OPEB liabilities. 
	Actuarial Assumptions 
	Actuarial Assumptions 

	The Total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions. 
	Inflation 2.50% Salary Increases 2.50% Discount Rate 2.43% Initial Trend Rate 7.50% Ultimate Trend Rate 4.00% Years to Ultimate 55 
	For all lives, mortality rates were PubG-2010 Healthy Mortality Tables projected to the valuation date using Projection Scale MP-2019. 
	Discount Rate 
	Discount Rate 

	Given the Town's decision not to fund the program, all future benefit payments were discounted using a highquality municipal bond rate of 2.43%. The high-quality municipal bond rate was based on the measurement date of the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index (the "Index") as published by S&P Dow Jones Indices. The Index consists of bonds in the S&P Municipal Bond Index with a maturity of 20 years. Eligible bonds must be rated at least AA by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Aa2 by Moody's or
	OPEB Expense 
	OPEB Expense 

	Under GASB 75 as it applies to plans that qualify for the Alternative Measurement Method, changes in the Total OPEB Liability are not permitted to be included in deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB. These changes will be immediately recognized through OPEB Expense. For the year ended September 30, 2021, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $4,732. 
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	Changes in Total OPEB Liability 
	Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

	Increased and (Decreases) in Total OPEB 
	Liability Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2020 $ 123,890 Changes for the Year: Service Cost 8,315 Interest 2,822 Changes of Assumptions (7,805) Benefit Payments (656) 
	Net Changes 2,676 Reporting Period Ending September 30, 2021 $ 126,566 
	Changes of assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.14% for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020 to 2.43% for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021. 
	Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
	Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

	The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentagepoint higher than the current discount rate: 
	Current 
	Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
	Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

	The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
	Current Healthcare Cost 1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase 3.00% -6.50% 4.00% -7 .50% 5.00% -8.50% Total OPEB Liability $ 98,984 
	$ 126,566 $ 162,350 
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	NOTE 10 -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
	Agreement with Miami-Dade County for Local Police Patrol Services 
	Agreement with Miami-Dade County for Local Police Patrol Services 

	Effective November 14, 2004, the Town executed an agreement with Miami-Dade County for local police patrol services provided by the County. Consideration for the services is based utilizing the actual costs of officers and equipment. Services are due on a quarterly basis in accordance with the Town's annual budget. The last payment of the fiscal year is adjusted to actual costs for the year. Additional payments are required for optional law enforcement services. On February 19, 2020, the Town approved a new
	Litigation 
	Litigation 

	The Town is involved in several lawsuits incidental to its operations, the outcome of which, in the opinion of management and legal counsel, should not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Town. 
	The Town could be liable for some of the former Mayor's attorney fees and costs in defending his federal criminal charges for a demanded amount of approximately $2,510,000. The Town's legal counsel and management feels that the outcome of this case is difficult to assess due to various factors including that there are other entities involved that may share the risk of an unfavorable outcome and that some of the criminal charges brought against the former Mayor were incurred out of the scope of his duty as M
	The Town is involved in a lawsuit which is being defended by its insurer whereby the Florida Department of Management Services and Division of Retirement claims the Town is jointly and severally liable for repayment of retirement benefits to an individual in the amount of approximately $445,000. In December 2021, an Administrative Law Judge issued a Recommended Order requiring the Town to pay back the benefits. The Town filed exceptions to the ruling. The outcome of the exceptions, subject to court review, 
	Grants 
	Grants 

	The Town has ongoing major initiatives partially funded by grants that are subject to compliance requirements. Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. In the opinion of management, the Town has complied with grant requirements and future disallowances of grant expenditures, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the To
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	NOTE 11 -RISK MANAGEMENT 
	The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town also provides employee medical benefits through commercial insurance coverage. There were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. Settled claims did not exceed coverage for the past three years. 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GENERAL FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Variance with Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 
	Original Final 
	Revenues: Ad valorem taxes $ 8,040,628 $ 8,040,628 Utility taxes 2,994,009 2,994,009 Franchise fees 1,208,000 1,208,000 Communication service tax 982,855 982,855 Other taxes 140,000 140,000 Licenses and permits 228,901 228,901 Intergovernmental 3,139,181 4,015,493 Fines and forfeitures 195,000 195,000 Service charges 140,288 140,288 Investment income 40,000 40,000 Other 51,000 51,000 
	Total revenues 
	Expenditures: 
	General government: Town council 587,014 631,835 Town administration and finance 3,036,509 3,631,674 Legal 215,000 370,000 
	Total general government 3,838,523 4,633,509 
	Public safety: Police 8,599,351 8,862,149 Zoning 60,957 60,957 
	Parks and recreation 2,957,745 3,138,638 Public works 1,168,394 1,276,613 Total expenditures 
	Excess {deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures 534,892 64,308 
	Other financing {uses): Transfers in 100,000 Transfers out {1,384,106) 
	{733,592) 

	Total other financing sources {uses) {733,592) (1,284,106) 
	Excess {deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures and other financing (uses) {198,700) (1,219,798) 
	Fund balance appropriated 198,700 1,219,798 
	Net change in fund balance 
	Fund balance, beginning 
	Fund balance, ending See notes to budgetary comparison schedules 
	Positive Actual 
	{Negative) 

	$ 7,940,228 $ {100,400) 3,182,273 188,264 1,208,542 542 941,205 {41,650) 141,430 1,430 250,124 21,223 4,499,271 483,778 103,064 {91,936) 120,194 {20,094) 29,802 {10,198) 108,127 57,127 
	598,533 33,302 3,221,881 409,793 364,104 5,896 4,184,518 448,991 
	8,538,685 323,464 
	54,576 6,381 2,846,221 292,417 1,076,347 200,266 
	1,823,913 1,759,605 
	100,000 {1,344,259) (1,244,259) 39,847 
	579,654 1,799,452 
	(1,219,798) 
	579,654 579,654 
	4,318,610 4,318,610 
	$ 4,898,264 $ 4,898,264 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	See notes to budgetary comparison schedules 
	NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTE 1-BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
	Annual budgets are adopted for all governmental funds, except the Infrastructure Replacement Fund, on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The following procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
	a. 
	a. 
	a. 
	Prior to July 30 of each year, the Town Manager submits to the Town Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing such expenditures. 

	b. 
	b. 
	Public hearings are held to obtain tax payers comments. 

	c. 
	c. 
	Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

	d. 
	d. 
	The level of control at which expenditures may not exceed budget is at the departmental level. The Town Council approves these levels by passing an ordinance. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any appropriation center within a fund must be approved by the Town Council. 
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	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 
	Note: Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN LAST 8 FISCAL YEARS* 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
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	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN LAST 8 FISCAL YEARS* 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
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	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN LAST 8 FISCAL YEARS* 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
	SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S CONTRIBUTIONS 
	HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN 
	LAST 8 FISCAL YEARS* 
	2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
	Special Revenue Fund 
	Special Revenue Fund -Th is fund is used to account for and report the rece pts of lo cal option fuel 
	i tax and county-shared fuel tax that are legally restricted for expenditures related to development, 
	construction equipping, maintenance, operations or expans on of public transportation system,
	i roads and brids. 
	ge

	Neighborhood Service Districts Fund -Th is fund is used to account for the co st to provide public imp ro vem ents and specia services through a non-ad va orem assessment. Non-ad val orem 
	l l 
	assessments represent a co st share assigned to a group of properties to pay all or part of the co st associated with a specific pub Iic service or improvement, such as securty guard services, Ii ght in g 
	i lake, and Ian dscape m a nt enance, prim ar Iy b enefitt ing those properties. 
	i i 
	Impact Fees Fund -This fund accounts for both parks and public safety impact fees used to fund the co st of add t io nal cap t a resources required to m a nt a n and accommodate p raj ect ed pop ul ati on 
	i il i i growth duet o new d eve Iopm ent. 
	Debt Service Fund 
	Debt Service Fund -This fund accounts for the payment of the current year' s principal and interest req ui rem ent s on the Specia ObIigat ion Bond issued for the Government Center t is funded by the 
	l ; i E ectric Utility Tax revenues. 
	Capital Projects Fund 
	Infrastructure Replacement Fund -This fund is used for purposes of accumulating resources to fund long-term cap ital expend tures.
	i 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
	Accounts receivables, net 461,260 
	Accounts receivables, net 461,260 
	13,177 
	279,935 754,919 

	Restricted assets: Cash and cash equivalents 372,704 372,704 Investments 548,568 548,568 
	Total assets $ 1,278,298 $ 487,117 $ 1,177,451 $ 1,203,207 $ 281,327 $ 4,427,400 
	$ $ 36,700 $ 320,163 234,099 234,099 234,099 36,700 554,262 
	969,108 969,108 
	33,205 141,829 140,349 345,364 
	1,100 39,821 
	94,794 5,648 1,077,009 
	Artifact

	83,674 58,111 80,392 89,719 11,387 16,276 240,840 199,885 
	244,627 244,627 
	Impact fees: Public safety Parks improvement Parks open space 
	Neighborhood Service Districts: Miami Lakes Section 1 Loch Lomond Royal Oaks Section 1 Royal Oaks East Lake Patricia Lake Hilda 
	Greenway 77th Court 240,840 Large Park LOS 199,885 Committed for: Infrastructure projects 
	83,674 58,111 80,392 89,719 11,387 16,276 
	94,794 5,648 1,077,009 
	Total fund balances 1,142,393 339,559 1,177,451 969,108 244,627 3,873,138 Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,278,298 $ 487,117 $ 1,177,451 $ 1,203,207 $ 281,327 $ 4,427,400 
	COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Non major Governmental Funds 
	-'Ł
	r 
	'"' 
	¥
	Ł 

	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET TO ACTUAL 
	-

	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL -SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	-

	Revenues: 
	Gas tax 6 cents 
	CITT transit sales tax 20% 
	CITT transportation sales tax 80% 
	Tree program, Greenway and Large Parks LOS 
	Mobility 
	Investment income 
	Intergovernmental 
	Other 
	Total revenues 
	Expenditures: 
	Current: 
	Tree program 
	Transportation 
	Transit 
	Contingency 
	Total expenditures 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	Other financing sources (uses) 
	Transfers in 
	Transfers out 
	Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	Net change in fund balance 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Budgeted Amounts 
	Actual 
	$ 371,859 286,191 1,144,762 67,281 415,954 4,054 59,291 14,800 
	958,484 372,854 
	1,032,854 
	493,835 (702,165} 
	(1,196,000) 

	330,689 
	330,689 
	811,704 
	Variance with Final Budget 
	Positive 
	(Negative) 

	$ 29,965 25,052 127,696 57,281 148,954 (946) (70,284) (2,700) 
	28,945 119,900 81,138 597,395 
	1,142,396 
	1,142,396 (811,707) 
	330,689 811,704 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL -NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICE DISTRICTS FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	-

	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL -IMPACT FEES FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	-

	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE -DISAGGREGATED INFORMATION ENTERPRISE FUND -STORMWATER FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Bond Series American Operations 2021 Rescue Plan Total 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	STATISTICAL SECTION 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	STATISTICAL SECTION 
	This part of the Town of Miami Lake's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health. 
	Contents 
	Contents 

	Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year. 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	FINANCIAL TRENDS NET POSITION BY COMPONENT LAST TEN YEARS 
	71 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	FINANCIAL TRENDS CHANGES IN NET POSITION LAST TEN YEARS 
	72 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	FINANCIAL TRENDS CHANGES IN NET PDSITION (CONTINUED) LAST TEN YEARS 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	Net (Expense) Revenue 
	Governmental activities 
	(14,744,356) $ (13,801,027) $ (15,518,755) $ (17,114,070) $ (14,819,635) 
	(14,744,356) $ (13,801,027) $ (15,518,755) $ (17,114,070) $ (14,819,635) 
	(15,606,996) 
	(17,878,191) $ (16,246,172) 
	$ (17,141,646) $ 
	(16,261,644) 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	Business-type activities 85,966 92,791 67,268 (91,781) 135,602 1,148,800 961,556 (213,773) 
	Business-type activities 85,966 92,791 67,268 (91,781) 135,602 1,148,800 961,556 (213,773) 
	(50,661) 

	Total primary government net expense (14,658.390) (13.708.236) (15,451.487) (17.205.851) (14,684.033) (14,458.196) (16.916.635) (16,459.945) (17,175.554) (16.312.305) 
	General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position 
	Governmental activities: 
	Taxes: Property taxes 5,441,776 5,432,333 5,525,235 5,784,851 5,967,817 6,267,177 6,753,219 7,148,392 7,417,552 7,940,228 Utility service taxes 2,845,651 3,016,183 3,254,550 3,230,117 3,297,894 3,407,508 3,432,608 3,572,032 3,655,546 3,731,365 Communication services tax 1,348,756 1,366,853 1,937,765 1,377,736 1,245,617 1,166,035 1,209,860 1,130,732 1,027,768 941,205 Franchise taxes 1,673,746 1,550,625 1,147,889 1,160,066 1,179,362 925,699 1,272,507 1,130,788 455,233 1,208,542 Other taxes 713,520 702,897 716
	Intergovernmental not restricted to specific programs 4,167,906 4,565,197 4,596,066 4,202,536 4,307,731 4,323,130 4,493,335 4,546,832 4,070,625 4,836,866 Investment and miscellaneous income 80,198 103,153 99,441 83,792 77,678 136,894 219,534 246,949 206,898 62,108 Gain (loss) on disposal (17,084) Special items/Other income 797,614 264,769 272,221 766,227 348,459 435,402 342,946 311,259 Transfers (70,776) (1,629,485) (804,131) (251,946) (1,267,755) 468,967 150,629 (880,050) (956,057) (1,495,337) 
	Total governmental activities 15.487.257 14.404.859 16.554.429 16.565.441 15.766.378 18.178.564 18.604.580 1s,011,209 16.813.048 18.190.137 
	Business-type activities: 
	General Revenues Investment income 1,311 397 2,618 32,138 39,094 47,104 8,276 6,116 2,537 6,112 Investment and miscellaneous income 1,629,485 1,260 
	Transfers 70,776 804,131 251,946 1,267,755 (468,967) (150,629) 880,050 956,057 1,495,337 
	Total business-type activities 
	Total business-type activities 
	1,629,882 806,749 284,084 1,306,849 (421,863) (141,093) 886,166 958,594 1,501,449 

	Total primary government 
	15.559.344 16.034.741 17.361.178 16.849.525 17.073.227 17.756.701 18.463.487 18.897.375 17.771.642 19.691.586 

	Change in Net Position 
	Governmental activities 742,901 603,832 1,035,674 (548,629) 946,743 2,571,568 726,389 1,765,037 (328,598) 1,928,493 Business-type activities 158 053 1 722 673 874 017 192 303 1 442 451 726 937 820 463 672 393 924 686 1 450 788 
	Total primary government $ 900,954 $ 2,326,505 $ 1,909,691 $ (356,326) $ 2,389,194 $ 3,298,505 $ 1,546,852 $ 2,437,430 $ 596,088 $ 3,379,281 
	73 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	FINANCIAL TRENDS FUND BALANCES DF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS LAST TEN YEARS 
	All Other Governmental Funds 
	Non Spendable $ $ 33,452 $ 25,862 $ 24,781 $ $ 430 $ $ 25,648 $ 17,889 $ 29,560 
	Restricted, reported in: 
	Special Revenue Fund 1,011,206 3,630,535 727,446 914,553 1,571,737 1,481,522 945,176 1,229,669 811,704 1,142,393 Capital Projects Fund 2,535,947 2,942,843 3,553,535 1,831,041 2,267,781 1,374,174 2,377,133 1,842,430 2,763,198 Town Government Center 2,131,416 1,296,471 26,147 Roadway Improvement 8,700 8,700 Debt Service Fund 876,634 909,899 1,071,863 906,493 875,282 888,486 900,912 1,263,108 963,686 969,108 Impact Fee Fund (Public Safety & Parks) 38,280 351,233 1,174,598 1,537,120 1,353,178 1,177,451 Building
	Commited, reported in: 
	Infrastructure Replacement Fund 150,000 151,471 244,627 
	Assigned, reported in: 
	Special Revenue Fund Capital Projects Fund 5,392,655 3,974,673 3,566,111 1,961,499 786,094 836,648 Unassigned 2 273 1 843 Total all other governmental funds $ 11,947,8S8 $ 9,853,730 $ 8,342,825 $ 7,360,861 $ S,102,434 $ 7,650,706 $ 6,921,727 $ 9,562,098 $ 7,573,525 $ 8,846,970 
	74 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	FINANCIAL TRENDS CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES DF GDVERNMENTAL FUNDS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REVENUE CAPACITY GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 
	LAST TEN YEARS (IN THOUSANDS) 
	Communication Fiscal Proeerty Tax Utility Service Tax Service Tax Franchise fees Total 
	year 

	76 
	REVENUE CAPACITY ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
	77 
	REVENUE CAPACITY PROPERTY TAX RATES -DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 
	78 
	REVENUE CAPACITY PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
	(IN THOUSANDS) 
	2021 2012 
	Taxpayer 
	Taxpayer 

	THE GRAHAM COMPANIES SENGRA CORPORATION FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY ROYAL OAKS PLAZA INC MIAMI LAKES COUNTRY CLUB INC CORDIS CORPORATION CATERPILLAR TRACTOR CO COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP MIAMI LAKE CENTER LLC ICON EX MIAMI LAKES POOL 5 SCHERING CORP CAP EAST ASSOCIATES 
	Total 
	Total Taxable Assessed Value (in thousands) 
	Source: Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser 
	Taxable Assessed Value 
	$ 448,748 
	105,799 31,217 23,700 21,900 21,200 19,100 16,000 14,300 13,200 
	715,164 $ 3,583,765 
	Figure

	Rank 
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
	Percentage of Total Town Taxable Assessed Value 
	12.52% 2.95% 0.87% 0.66% 0.61% 0.59% 0.53% 0.45% 0.40% 0.37% 
	Taxable Assessed Value 
	$ 282,777 98,254 22,449 17,036 17,304 19,215 12,819 13,568 
	22,828 19 059 
	19.96% 525,309 

	$ 2,672,400 
	79 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	REVENUE CAPACITY PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARAS (IN THOUSANDS) 
	80 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	DEBT CAPACITY OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	Government Activities Business-T1ee Activies Debt Coveraae 
	81 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	DEBT CAPACITY DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the County's taxable property value that is within the Town's boundaries and dividing it by the County's total taxable property value. 

	(2) 
	(2) 
	Based on Miami-Dade County percentage of County's taxable property. 

	(3) 
	(3) 
	Miami-Dade County, Finance Department (General Obligation Bonds) 
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	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS 
	83 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS CURRENT AND TEN YEARS AGO 
	2021 2012 
	84 
	OPERATING INFORMATION FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT TOWN EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
	Total 
	Source 
	55 72 
	55 72 
	48 40 48 

	so 
	52 
	so 
	: Town of Miami Lakes, Florida Adopted Budget (various years). 
	85 
	OPERATING INFORMATION OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM 
	LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	Fiscal Year 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	General Government Building permits issued 699 749 948 799 909 4,622 3,598 4,108 3,269 2,974 Business Tax Receipts 1,250 973 1,394 1,541 1,483 1,422 1,328 1,372 1,156 1,318 
	Police 
	Police 

	Physical arrests 332 357 273 166 148 177 121 140 63 70 
	Culture and Recreation 
	Summer camp participants -per week 150 20 100 100 135 135 225 201 30 59 
	Community programs -per year 
	93 91 83 47 51 
	93 91 83 47 51 
	66 67 53 55 
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	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	OPERATING INFORMATION CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	Fiscal Year 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	Police (4) 
	Police (4) 

	Police Personnel 
	46 
	46 47 
	51 
	87 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION INSURANCE IN FORCE 
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	MIAMIJ lLAKES 
	COMPLIANCE SECTION 
	GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
	To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 
	We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida {the "Town"}, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the re
	Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
	In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal control over financial reporting {internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 
	A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timel
	Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
	Compliance and Other Matters 
	As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
	GARCIA, ESPINOSA, MIYARES, RODRIGUEZ, TRUEBA & CO., LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS &ADVISORS 
	2600 Douglas Road, Suite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I 
	www.gemrtcpa.com 
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	Artifact
	Artifact
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	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Assistant to the Mayor 
	Assistant to the Mayor 
	Assistant to the Mayor 
	Mayor& Town Council 

	TR
	Town Attorney 
	Town Manager 
	Town Clerk 


	Finance Department Transportation Offlca 
	Finance Department Transportation Offlca 
	Finance Department Transportation Offlca 
	-----+----t Procurement Office Budget Office 
	Code Enforcement 
	Police Department Bulldlng Dapartment 
	Public Works Department 
	Capital Improvements General Services 

	Grants Office 
	Grants Office 
	Humarn Resources Office 
	Zoning 
	Parks & Recreation1-----11 Department 

	Planning Offlca 
	Planning Offlca 
	Department of Communications & Community Affairs 
	Special Projects Manager 

	TR
	Special Events & Committees 
	Office of Strategic Plan & Innovation 

	TR
	Communications & 


	Artifact
	Figure
	Figure
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Current assets 
	Current assets 
	Current assets 
	$17,492,522 
	$ 16,080,715 
	$ 27,300,768 
	$399,607 
	$44,793,290 
	$16,480,322 

	Capital assets, net 
	Capital assets, net 
	35,744,680 
	36,192,871 
	13,967,580 
	12,796,511 
	49,712,260 
	48,989,382 

	Total assets 
	Total assets 
	53,237,202 
	52,273,586 
	41,268,348 
	13,196,118 
	94,505,550 
	65,469,704 


	Table
	TR
	Governmental Activities FY 2021 FY 2020 
	Business-Type Activities FY 2021 FY 2020 
	Total Primary Government FY 2021 FY 2020 

	Program Revenues: Charges for services Operating grants and contri butions Capital grants and contributions 
	Program Revenues: Charges for services Operating grants and contri butions Capital grants and contributions 
	$ 4,325,270 1,091,809 1,743,136 
	$ 3,743,860 242,459 2,395,955 
	$ 1,692,827 
	$ 1,060,011 
	$ 6,018,097 1,091,809 1,743,136 
	$ 4,803,871 242,459 2,395,955 

	General Revenues: Property taxes Utility taxes Franchise taxes Intergovernmental Investments income and miscellaneouTotal revenues 
	General Revenues: Property taxes Utility taxes Franchise taxes Intergovernmental Investments income and miscellaneouTotal revenues 
	7,940,228 4,672,570 1,208,542 5,490,767 s 373,367 26,845,689 
	7,417,552 4,683,314 455,233 4,663,162 549,844 24,151,379 
	6,112 1,698,939 
	2,537 1,062,548 
	7,940,228 4,672,570 1,208,542 5,490,767 379,479 28,544,628 
	7,417,552 4,683,314 455,233 4,663,162 552,381 25,213,927 

	Expenses: General government PubIic safety Parks and recreation Transportation Stormwater Interest expense Total expenses 
	Expenses: General government PubIic safety Parks and recreation Transportation Stormwater Interest expense Total expenses 
	5,959,090 10,515,505 3,467,742 2,968,332 511,190 23,421,859 
	6,024,434 10,622,577 3,554,095 2,795,296 527,518 23,523,920 
	1,743,488 1,743,488 
	1,093,919 1,093,919 
	5,959,090 10,515,505 3,467,742 2,968,332 1,743,488 511,190 25,165,347 
	6,024,434 10,622,577 3,554,095 2,795,296 1,093,919 527,518 24,617,839 

	Excess (deficiency) before transfers 
	Excess (deficiency) before transfers 
	3,423,830 
	627,459 
	(44,549) 
	(31,371) 
	3,379,281 
	596,088 

	Transfers and contri butions 
	Transfers and contri butions 
	(1,495,337) 
	(956,057) 
	1,495,337 
	956,057 

	Changes in net position 
	Changes in net position 
	$ 1,928,493 
	$ 
	(328,598) 
	$ 1,450,788 
	$ 924,686 
	$ 3,379,281 
	$ 596,088 

	Net position -beginning 
	Net position -beginning 
	36,876,779 
	37,205,377 
	12,581,551 
	11,656,865 
	49,458,330 
	48,862,242 

	Net position -ending 
	Net position -ending 
	$ 38,805,272 
	$ 36,876,779 
	$14,032,339 
	$ 12,581,551 
	$ 52,837,611 
	$ 49,458,330 


	Artifact
	13,381,590 27,161,839 40,543,429 
	2,049,564 111,059 2,160,623 
	6,056,872 2,310,968 8,367,840 6,056,872 1,650,198 3,961,166 1,650,198 10,018,038 
	999,224 999,224 36,889 1,036,113 36,889 1,036,113 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 
	TOWN OF MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 

	STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
	STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

	FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

	Net (Expense) Revenue and 
	Net (Expense) Revenue and 

	Program Revenues 
	Program Revenues 
	Changes in Net Position 


	Operating 
	Operating 
	Operating 
	Capital 

	Charges for 
	Charges for 
	Grants and 
	Grants and 
	Govern men ta I 
	Business-Type 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 
	Services 
	Contributions 
	Contributions 
	Activities 
	Activities 
	Total 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	$ 5,959,090 
	$ 5,959,090 
	$ 5,959,090 
	$ 1,388,183 
	$ 1,087,866 
	$ 1,743,136 

	10,515,505 
	10,515,505 
	2,334,977 
	3,943 

	3,467,742 
	3,467,742 
	76,482 

	2,968,332 
	2,968,332 
	525,628 

	511,190 
	511,190 

	23,421,859 
	23,421,859 
	4,325,270 
	1,091,809 
	1,743,136 


	(1,495,337) 18,190,137 1,495,337 1,501,449 19,691,586 
	$ 38,805,272 $ 14,032,339 $ 52,837,611 
	Nonmajor 
	Nonmajor 
	Nonmajor 
	Total 

	Building 
	Building 
	Capital 
	Governmental 
	Governmental 

	General 
	General 
	Department 
	Projects 
	Funds 
	Funds 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	$ 7,734,679 
	$ 7,734,679 
	$ 7,734,679 
	$ 2,242,062 
	$ 3,301,625 

	$ 2,725,392 111,023 2,836,415 
	$ 2,725,392 111,023 2,836,415 
	$ 57,575 57,575 
	$ 512,280 512,280 

	99,263 
	99,263 
	29,560 
	TD
	Artifact


	TR
	1,287,036 867,891 
	1,427,215 1,335,983 

	TR
	26,147 

	4,799,001 4,898,264 $ 7,734,679 
	4,799,001 4,898,264 $ 7,734,679 
	2,184,487 $ 2,242,062 
	2,789,345 $ 3,301,625 


	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	2,751,209 754,919 
	$ 13,140,683 1,023,506 2,257,383 234,099 128,823 

	$ 
	$ 
	372,704 548,568 4,427,400 
	372,704 548,568 $ 17,705,766 

	$ 
	$ 
	320,163 234,099 554,262 
	$ 3,615,410 111,023 234,099 3,960,532 

	TR
	TD
	Artifact

	128,823 

	TR
	969,108 33,205 141,829 140,349 346,464 39,821 
	969,108 33,205 141,829 140,349 1,427,215 346,464 1,287,036 867,891 1,335,983 39,821 

	TR
	94,794 5,648 1,077,009 339,559 240,840 199,885 
	94,794 5,648 1,077,009 26,147 339,559 240,840 199,885 

	$ 
	$ 
	244,627 3,873,138 4,427,400 
	244,627 4,799,001 13,745,234 $ 17,705,766 


	in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
	in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
	in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

	Governmental bonds payable Compensated absences 
	Governmental bonds payable Compensated absences 
	(7,147,854) (383,520) 

	Debt interest payable that will not be liquidated with current financial resources is not reported in the governmental funds 
	Debt interest payable that will not be liquidated with current financial resources is not reported in the governmental funds 

	OPEB obligations attributable to retiree benefits financed from governmental fund types 
	OPEB obligations attributable to retiree benefits financed from governmental fund types 

	Net pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 
	Net pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 
	(1,801,435) 

	Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not recognized in the governmental funds; however, they are reported in the statement of net position under full accrual accounting 
	Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not recognized in the governmental funds; however, they are reported in the statement of net position under full accrual accounting 
	999,224 

	Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not recognized in the governmental funds; however, they are reported in the statement of net position under full accrual accounting 
	Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not recognized in the governmental funds; however, they are reported in the statement of net position under full accrual accounting 
	(2,049,564) 

	Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of facilities maintenance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 
	Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of facilities maintenance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

	Net position of governmental 
	Net position of governmental 
	activities (Page 12) 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Nonmajor 
	Nonmajor 
	Nonmajor 
	Total 

	Building 
	Building 
	Capital 
	Governmental 
	Governmental 

	General 
	General 
	Department 
	Projects 
	Funds 
	Funds 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	$ 4,898,264 $ 2,184,487 $ 2,789,345 $ 3,873,138 $ 13,745,234 
	Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (on page 13) are different because: 
	Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (on page 13) are different because: 
	Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (on page 13) are different because: 

	Net change in fund balances total governmental funds (Page 16) 
	Net change in fund balances total governmental funds (Page 16) 
	-

	$ 
	1,853,099 

	Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
	Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 

	Expenditures for capital outlays meeting the capitalization threshold Less current year depreciation 
	Expenditures for capital outlays meeting the capitalization threshold Less current year depreciation 
	2,717,412 (1,617,660) 
	1,099,752 

	The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase (decrease) net position. 
	The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase (decrease) net position. 

	Miscellaneous transaction Contribution of capital assets to business-type activities 
	Miscellaneous transaction Contribution of capital assets to business-type activities 
	11,623 (1,547,337) 
	(1,535,714) 

	The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. 
	The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. 

	Principal payments Amortization of discount on bonds issued 
	Principal payments Amortization of discount on bonds issued 
	340,019 (1,380) 
	338,639 

	Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
	Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

	Changes in accrued interest payable Change in compensated absences Change in OPEB liability Changes in net pension liability and other deferral amounts 
	Changes in accrued interest payable Change in compensated absences Change in OPEB liability Changes in net pension liability and other deferral amounts 
	4,989 (15,332) (2,676) 197,359 
	184,340 

	The net change of internal service fund is reported with governmental activities on the statement of activities. 
	The net change of internal service fund is reported with governmental activities on the statement of activities. 
	(11,623) 

	Change in net position of governmental activities (Page 13) 
	Change in net position of governmental activities (Page 13) 
	$ 
	1,928,493 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	36,889 
	8,380,306 
	18,781,533 27,161,839 
	111,059 
	$ 14,032,339 
	13,967,580 41,268,348 6,561 27,416 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	27,416 
	27,416 
	Artifact
	$ (6,561) 
	Business-Type Activity Enterprise Fund Stormwater 
	Business-Type Activity Enterprise Fund Stormwater 
	Business-Type Activity Enterprise Fund Stormwater 
	Internal Service Fund 

	Operating revenues: Charges for services Total operating revenues 
	Operating revenues: Charges for services Total operating revenues 
	TD
	Artifact


	Operating expenses: Administrative expenses Contractual services Repairs and maintenance Depreciation Total operating expenses 
	Operating expenses: Administrative expenses Contractual services Repairs and maintenance Depreciation Total operating expenses 
	360,700 97,022 370,207 406,323 
	274,285 69,845 606 

	Operating income (loss) 
	Operating income (loss) 
	458,575 
	(344,736) 

	Nonoperating revenues (expenses): Bond issuance costs Investment earnings Interest expense Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Nonoperating revenues (expenses): Bond issuance costs Investment earnings Interest expense Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Artifact


	Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
	Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
	(44,549) 
	(344,736) 

	Contributions and transfers: Capital contributions Loss on transfer of capital asset to general government Transfers in Transfers out Net contributions and transfers 
	Contributions and transfers: Capital contributions Loss on transfer of capital asset to general government Transfers in Transfers out Net contributions and transfers 
	1,547,337 70,000 
	(11,623) 344,736 

	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 
	1,450,788 
	(11,623) 

	Net position, beginning 
	Net position, beginning 
	12,581,551 

	Net position, ending 
	Net position, ending 
	$ 14,032,339 
	TD
	Artifact



	1,234,252 344,736 
	$ 1,692,827 1,692,827 $ 
	(437,271) 6,112 (71,965) (503,124) 
	(122,000) 1,495,337 333,113 
	11,623 $ 
	Stormwater 
	Stormwater 
	Stormwater 
	Fund 

	Cash flows from operating activities: Cash received from customers, governments and other funds Cash paid to suppliers Cash paid to employees Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
	Cash flows from operating activities: Cash received from customers, governments and other funds Cash paid to suppliers Cash paid to employees Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
	$ 9,430,057 (569,723) (203,808) 8,656,526 
	$ 
	(272,257) (72,100) (344,357) 

	Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: Transfers in (out) Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities 
	Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: Transfers in (out) Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities 
	(52,000) (52,000) 
	344,736 344,736 

	Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets and furniture and equipment Principal retirement of capital debt Interest paid on capital debt Proceeds from issuance of Stormwater Bonds, net Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 
	Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets and furniture and equipment Principal retirement of capital debt Interest paid on capital debt Proceeds from issuance of Stormwater Bonds, net Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 
	(30,055) (71,758) (13,937) 18,288,365 18,172,615 

	Cash flows from investing activities: Redemption of investments Interest and other income 
	Cash flows from investing activities: Redemption of investments Interest and other income 
	52,526 
	6,534 

	Net cash provided by investing activities 
	Net cash provided by investing activities 
	TD
	Figure


	Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
	Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
	26,835,779 
	6,913 

	Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 Cash and cash equivalents , September 30 
	Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 Cash and cash equivalents , September 30 
	107,190 $ 26,942,969 
	13,942 $ 20,855 

	Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating acitivities: Depreciation Change in assets and liabilities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable Deferred outflows of resources for pension Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payable and accrued payroll and benefits Unearned revenue 
	Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating acitivities: Depreciation Change in assets and liabilities: (Increase) decrease in: Accounts receivable Deferred outflows of resources for pension Increase (decrease) in: Accounts payable and accrued payroll and benefits Unearned revenue 
	$ 458,575 406,323 (117,908) 9,236 66,778 
	$ 
	(344,736) 606 (227) 

	Compensated absences Net pension liability Deferred inflows of resources for pension Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
	Compensated absences Net pension liability Deferred inflows of resources for pension Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure


	Noncash investing, capital and related financing activities: Contribution of capital assets 
	Noncash investing, capital and related financing activities: Contribution of capital assets 
	$ 1,547,337 
	$ 


	6,112 58,638 6,534 
	7,855,138 (1,065) (109,891) 89,340 8,197,951 $ 8,656,526 379 $ (344,357) 
	Revenue Source 
	Revenue Source 
	Revenue Source 
	Legal Restrictions of Use 

	Transportation & Gas Surtax 
	Transportation & Gas Surtax 
	Roads, sidewalks, streets, busing, streetlights and other transportation expenses 

	Mobility Fee 
	Mobility Fee 
	Multi-modal transportation improvements 

	Impact Fees (Parks & Police) 
	Impact Fees (Parks & Police) 
	Capital projects, improvements and to offset additional costs 

	Building Permits and Fees 
	Building Permits and Fees 
	Building permitting and inspection activities 


	Table
	TR
	General Fund 
	D
	Building epartment Fund 
	Capital Projects Fund 
	Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
	Storm water Fund 

	Due from other govOther Total receivables 
	Due from other govOther Total receivables 
	ernments $ 518,536 545,252 $ 1,063,788 
	$ $ 
	131,747 131,747 
	$ 306,929 $ 306,929 
	$ 468,887 286,032 $ 754,919 
	$ 357,799 $ 357,799 


	Internal 
	Internal 
	Internal 
	Total 

	Stormwater 
	Stormwater 
	Service 
	Proprietary 

	Fund 
	Fund 
	Fund 
	Funds 


	Governmental activities: 
	Governmental activities: 
	Governmental activities: 

	Capital assets not being depreciated: 
	Capital assets not being depreciated: 

	Land 
	Land 
	$ 6,056,872 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 6,056,872 

	Construction in progress 
	Construction in progress 
	1,674,837 
	2,314,533 
	(131,065) 
	(1,547,337) 
	2,310,968 

	Total capital assets not being depreciated 
	Total capital assets not being depreciated 
	7,731,709 
	2,314,533 
	(131,065) 
	(1,547,337) 
	8,367,840 

	Capital assets being depreciated: 
	Capital assets being depreciated: 

	Furniture and equipment 
	Furniture and equipment 
	4,362,251 
	38,290 
	4,400,541 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	8,164,993 
	2,013,852 
	10,178,845 

	Leasehold improvements 
	Leasehold improvements 
	90,558 
	90,558 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	31,945,007 
	495,654 
	(2,013,852) 
	30,426,809 

	Total capital assets being depreciated 
	Total capital assets being depreciated 
	44,562,809 
	533,944 
	45,096,753 

	Less accumulated depreciation for: 
	Less accumulated depreciation for: 

	Furniture and equipment 
	Furniture and equipment 
	(3,188,745) 
	(246,574) 
	(3,435,319) 

	Buildings 
	Buildings 
	(1,586,557) 
	(282,874) 
	(1,869,431) 

	Leasehold improvements 
	Leasehold improvements 
	(90,558) 
	(90,558) 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	(11,235,787) 
	(1,088,818) 
	(12,324,605) 

	Total accumulated depreciation 
	Total accumulated depreciation 
	(16,101,647) 
	(1,618,266) 
	(17,719,913) 

	Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
	Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
	28,461,162 
	(1,084,322) 
	27,376,840 

	Governmental activities capital assets, net 
	Governmental activities capital assets, net 
	$ 36,192,871 
	$ 1,230,211 
	$ 
	(131,065) 
	$ (1,547,337) 
	$ 35,744,680 

	Business-type activities: 
	Business-type activities: 

	Capital assets not being depreciated: 
	Capital assets not being depreciated: 

	Construction in progress 
	Construction in progress 

	Total capital assets not being depreciated 
	Total capital assets not being depreciated 

	Capital assets being depreciated: 
	Capital assets being depreciated: 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 

	Furniture and equipment 
	Furniture and equipment 

	Total capital assets being depreciated 
	Total capital assets being depreciated 

	Less accumulated depreciation for: 
	Less accumulated depreciation for: 

	Infrastructure 
	Infrastructure 
	(2,753,011) 
	(367,811) 
	(3,120,822) 

	Furniture and equipment 
	Furniture and equipment 
	(236,842) 
	(38,512) 
	(275,354) 

	Total accumulated depreciation 
	Total accumulated depreciation 
	(2,989,853) 
	(406,323) 
	(3,396,176) 

	Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
	Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
	11,681,964 
	635,418 
	12,317,382 

	Business-type activities capital assets, net 
	Business-type activities capital assets, net 
	$ 12,796,511 
	$ 665,473 
	$ (1,041,741) 
	$ 1,547,337 
	$ 13,967,580 


	$ 1,114,547 $ 30,055 $ (1,041,741) $ 1,547,337 $ 1,650,198 1,114,547 30,055 (1,041,741) 1,547,337 1,650,198 
	14,349,458 1,041,741 15,391,199 322,359 322,359 14,671,817 1,041,741 15,713,558 
	General government Public safety Transportation Parks and recreation Total depreciation expense -governmental acti
	General government Public safety Transportation Parks and recreation Total depreciation expense -governmental acti
	General government Public safety Transportation Parks and recreation Total depreciation expense -governmental acti
	$ 384,931 59,327 557,597 616,411 vities $ 1,618,266 

	Business-type activities: Stormwater utility Total depreciation expense -business-type acti
	Business-type activities: Stormwater utility Total depreciation expense -business-type acti
	vities 

	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT 
	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT 

	Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 
	Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 


	$ 406,323 $ 406,323 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Series 2010 lm1,1rovement Program Bonds Bonds Series 2021 Se1,1tember 30, Princi1,1al Interest Princi1,1al Interest Princi1,1al Interest Princi1,1al Interest 2022 $ 210,000 $ 497,241 $ 140,741 $ 1,120 $ 60,120 $ 11,903 $ 170,000 $ 663,092 
	2023 
	2023 
	2023 
	220,000 
	484,852 
	141,458 
	712 
	63,120 
	9,896 
	205,000 
	624,750 

	2024 
	2024 
	230,000 
	471,580 
	142,203 
	271 
	67,526 
	6,501 
	215,000 
	616,550 

	2025 
	2025 
	240,000 
	453,720 
	295,000 
	607,950 

	2026 
	2026 
	250,000 
	435,100 
	310,000 
	596,150 

	2027-2031 
	2027-2031 
	1,445,000 
	1,864,090 
	1,840,000 
	2,754,250 

	2032-2036 
	2032-2036 
	1,835,000 
	1,242,790 
	2,255,000 
	2,339,000 

	2037-2041 
	2037-2041 
	2,320,000 
	457,900 
	2,760,000 
	1,829,800 

	2042-2046 
	2042-2046 
	3,360,000 
	1,231,800 

	2047-2051 
	2047-2051 
	4,090,000 
	503,800 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 6,750,000 
	$ 5,907,273 
	$ 424,402 
	$ 2,103 
	$ 190,766 
	$ 28,300 
	$ 15,500,000 
	$ 11,767,142 


	2026 14,518 1,216 Total $ 72,590 $ 6,080 
	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 
	NOTE 7 -LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

	Long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows: 
	Long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows: 

	Beginning Balance 
	Beginning Balance 
	Increases 
	Decreases 
	Ending Balance 
	Due Within One Vear 


	Governmental Activities 
	Governmental Activities 
	Governmental Activities 

	Special obligation bonds payable 
	Special obligation bonds payable 
	$ 6,950,000 
	$ 
	$ 
	{200,000) 
	$ 
	6,750,000 
	$ 
	210,000 

	Less: discount on bonds issued 
	Less: discount on bonds issued 
	(27,928) 
	1,380 
	{26,548) 

	QNIP bonds 
	QNIP bonds 
	564,421 
	(140,019) 
	424,402 
	140,741 

	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 
	3,718,321 
	382,013 
	(2,298,899) 
	1,801,435 

	OPEB 
	OPEB 
	123,890 
	11,137 
	{8,461) 
	126,566 

	Compensated absences 
	Compensated absences 
	368,188 
	73,125 
	(57,793) 
	383,520 
	95,882 

	Governmental activities long-term 
	Governmental activities long-term 

	liabilities 
	liabilities 
	$ 11,696,892 
	$ 
	466,275 
	$ (2,703,792) 
	$ 
	9,459,375 
	$ 
	446,623 


	Business-Type Activities 
	Business-Type Activities 
	Business-Type Activities 

	Stormwater utility revenue bonds 
	Stormwater utility revenue bonds 
	$ 
	248,006 
	$ 
	$ 
	(57,240) 
	$ 190,766 
	$ 
	60,120 

	Stormwater utility system revenue bonds, 
	Stormwater utility system revenue bonds, 

	series 2021 
	series 2021 
	15,500,000 
	15,500,000 
	170,000 

	Plus: premium on bonds 
	Plus: premium on bonds 
	3,225,636 
	3,225,636 

	Due to Miami-Dade County 
	Due to Miami-Dade County 
	87,108 
	(14,518) 
	72,590 
	14,518 

	Net pension liability 
	Net pension liability 
	141,450 
	21,899 
	{131,790) 
	31,559 

	Compensated absences 
	Compensated absences 
	8,559 
	(1,065) 
	7,494 
	1,874 

	Business-type activities long-term 
	Business-type activities long-term 

	liabilities 
	liabilities 
	$ 
	485,123 
	$ 18,747,535 
	$ 
	(204,613) 
	$ 19,028,045 
	$ 
	246,512 


	Total Principal 
	Total Principal 
	Total Principal 
	Current Year 
	Maximum 
	Current 
	% of Revenue 
	% of Revenues to 

	and Interest 
	and Interest 
	Principal and 
	Principal 
	Year 
	to Principal and Maximum Principal 

	Pledged Revenue 
	Pledged Revenue 
	Outstanding 
	Interest Paid 
	and Interest 
	Revenue 
	Interest Paid 
	and Interest 

	Electric utility tax 
	Electric utility tax 
	$ 12,657,273 
	$ 707,241 
	$ 707,241 
	$ 3,129,793 
	443% 
	443% 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Table
	TR
	Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1. 2011 Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 
	1.60% 1.63% 1.65% 1.68% 

	TR
	Regular Class members initially enrolled on or after July 1. 2011 Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 
	1.60% 1.63% 1.65% 1.68% 

	TR
	Special Risk Class Service from December 1, 1970 through September 30, 1974 Service on and after October 1, 1974 
	2.00% 3.00% 

	TR
	Elected Officers' Class Service as Governor, Lt. Governor, Cabinet Officer, Legislator, state attorney, public defender, elected county officer, or elected official of a city or special district that chose EOC membership for its elected officials 
	3.00% 

	TR
	Senior Management Service Class 
	2.00% 

	Vesting 
	Vesting 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	two preceding years were as follows: 
	two preceding years were as follows: 
	two preceding years were as follows: 

	FY 2021 
	FY 2021 
	FY 2020 
	FY 2019 

	Contribution requirements: 
	Contribution requirements: 

	Employer 
	Employer 
	$ 349,524 
	$ 348,157 
	$ 336,015 

	Employee 
	Employee 
	112,477 
	116,181 
	111,058 

	Total contribution requirements 
	Total contribution requirements 
	$ 462,001 
	$ 464,338 
	$ 447,073 

	Contributions made (100%) 
	Contributions made (100%) 
	$ 349,524 
	$ 348,157 
	$ 336,015 

	Total covered payroll 
	Total covered payroll 
	$ 3,993,384 
	$ 4,161,693 
	$ 4,036,102 

	Percent of contributions to total covered payroll 
	Percent of contributions to total covered payroll 
	8.75% 
	8.37% 
	8.33% 

	The FRS issues an annual comprehensive financial 
	The FRS issues an annual comprehensive financial 
	report including a statement of financial 
	condition, 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Table
	TR
	Employer 
	Employer 

	Employer 
	Employer 
	Contribution 
	Proportionate Share 
	Employer 

	Contribution for 
	Contribution for 
	Proportion at 
	for Pension 
	Proportion at 
	of Net Pension 
	Proportionate Share 

	Pension Plan 
	Pension Plan 
	Prior 
	Plan Funding 
	Current 
	Liability/Asset 
	of Net Pension 

	Funding 
	Funding 
	Measurement 
	for Current 
	Measurement 
	at Prior 
	Liability/Asset at 

	for Prior Period 
	for Prior Period 
	Date 
	Period 
	Date 
	Measurement Date 
	Measurement Date 

	$ 193,601 
	$ 193,601 
	0.005826864% 
	$ 253,853 
	0.006663560% 
	$ 2,525,449 
	$ 503,356 

	TR
	FRS Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Cash equivalents Fixed income Global equity Real estate (propertPrivate equity Strategic investmen
	Cash equivalents Fixed income Global equity Real estate (propertPrivate equity Strategic investmen
	Cash equivalents Fixed income Global equity Real estate (propertPrivate equity Strategic investmen
	y) ts 
	1.00% 20.00% 54.20% 10.30% 10.80% 3.70% 
	2.10% 3.80% 8.20% 7.10% 11.70% 5.70% 
	2.10% 3.70% 6.70% 6.20% 8.50% 5.40% 
	1.10% 3.30% 17.80% 13.80% 26.40% 8.40% 

	Assumed inflation 
	Assumed inflation 
	-

	mean 
	2.40% 
	1.20% 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Total pension liability Less: fiduciary net position Net pension liability 
	Total pension liability Less: fiduciary net position Net pension liability 
	Total pension liability Less: fiduciary net position Net pension liability 
	1% Decrease 5.80% $ 15,716,910 (13,465,867) 
	Current Discount Rate 6.80% $ 13,969,223 (13,465,867) 
	1% Increase 7.80% $ 12,508,353 (13,465,867) 

	TR
	HIS 


	$ 2,251,043 $ 503,356 $ (957,514) 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	$ 1,537,190 $ 1,329,638 $ 1,159,595 
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 

	Outflows 
	Outflows 
	Inflows 

	of Resources 
	of Resources 
	of Resources 
	Total 

	Changes in: 
	Changes in: 

	Contributions, subsequent to 
	Contributions, subsequent to 

	measurement date 
	measurement date 
	$ 74,791 
	$ 
	$ 74,791 

	Experience expected/actual 
	Experience expected/actual 
	86,276 
	86,276 

	Assumptions/inputs 
	Assumptions/inputs 
	344,421 
	344,421 

	Projected/actual earnings 
	Projected/actual earnings 
	(1,756,082) 
	(1,756,082) 

	Changes in proportion, NPL 
	Changes in proportion, NPL 
	279,833 
	(263,368) 
	16,465 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 785,321 
	$ (2,019,450) 
	$ (1,234,129) 

	TR
	HIS Program 


	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 
	Deferred 

	Outflows 
	Outflows 
	Inflows 

	of Resources 
	of Resources 
	of Resources 
	Total 

	Changes in: 
	Changes in: 

	Contributions, subsequent to 
	Contributions, subsequent to 

	measurement date 
	measurement date 
	$ 16,566 
	$ 
	$ 16,566 

	Experience expected/actual 
	Experience expected/actual 
	44,493 
	(557) 
	43,936 

	Assumptions/inputs 
	Assumptions/inputs 
	104,480 
	(54,784) 
	49,696 

	Projected/actual earnings 
	Projected/actual earnings 
	1,386 
	1,386 

	Changes in proportion, NPL 
	Changes in proportion, NPL 
	83,867 
	(85,832) 
	(1,965) 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 250,792 
	$ 
	(141,173) 
	$ 109,619 


	90 $ (1,308,920) $ 93,053 
	Employee 
	Employee 
	Employee 
	Employer 
	Total 

	Contribution 
	Contribution 
	Contribution 
	Contribution 

	Rate 
	Rate 
	Rate 
	Rate 

	Special Risk Class 
	Special Risk Class 
	3.00% 
	24.17% 
	27.17% 

	Senior Management Service Class 
	Senior Management Service Class 
	3.00% 
	27.29% 
	30.29% 

	Regular Class 
	Regular Class 
	3.00% 
	9.10% 
	12.10% 

	Elected Officer's Class 
	Elected Officer's Class 
	3.00% 
	49.70% 
	52.70% 

	DROP from FRS 
	DROP from FRS 
	0.00% 
	16.68% 
	16.68% 

	NOTE 9 -OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
	NOTE 9 -OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

	Plan Description and Benefits Provided 
	Plan Description and Benefits Provided 


	the Plan: 
	the Plan: 
	the Plan: 

	Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
	Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
	1 

	Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
	Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
	0 

	Active plan members 
	Active plan members 
	53 

	TR
	54 

	Total 
	Total 
	OPEB Liability 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	1% Decrease 
	1% Decrease 
	1% Decrease 
	Discount Rate 
	1% Increase 

	1.43% 
	1.43% 
	2.43% 
	3.43% 

	Total OPEB Liability 
	Total OPEB Liability 
	$ 155,959 
	$ 126,566 
	$ 103,407 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	17,159,862 18,036,174 
	16,624,970 17,971,866 
	$ $ 
	Artifact
	18,524,260 488,086 
	16,700,347 1,271,519 
	39,847 
	Variance with 
	Variance with 
	Variance with 

	Budgeted Amounts 
	Budgeted Amounts 
	Final Budget 

	TR
	Positive 

	Original 
	Original 
	Final 
	Actual 
	(Negative) 

	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	Permits and fees 
	Permits and fees 
	$ 
	1,388,000 
	$ 1,388,000 
	$ 
	1,950,695 
	$ 562,695 

	Investment income 
	Investment income 
	20,000 
	20,000 
	8,287 
	{11,713) 


	Total revenues 1,408,000 1,408,000 1,958,982 550,982 
	Expenditures: Current: Building Capital outlay Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Building Capital outlay Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Building Capital outlay Total expenditures 
	3,419,573 
	3,343,798 
	1,862,917 
	1,480,881 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	{2,084,353) 
	{2,066,328) 
	96,065 
	2,162,393 

	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	{49,021) {49,021) 
	{49,021) {49,021) 
	(44,816) (44,816) 
	4,205 4,205 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	{2,133,374) 
	{2,115,349) 
	51,249 
	2,166,598 

	Fund balance appropriated 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	2,133,374 
	2,115,349 
	(2,115,349) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	51,249 
	51,249 

	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure



	72,780 130,530 3,492,353 3,474,328 130,530 1,862,917 1,611,411 
	$ $ 2,133,238 2,133,238 $ 2,184,487 $ 2,184,487 
	Total OPEB Liability 
	Total OPEB Liability 
	Total OPEB Liability 

	Service cost 
	Service cost 
	$ 
	8,315 
	$ 
	5,657 
	$ 
	5,430 
	$ 
	5,861 

	Interest 
	Interest 
	2,822 
	2,857 
	2,663 
	2,654 

	Difference between expected and actual 
	Difference between expected and actual 

	experience 
	experience 
	TD
	Artifact

	5,684 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact


	Changes of assumptions 
	Changes of assumptions 
	(7,805) 
	41,543 
	7,968 
	(6,625) 

	Benefit payments 
	Benefit payments 
	(656) 
	(572) 
	(11,129) 
	(10,257) 


	Net change in total OPEB liability 
	Net change in total OPEB liability 
	Net change in total OPEB liability 
	2,676 
	55,169 
	4,932 
	(8,367) 

	Total OPEB liability -beginning 
	Total OPEB liability -beginning 
	123,890 
	68,721 
	63,789 
	72,156 

	Total OPEB liability -ending 
	Total OPEB liability -ending 
	$ 126,566 
	$ 123,890 
	$ 68,721 
	$ 63,789 

	Covered payroll 
	Covered payroll 
	$ 3,738,294 
	$ 3,647,116 
	$ 3,471,781 
	$ 3,387,103 

	Total OPEB liability as a percentage 
	Total OPEB liability as a percentage 

	of covered payroll 
	of covered payroll 
	3.39% 
	3.40% 
	1.98% 
	1.88% 


	The Town's proportion of the net 
	The Town's proportion of the net 
	The Town's proportion of the net 

	pension liability 
	pension liability 
	0.006663560% 
	0.005826864% 
	0.006983261% 
	0.007624456% 
	0.006862616% 
	0.006556569% 
	0.006230023% 
	0.006870141% 

	The Town's proportionate share of the 
	The Town's proportionate share of the 

	net pension liability 
	net pension liability 
	$ 503,356 
	$ 2,525,449 
	$ 2,404,938 
	$ 2,296,526 
	$ 2,029,916 
	$ 1,655,539 
	$ 804,691 
	$ 419,180 

	The Town's covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll 
	$ 4,015,433 
	$ 3,998,274 
	$ 4,021,387 
	$ 3,908,760 
	$ 3,455,365 
	$ 3,085,052 
	$ 2,922,198 
	$ 2,817,529 

	The Town's proportionate share of the 
	The Town's proportionate share of the 

	net pension liability as a percentage 
	net pension liability as a percentage 

	of its covered payroll 
	of its covered payroll 
	12.54% 
	63.16% 
	59.80% 
	58.75% 
	58.75% 
	53.66% 
	27.54% 
	14.88% 

	Plan fiduciary net position as a 
	Plan fiduciary net position as a 

	percentage of the total pension 
	percentage of the total pension 

	liability 
	liability 
	96.40% 
	78.85% 
	82.61% 
	84.26% 
	83.89% 
	84.88% 
	92.00% 
	96.09% 

	* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 (measurement date of the collective net pension liability). The schedule 
	* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 (measurement date of the collective net pension liability). The schedule 

	is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
	is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 


	Contractually required contribution 
	Contractually required contribution 
	Contractually required contribution 
	$ 
	282,365 
	$ 
	281,360 
	$ 
	272,172 
	$ 
	265,449 
	$ 
	222,786 
	$ 
	191,426 
	$ 
	187,579 
	$ 
	188,515 

	Contributions in relation to the 
	Contributions in relation to the 

	contractually required contribution 
	contractually required contribution 
	$ 
	(282,365) 
	$ 
	(281,360) 
	$ 
	(272,172) 
	$ 
	(265,449) 
	$ 
	(222,786) 
	$ 
	(191,426) 
	$ 
	(187,579) 
	$ 
	(188,515) 


	Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	$ 3,993,384 7.07% 
	$ 4,161,693 6.76% 
	$ 4,036,102 6.74% 
	$ 3,947,898 6.72% 
	$ 3,489,915 6.38% 
	$ 3,115,864 6.14% 
	$ 2,951,715 6.35% 
	$ 2,845,986 6.62% 

	* The schedule is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
	* The schedule is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 


	The Town's proportion of the net 
	The Town's proportion of the net 
	The Town's proportion of the net 

	pension liability 
	pension liability 
	0.010839583% 
	0.010928255% 
	0.011835942% 
	0.011956689% 
	0.010492759% 
	0.010380367% 
	0.009449186% 
	0.009533181% 

	The Town's proportionate share of 
	The Town's proportionate share of 

	the net pension liability 
	the net pension liability 
	$ 1,329,638 
	$ 1,334,322 
	$ 1,324,323 
	$ 1,265,509 
	$ 1,121,934 
	$ 1,209,789 
	$ 963,668 
	$ 891,376 

	The Town's covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll 
	$ 4,015,433 
	$ 3,998,274 
	$ 4,021,387 
	$ 3,908,760 
	$ 3,455,365 
	$ 3,085,052 
	$ 2,922,198 
	$ 2,817,529 

	The Town's proportionate share of 
	The Town's proportionate share of 

	the net pension liability as a 
	the net pension liability as a 

	percentage of its covered payroll 
	percentage of its covered payroll 
	33.11% 
	33.37% 
	32.93% 
	32.38% 
	32.47% 
	39.21% 
	32.98% 
	31.64% 

	Plan fiduciary net position as a 
	Plan fiduciary net position as a 

	percentage of the total pension 
	percentage of the total pension 

	liability 
	liability 
	3.56% 
	3.00% 
	2.63% 
	2.15% 
	1.64% 
	0.97% 
	0.50% 
	0.99% 

	* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 (measurement date of the collective net pension liability). The schedule is intended 
	* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30 (measurement date of the collective net pension liability). The schedule is intended 

	to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
	to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 


	Contractually required contribution 
	Contractually required contribution 
	Contractually required contribution 
	$ 
	67,159 
	$ 
	66,797 
	$ 
	63,843 
	$ 
	63,851 
	$ 
	56,045 
	$ 
	51,723 
	$ 
	37,192 
	$ 
	34,152 

	Contributions in relation to the 
	Contributions in relation to the 

	contractually required contribution 
	contractually required contribution 
	$ 
	(67,159) 
	$ 
	(66,797) 
	$ 
	(63,843) 
	$ 
	(63,851) 
	$ 
	(56,045) 
	$ 
	(51,723) 
	$ 
	(37,192) 
	$ 
	(34,152) 


	Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	The Town's covered payroll Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 
	$ 3,993,384 1.68% 
	$ 4,161,603 1.61% 
	$ 4,036,102 1.58% 
	$ 3,947,898 1.62% 
	$ 3,489,915 1.61% 
	$ 3,115,864 1.66% 
	$ 2,951,715 1.26% 
	$ 2,845,986 1.20% 

	* The schedule is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
	* The schedule is intended to show information for the last ten (10) fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 


	Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects 
	Table
	TR
	Neighborbood 
	Total Nonmajor 

	TR
	Special 
	Service 
	Infrastructure 
	Governmental 

	TR
	Revenue 
	Districts 
	Impact Fees 
	Debt Service 
	Replacement 
	Funds 

	ASSETS 
	ASSETS 

	Cash and cash equivalents 
	Cash and cash equivalents 
	$ 817,038 
	$ 486,570 
	$ 1,164,274 
	$ 2,000 
	$ 281,327 
	$ 2,751,209 


	Artifact
	LIABILITIES 
	LIABILITIES 
	LIABILITIES 

	Accounts payable Due to other funds Total liabilities 
	Accounts payable Due to other funds Total liabilities 
	$ 
	135,905 135,905 
	$ 
	147,558 147,558 
	$ 


	FUND BALANCES 
	FUND BALANCES 
	FUND BALANCES 

	Restricted for: 
	Restricted for: 

	Debt service 
	Debt service 

	Transit -CITT 20 
	Transit -CITT 20 
	33,205 

	Transportation -CITT 80 
	Transportation -CITT 80 
	141,829 

	Transportation -Gas Tax 
	Transportation -Gas Tax 
	140,349 

	Mobility 
	Mobility 
	345,364 

	Micromobility 
	Micromobility 
	1,100 

	Tree removal 
	Tree removal 
	39,821 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects 
	Neighborbood 
	Neighborbood 
	Neighborbood 
	Total Nonmajor 

	Special 
	Special 
	Service 
	Infrastructure 
	Governmental 

	Revenue 
	Revenue 
	Districts 
	Impact Fees 
	Debt Service 
	Replacement 
	Funds 


	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	Utility taxes 
	Utility taxes 
	$ 
	TD
	Artifact

	$ 
	$ 
	$ 
	S49,092 
	$ 
	$ 
	549,092 

	Other taxes 
	Other taxes 
	371,859 
	371,859 

	Licenses and permits 
	Licenses and permits 
	483,235 
	483,235 

	Intergovernmental 
	Intergovernmental 
	1,490,244 
	1,490,244 

	Im pact fees: 
	Im pact fees: 

	Public safety 
	Public safety 
	31,337 
	31,337 

	Parks 
	Parks 
	7,913 
	7,913 

	Investment income 
	Investment income 
	4,054 
	3,668 
	5,044 
	2,677 
	802 
	16,245 

	Special assessments 
	Special assessments 
	1,377,897 
	1,377,897 

	Other 
	Other 
	14,800 
	6,846 
	169,863 
	191,509 

	Total revenues 
	Total revenues 
	2,364,192 
	1,388,411 
	44,294 
	721,632 
	802 
	4,519,331 

	Expenditures: 
	Expenditures: 

	Current: 
	Current: 

	Transportation 
	Transportation 
	1,331,338 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	1,331,338 

	Administrative 
	Administrative 
	TD
	Artifact

	1,364,009 
	3,050 
	4,720 
	1,371,779 

	Debt service: 
	Debt service: 

	Principal 
	Principal 
	200,000 
	200,000 

	Interest 
	Interest 
	514,660 
	514,660 

	Capital outlay 
	Capital outlay 
	2,661 
	52,926 
	55,587 

	Total expenditures 
	Total expenditures 
	1,331,338 
	1,366,670 
	717,710 
	57,646 
	3,473,364 

	Excess of revenues over expenditures 
	Excess of revenues over expenditures 
	1,032,854 
	21,741 
	44,294 
	3,922 
	(56,844) 
	1,045,967 


	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	493,835 (1,196,000) (702,165) 
	(220,021) (220,021) 
	1,500 1,500 
	150,000 150,000 
	645,335 (1,416,021) (770,686) 

	Net change in fund balances 
	Net change in fund balances 
	330,689 
	21,741 
	(175,727) 
	5,422 
	93,156 
	275,281 

	Fund balances, beginning 
	Fund balances, beginning 
	811,704 
	317,818 
	1,353,178 
	963,686 
	151,471 
	3,597,857 

	Fund balances, ending 
	Fund balances, ending 
	$ 
	1,142,393 
	$ 
	339,559 
	$ 
	1,177,451 
	$ 
	969,108 
	$ 
	244,627 
	$ 
	3,873,138 


	Original 
	Original 
	Original 
	Final 

	$ 
	$ 
	341,894 261,139 1,017,066 10,000 267,000 5,000 128,798 17,500 
	$ 
	341,894 261,139 1,017,066 10,000 267,000 5,000 129,575 17,500 

	TR
	79,342 778,430 442,953 895,107 
	28,945 1,078,384 453,992 597,395 

	TR
	(119,213) 
	(109,542) 

	TR
	(725,000) 
	493,835 (1,196,000) (702,165} 

	TR
	(844,213) 
	(811,707) 

	TR
	844,213 
	811,707 


	2,048,397 2,049,174 
	2,167,610 2,158,716 
	(725,000) 
	Artifact
	$ 
	$ 
	2,364,192 
	1,331,338 
	Artifact
	$ 1,142,393 
	315,018 
	827,378 
	Artifact
	$ 1,142,393 
	Revenues: Special assessment Investment income Other Total revenues 
	Revenues: Special assessment Investment income Other Total revenues 
	Revenues: Special assessment Investment income Other Total revenues 
	$ 
	Budgeted Amounts Original Final 1,397,560 $ 1,397,560 
	$ 
	Actual 1,377,897 
	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) $ (19,663) 

	Expenditures: Current: Administrative Capital outlay: Transit Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Administrative Capital outlay: Transit Total expenditures 
	1,564,317 
	1,593,631 
	1,364,009 
	229,622 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	(279,321) 
	(308,635) 
	21,741 
	330,376 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	(279,321) 
	(308,635) 
	21,741 
	330,376 

	Fund balance appropriated 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	279,321 
	308,635 
	(308,635) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	21,741 
	21,741 

	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure



	3,668 7,000 7,000 6,846 1,404,560 1,404,560 1,388,411 3,668 (154) (16,149) 
	119,564 119,564 2,661 1,683,881 1,713,195 1,366,670 116,903 346,525 
	317,818 $ $ $ 339,559 317,818 $ 339,559 
	Revenues: Impact Fees Public safety Parks Developer contributions Investment income Total revenues 
	Revenues: Impact Fees Public safety Parks Developer contributions Investment income Total revenues 
	Revenues: Impact Fees Public safety Parks Developer contributions Investment income Total revenues 
	$ 
	Budgeted Amounts Original Final 205,000 $ 205,000 86,620 
	$ 
	Actual 31,337 7,913 
	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) $ (173,663) 7,913 (86,620) 5,044 

	Expenditures: Current: Parks Capital outlay -public safety Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Parks Capital outlay -public safety Total expenditures 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Figure


	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	(1,171,187) 
	(1,042,935) 
	44,294 
	1,087,229 

	Other financing (uses): Transfers out 
	Other financing (uses): Transfers out 
	(250,000} 
	(306,641) 
	(220,021) 
	86,620 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing (uses) 
	(1,421,187) 
	(1,349,576) 
	(175,727) 
	1,173,849 

	Fund balance appropriated 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	1,421,187 
	1,349,576 
	(1,349,576) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	(175,727) 
	(175,727) 

	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure



	291,620 
	(247,326) 
	5,044 44,294 
	205,000 
	1,110,557 1,069,938 264,617 1,376,187 1,334,555 1,069,938 264,617 1,334,555 
	1,353,178 $ $ $ 1,177,451 1,353,178 $ 1,177,451 
	Revenues: Electric utility taxes Investment income Other Total revenues 
	Revenues: Electric utility taxes Investment income Other Total revenues 
	Revenues: Electric utility taxes Investment income Other Total revenues 
	$ 
	Budgeted Amounts Original Final 555,991 $ 555,991 171,824 171,824 727,815 727,815 
	$ 
	Actual 549,092 2,677 169,863 721,632 
	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) $ (6,899) 2,677 (1,961) (6,183) 

	Expenditures: Current: Transportation Administration Debt service: Principal Interest Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Transportation Administration Debt service: Principal Interest Total expenditures 
	310,236 3,750 200,000 507,609 1,021,595 
	310,236 3,750 200,000 507,609 1,021,595 
	3,050 200,000 514,660 717,710 
	310,236 700 (7,051) 303,885 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 
	(293,780) 
	(293,780) 
	3,922 
	297,702 

	Other financing sources (uses): Transfers in Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Other financing sources (uses): Transfers in Total other financing sources (uses) 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing sources (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing sources (uses) 
	{293,780) 
	{293,780) 
	5,422 
	299,202 

	Fund balance appropriated 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	293,780 
	293,780 
	{293,780) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	5,422 
	5,422 

	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 


	1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 
	963,686 $ $ $ 969,108 963,686 $ 969,108 
	Revenues: Gas tax 3 cents Intergovernmenta I Investment income Total revenues 
	Revenues: Gas tax 3 cents Intergovernmenta I Investment income Total revenues 
	Revenues: Gas tax 3 cents Intergovernmenta I Investment income Total revenues 
	$ 
	Budgeted Amounts Original Final 128,838 $ 128,838 6,675,777 7,144,660 
	$ 
	Actual 140,612 1,683,107 
	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) $ 11,774 (5,461,553) 

	Expenditures: Current: Transportation / public works Parks and recreation Capital outlay: Drainage improvements Transportation improvements Parks and recreation Facilities and equipment Total expenditures 
	Expenditures: Current: Transportation / public works Parks and recreation Capital outlay: Drainage improvements Transportation improvements Parks and recreation Facilities and equipment Total expenditures 
	312,292 2,447,084 5,506,569 1,144,157 
	241,378 2,964,028 6,126,876 1,565,663 
	10,294 1,547,337 883,331 165,159 
	241,378 (10,294) 1,416,691 5,243,545 1,400,504 

	(Deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 
	(Deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 
	(2,605,487) 
	(3,696,077) 
	{820,110) 
	2,875,967 

	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfers out Total other financing sources (uses) 
	1,352,525 1,352,525 
	1,853,645 1,853,645 
	1,767,025 1,767,025 
	(86,620) (86,620) 

	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing sources (uses) 
	Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other financing sources (uses) 
	(1,252,962) 
	(1,842,432) 
	946,915 
	2,789,347 

	Fund balance appropriated 
	Fund balance appropriated 
	1,252,962 
	1,842,432 
	(1,842,432) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	946,915 
	946,915 

	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 
	Fund balance, beginning Fund balance, ending 


	7,774 6,804,615 7,273,498 1,831,493 7,774 (5,442,005) 
	71,630 45,482 9,410,102 10,969,575 2,651,603 26,148 8,317,972 
	1,842,430 $ $ $ 2,789,345 1,842,430 $ 2,789,345 
	SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION 
	SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION 
	SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION 

	ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash Accounts receivable, net Advance to Bond Series 2021 Construction in progress Furniture and equipment, net Infrastructure, net Total assets 
	ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash Accounts receivable, net Advance to Bond Series 2021 Construction in progress Furniture and equipment, net Infrastructure, net Total assets 
	$ 794,680 357,799 18,288,366 1,620,143 47,005 12,270,377 33,378,370 
	$ 
	18,292,226 30,055 18,322,281 
	$ 
	7,856,063 7,856,063 
	$ 
	794,680 26,148,289 357,799 18,288,366 1,650,198 47,005 12,270,377 59,556,714 

	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Pension 
	DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Pension 
	36,889 
	36,889 

	LIABILITIES Accounts payable and other current liabilities Advance from operations Unearned revenues Compensated absences Net pension liability QNIP Stormwater FEMA SW Projects Bond Series 2021 Payable Bond Series 2021 Premium Total liabilities 
	LIABILITIES Accounts payable and other current liabilities Advance from operations Unearned revenues Compensated absences Net pension liability QNIP Stormwater FEMA SW Projects Bond Series 2021 Payable Bond Series 2021 Premium Total liabilities 
	248,601 7,494 31,559 190,766 72,590 15,500,000 3,225,636 19,276,646 
	30,055 18,288,366 18,318,421 
	7,855,138 7,855,138 
	278,656 18,288,366 7,855,138 7,494 31,559 190,766 72,590 15,500,000 3,225,636 45,450,205 

	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Pension 
	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Pension 
	111,059 
	111,059 

	TOTAL NET POSITION 
	TOTAL NET POSITION 
	$ 14,027,554 
	$ 3,860 
	$ 
	925 
	$ 
	14,032,339 


	SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION Operating revenues $ 1,692,827 $ $ $ 1,692,827 
	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 
	Operating expenses 
	(1,234,252) 
	TD
	Artifact

	TD
	Artifact

	(1,234,252) 

	Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
	(507,909) 
	3,860 
	925 
	(503,124) 

	Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
	Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
	(49,334) 
	3,860 
	925 
	(44,549) 

	Contributions and transfers 
	Contributions and transfers 
	1,495,337 
	1,495,337 

	Change in net position 
	Change in net position 
	$ 
	1,446,003 
	$ 
	3,860 
	$ 
	925 
	$ 
	1,450,788 


	Financial Trends These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
	Financial Trends These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
	Financial Trends These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
	71-75 

	Revenue Capacity These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 
	Revenue Capacity These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 
	76-80 

	Debt Capacity These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
	Debt Capacity These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
	81-82 

	Demographic and Economic Information 
	Demographic and Economic Information 
	83-84 

	These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the government's financial activities take place. 
	These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the government's financial activities take place. 

	Operating Information and Insurance in Force These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs. 
	Operating Information and Insurance in Force These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs. 
	85-88 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	2012 
	2012 
	2012 
	2013 
	2014 
	2015 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	Governmental activities: Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total governmental activities net position 
	Governmental activities: Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total governmental activities net position 
	$ 
	20,557,318 6,588,938 5 883 351 33 029 607 
	$ 
	21,814,437 5,021,979 6 797 024 33 633 440 
	$ 
	22,471,538 4,750,852 7 228 689 34 451 079 
	$ 
	23,189,174 5,374,581 3 794 639 32 358 394 
	$ 
	24,384,954 4,316,340 3 497 638 32 198 932 
	$ 
	25,025,518 6,815,901 2 929 081 34 770 500 
	$ 
	25,989,505 6,923,570 2 527 265 35 440 340 
	$ 
	26,298,602 8,677,308 2 229 467 37 205 377 
	$ 
	28,533,023 7,351,535 992 221 36 876 779 
	$ 
	28,428,460 8,572,783 1 804 029 38 805 272 

	Business-type activities: Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total business-type activities net position 
	Business-type activities: Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total business-type activities net position 
	$ $ 
	4,734,099 410 351 5,144,450 
	$ $ 
	6,486,581 380 542 6,867,123 
	$ $ 
	7,092,272 648 868 7,741,140 
	$ $ 
	7,641,072 221 981 7,863,053 
	$ $ 
	8,865,688 571 384 9,437,072 
	$ $ 
	9,743,318 420 691 10,164,009 
	$ $ 
	10,777,658 206 814 10,984,472 
	$ $ 
	11,642,537 14 328 11,656,865 
	$ $ 
	12,461,397 120 154 12,581,551 
	$ $ 
	13,178,871 4,785 848 683 14,032,339 

	Primary government Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total primary government net position 
	Primary government Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted Total primary government net position 
	$ 
	25,291,417 6,588,938 6 293 702 38 174 057 
	$ 
	28,301,018 5,021,979 7 177 566 40 500 563 
	$ 
	29,563,810 4,750,852 7 877 557 42 192 219 
	$ 
	30,830,246 5,374,581 4 016 620 40 221 447 
	$ 
	33,250,642 4,316,340 4 069 022 41 636 004 
	$ 
	34,768,836 6,815,901 3 349 772 44 934 509 
	$ 
	36,767,163 6,923,570 2 734 079 46 424 812 
	$ 
	37,941,139 8,677,308 2 243 795 48 862 242 
	$ 
	40,994,420 7,351,535 1 112 375 49 458 330 
	$ 
	41,607,331 8,577,568 2 652 712 52 837 611 


	2012 
	2012 
	2012 
	2013 
	2014 
	2015 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	Expenses 
	Expenses 

	Governmental activities: 
	Governmental activities: 

	General government 
	General government 
	$ 
	3,241,018 
	$ 
	3,505,665 
	$ 
	3,359,809 
	$ 
	4,504,066 
	$ 
	5,466,296 
	$ 
	5,918,945 
	$ 
	5,439,496 
	$ 
	5,855,914 
	$ 6,024,434 
	$ 5,959,090 

	Public safety 
	Public safety 
	6,234,271 
	6,287,319 
	6,365,715 
	7,972,810 
	8,014,737 
	9,640,653 
	10,202,073 
	10,786,886 
	10,622,577 
	10,515,505 

	Parks and recreation 
	Parks and recreation 
	2,798,627 
	2,703,496 
	3,051,793 
	3,306,152 
	3,481,695 
	4,772,220 
	6,405,543 
	3,508,046 
	3,554,095 
	3,467,742 

	Transportation/Public Works 
	Transportation/Public Works 
	2,353,479 
	2,831,483 
	2,527,545 
	2,691,114 
	2,631,509 
	2,624,862 
	2,883,959 
	2,890,902 
	2,795,296 
	2,968,332 

	Comprehensive planning 
	Comprehensive planning 
	1,636,965 
	1,622,645 
	1,679,697 

	Physical environment 
	Physical environment 
	4,307 

	Interest expense 
	Interest expense 
	561 402 
	528 383 
	603 123 
	600 247 
	654 998 
	596 942 
	551 077 
	550 747 
	527 518 
	511 190 

	Total governmental activities expenses 
	Total governmental activities expenses 
	16.825.762 
	17.478.991 
	17.587.682 
	19.078.696 
	20.249.23S 
	23,S53.622 
	25.482.148 
	23.592.495 
	23,S23.920 
	23.421.859 

	Business-type activities: 
	Business-type activities: 

	Stormwater utilities 
	Stormwater utilities 
	892 995 
	877 397 
	783 596 
	1 033 870 
	818 380 
	937 656 
	1 369 005 
	1 272 487 
	1 093 919 
	1 743 488 

	Total business-type activities expenses 
	Total business-type activities expenses 
	892 995 
	877 397 
	783 596 
	1 033 870 
	818 380 
	937 656 
	1 369 005 
	1 272 487 
	1 093 919 
	1 743 488 

	Total primary government expenses 
	Total primary government expenses 
	17.718.757 
	18.356.388 
	18.371.278 
	20,112,566 
	21.067.61S 
	24.491.278 
	26,851.153 
	24.864.982 
	24.617.839 
	25.16S,347 

	Program Revenues 
	Program Revenues 

	Governmental activities: 
	Governmental activities: 

	Charges for services: 
	Charges for services: 

	General government 
	General government 
	229,955 
	181,927 
	251,688 
	926,044 
	13,079 
	14,004 
	23,550 
	1,726,515 
	1,512,343 
	1,388,183 

	Public safety 
	Public safety 
	215,183 
	324,720 
	536,168 
	318,413 
	2,046,763 
	3,869,723 
	3,327,193 
	2,738,436 
	1,962,964 
	2,334,977 

	Parks and recreation 
	Parks and recreation 
	7,085 
	11,705 
	43,139 
	85,024 
	131,628 
	1,146,389 
	1,129,490 
	814,497 
	194,100 
	76,482 

	Transportation/Public Works 
	Transportation/Public Works 
	304,848 
	719,774 
	49,342 
	168,554 
	756,711 
	74,453 
	525,628 

	Comprehensive planning 
	Comprehensive planning 
	1,064,408 
	1,003,083 
	1,197,885 

	Operating grants and contributions 
	Operating grants and contributions 
	564,774 
	178,071 
	3,392 
	70,759 
	2,075,665 
	2,816,820 
	2,955,170 
	129,890 
	242,459 
	1,091,809 

	Capital grants and contributions 
	Capital grants and contributions 
	1 978 459 
	36 655 
	259 538 
	442 691 
	50 348 
	1 180 274 
	2 395 955 
	1 743 136 

	Total governmental activities program revenues 
	Total governmental activities program revenues 
	2,081,40s 
	3.677.965 
	2.068.927 
	1.964.626 
	5.429.600 
	7.946.626 
	7.603.957 
	7.346.323 
	6.382.274 
	7.160.21S 

	Business-type activities: 
	Business-type activities: 

	Charges for services 
	Charges for services 

	Stormwater utility 
	Stormwater utility 
	978,961 
	970,188 
	850,864 
	942,089 
	953,982 
	1,034,314 
	1,043,899 
	1,058,714 
	1,060,011 
	1,692,827 

	Operating grants and contributions 
	Operating grants and contributions 
	1 052 142 
	1 286 662 

	Total business-type activities program revenues 
	Total business-type activities program revenues 
	978 961 
	970 188 
	850 864 
	942 089 
	953 982 
	2 086 456 
	2 330 561 
	1 058 714 
	1 060 011 
	1 692 827 

	Total primary government program revenues 
	Total primary government program revenues 
	$ 
	3.060.366 
	$ 
	4.648.1S3 
	$ 
	2.919.791 
	$ 
	2.906.715 
	$ 
	6.383,S82 
	$ 
	10.033.082 
	$ 
	9.934.S18 
	$ 
	8.405.037 
	$ 7.442.28S 
	$ 8.853.042 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	2012 
	2012 
	2012 
	2013 
	2014 
	201S 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	General Fund 
	General Fund 

	Non Spendable 
	Non Spendable 
	$ 
	27,798 
	$ 
	95,039 
	$ 
	118,803 
	$ 
	153,892 
	$ 
	222,531 
	$ 
	220,012 
	$ 
	225,260 
	$ 
	265,331 
	$ 
	306,943 
	$ 
	99,263 

	Restricted 
	Restricted 
	33,735 

	Unassigned 
	Unassigned 
	3 936 392 
	4 088 844 
	4 776 905 
	4 412 605 
	4 553 946 
	4 349 056 
	5 048 869 
	4 222 958 
	4 011 667 
	4 799 001 

	Total General Fund 
	Total General Fund 
	$ 
	3,997,925 
	$ 
	4,183,883 
	$ 
	4,895,708 
	$ 
	4,566,497 
	$ 
	4,776,477 
	$ 
	4,569,068 
	$ 
	S,274,129 
	$ 
	4,488,289 
	$ 
	4,318,610 
	$ 
	4,898,264 


	Artifact
	Artifact
	Artifact
	2012 
	2012 
	2012 
	2013 
	2014 
	201S 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	Revenues Ad valorem taxes Utility taxes Franchise fees Communication service tax Other taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Fines and forfeitures Service charges Impact fees Investment income Developers contributions Special assessments Others 
	Revenues Ad valorem taxes Utility taxes Franchise fees Communication service tax Other taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Fines and forfeitures Service charges Impact fees Investment income Developers contributions Special assessments Others 
	$ 
	5,441,776 2,845,651 1,673,746 1,348,756 1,064,408 4,924,656 215,183 66,720 58,545 
	$ 
	5,432,333 3,016,184 1,550,625 1,366,853 1,003,083 6,905,351 324,720 103,150 10,008 
	$ 
	5,525,235 3,254,550 1,147,889 1,937,765 1,197,885 4,813,430 536,168 99,441 915,125 
	$ 
	5,784,851 3,230,117 1,160,066 1,377,736 1,188,917 4,532,833 312,466 83,792 1,111,235 
	$ 
	5,967,817 3,297,894 1,179,362 1,245,617 2,385,033 4,797,353 274,594 70,092 77,678 2,028,734 1,156,643 
	$ 
	6,267,177 3,407,508 925,699 1,166,035 3,469,773 6,890,298 224,887 183,369 1,201,429 136,894 300,000 1,483,154 
	$ 
	6,753,219 3,432,608 1,272,507 1,209,860 3,042,388 7,448,505 193,841 192,653 1,219,905 219,534 1,072,888 
	$ 7,148,392 3,572,032 1,130,788 1,130,732 680,132 3,154,814 5,496,742 195,518 189,557 775,241 246,949 360,254 1,721,029 435,402 
	$ 
	7,417,552 3,655,546 455,233 1,027,768 592,537 1,762,579 6,435,404 195,265 86,681 475,073 206,898 1,497,897 342,946 
	$ 
	7,940,228 3,731,365 1,208,542 941,205 653,901 2,684,054 7,672,622 103,064 120,194 39,250 62,108 1,377,897 299,636 

	Total Revenues 
	Total Revenues 
	17,639,441 
	19,712,307 
	19,427,488 
	18,782,013 
	22,480,817 
	25,6S6,223 
	26,0S7,908 
	26,237,582 
	24,151,379 
	26,834,066 

	Expenditures General government: Town Council Town Administration and Finance Legal Total general government 
	Expenditures General government: Town Council Town Administration and Finance Legal Total general government 
	404,915 2,420,844 458 525 3,284,284 
	427,733 2,367,698 292 506 3,087,937 
	354,820 2,212,155 268 987 2,835,962 
	628,992 2,645,746 639 785 3,914,S23 
	516,371 3,775,637 410 545 4,702,S53 
	536,680 4,272,614 559 652 s,368,946 
	507,664 2,419,721 321 686 3,249,071 
	539,328 2,401,870 257 448 3,198,646 
	514,578 2,759,199 351 476 3,62S,253 
	598,533 3,080,343 364 104 4,042,980 

	Public safety Parks and recreation Public works/transportation Comprehensive planning Debt service: Principal Interest Cost of issuance Administrative Capital outlay Total Expenditures 
	Public safety Parks and recreation Public works/transportation Comprehensive planning Debt service: Principal Interest Cost of issuance Administrative Capital outlay Total Expenditures 
	6,234,271 2,248,811 2,018,943 1,439,318 201,663 551,948 5 140 046 21,1 19,284 
	6,306,601 2,183,242 2,485,634 1,635,458 549,039 53,650 7 442 013 23,743,S74 
	6,350,819 2,495,685 2,175,948 1,679,697 100,000 599,573 3 988 884 20,226,S68 
	7,973,823 2,721,909 2,345,948 105,000 600,247 2,406 3 355 986 21,019,842 
	7,917,265 2,826,779 2,255,619 1,750,050 654,998 4 483 437 24,590,701 
	8,092,524 4,140,497 2,254,540 104,980 596,942 2 899 836 23,4SS,26S 
	10,173,706 5,764,672 2,441,236 150,845 551,077 3 619 695 25,9S0,302 
	10,734,392 3,005,764 2,415,559 46,607 550,747 1,467,844 2 877 291 24,296,SS0 
	10,582,554 2,878,402 2,309,942 519,302 536,996 1,350,213 4 322 994 26,12S,656 
	10,456,178 2,835,999 2,407,685 340,019 516,179 1,371,779 2 717 412 24,688,231 

	Other Financing Sources (Uses) Proceeds from debt issuance Discount on debt issued Transfer in Transfer out Total Dther Financing Sources (Uses) 
	Other Financing Sources (Uses) Proceeds from debt issuance Discount on debt issued Transfer in Transfer out Total Dther Financing Sources (Uses) 
	4,826,300 (4,126,300) 700,000 
	1,855,000 1,277,865 (1,009,768) 2,123,097 
	1,768,223 (1,768,223) 
	1,974,371 (1,474,371) 500,000 
	2,684,153 (2,684,153) 
	3,424,979 (3,282,074) 142,905 
	1,660,069 (1,791,593) (131,524) 
	2,997,898 (3,084,099) (86,201) 
	2,241,647 (2,425,622) (183,975) 
	2,512,360 (2,805,096) (292,736) 

	Net change in fund balance 
	Net change in fund balance 
	! 
	{2,779,843) 
	! 
	{1,908,170) 
	! 
	{799,080) 
	! 
	{1,737,829) 
	! 
	{2,109,884) 
	! 
	2,340,863 
	! 
	{23,918) 
	! 
	1,854,531 
	! 
	{2,158,252) 
	! 
	1,853,099 

	Ratio of total debt service to noncapital expenditures 
	Ratio of total debt service to noncapital expenditures 
	4.72% 
	3.37% 
	4.31 % 
	3.99% 
	11.96% 
	3.41 % 
	3.14% 
	2.79% 
	4.84% 
	3.90% 


	2012 
	2012 
	2012 
	5,442 
	2,846 
	1,349 
	1,674 
	11,311 

	2013 
	2013 
	5,432 
	3,016 
	1,367 
	1,551 
	11,366 

	2014 
	2014 
	5,525 
	3,255 
	1,938 
	1,148 
	11,866 

	2015 
	2015 
	5,785 
	3,230 
	1,378 
	1,160 
	11,553 

	2016 
	2016 
	5,968 
	3,297 
	1,246 
	1,179 
	11,690 

	2017 
	2017 
	6,267 
	3,407 
	1,166 
	926 
	11,766 

	2018 
	2018 
	6,753 
	3,065 
	1,210 
	1,273 
	12,301 

	2019 
	2019 
	7,148 
	3,572 
	1,131 
	1,131 
	12,982 

	2020 
	2020 
	7,418 
	3,656 
	1,028 
	455 
	12,557 

	2021 
	2021 
	7,940 
	3,731 
	942 
	1,208 
	13,821 


	LAST TEN YEARS (IN THOUSANDS) 
	LAST TEN YEARS (IN THOUSANDS) 
	LAST TEN YEARS (IN THOUSANDS) 

	Calendar Year Ended December 31, 
	Calendar Year Ended December 31, 
	Residential Pro(!erg: 
	Real Pro(!erg: Commercial/ Industrial Pro(!erg: 
	Government/ Institutional Pro(!ertI 
	Personal Pro(!erg: 
	Billions Total Actual & Just Value of Taxable Pro(!erg: 
	Real Property Amendment 10 Excluded Value (bl 
	-

	Exem(!tions (a} Real Property Other Exem(!tions 
	-

	Personal Pro(!erg: 
	Total Taxable Assessed Value 
	Total Direct Tax Rate 

	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	1,874,949 1,907,261 2,137,641 2,388,913 2,577,848 2,702,800 2,964,740 2,997,709 3,114,740 3,635,831 
	1,042,206 1,042,902 1,058,802 1,058,745 1,110,765 1,211,433 1,224,963 1,252,265 1,379,603 1,131,383 
	256,502 250,187 267,240 271,135 299,061 312,785 312,704 316,975 317,514 318,489 
	191,859 201,117 185,585 180,874 190,323 185,169 191,529 192,054 209,160 216,552 
	3,365,516 3,401,467 3,649,268 3,899,667 4,177,997 4,412,187 4,693,936 4,759,003 5,021,017 5,302,255 
	167,191 282,618 454,180 628,869 749,453 710,706 729,019 656,523 652,482 N/A 
	511,365 604,260 602,557 611,211 630,582 691,978 760,004 761,054 765,742 N/A 
	14,560 17,619 18,893 18,311 18,649 19,289 19,436 19,732 19,029 N/A 
	2,672,400 2,496,970 2,573,638 2,641,276 2,779,313 2,990,214 3,185,477 3,321,694 3,583,765 3,737,372 
	2.3518 2.3518 2.3518 2.3518 2.3518 2.3353 2.3127 2.3127 2.3127 2.3127 

	NOTES: * 2021 -Based on preliminary values as final values are NOT yet available. 
	NOTES: * 2021 -Based on preliminary values as final values are NOT yet available. 

	** Property in the Town is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at actual market value. 
	** Property in the Town is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at actual market value. 
	Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value. 

	*** Source: 
	*** Source: 
	Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser 

	**** N/A Information not available as of the issuance of this report 
	**** N/A Information not available as of the issuance of this report 
	-



	Artifact
	LAST TEN YEARS 
	LAST TEN YEARS 
	LAST TEN YEARS 

	(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 
	(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 

	Town of Miami Lakes 
	Town of Miami Lakes 
	Over/a 
	in 
	Rates: 

	Miami-Dade Coun!f 
	Miami-Dade Coun!f 
	Miami-Dade Fire & Rescue 
	Miami-Dade School Board 
	State and Other 

	TR
	South Florida 

	Calendar 
	Calendar 
	Debt 
	Total 
	Debt 
	Debt 
	Total 
	Water 
	Florida Inland 
	Total State 
	Total Direct & 

	Year Ended 
	Year Ended 
	Operating 
	Operating 
	Service 
	County 
	Operating 
	Service 
	Total Fire 
	Operating 
	Service 
	School 
	Public 
	Children's 
	Management 
	Environmental 
	Navigation 
	and Other 
	Overlapping 

	December 31, 2012 
	December 31, 2012 
	Millage 2.3518 
	Total Town 2.3518 
	Millage 4.7035 
	Millage 0.5180 
	Millage 5.2215 
	Millage 2.4500 
	Millage 0.0127 
	Millage 2.4627 
	Millage 7. 7650 
	Millage 0.2330 
	Millage 7.9980 
	LibraŁ 0. 1725 
	Trust 0.5000 
	District 0.3676 
	Projects 0.0613 
	District 0.0345 
	Millage 1.1359 
	Rates 19.1699 

	2013 
	2013 
	2.3518 
	2.3518 
	4.7035 
	o. 7550 
	5.4585 
	2.4500 
	0.0127 
	2.4627 
	7. 7650 
	0.2330 
	7.9980 
	0. 1725 
	0.5000 
	0.3523 
	0.0587 
	0.0345 
	1.1180 
	19.3890 

	2014 
	2014 
	2.3518 
	2.3518 
	4.7035 
	0.4220 
	5. 1255 
	2.4496 
	0.0127 
	2.4623 
	7.6440 
	0.3330 
	7.9770 
	0. 1725 
	0.5000 
	0.3583 
	0.0587 
	0.0345 
	1. 1240 
	19.0406 

	2015 
	2015 
	2.3518 
	2.3518 
	4.6669 
	0.4500 
	5.1169 
	2.4207 
	0.0114 
	2.4321 
	7.7780 
	0. 1990 
	7.9770 
	0.2840 
	0.5000 
	0.1577 
	0.0548 
	0.0345 
	1.0310 
	18.9088 

	2016 
	2016 
	2.3518 
	2.3518 
	4.6669 
	0.4500 
	5.1169 
	2.4207 
	0.0090 
	2.4297 
	7.4130 
	0. 1990 
	7.6120 
	0.2840 
	0.5000 
	0. 1459 
	0.0506 
	0.0320 
	1.0125 
	18.5229 

	2017 
	2017 
	2.3353 
	2.3353 
	4.6669 
	0.4000 
	5.0669 
	2.4207 
	0.0080 
	2.4287 
	7.1380 
	0. 1840 
	7.3220 
	0.2840 
	0.5000 
	0.1359 
	0.0471 
	0.0320 
	0.9990 
	18.1519 

	2018 
	2018 
	2.3127 
	2.3127 
	4.6669 
	0.4644 
	5.1313 
	2.4207 
	0.0080 
	2.4287 
	6.5040 
	0.2290 
	6. 7330 
	0.2840 
	0.4415 
	0.2519 
	0.0417 
	0.0320 
	1.0511 
	17.6568 

	2019 
	2019 
	2.3127 
	2.3127 
	4.6669 
	0.4780 
	5.1449 
	2.4207 
	0.0000 
	2.4207 
	7.0250 
	0. 1230 
	7. 1480 
	0.2840 
	0.4680 
	0.2398 
	0.0397 
	0.0320 
	1.0635 
	18.0898 

	2020 
	2020 
	2.3127 
	2.3127 
	4.6669 
	0.4780 
	5.1449 
	2.4207 
	0.0000 
	2.4207 
	6.9360 
	0. 1930 
	7. 1290 
	0.2840 
	0.4507 
	0.2295 
	0.0380 
	0.0320 
	1.0342 
	18.0415 

	2021 
	2021 
	2.3127 
	2.3127 
	4.6669 
	0.5075 
	5.1744 
	2.4207 
	0.0000 
	2.4207 
	6.8290 
	0. 1800 
	7.0090 
	0.2840 
	0.5000 
	0.2207 
	0.0365 
	0.0320 
	1.0732 
	17.9900 

	Source: Miami-Dade County, Finance Department, Tax Collector's Division. 
	Source: Miami-Dade County, Finance Department, Tax Collector's Division. 


	Percentage of 
	Percentage of 
	Percentage of 

	Total Town 
	Total Town 

	Taxable Assessed 
	Taxable Assessed 

	Rank 
	Rank 
	Value 

	1 
	1 
	10.58% 

	2 
	2 
	3.68% 

	4 
	4 
	0.84% 

	8 
	8 
	0.64% 

	7 
	7 
	0.65% 

	5 
	5 
	0.72% 

	10 
	10 
	0.48% 

	9 
	9 
	0.51% 

	3 
	3 
	0.85% 

	6 
	6 
	0.71% 


	19.66% 
	Collected within the Fiscal 
	Collected within the Fiscal 
	Collected within the Fiscal 

	Year of the Levy 
	Year of the Levy 
	Total Collections To Date 

	TR
	Collections in 

	Fiscal Year ended 
	Fiscal Year ended 
	Taxes Levied for 
	Net Amount 
	Percentage of 
	Subsequent 
	Percentage of 

	Seetember 30, 
	Seetember 30, 
	the Fiscal Year 
	Levied 
	Levl 
	Years 
	Amount 
	Levl 

	2012 
	2012 
	5,807 
	5,258 
	90.55% 
	n/a 
	n/a 
	n/a 

	2013 
	2013 
	5,517 
	4,785 
	86.73% 
	473 
	5,258 
	95.31% 

	2014 
	2014 
	5,904 
	5,525 
	93.58% 
	n/a 
	n/a 
	n/a 

	2015 
	2015 
	6,056 
	5,785 
	95.53% 
	85 
	5,870 
	96.93% 

	2016 
	2016 
	6,329 
	5,872 
	92.78% 
	95 
	5,967 
	94.28% 

	2017 
	2017 
	6,607 
	6,164 
	93.29% 
	103 
	6,267 
	94.85% 

	2018 
	2018 
	7,046 
	6,601 
	93.69% 
	152 
	6,753 
	95.84% 

	2019 
	2019 
	7,433 
	6,980 
	93.90% 
	169 
	7,148 
	96.17% 

	2020 
	2020 
	7,784 
	7,244 
	93.06% 
	174 
	7,418 
	95.30% 

	2021 
	2021 
	8,411 
	7,777 
	92.46% 
	164 
	7,941 
	94.41% 

	Source: 
	Source: 
	Miami-Dade County Property Tax Collector 


	Fiscal Year 
	Fiscal Year 
	Fiscal Year 
	Government Activities Notes Pay:able 
	Special Obligation Bonds Payable, Series 2010 
	Roadway Improvement Special Obligation Loan Pay:able 
	Quality Neighborhood Improvement Program (QNIP) Roadway: 
	Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds 
	Stormwater Revenue Bond Series 2021 
	Other Obligations 
	Total Primary Government 
	PoŁulation 
	Per Capita Personal Income 
	Percentage of Personal Income 
	Debt Per Ca(!ita 
	Pledged Revenue 
	Coverage 

	2012 
	2012 
	7,291,032 
	7,291,032 
	30,057 
	28,756 
	0.84% 
	242.57 
	2,502,818 
	4.56 

	2013 
	2013 
	7,292,412 
	1,855,000 
	9,147,412 
	30,396 
	28,410 
	1.06% 
	300.94 
	2,670,036 
	4.87 

	2014 
	2014 
	7,293,792 
	1,755,000 
	9,048,792 
	30,161 
	27,042 
	1.11% 
	300.02 
	2,849,187 
	5.19 

	2015 
	2015 
	7,295,172 
	1,650,000 
	8,945,172 
	30,791 
	28,006 
	1.04% 
	290.51 
	2,805,937 
	5.12 

	2016 
	2016 
	7,296,552 
	1,006,155 
	449,760 
	8,752,467 
	30,456 
	28,888 
	0.99% 
	287.38 
	2,833,279 
	5.17 

	2017 
	2017 
	7,297,932 
	901,175 
	403,886 
	130,662 
	8,733,655 
	30,873 
	31,020 
	0.91% 
	282.89 
	2,924,957 
	5.33 

	2018 
	2018 
	7,299,312 
	750,330 
	354,446 
	116,144 
	8,520,232 
	31,087 
	33,074 
	0.83% 
	274.08 
	2,965,913 
	5.41 

	2019 
	2019 
	7,300,692 
	703,723 
	302,486 
	101,626 
	8,408,527 
	31,628 
	35,026 
	0.76% 
	265.86 
	3,076,152 
	5.61 

	2020 
	2020 
	6,922,072 
	564,421 
	248,006 
	87,108 
	7,821,607 
	31,367 
	38,295 
	0.65% 
	249.36 
	3,109,645 
	3.40 

	2021 
	2021 
	6,723,452 
	424,402 
	190,766 
	18,725,636 
	72,590 
	26,136,846 
	31,689 
	35,618 
	2.32% 
	824.79 
	3,129,793 
	4.38 

	Note: 
	Note: 
	Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

	The Series 2010 Electric Utility Tax Revenue Bonds provided that pledged revenue shall be adequate to cover at least 125% of the next succeeding year Annual Debt Service Requirement for all bonds outstanding. 
	The Series 2010 Electric Utility Tax Revenue Bonds provided that pledged revenue shall be adequate to cover at least 125% of the next succeeding year Annual Debt Service Requirement for all bonds outstanding. 

	Electric Utility Tax 
	Electric Utility Tax 
	Principal 
	Next Succeeding Year Total Debt Service Interest Requirements 
	Coverage 

	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
	2,502,818 2,670,036 2,849,187 2,805,937 2,833,279 2,924,957 2,965,913 3,076,152 3,109,645 3,129,793 
	380,000 200,000 
	548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 535,104 514,660 
	548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 548,499 915,104 714,660 
	456% 550% 519% 512% 517% 533% 541% 561% 340% 438% 


	Jurisdiction 
	Jurisdiction 
	Jurisdiction 
	Net Debt Outstanding 
	% of Debt Applied to Miami Lakes (1) 
	Amount of Debt Applied to Miami Lakes 

	Miami-Dade County Schools (2) Miami-Dade County (3) Sub-total overlapping debt Town of Miami Lakes direct debt Total direct and overlapping debt 
	Miami-Dade County Schools (2) Miami-Dade County (3) Sub-total overlapping debt Town of Miami Lakes direct debt Total direct and overlapping debt 
	$ 912,173,000 2,274,420,000 3,186,593,000 7,147,854 
	1.11% 1.11% 100.00% 
	$ 10,087,117 25,151,305 35,238,422 7,147,854 

	Sources: 
	Sources: 


	$ 3,193,740,854 $ 42,386,276 
	Table
	TR
	Median Household 
	Total Personal 
	Unemployment 
	Per Capita 

	Calendar Year 2012 2013 
	Calendar Year 2012 2013 
	Population 30,057 30,396 
	Income ($) ( 1 )64,497 
	Income (in 000's) ( 1 )863,550 
	Rate 9.10% 7.00% 
	Personal Income ( 1 )28,410 
	Median Age ( 1 )38 
	School Enrollment 7823 7973 

	2014 
	2014 
	30,161 
	63,754 
	815,614 
	7.40% 
	27,042 
	39 
	7668 

	2015 
	2015 
	30,791 
	65,269 
	862,333 
	5.70% 
	28,006 
	39 
	7,774 

	2016 
	2016 
	30,456 
	66,601 
	879,813 
	5.10% 
	28,888 
	39 
	8,082 

	2017 
	2017 
	30,873 
	72,225 
	957,680 
	3.90% 
	31,020 
	38 
	8,077 

	2018 
	2018 
	31,087 
	72,545 
	1,028,171 
	3.60% 
	33,074 
	39 
	8,222 

	2019 
	2019 
	31,628 
	73,527 
	1,107,802 
	2.70% 
	35,026 
	39 
	8,465 

	2020 
	2020 
	31,367 
	75,762 
	1,201,199 
	8.60% 
	38,295 
	39 
	8,465 

	2021 
	2021 
	31,689 
	77,900 
	1,128,699 
	3.10% 
	35,618 
	41 
	8,501 

	Sources: 
	Sources: 

	Per Capita and Median Household Income information provided by U.S. Bureau of the Census. 
	Per Capita and Median Household Income information provided by U.S. Bureau of the Census. 

	Unemployment rate data provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census or derived from Local Area Unemployment Statistics. 
	Unemployment rate data provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census or derived from Local Area Unemployment Statistics. 

	School enrollment information provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census. 
	School enrollment information provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census. 

	Population information provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census (2000 and 2011) or Florida's Bureau 
	Population information provided by the U.S. Bureau of the Census (2000 and 2011) or Florida's Bureau 

	Economic and Business Research (BEBR). 
	Economic and Business Research (BEBR). 

	Note: 
	Note: 

	(1) 
	(1) 
	Information unavailable 


	Percentage of 
	Percentage of 
	Percentage of 
	Percentage of 

	Total Town 
	Total Town 
	Total Town 

	TR
	Employer 
	Employees 
	Rank 
	Employment 
	Employees 
	Rank 
	Employment 

	BANK UNITED 
	BANK UNITED 
	725 
	1 
	3.51% 
	(a) 

	MIAMI LAKES AUTOMALL 
	MIAMI LAKES AUTOMALL 
	360 
	2 
	1.74% 
	(a) 

	GRAHAM COMPANIES (ML) 
	GRAHAM COMPANIES (ML) 
	335 
	3 
	1.62% 
	486 
	2 
	2.35% 

	CORDIS CORP 
	CORDIS CORP 
	280 
	4 
	1.36% 
	940 
	1 
	4.55% 

	CATERPILLAR LOGISTICS SERVICES, INC. 
	CATERPILLAR LOGISTICS SERVICES, INC. 
	260 
	5 
	1.26% 
	(a) 

	PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS #1129 
	PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS #1129 
	202 
	6 
	0.98% 
	(a) 

	WALGREENS #1219-2 
	WALGREENS #1219-2 
	202 
	7 
	0.98% 
	(a) 

	ANDY FRAIN SERVICES, INC. 
	ANDY FRAIN SERVICES, INC. 
	200 
	8 
	0.97% 
	(a) 

	COSTCO 
	COSTCO 
	187 
	9 
	0.91% 
	(a) 

	LOGISTIC CARE SOLUTIONS 
	LOGISTIC CARE SOLUTIONS 
	177 
	10 
	0.86% 
	(a) 

	INKTEL 
	INKTEL 
	464 
	3 
	2.25% 

	ALL MED SERVICES 
	ALL MED SERVICES 
	300 
	4 
	1.45% 

	NUTRI-FORCE NUTRITION 
	NUTRI-FORCE NUTRITION 
	400 
	5 
	1.94% 

	SCHERING CORPORATION (Merk Pharmaceuticals) 
	SCHERING CORPORATION (Merk Pharmaceuticals) 
	275 
	6 
	1.33% 

	TR
	2,928 
	14.17% 
	2,865 
	13.87% 

	Total Employed 
	Total Employed 
	20,657 

	Note (1) 
	Note (1) 
	U.S. Census Bureau, Selected Economic Characteristics 2008-2011 American Community Survey 

	Note (2) 
	Note (2) 
	U.S. Census Bureau -Census 2000 Summary 

	Note (a) 
	Note (a) 
	Information unavailable 

	Total Employed based on census population x labor force total percentage. 
	Total Employed based on census population x labor force total percentage. 


	LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
	LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

	TR
	Function/Program 
	2012 
	2013 
	2014 
	2015 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 

	Town Clerk's Office 
	Town Clerk's Office 
	4 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Town Administration 
	Town Administration 
	12 
	14 
	12 
	14 
	17 
	12 
	15 
	15 
	14 
	14 

	Building Department Planning, Code Compliance and Development Parks/Recreation and Community Affairs Public Works, Stormwater, Facilities & Transit 
	Building Department Planning, Code Compliance and Development Parks/Recreation and Community Affairs Public Works, Stormwater, Facilities & Transit 
	12 5 16 6 
	19 5 26 7 
	12 4 13 6 
	9 4 8 4 
	10 8 8 4 
	10 3 11 6 
	12 4 12 6 
	13 3 13 7 
	13 3 12 7 
	11 4 12 7 


	Special events per year 
	Special events per year 
	Special events per year 
	-

	47 
	48 
	75 
	65 
	65 
	97 
	202 
	165 
	54 
	54 

	Stormwater Utility Stormwater system linear feet cleaned Number of Stormwater drains cleaned 
	Stormwater Utility Stormwater system linear feet cleaned Number of Stormwater drains cleaned 
	24,500 185 
	34,180 
	26,617 380 
	25,383 328 
	28,602 429 
	32,312 536 
	37,733 706 
	37,999 617 
	23,642 408 
	17,155 291 

	Public Works Road miles (maintained) Street lights (maintained) 
	Public Works Road miles (maintained) Street lights (maintained) 
	60 801 
	60 1,032 
	60 491 
	60 485 
	77 915 
	77 915 
	77 915 
	77 915 
	77 915 
	77 915 

	Sources: 
	Sources: 
	Various Town departments and Miami-Dade County Police Department 


	Culture and Recreation (3) Number of parks Park acreage Community center 
	Culture and Recreation (3) Number of parks Park acreage Community center 
	Culture and Recreation (3) Number of parks Park acreage Community center 
	99 118.3 3 
	101 127.17 3 
	101 127.17 3 
	101 127.17 3 
	101 127.17 3 
	102 127.24 4 
	102 127.24 4 
	102 127.24 4 
	102 127.24 4 
	102 127.24 4 

	Stormwater Drainage (1) Stormwater system -linear feet Stormwater drains catchbasins & manholes 
	Stormwater Drainage (1) Stormwater system -linear feet Stormwater drains catchbasins & manholes 
	-

	88,894 1,560 
	88,894 1,324 
	90,824 1,335 
	90,824 1,335 
	98,835 1,376 
	98,914 1,377 
	104,700 1,396 
	110,498 1,505 
	114,810 1,564 
	123,067 1,666 

	Public Works (2) Road miles Street lights 
	Public Works (2) Road miles Street lights 
	77 2,084 
	77 2,975 
	77 2,362 
	77 2,362 
	77 2,047 
	77 2,047 
	77 2,047 
	77 2,047 
	77 2,047 
	77 2,047 

	(1) (2) (3) (4) 
	(1) (2) (3) (4) 
	Town of Miami Lakes, Stormwater Master Plan Update and GIS analysis performed during fiscal year 2011. Public Works annual state report on road miles, streetlights from Florida Power & Light. Street lights reflect corrections made after an audit with FP & L. Town of Miami Lakes Parks Department Miami-Dade Police Department (represents total units 24 hours, 7 days) 


	T1ee of Coverage Insurer PolicI Period Premium 
	Property 
	Property 
	Property 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	$ 
	103,393 

	General Liability 
	General Liability 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	128,118 

	Public Officals & Employment Practices Liability 
	Public Officals & Employment Practices Liability 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	141,267 

	Automobile Insurance 
	Automobile Insurance 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	14,325 

	Inland Marine 
	Inland Marine 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	2,030 

	Crime/Fidelity 
	Crime/Fidelity 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	792 

	Workers Compensation 
	Workers Compensation 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	18,743 

	Government Crime 
	Government Crime 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	500 

	Generator Fuel Storage Tanks 
	Generator Fuel Storage Tanks 
	Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	836 

	Agency Fee 
	Agency Fee 
	Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc 
	10/1/2020 -09/30/2021 
	20 000 

	TR
	Total Policies 
	!I! 
	430,004 
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	GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 
	MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY SECTION 10.550 OF THE RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
	To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 
	Report on the Financial Statements 
	We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida (the "Town"}, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2022. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	We conducted our audit in accordance auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance}; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
	Other Reporting Requirements 
	We have issued our Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance; Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs; and Independent Accountants' Report on an examination conducted in accordance with A/CPA Professional Standards,
	Prior Audit Findings 
	Section 10.554{1}{i}l., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. 
	Official Title and Legal Authority 
	Section 10.554{1}{i}4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Town was established pursuant to the constitution of the State of Florida, Home Rule Charter of Miami-Dade County, Article 5, Section 5.05. There were no component units related to the Town. 
	GARCIA, ESPINOSA, MIYARES, RODRIGUEZ, TRUEBA & CO., LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS &ADVISORS 
	2600 Douglas Road, Suite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I 
	www.gemrtcpa.com 

	Financial Condition and Management 
	Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Town met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Town did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
	Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the Town. The assessment was completed as of the fiscal year end. It is management's responsibility to monitor the Town's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same. 
	Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any recommendations. 
	Additional Matters 
	Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 
	Purpose of this Letter 
	Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal, State and other granting agencies, members of the Town Council, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
	Figure
	Coral Gables, Florida March 25, 2022 
	Figure
	GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 
	INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
	To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 
	We have examined the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida's {the "Town") compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Management of the Town is responsible for the Town's compliance with those specified requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town's compliance with the specified requirements based on our examination. 
	Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town's compliance with the specified requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Town's compliance with
	In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. 
	This report is intended solely for the information and use of Town management, members of the Town 
	Council, others within the Town, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
	Figure
	Coral Gables, Florida March 25, 2022 
	GARCIA, ESPINOSA, MIYARES, RODRIGUEZ, TRUEBA& CO., LLP CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS &ADVISORS 
	2600 Douglas Road, Suite 800 Coral Gables, FL 33134 I P 305 529 5440 I F 305 529 5441 I 
	www.gemrtcpa.com 

	Figure
	GARCIA ESPI NOSA MIYARES RODRIGUEZ TRUEBA 
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
	To the Honorable Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager Town of Miami Lakes, Florida 
	Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
	We have audited the Town of Miami Lakes, Florida's {the "Town"} compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Town's major Federal programs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. The Town's major Federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
	Management's Responsibility 
	Management is responsible for compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its Federal awards applicable to its Federal programs. 
	Auditors' Responsibility 
	Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town's major Federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
	We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major Federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town's compliance. 
	Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
	In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal programs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. 
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	Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
	Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major Federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion o
	A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasona
	Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
	The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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	SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
	Federal Agency Contract/ Pass-Through Entity CFDA Grant Federal Program Number Number Expenditures 
	FEDERAL AGENCY NAME U.S. Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency Management Assistance Flood Mitigation Assistance Program 
	FEDERAL AGENCY NAME U.S. Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency Management Assistance Flood Mitigation Assistance Program 
	FEDERAL AGENCY NAME U.S. Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency Management Assistance Flood Mitigation Assistance Program 
	97.029 
	B0004 
	$ 
	950,491 

	U.S. Department of Justice Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement Edward Bryne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program Total U.S. Department of Justice U.S. Department of Treasury Pass through Florida Department of Emergency Management Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act -Coronavirus Relief Fund for COVID-19 Pass through Miami-Dade County Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security A
	U.S. Department of Justice Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement Edward Bryne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program Total U.S. Department of Justice U.S. Department of Treasury Pass through Florida Department of Emergency Management Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act -Coronavirus Relief Fund for COVID-19 Pass through Miami-Dade County Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security A
	16.738 16.034 21.019 21.019 
	Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown 
	$ 
	3,943 190,233 2,042,300 


	50,000 53,943 
	847,633 1,037,866 
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
	NOTE 1-GENERAL 
	The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "schedule") includes the federal grant activity of the Town of Miami Lakes. For purposes of this schedule, federal awards include federal assistance received directly from a federal agency, as well as federal funds received indirectly by the Town from state and non-state organizations. 
	NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
	The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements of the Town. 
	The expenditures in the accompanying schedule are presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recognized when the Town becomes obligated for a payment as a result of the receipt of the related goods or services. 
	NOTE 3 -CONTINGENCY 
	The grant revenues received by the Town are subject to review by grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement due to disallowed expenditures. If any expenditures are disallowed by grantor agencies as a result of such an audit, any claim for reimbursement to the grantor agencies would become a liability of the Town. In the opinion of management, all grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms of the grant agreements and applicable federal laws and regulations. 
	NOTE 4-INDIRECTCOST RATE 
	The Town has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
	SECTION I -SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 
	SECTION I -SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 
	SECTION I -SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

	Financial Statements 
	Financial Statements 

	Type of auditors' report issued whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: 
	Type of auditors' report issued whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: 
	Unmodified 

	Internal control over financial reporting: Material weaknesses identified? 
	Internal control over financial reporting: Material weaknesses identified? 
	No 

	Significant deficiencies identified? Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 
	Significant deficiencies identified? Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 
	None reported No 

	Federal Awards 
	Federal Awards 

	Internal control over major Federal programs: Material weaknesses identified? 
	Internal control over major Federal programs: Material weaknesses identified? 
	No 

	Significant deficiencies identified? Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major Federal programs: 
	Significant deficiencies identified? Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major Federal programs: 
	None reported Unmodified 

	Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with CFR 200.516(a)? 
	Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with CFR 200.516(a)? 
	No 

	Identification of major Federal programs: Federal Program Coronavirus Relief Fund for COVID-19 
	Identification of major Federal programs: Federal Program Coronavirus Relief Fund for COVID-19 
	Federal CFDA No. 21.019 

	Flood Mitigation Assistance 
	Flood Mitigation Assistance 
	97.029 

	Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Federal programs: 
	Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Federal programs: 
	$750,000 

	Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee pursuant to the Uniform Guidance? 
	Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee pursuant to the Uniform Guidance? 
	Yes 

	SECTION II -FINDINGS -FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
	SECTION II -FINDINGS -FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

	None. 
	None. 

	SECTION Ill -FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS 
	SECTION Ill -FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

	None. 
	None. 

	SECTION IV -OTHER ISSUES 
	SECTION IV -OTHER ISSUES 


	No Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings is required because there were no prior audit findings related to Federal programs. 
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	IMPACT FEE AFFIDAVIT 
	ed authority, personally appeared Ismael Diaz, who being duly sworn, deposes and says on oath that: 
	BEFORE ME, the undersi
	gn

	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	I am the Chief Financial Officer of the Town of Miami Lakes which is a local governmental entity of the State of Florida; 

	2. 
	2. 
	The governing body of the Town of IV1iami Lakes entered into contract with Miami-Dade County which authorized the Town of Miami Lakes to receive and expend proceeds of an impact fee implemented by Miami-Dade County adopted through Ordinances 90-31and 90-59 implementing impact fees; and 
	a 


	3. 
	3. 
	The Town of Miami Lakes has complied and, as of the date of this Affidavit, remains in compliance with Section 163.31801 , Florida Statutes. 


	FURTHER AFFIANT SA YETI-I NAUGI-1 
	STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF Miami-Dade 
	SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED befo,e me this day of , 2022. 
	f..Ł
	Ł Ł cAII 
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	Peisonally known Ł pmduced identification ____ 
	Type of identification produced: _____ _ __________ _ 
	My Commission Expires: 
	i•: 
	:•i MYCOMMISSION# HH 108341 
	, ,Rr.r,Ł,,,, 






